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Issue of 650 (Six Hundred Fifty) Rated, Listed, Senior, Secured, Redeemable, Taxable,
Non-Convertible Debentures of face value of Rs. 10,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Lakhs only)
each, aggregating up to Rs. 65,00,00,000/- (Rupees Sixty Five Crores) (“Debentures”) on
a private placement basis (the “Issue”).

Background

This Information Memorandum is related to the Debentures (defined below) to be issued by Clix Capital
Services Private Limited (the “Issuer” or “Company”) on a private placement basis and contains
relevant information and disclosures required for the purpose of issuing of the Debentures. The issue of
the Debentures comprised in the Issue and described under this Information Memorandum has been
authorised by the Issuer through resolutions passed by the shareholders of the Issuer on December 26,
2019 and the Board of Directors of the Issuer on November 28, 2019 (provided in Annexure I)and the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company. Pursuant to the resolution passed by the
Company’s shareholders dated December 26, 2019 (provided in Annexure 11) in accordance with
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has been authorised to borrow, upon such terms
and conditions as the Board may think fit, for amounts up to Rs. 3000,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Three
Thousand Crores. The present issue of NCDs in terms of this Information Memorandum is within the
overall powers of the Board as per the above shareholder resolution(s).

The Issue would be under the electronic book mechanism for issuance of debt securities on private
placement basis as per the SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS/CIR/P/2018/05 dated January 5, 2018 as
amended by way of the circular SEBI/HO/DDHS/CIR/P/2018/122 dated August 16, 2018 and any
amendments thereto (“SEBI EBP Circular”) read with the “Updated Operational Guidelines for
issuance of Securities on Private Placement basis through an Electronic Book Mechanism” issued by
NSE (“NSE EBP Guidelines”, together with the “SEBI EBP Circular” referred to as the “Operational
Guidelines™). The Issuer intends to use the NSE Bond - EBP Platform for inviting bids and making
disclosures required under Schedule 1 of the SEBI Debt Listing Regulations.

General Risks

Investment in debt and debt related securities involve a degree of risk and Investors should not invest
any funds in the debt instruments, unless they can afford to take the risks attached to such investments
and only after reading the information carefully. For taking an investment decision, the Investors must




rely on their own examination of the Company and the Issue including the risks involved. The
Debentures have not been recommended or approved by Securities and Exchange Board of India
(“SEBI”) nor does SEBI guarantee the accuracy or adequacy of this document. Specific attention of
Investors is invited to the statement of Risk Factors at Section 3 of this memorandum of private
placement for issue of Debentures on a private placement basis (“Information Memorandum” or
“Disclosure Document”). This Information Memorandum has not been submitted, cleared or approved
by the SEBI.

Issuer’s Absolute Responsibility

The Issuer, having made all reasonable inquiries, confirms and represents that the information contained
in this Information Memorandum / Disclosure Document is true and correct in all material respects and
is not misleading in any material respect, that the opinions and intentions expressed herein are honestly
held and that there are no other facts, the omission of which makes this document as a whole or any of
such information or the expression of any such opinions or intentions misleading in any material respect.
The Issuer is solely responsible for the correctness, adequacy and disclosure of all relevant information
herein.

Credit Rating

The Debentures proposed to be issued by the Issuer have been rated by CARE Ratings, vide letter dated
12 August, 2020 assigned a rating of “A+” (pronounced as “ A Plus”) with “stable” outlook in respect
of'the Debentures. The above rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and Investors
should make their own decision in this regard. The ratings may be subject to revision or withdrawal at
any time by the Credit Rating Agency and should be evaluated independently of any other ratings.
Please refer to Annexure III of this Information Memorandum for the letter dated 12 August, 2020
from the Credit Rating Agency assigning the credit rating abovementioned and disclosing the rating
rationale adopted for the aforesaid rating.

Issue Schedule

Issue Opens on: August 14,2020
Issue Closing on: August 14,2020
Deemed Date of Allotment: August 17,2020

The Issuer reserves the right to change the Issue Schedule including the Deemed Date of Allotment at
its sole discretion, without giving any reasons or prior notice. The Issue shall be open for subscription
during the banking hours on each day during the period covered by the Issue Schedule.

The Debentures are proposed to be listed on the wholesale debt market of the National Stock Exchange
(GGNSE!”)‘

Registrar & Transfer Agent Debenture Trustee
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SECTION 1: DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS

Unless the context otherwise indicates or requires, the following terms shall have the meanings given
below in this Information Memorandum. Capitalised terms used, but not defined in this Information
Memorandum shall have the meanings assigned to such terms under the Debenture Trust Deed.

Allot / Allotment / Allotted

Unless the context otherwise requires or implies, the allotment of
the Debentures pursuant to this Issue.

Application Form

The form used by the recipient of this Disclosure Document and
/ or the Private Placement Offer Letter, to apply for subscription
to the Debentures, which is annexed to this Information
Memorandum and marked as Annexure VI.

AUM

Assets under management

Board / Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of the Issuer.

Business Day

Any day of the week (excluding Sundays and any other day
which is a ‘public holiday’ for the purpose of Section 25 of the
Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881 (26 of 1881)) on which banks
are normally open for business in Mumbai and New Delhi and
“Business Days” shall be construed accordingly.

CAGR

Compound annual growth rate

CDSL

Central Depository Services (India) Limited.

Credit Rating Agency

Any domestic credit rating agency including CARE, CRISIL,
ICRA and India Ratings and international credit rating agencies
such as Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s and such other credit
rating agencies identified and / or recognized by RBI from time
to time.

Debentures / NCDs

650 (Sixty Hundred Fifty) Rated, Secured, Senior, Redeemable,
Taxable, Transferable, Listed, Non-convertible Debentures
bearing a face value of Rs. 10,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Lakhs only)
each, aggregating to Rs. 65,00,00,000/- (Rupees Sixty Five
Crores only).

Debenture Holders /

Investors

The holders of the Debentures issued by the Issuer and shall
include the registered transferees of the Debentures from time to
time.

Deemed Date of Allotment

the date of receipt of subscription amounts for the Debentures i.e.
August 17,2020

Debenture Trustee

Catalyst Trusteeship Limited.

Debenture Trustee

Agreement

Agreement to be executed by and between the Debenture Trustee
and the Company for the purposes of appointment of the
Debenture Trustee to act as debenture trustee in connection with
the issuance of the Debentures.

Debenture Trust Deed

Shall mean the debenture trust deed executed / to be executed by
the Company which will set out the terms upon which the
Debentures are being issued and shall include the representations
and warranties and the covenants to be provided by the Company.

Deed of Hypothecation

The deed of hypothecation entered / to be executed by the Issuer,
pursuant to which hypothecation over Hypothecated Receivables
shall be created by the Issuer in favour of the Debenture Trustee
(acting for and on behalf of the Debenture Holders).




Demat

Refers to the dematerialisation of securities in electronic form,
with the entries noted by the Depository.

Depositories Act

The Depositories Act, 1996, as amended from time to time.

Depository

A depository registered with SEBI under the SEBI (Depositories
and Participant) Regulations, 1996, as amended from time to
time.

Depository Participant / DP

A depository participant as defined under the Depositories Act.

Director(s)

Director(s) on the Board of the Issuer.

Disclosure Document /
Information Memorandum

This document which sets out the information regarding the
Debentures being issued by the Issuer on a private placement
basis.

DP ID Depository Participant Identification Number.

Due Date Any date on which the holders of the Debentures are entitled to
any payments, whether as interest/ coupon or principal amounts,
whether on maturity or earlier, on exercise of an option to redeem
the Debentures prior to the scheduled Maturity Date or
acceleration.

EBP Electronic Book Provider

EFT Electronic Fund Transfer.

Financial Year/ FY Twelve months period commencing from April 1 of a particular
year and ending on March 31 of the subsequent year.

GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles prescribed by the

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India from time to time and
consistently applied by the Issuer.

Gross Loan Portfolio

Shall mean and includes the outstanding principal amount of the
loans originated by the Borrower on its own books, securitized
portfolio.

G.S.T. Goods and Services Tax.
GE Money GE Money Financial Services Limited
Issue Private Placement of Debentures.

Issue Closing Date

August 14,2020

Issue Opening Date

August 14,2020

Issuer / Company

Clix Capital Services Private Limited

Key Management
Personnel

Shall have meaning as per the Companies Act 2013 and shall
include (i) chief executive officer or the managing director or
manager; (ii) the chief financial officer of the Company; (iii) the
company secretary of the Company; (iv) the whole-time director
of the Company; and (v) such other officer, not more than one
level below the directors who is in whole-time employment,
designated as key managerial personnel by the Board

Maturity Date

February 17,2022, subject to a call Option or, such other date on
which the final payment of the principal of the Debentures
becomes due and payable as therein or herein provided, whether
at such stated maturity date, by declaration of acceleration, or
otherwise.

MSME

Micro, small and medium enterprises

N/A

Not Applicable.

NSDL

National Securities Depository Limited.

NSE Bond — EBP Platform

Electronic Book Provider Platform of NSE for issuance of debt
securities on private placement basis.




PAN

Permanent Account Number.

Payment Date

A date when any sum is due and payable under the Transaction
Documents, including but not limited to the Interest Payment
Date, Scheduled Redemption Date, Accelerated Redemption
Date, Put Option Exercise Date, Final Settlement Date.

Private Placement Offer
Letter

Shall mean the offer letter prepared in compliance with Section
42 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014.

Portfolio at Risk > 30 Days
or PAR 30

Shall mean in relation to the Company’s Gross Loan Portfolio
aggregate outstanding principal value of the relevant credit
facilities provided by the Company that have one or more
instalments of principal, or interest payments overdue for 90
(ninety) days or more and includes restructured loans but
excludes loans that have been written-off by the Company.

RBI Reserve Bank of India.

Redemption Date Any Scheduled Redemption Date, or any other date on which the
Debentures may be redeemed as under the Transaction
Documents.

Record Date The date which will be used for determining the Debenture
Holders who shall be entitled to receive the amounts due on any
Due Date, which shall be the date falling 15 (Fifteen) calendar
days prior to any Due Date.

R&T Agent Registrar and transfer agent to the Issue, in this case being Link
Intime India Private Limited

ROC Registrar of Companies.

Rs./INR Indian Rupee.

RTGS Real Time Gross Settlement.

SEBI Securities and Exchange Board of India constituted under the

Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (as amended
from time to time).

SEBI Debt Listing
Regulations

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of
Debt Securities) Regulation, 2008 issued by SEBI, as amended
from time to time.

TDS

Tax Deducted at Source.

The Companies Act / the
Act

The Companies Act, 2013 or where applicable, the provisions of
the Companies Act, 1956, still in force.

Terms & Conditions

Shall mean the terms and conditions pertaining to the Issue as
outlined in the Transaction Documents.

Transaction Documents

Shall mean the documents executed or to be executed in relation
to the issuance of the Debentures as more particularly set out in
Section 8

WDM

Wholesale Debt Market.

Wilful Defaulter

Shall mean an Issuer who is categorized as a wilful defaulter by
any Bank or financial institution or consortium thereof, in
accordance with the guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the
Reserve Bank of India and includes an issuer whose director or
promoter is categorized as such in accordance with Regulation
2(n) of SEBI (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,
2008.




SECTION 2: NOTICE TO INVESTORS AND DISCLAIMERS

2.1 ISSUER’S DISCLAIMER

This Information Memorandum is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu of a prospectus and should
not be construed to be a prospectus or a statement in lieu of a prospectus under the Companies Act,
2013. This Information Memorandum has been prepared in conformity with the SEBI Debt Listing
Regulations and Companies Act to provide general information about the Issuer and the Debentures to
Eligible Investors and shall be uploaded on the NSE Bond - EBP Platform to facilitate invitation of bids.
The issue of the Debentures to be listed on the WDM segment of the NSE is being made strictly on a
private placement basis. Multiple copies hereof given to the same entity shall be deemed to be given to
the same person and shall be treated as such. This Information Memorandum does not constitute and
shall not be deemed to constitute an offer or invitation to subscribe to the Debentures to the public in
general.

This Information Memorandum is being uploaded on the NSE Bond - EBP Platform to comply with the
Operational Guidelines and an offer shall be made upon the issue of the offer document after completion
of the bidding process on Issue to successful bidders in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act, and rules issued thereunder.

As per the applicable provisions, it is not necessary for a copy of this Information Memorandum /
Disclosure Document to be filed or submitted to the SEBI for its review and / or approval. However,
pursuant to the provisions of Section 42 of the Act read with the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment
of Securities) Rules, 2014, the copy of this Information Memorandum and the Private Placement Offer
Letter shall be filed with the ROC and SEBI within the stipulated timelines under the Companies Act,
2013.

This Information Memorandum has been prepared in conformity with the SEBI Debt Listing Regulations
as amended from time to time and the applicable RBI Circulars governing private placements of
debentures by Non- Banking Financial Companies (“NBFC(s)”). This Information Memorandum has
been prepared solely to provide general information about the Issuer and shall be uploaded on the NSE
Bond-EBP Platform to facilitate invitation of bids. This Information Memorandum does not purport to
contain all the information that any eligible investor may require. Further, this Information
Memorandum has been prepared for informational purposes relating to this transaction only and upon
the express understanding that it will be used only for the purposes set forth herein.

Neither this Information Memorandum nor any other information supplied in connection with the
Debentures is intended to provide the basis of any credit or other evaluation and any recipient of this
Information Memorandum should not consider such receipt as a recommendation to subscribe to any
Debentures. Each potential Investor contemplating subscription to any Debentures should make its own
independent investigation of the financial condition and affairs of the Issuer, and its own appraisal of
the creditworthiness of the Issuer. Potential Investors should consult their own financial, legal, tax and
other professional advisors as to the risks and investment considerations arising from an investment in
the Debentures and should possess the appropriate resources to analyse such investment and the
suitability of such investment to such potential Investor’s particular circumstances.

The Issuer confirms that, as of the date hereof, this Information Memorandum (including the documents
incorporated by reference herein, if any) contains all the information that is material in the context of
the Issue and regulatory requirements in relation to the Issue and is accurate in all such material respects.
No person has been authorized to give any information or to make any representation not contained or
incorporated by reference in this Information Memorandum or in any material made available by the
Issuer to any potential Investor pursuant hereto and, if given or made, such information or representation
must not be relied upon as having been authorized by the Issuer. The Issuer certifies that the disclosures
made in this Information Memorandum and / or the Private Placement Offer Letter are adequate and in
conformity with the SEBI Debt Listing Regulations. Further, the Issuer accepts no responsibility for




statements made otherwise than in the Information Memorandum or any other material issued by or at
the instance of the Issuer and anyone placing reliance on any source of information other than this
Information Memorandum would be doing so at its own risk.

This Information Memorandum and the contents hereof are restricted for providing information
under SEBI Debt Listing Regulations for the purpose of inviting bids on the NSE BOND-EBP
Platform. An offer of private placement shall be made by the Issuer by way of issue of the offer
document to the identified investors who have been addressed through a communication by the
Issuer. All Eligible Investors are required to comply with the relevant regulations/ guidelines
applicable to them, including but not limited to the Operational Guidelines for investing in this
Issue. The contents of this Information Memorandum and any other information supplied in
connection with this Information Memorandum or the Debentures are intended to be used only
by those Eligible Investors to whom it is distributed. It is not intended for distribution to any other
person and should not be reproduced or disseminated by the recipient.

The Issue of the Debentures will be under the electronic book mechanism as required in terms of the
Operational Guidelines.

No offer of private placement is being made to any persons other than the successful bidders on the NSE
Bond-EBP Platform to whom the offer document will be separately sent by or on behalf of the Issuer.
Any application by any person who is not a successful bidder (as determined in accordance with the
Operational Guidelines) shall be rejected without assigning any reason.

The person who is in receipt of this Information Memorandum and / or the Private Placement Offer
Letter shall not reproduce or distribute in whole or part or make any announcement in public or to a third
party regarding the contents hereof without the consent of the Issuer. The recipient agrees to keep
confidential all information provided (or made available hereafter), including, without limitation, the
existence and terms of the Issue, any specific pricing information related to the Issue or the amount or
terms of any fees payable to us or other parties in connection with the Issue. This Information
Memorandum and / or the Private Placement Offer Letter may not be photocopied, reproduced, or
distributed to others at any time without the prior written consent of the Issuer. Upon request, the
recipients will promptly return all material received from the Issuer (including this Information
Memorandum) without retaining any copies hereof. If any recipient of this Information Memorandum
and / or the Private Placement Offer Letter decides not to participate in the Issue, that recipient must
promptly return this Information Memorandum and / or the Private Placement Offer Letter and all
reproductions whether in whole or in part and any other information statement, notice, opinion,
memorandum, expression or forecast made or supplied at any time in relation thereto or received in
connection with the Issue to the Issuer.

The Issuer does not undertake to update the Information Memorandum and / or the Private Placement
Offer Letter to reflect subsequent events after the date of Information Memorandum and / or the Private
Placement Offer Letter and thus it should not be relied upon with respect to such subsequent events
without first confirming its accuracy with the Issuer.

Neither the delivery of this Information Memorandum and / or the Private Placement Offer Letter nor
any sale of Debentures made hereafter shall, under any circumstances, constitute a representation or
create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the Issuer since the date hereof.

This Information Memorandum and / or the Private Placement Offer Letter does not constitute, nor may
it be used for or in connection with, an offer or solicitation by anyone in any jurisdiction in which such
offer or solicitation is not authorized or to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such an offer or
solicitation. No action is being taken to permit an offering of the Debentures or the distribution of this
Information Memorandum and / or the Private Placement Offer Letter in any jurisdiction where such
action is required. Persons into whose possession this Information Memorandum comes are required to
inform themselves about and to observe any such restrictions. The Information Memorandum is made
available to potential Investors in the Issue on the strict understanding that it is confidential.




2.2 DISCLAIMER CLAUSE OF STOCK EXCHANGES

As required, a copy of this Information Memorandum has been filed with the NSE in terms of the SEBI
Debt Listing Regulations. It is to be distinctly understood that submission of this Information
Memorandum to the NSE should not in any way be deemed or construed to mean that this Information
Memorandum has been reviewed, cleared, or approved by the NSE; nor does the NSE in any manner
warrant, certify or endorse the correctness or completeness of any of the contents of this Information
Memorandum, nor does the NSE warrant that the Issuer’s Debentures will be listed or will continue to
be listed on the NSE; nor does the NSE take any responsibility for the soundness of the financial and
other conditions of the Issuer, its promoters, its management or any scheme or project of the Issuer.

2.3 DISCLAIMER CLAUSE OF SEBI

As per the provisions of the SEBI Debt Listing Regulations, it is not stipulated that a copy of this
Information Memorandum has to be filed with or submitted to the SEBI for its review / approval. It is
to be distinctly understood that this Information Memorandum should not in any way be deemed or
construed to have been approved or vetted by SEBI and that this Issue is not recommended or approved
by SEBI. SEBI does not take any responsibility either for the financial soundness of any proposal for
which the Debentures issued thereof is proposed to be made or for the correctness of the statements
made or opinions expressed in this Information Memorandum. However, the Company undertakes to
file this Information Memorandum and / or the Private Placement Offer Letter with SEBI within 30 days
from the Deemed Date of Allotment as per the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder.

2.4 DISCLAIMER IN RESPECT OF JURISDICTION

This Issue is made in India to Investors as specified under the clause titled “Eligible Investors™ of this
Information Memorandum, who shall be / have been identified upfront by the Issuer. This Information
Memorandum and / or the Private Placement Offer Letter does not constitute an offer to sell or an
invitation to subscribe to Debentures offered hereby to any person to whom it is not specifically
addressed. Any disputes arising out of this Issue will be subject to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts
and tribunals at Chennai. This Information Memorandum and / or the Private Placement Offer Letter
does not constitute an offer to sell or an invitation to subscribe to the Debentures herein, in any other
jurisdiction to any person to whom it is unlawful to make an offer or invitation in such jurisdiction.

2.5 DISCLAIMER IN RESPECT OF RATING AGENCIES

Ratings are opinions on credit quality and are not recommendations to sanction, renew, disburse or recall
the concerned bank facilities or to buy, sell or hold any security. The Credit Rating Agency has based
its ratings on information obtained from sources believed by it to be accurate and reliable. The Credit
Rating Agency does not, however, guarantee the accuracy, adequacy or completeness of any information
and is not responsible for any errors or omissions or for the results obtained from the use of such
information. Most entities whose bank facilities / instruments are rated by the Credit Rating Agency
have paid a credit rating fee, based on the amount and type of bank facilities / instruments.

2.6 ISSUE OF DEBENTURES IN DEMATERIALISED FORM

The Debentures will be issued in dematerialised form. The Issuer has made arrangements with the
Depositories for the issue of the Debentures in dematerialised form. Investors will have to hold the
Debentures in dematerialised form as per the provisions of Depositories Act. The Issuer shall take
necessary steps to credit the Debentures allotted to the beneficiary account maintained by the Investor
with its depositary participant. The Issuer will make the Allotment to Investors on the Deemed Date of
Allotment after verification of the Application Form, the accompanying documents and on realisation
of the application money.




SECTION 3: RISK FACTORS

The following are the risks relating to the Company, the Debentures and the market in general envisaged
by the management of the Company. Potential Investors should carefully consider all the risk factors in
this Information Memorandum and / or the Private Placement Offer Letter for evaluating the Company
and its business and the Debentures before making any investment decision relating to the Debentures.
The Company believes that the factors described below represent the principal risks inherent in investing
in the Debentures, but does not represent that the statements below regarding risks of holding the
Debentures are exhaustive. The ordering of the risk factors is intended to facilitate ease of reading and
reference and does not in any manner indicate the importance of one risk factor over another. Investors
should also read the detailed information set out elsewhere in this Information Memorandum and / or
the Private Placement Offer Letter and reach their own views prior to making any investment decision.

3.1 REPAYMENT IS SUBJECT TO THE CREDIT RISK OF THE ISSUER.

Potential Investors should be aware that receipt of the principal amount, (i.e. the Redemption Amount)
and any other amounts that may be due in respect of the Debentures is subject to the credit risk of the
Issuer. Potential Investors assume the risk that the Issuer will not be able to satisfy their obligations
under the Debentures. In the event that bankruptcy proceedings or composition, scheme of arrangement
or similar proceedings to avert bankruptcy are instituted by or against the Issuer, the payment of sums
due on the Debentures may not be made or may be substantially reduced or delayed.

3.2 THE SECONDARY MARKET FOR DEBENTURES MAY BE ILLIQUID.

The Debentures may be very illiquid and no secondary market may develop in respect thereof. Even if
there is a secondary market for the Debentures, it is not likely to provide significant liquidity. Potential
Investors may have to hold the Debentures until redemption to realize any value.

3.3 CREDIT RISK & RATING DOWNGRADE RISK

The Credit Rating Agency has assigned the credit ratings to the Debentures. In the event of deterioration
in the financial health of the Issuer, there is a possibility that the Credit Rating Agency may downgrade
the rating of the Debentures. In such cases, potential Investors may incur losses on revaluation of their
investment or make provisions towards sub-standard / non-performing investment as per their usual
norms.

3.4 CHANGES IN INTEREST RATES MAY AFFECT THE PRICE OF NCDs.

All securities where a fixed rate of interest is offered, such as this Issue, are subject to price risk. The
price of such securities will vary inversely with changes in prevailing interest rates, i.e. when interest
rates rise, prices of fixed income securities fall and when interest rates drop, the prices increase. The
extent of fall or rise in the prices is a function of the existing coupon, days to maturity and the increase
or decrease in the level of prevailing interest rates. Increased rates of interest, which frequently
accompany inflation and / or a growing economy, are likely to have a negative effect on the pricing of
the Debentures.

3.5 TAX CONSIDERATIONS AND LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS

Special tax considerations and legal considerations may apply to certain types of investors. Potential
Investors are urged to consult with their own financial, legal, tax and other advisors to determine any
financial, legal, tax and other implications of this investment.

3.6 ACCOUNTING CONSIDERATIONS

Special accounting considerations may apply to certain types of taxpayers. Potential Investors are urged
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to consult with their own accounting advisors to determine implications of this investment.

3.7 SECURITY MAYBE INSUFFICIENT TO REDEEM THE DEBENTURES

In the event that the Company is unable to meet its payment and other obligations towards Investors
under the terms of the Debentures, the Debenture Trustee may enforce the Security as per the terms of
security documents, and other related documents. The Investor’s recovery in relation to the Debentures
will be subject to (i) the market value of such secured property, (ii) finding willing buyers for the Security
at a price sufficient to repay the potential Investors amounts outstanding under the Debentures. The value
realised from the enforcement of the Security may be insufficient to redeem the Debentures.

3.8 MATERIAL CHANGES IN REGULATIONS TO WHICH THE ISSUER IS SUBJECT
COULD IMPAIR THE ISSUER’S ABILITY TO MEET PAYMENT OR OTHER
OBLIGATIONS.

The Issuer is subject generally to changes in Indian law, as well as to changes in government regulations
and policies and accounting principles. Any changes in the regulatory framework could adversely affect
the profitability of the Issuer or its future financial performance, by requiring a restructuring of its
activities, increasing costs or otherwise.

3.9 LEGALITY OF PURCHASE

Potential Investors of the Debentures will be responsible for the lawfulness of the acquisition of the
Debentures, whether under the laws of the jurisdiction of its incorporation or the jurisdiction in which it
operates or for compliance by that potential Investor with any law, regulation or regulatory policy
applicable to it.

3.10  POLITICAL AND ECONOMIC RISK IN INDIA

The Issuer operates only within India and, accordingly, all of its revenues are derived from the domestic
market. As a result, it is highly dependent on prevailing economic conditions in India and its results of
operations are significantly affected by factors influencing the Indian economy. An uncertain economic
situation, in India and globally, could result in a further slowdown in economic growth, investment and
consumption. A slowdown in the rate of growth in the Indian economy could result in lower demand for
credit and other financial products and services and higher defaults. Any slowdown in the growth or
negative growth of sectors where the Issuer has a relatively higher exposure could adversely impact its
performance. Any such slowdown could adversely affect its business, prospects, results of operations
and financial condition.

3.11 RISKS RELATED TO THE BUSINESS OF THE ISSUER
(a) Business Risk Profile

Prior to acquisition of the Company by the current shareholders in August 2016, growth in the lending
business remained subdued primarily owing to GE Money’s strategy to exit its lending business in
India. However, with the change in management, the AUM of the company has grown at a CAGR of
approximately 100% (one hundred per cent) over the last 3 (three) years. AUM grew by 44% (forty four
per cent) as on March 31, 2019, to Rs 29.47 billion from Rs 20.26 billion as on March 31, 2018.

In terms of portfolio mix, the proportion of retail loan book has increased to 65% as on Sep 30, 2019
from 45% as on March 31, 2019 and 25% on March 31 2018, driven by growth in new products in the
retail segment, particularly SME finance and consumer lending.

Over the past two years, the company has started disbursals in the new product categories such as
consumer finance, personal loans, business loans and loan against electronic payments in the SME
segment. [t intends to have a more diversified portfolio in the medium term with majority of the portfolio
in consumer finance, SME finance healthcare finance and balance in corporate finance. Further, the
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company intends to improve the granularity in the loan book and increase focus on lower ticket size
loans (less than Rs 10 million), as of March 2019, 70% of the total retail portfolio (retail, SME Finance
and healthcare finance) consisted of ticket size less than Rs 10 million.

With limited presence in these segments, the company has, over the past few quarters, invested in
building up the requisite infrastructure such as branch network, sales force and branch staff,
technological solutions for effective customer targeting, and analytical frameworks.

Ability to execute growth plans in the consumer segment while maintaining healthy credit quality will
be a monitorable given the intense competition from banks and other NBFCs in this segment.

Further, the incremental disbursements in the corporate book has witnessed nil delinquency in fiscal
2019 and the retail book delinquency was negligible in fiscal 2019. The ability to grow in the newer
segments without impairing portfolio performance will be critical and remain monitorable in the medium
term.

Given the evolving situation for non-banking financial companies, as regards liquidity, since September
2018, asset quality in some of the business segments including micro, small, and medium enterprises
(MSME) segment, would be a key monitorable. This stems from sensitivity of borrowers to an
environment of prolonged liquidity tightness. Delinquencies in these loans are not high currently owing
to strong credit appraisal and risk-mitigating mechanisms.

Further, on liability, the Company constantly strives to broaden its investor profile and has increased its
lender base to 10 financial institutions in just 3 years of operations. Currently, the liability book is well
diversified across various instruments (loan, NCD) . The ability to further add investors and diversify
source of funding will be monitorable in the challenging market environments.

(b) Financial risk profile

e The Company is backed by AION Capital (a part of Apollo Global, one of the largest fund managers
with global AUM of more than USD 300 bn) which owns significant stake in the Company.

e Recently promoters including AION have committed fresh capital of Rs.250.0 crore for the
Company on September 30, 2019.

e Total Capital Adequacy of the company stood at 27.3% as on March 31, 2020 (Unaudited numbers).

e The Company’s capitalization is supported by its ability to raise additional capital, through either
existing sponsors or new investors as and when required.

(c¢) Conservative liquidity policy
The Company follows a conservative liquidity management policy with stringent stress testing
framework where it maintains adequate liquidity buffer in the form of cash, cash equivalents and
undrawn bank lines against total debt maturing in the next three months

Stress testing is done on weekly basis for Short & Moderate to Long term stress scenarios
e Short term - next 30 days of all debt repayments to be kept in the form of cash or cash equivalents
assuming no inflows from assets

Moderate term - next 75 days of all CP/NCD repayments and 20% of all bank loan repayments falling
due in next 365 days to be kept aside in Cash or cash equivalents
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SECTION 4: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The audited financial statements of the Issuer for the FY ended 31.03.2020, 31.03.2019, 31.03.2018, and
31.03. 2017 are set out in Annexure VII hereto
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SECTION 5: REGULATORY DISCLOSURES

The Information Memorandum is prepared in accordance with the provisions of SEBI Debt Listing
Regulations and in this section, the Issuer has set out the details required as per Schedule I of the SEBI
Debt Listing Regulations.

5.1

Documents Submitted to the Exchanges

The following documents have been / shall be submitted to the NSE:

A.

5.2

Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Issuer and necessary resolution(s) for the
allotment of the Debentures;

Copy of last 3 ( Three) years audited annual reports of the Company;

Statement containing particulars of, dates of, and parties to all material contracts and
agreements;

Copy of the resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company at the Annual General
Meeting held on December 28, 2019 authorizing the issue / offer of non-convertible debentures
by the Company;

Copy of the resolutions passed by the Board of Directors dated November 26, 2019 authorizing
the borrowing and list of authorized signatories;

Certified true copy of the resolution passed by the Company at the Extra Ordinary General
Meeting held on December 26, 2019 authorising the Company to borrow, upon such terms as
the Board may think fit, up to an aggregate limit of INR 3,000,00,00,000/(Indian Rupees Three
Thousand Crores Only);

An undertaking from the Issuer stating that the necessary documents for the creation of the
charge, including the Debenture Trust Deed would be executed within the time frame prescribed
in the relevant regulations / acts / rules etc. and the same would be uploaded on the website of
the NSE, where the debt securities have been listed, within 5 (Five) working days of execution
of the same;

Where applicable, an undertaking that permission / consent from the prior creditor for the
proposed security being created, in favour of the trustees to the proposed issue has been
obtained; and

Any other particulars or documents that the recognized stock exchange may call for as it deems
fit.

Documents Submitted to Debenture Trustee

The following documents have been / shall be submitted to the Debenture Trustee in electronic form
(soft copy) on or before the allotment of the Debentures:

A.

B.
C.

Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Issuer and necessary resolution(s) for the
allotment of the Debentures;

Copy of last 3 (Three) years audited annual reports of the Issuer;

Statement containing particulars of, dates of, and parties to all material contracts and
agreements;

Latest audited / limited review half yearly consolidated (wherever available) and standalone
financial information (profit & loss statement, balance sheet and cash flow statement) and
auditor qualifications, if any.

An undertaking to the effect that the Issuer would, until the redemption of the debt securities,
submit the details mentioned in point (D) above to the Debenture Trustee within the timelines
as mentioned in Simplified Listing Agreement issued by SEBI vide circular No.
SEBI/IMD/BOND/1/2009/11/05 dated May 11, 2009 as amended from time to time, for
furnishing / publishing its half yearly / annual result. Further, the Issuer shall within 180 (One
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5.3

5.4

Hundred And Eighty) days from the end of the financial year, submit a copy of the latest annual
report to the Debenture Trustee and the Debenture Trustee shall be obliged to share the details
submitted under this clause with all ‘Qualified Institutional Buyers’ and other existing
debenture-holders within 2 (Two) Business Days of their specific request.

Name, Address of Registered Office and Other Details of the Issuer

Name:

Clix Capital Services Private Limited

Registered Office of Issuer:

4™ floor, Kailash Building, Kasturba Gandhi Marg,
Connaught Place New Delhi North East Delhi 110001 IN

Corporate Office of Issuer:

801 B, 8" Floor, Two Horizon Centre, DLF Phase-5,
Gurugram 122002 Haryana IN

Compliance  Officer  of | Mr. Ashhish Pandey
Issuer:
CFO of Issuer: Ms. Rashmi Mohanty

Registration Number:

116256

Corporate Identification
Number:

U65929DL1994PTC116256

Phone No.:

0124 330 2000

Fax No:

0124 428 2851

Contact Person:

Mr. Ashhish K Paanday

Email:

ashhish.paanday@clix.capital

Website of Issuer:

Auditors of the Issuer:

S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
ICAI Firm Registration No. 101049W/E300004

Trustee to the Issue:

Catalyst Trusteeship Limited,
GDA House, Plot No. 85, Bhusari Colony (Right), Paud
Road, Pune — 411 038

Registrar to the Issue:

Link Intime India Pvt Ltd

Address: 247, Lal Bahadur Shastri Marg, Surya Nagar,
Gandhi Nagar, Vikhroli West, Mumbai, Maharashtra —
400083

Phone No.:022 4918 6000

Fax No.: 022 4918 6060

E-mail: mumbai@linkintime.co.in

instrument:

Credit Rating Agency CARE Ratings
of the Issue:
Arrangers, if any, of the | NA

A brief summary of business / activities of the Issuer and its line of business
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Overview :

The Company was incorporated as GE Money Financial Services Ltd in 1994, a fully
owned subsidiary of General Electric Capital Corporation (GE Capital), the financial
services arm of and wholly owned by, General Electric Company, USA. In August
2016, Mr Pramod Bhasin and Mr Anil Chawla along with AION Capital bought
100% stake in Clix Capital (previously known as GE Money Financial Services Pvt
Ltd) and Clix Finance (formerly known as GE Capital Services India). AION Capital
is the largest shareholder in the company. It provides, healthcare finance, leases
(including automobile lease), consumer financing (, two wheeler loans, and personal
loans) and SME financing (school financing, merchant cash advance, business loans,
and supply chain financing) and corporate loans. The company ventured into
housing finance through a wholly owned subsidiary, Clix Housing Finance, which
began operations in fiscal 2019. The company has set up the requisite infrastructure
such as branch network, sales force and branch staff, technological solutions for
effective customer targeting, credit decisions through scorecards, collections, and
analytic frameworks.

Corporate Structure / Organization Structure

GE Capital was rebranded as Clix post the management takeover and at present,
carries out the business through 3 entities (2 entities acquired from GE and a newly
set up Housing Finance entity)

Clix Capital (earlier GE Money) - focused on SME, Consumer Lending,
Corporate
Clix Finance (earlier GE Capital) — 100% subsidiary of Clix Capital - focused on
Healthcare and Equipment Finance, Digital Lending, Corporate
Clix Housing (new entity) — 100% subsidiary of Clix Capital - focused on
Housing/Mortgage finance products

PLUTUS
|

LOO%

CL>X

Capital
100%
100%
CLYX CL>X
Housing Finance
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i. Vision and Mission:

The Company is focused on building a scalable, profitable, technology and analytics led NBFC
with a focus on catering to the underserved MSME Enterprises in India as well as the demands
of a consumption-driven economy

ii. Brief Profile of the Board of Directors

Board of Directors

Name Designation Experience
Pramod Director Pramod’s career spans an entrepreneurial and
Bhasin professional career across the globe in the US, UK

and Asia. He has built global businesses in
Financial Services, Business process Management
and Skills Training. Pramod is the founder of
Genpact starting in 1997 and considered the
pioneer of the Business Process Management
industry in India today, which employs over a
million people in India. Under his leadership,
Genpact has also been the pioneer of this industry
in China, Eastern Europe and Latin America.
Genpact is acknowledged today as the leader in its
industry with over 65,000 employees across 17
countries and over $2b in revenues, and is a public
company listed on NYSE. Pramod built the
company from inception till 2011 when he stepped
down as CEO.

Prior to Genpact, Pramod’s career with GE spanned
25 years across Europe, US and Asia. He started
GE Capital’s initial operations in India as the CEO
in 1994 and was also the President of GE Capital
Asia from 1999. During this time, he was the
architect of GE Capital’s businesses in Commercial
and Consumer Finance and joint ventures with SBI
in credit cards and HDFC in Consumer Finance.
Prior to that he worked with GE Capital in
Corporate Finance in New York and Stanford, CT.,
as well as with GE in London and New York.

Anil Chawla | Director Started D. E. Shaw & Co's Indian operations with
their investing arm. Acknowledged as one of the
most successful investors in India while leading
D.E. Shaw & Co, with investments greater than US
$1.6 billion in a short span.

Inherited a small balance sheet, while at GE Capital
Services India, which consisted of short term
assets, which eventually grew up to, become one of
the best performing companies with a book size of
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Board of Directors

Name Designation Experience

US$1 billion during his tenure. Widely accredited
for propelling GE Capital Services India into the
league of large ticket lenders in India (US$3 billion
in assets in 3 years).

Also, instrumental in arresting the delinquencies
with proactive follow-up mechanism and recover
monies from old delinquencies in workout
situations.

Voted as one of India's top 25 Hottest Young
Executives in 2002 by Business Today group.

Parth Director Mr. Parth Dasharath Gandhi has obtained his
Dasharath Bachelor degree in engineering from Mumbai
Gandhi University and his MBA from Michigan State

University. He has 22 years’ experience in the
financial services sector as an Advisory Partner at
Navigator Capitol Advisors and at AION India
Investment Advisors Private Limited. Mr. Parth
Gandbhi has also served on the boards of companies
such as Varun Beverages Ltd, AION Capital
Mauritius Limited, AION Capital Private Limited,
Geometric Limited, Mahindra Retail Private
Limited and RJ Corp Limited. Currently, he is
acting as Director of Clix Capital Services Private
Limited, Clix Finance India Private Limited and
Ryka Commercial Ventures Private Limited.

Shekhar Director Mr. Shekhar Daga has completed his bachelors in
Mohanlal commerce from Nagpur University and is a
Daga chartered accountant qualified with the Institute of

Chartered Accountants of India. He has more than
18 years of experience of corporate banking,
stressed debt, project financing. Currently Mr.
Shekhar Daga is working with AION India
Investment Advisors Private Ltd involved in
sourcing and executing credit/ equity investment.
His experience spans across institutions such as
ICICI Bank and its UK arm where he worked across
businesses such as corporate banking, investment
banking, project finance M&A transactions and
stressed assets management. He was also part of
Unit Trust of India originating and appraising
various primary market debt deals for mutual funds.

Kalpesh Director Senior Partner of AION India Investment Advisors
Kikani Private Limited.

Senior management team of ICICI Bank where he
has led various businesses in the Bank including
commercial banking, corporate banking, project

18




Board of Directors

Name Designation Experience

finance, retail banking, financial institutions,
syndications, custodial services and & special asset
turnaround situations.

Established and headed the corporate and
investment banking business for ICICI Bank UK
PLC focusing on leveraged and structured finance
transactions, both outbound and inbound for Indian
companies, with teams based in the United
Kingdom, Germany and Belgium.

Steve Director He is a senior partner and Head of Asia Pacific for
Martinez Apollo Management. He joined the Firm in 2000
and during his tenure has led investments in a
variety of sectors including shipping, leisure, media
and general Industrial. He is a member of Apollo’s
Senior Management Committee and serves as Head
of'the Hong Kong office. He Currently serves on the
Board of Directors of Ventia Services Group,
Norwegian Cruise Lines and Veritable Maritime.
He previously served as a Director of Nine
Entertainment  Corporation,  Allied  Waste,
Goodman Global, Hayes-Lemmerz International,
Hughus Telematics, Jacuzzi Brands, Prestige
Cruises and Rexnord Industries.

Prior to joining Apollo, he was a member of the
mergers and acquisitions department of Goldman
Sachs & Co. Before that he worked in Asia at Brain

& Company.
Rashmi Whole Time Rashmi joins us from Vedanta, where she held the
Mohanty Director position of

Group Head— Treasury and Investor Relations.
(DIN: Prior to her tenure at Vedanta, Rashmi also worked
07072541) with Duetsche Bank as Director—

Global Markets, at Religare as Director— Treasury

and with GE

Capital as Vice President & Head India— Treasury.
She brings deep and diverse exposure across
corporate finance, treasury, investor relations and
derivatives, and has over 24 years of experience in
financial markets. Her mix of experience in both
large MNCs and Indian companies gives her the
right skillset to help Clix achieve its ambition
especially as we scale our business

From her Post Graduation at [IM Bangalore, to her
most recent role at Vedanta, Rashmi has established
herself as an industry leader. She is also quite active
in the speaking at several industry forums and
faculty in management schools.
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1.

Brief Profile of the Senior Management

Name

Designation

Experience

Bhaves
h Gupta

CEO

Mr. Bhavesh Gupta has over 2 decades of experience across
Branch Banking, Retail Loans, SME Banking, CASA Sales,
CMS, Payments, Trade, Forex and Cash Management at IDFC
Bank and ICICI Bank. He brings considerable experience in
Sales Management, Product Management, Distribution, Credit
and Collections, MSME, Corporate Relationships, Mortgage and
Credit Cards across the country. He has been highly effective in
managing challenging assignments like setting up new markets,
business, product development, Large Team Management and
Driving sales force effectiveness

His prior work experience includes IDFC Bank, ICICI Bank &
Transamerica Apple Distribution Finance where he held various
leadership roles. His last assignment was part of founding team
which worked to set up the IDFC Bank and had functional role as
Senior EVP & Head of SME & Business Banking at IDFC Bank

Venkat
Raman
Bharatw
aj

CRO

He is a Chartered Accountant and Commerce Graduate from
Delhi University, Shriram College of Commerce. He is heading
Company’s Risk functions. Prior to joining the Company he has
worked with several top notch companies in India and carrying
experience of three decades

Rashmi
Mohant

y

CFO

Rashmi joins us from Vedanta, where she held the position of
Group Head— Treasury and Investor Relations. Prior to her tenure
at Vedanta, Rashmi also worked with Duetsche Bank as Director—
Global Markets, at Religare as Director— Treasury and with GE
Capital as Vice President & Head India— Treasury. She brings
deep and diverse exposure across corporate finance, treasury,
investor relations and derivatives, and has over 24 years of
experience in financial markets. Her mix of experience in both
large MNCs and Indian companies gives her the right skillset to
help Clix achieve its ambition especially as we scale our business

From her Post Graduation at [IM Bangalore, to her most recent
role at Vedanta, Rashmi has established herself as an industry
leader. She is also quite active in the speaking at several industry
forums and faculty in management schools.

Aakash
Desai

Head, Corporate
Lending

Aakash is part of the founding team and a core member of the
senior leadership at Clix Capital. With over 18 years of experience
in Wholesale & Institutional Financial services Aakash joined
Clix Capital as Head- Treasury and Capital Markets Financing

in June 2017.

Prior to Clix, Aakash was Managing Director at Standard
Chartered Bank where he spent 4 years driving the Corporate
Finance and Loan Syndication businesses for India and South
Asian. At ICICI Bank, Aakash spent 13 years setting up various
new businesses, products and revenue streams across India and
offshore markets. In his role as Head — Financial Institutions
Group, he was responsible for all domestic fund raising, debt
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capital markets and managing senior banking and investor
relationships with all Indian financial institutions.

Navin Business Head : | Navin comes to CLIX with over 20 years of valuable experience
Saini SME in SME Banking Space.

He started his Career with Small Industries Development Bank of
India and later he had considerable stints with ICICI Bank,
Barclays Bank, Standard Chartered Bank and lastly he was
heading the SME Business with Aditya Birla Finance Ltd. He has
been associated with various forums who work closely for the
development and finance of SMEs in India.

He is a Harvard Business School & ISB Alumnus and a Post
Graduate in MBA (Finance).

Ajay Business Head: | Ajay has 16 years of consumer banking experience across cards,
Vikram Consumer personal loans and branch banking with Citi Bank.
Singh In his last role with Citi, Ajay was the Head of Cards portfolio

lending. He managed and grew USD 800 Million balance sheet
for all lending products on the cards portfolio.

Prior to this role, Ajay worked in Malaysia as part of Citi's Asia
Pacific eXcel Leadership Development program and headed
Personal Loans for Citi in Malaysia

C. Key Operational and Financial Parameters for the last 3 audited years on a consolidated
basis (wherever available) else on a standalone basis.

*Total debt includes debt securities

Rs Crores
Parameters( Rs. (Cr.)) FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2020
Net Worth 1672 1681 1898
Total Debt 1483 2651 2530
Current 177 521 985
Comprising of _

B Lo 741 1934|1537

Current
Short Term Borrowing 566 196 8
Net Fixed Assets 37 48 48
Non-Current Assets 2665 3239 3073
Cash and Cash Equivalents 54 324 126
Non-Current Investments 1079 1047 1138
Current Investments - - 74
Current Assets 568 1245 1437
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Current Liabilities and Provisions 68 142 1059

Assets Under Management 1955 2958 3003

Off Balance Sheet Assets - - -

Interest Income 90 315 447
Interest Expense 40 206 278
Provisioning & Write-offs 47 28 30
PAT 12 7 21
Gross NPA (%) 5.81% 4.22% 1.15%
Net NPA (%) 0.00% 0.11% 0.54%
Tier I Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) 32.69% 20.55% | 25.94%
Tier II Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) 0.42% 0.64% 1.32%

D. Gross Debt: Equity Ratio of the Company:

Before the issue of debt securities (as on 1.80

March 31,2020) )

After the issue of debt securities (as on 184

March 31,2020) )
Calculations

Before the issue, debt-to-equity ratio is calculated as follows: -

Debt — INR crore 2530
Equity — INR crore 1407.58
Debt / Equity 1.80

Subsequent to the issue, debt-to-equity ratio shall be calculated as follows: -

Debt — INR crore 2580

Equity — INR crore 1407.58
Debt / Equity 1.84

E. Project cost and means of financing, in case of funding new projects: N.A.
5.5 A Brief history of Issuer since its incorporation giving details of its following activities:

Details of Share Capital as on last quarter end i.e. March 31, 2020
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Share Capital Amounts

Authorised 21600000000
TOTAL 21600000000
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid- 14,075,844,520
up

Preference Shares Nil
TOTAL 14,075,844,520

A. Capital Structure of the Company:

Particulars Autl.lorized Issued Capital Sub-scribed pai(.l up
Capital capital capital

Number of 2,160,000,000 | 14,075,844,520 | 14,075,844,520 | 140,7584,4520

Equity Shares

Nominal amount

per equity 10 10 10 10

share(Rs.)

Total amount of

equity shares 2,160 1,407 1,407 1,407

(Rs. Crores)

Number of

preference N/A N/A N/A N/A

shares

Nominal value

per preference N/A N/A N/A N/A

share

Total amount of N/A N/A N/A N/A

preference share

Size of the present offer N/A

Paid up capital after the offer N/A
or after conversion of
convertible instruments

Securities Premium Account Before the Offer: N/A
(before and after the offer) After the Offer: N/A
B. The details of the existing share capital of the issuer Company as on last quarter end i.e.

March 31, 2020, for the last five years, in a tabular form:
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SI. | Date of No of Shares Face Price / Cumulative Form | Remark
N | Allotme Allotted Value | Considera of s
o nt/Buy | (Equity)/ Bought of tion No.of | Eq | Eq | Consi
Back back Each (Total equity | uit | uity | derati
Share | Amount) | share | y | Sha on
s Sh | re
ar | Pre
e | miu
Ca| m
pit | (in
al | Rs)
(R
s)
i August | 61,56,03,425 INR 10 | INR 22.29 | #615603425 Cash
31,2016 | shares were per fully Share Capital: &
transferred to paid equity | Rs. 615,60,34,250 | Cash
Plutus Financials share Share  Premium: | Equiv
Pvt Ltd. (For 2 Rs. 756,85,60,739 | alents
shares Plutus (Via
Capital Pvt Ltd Bank
was acting as Transf
nominee er)
shareholder)
Novemb | 80,02,84,452 INR 10 | INR 10 #800884452 Cash
er 04, bonus equity Share Capital: Rs. | &

iif 2016 shares allotted to 800,28,44,520 Cash
Plutus Financials Equiv
Pvt Ltd alents

(Via
Bank
Transf
er)
Novemb | buy-back of | INR10 | INR 12.7 | #118803425 Cash
er21, 118,803,425 from per fully Share Capital: Rs. | &

iii] 2016 Plutus Financials paid equity | 1188034250 Cash

Pvt Ltd share Premium: Equiv
320769247.5 alents
(Via
Bank
Transf
er)
March For 2 shares | INR 10 | INR 12.7 #2 Cash
28,2017 | nominee rights of per fully Share Capital: | &

iv, Plutus Capital Pvt paid equity | Rs.20 Cash
Ltd were revoked share Share  Premium: | Equiv
by Plutus Rs.5.4 alents
Financials Pvt Ltd (Via
pursuant to Bank
transfer of Transf
beneficial er)
ownership.
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Septemb | Issue of | INR10 [ INR 17.55 | #11050000 Cash
er 30, 11,050,000 per fully Share Capital: Rs. | &
v, 2019 allotted to Plutus paid up 11,05,00,000 Cash
Financials Private equity Share  Premium: | Equiv
Limited Shares Rs. 8,34,27,500 alents
(Via
Bank
Transf
er)
C. Changes in its capital structure as on last quarter end i.e. March 31,2020, for the last five

years: NOT Applicable

Date of Change i
(AGM / EGM) INR Particulars
Na Na na

D. Equity Share Capital History of the Company as on last quarter end, for the last five years:

Please refer table C above
E. Details of any acquisition or amalgamation in the last one year: N/A

F. Details of any reorganisation or reconstruction in the last one year: N/A

5.6 Details of the shareholding of the Company as on March 31, 2020:

S. | Name of the Equity Shareholders No. of Equity %age of Nature of
No. & Country thereof Shares held shareholding Ownership
1 | Plutus Financials Pvt Ltd (Mauritius) 1407584450 99.99% Ultimate

Owner
2 Plutus Capital Pvt Ltd (Mauritius) ) 0.01% Ultimate
Owner
Total 14,07,584,452 100.00%

No shares have been pledged / encumbered by the promoters of the Company.
Shareholding pattern of the Company as on last quarter end i.e. March 31, 2020:
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S. Particulars Total Number of shares | Total
N Number of held in Shareholding as
0. Equity Dematerialised a % of total no.
Shares Form of equity shares.
1. | Plutus Financials Pvt Ltd 1407584450 1407584450 99.99%
(Mauritius)
2. | Plutus Capital Pvt Ltd 2 2 0.01%
(Mauritius)
Total 14,07,584, 14,07,584.452 100.00%
452
A. List of top 10 holders of equity shares of the Company as on last quarter end i.e. March
31, 2020:
S. Name of the Shareholders Total Number of | Number of shares Total
No. Equity shares held in Shareholding
dematerialised as a % of
Form total no. of
equity shares.
1.| Plutus Financials Pvt Ltd 1407584450 1407584450 99.99%
(Mauritius)
2. Plutus Capital Pvt Ltd 2 2 0.01%
(Mauritius)
Total 14,07,584,452 14,07,584,452 | 100.00%
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5.7

A.

Following details regarding the directors of the Company:

Details of current directors of the Company:

This table sets out the details regarding the Company’s Board of Directors as on March 31, 2020:

Sr.

Name

Designatio
n

Address

Age

(years)

DIN

Director
of the
Company
since

Details of
other
directorships

Pramod
Bhasin

Director

F-35
Radhey
Mohan
Drive,
Gadaipur,
Mehrauli,
New Delhi
- 110030

67

0119700
9

31-Aug-
16

—

. Vishwas

Vision  for
health
welfare and
Special
needs
International
Foundation
for Research
and
Education.
Clix Finance
India Private
Limited
Vandana
Foundation
Skills
Academy
Private
Limited
Inception
Advisory
Private
Limited
DLF
Limited.
Asha Impact
Advisory
Services
Private
Limited

Anil
Chawla

Director

8 Club
Marg DLF
Phase 1,
Gurgaon
122002
Haryana

55

0001655
5

31-Aug-
16

—

. Clix Finance

India Private
Limited
Avant India
Advisory
Services
Private
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Limited.

A and M
Publications
Private
Limited

(O8]

Parth
Dasharat
h Gandhi

Director

Flat No.79,
G  Wing,
Gujarthi
Society,
Nehru
Road, Near
Jaal Hotel,
Vile Parle,
Mumbai
400 057

48

0165825
3

31-Aug-
16

(O8]

. IGT

Solutions
Private
Limited.

. Clix Finance

India Private
Limited.

. Future

Generali
India
Insurance
Company
Limited.

. LM Media

Services
Private
Limited

Shekhar
Mohanla
1 Daga

Director

B401,
Patliputra
Soceity,
Four
Bunglows
Square,
Andheri
West,
Mumbai -
400053

0747187
1

31-Aug-
16

1.

W

Clix Finance
India Private
Limited

. IGT

Solutions
Private
Limited

. Bluerock

eServices
Private
Limited

. Arcion

Revitalizatio
n Private
Limited

. Clix

Housing
Finance
Private

Limited

. Ritvika

Trading
Private
Limited

. Clix Loans

Private
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Limited

Kalpesh
Kikani

Director

B 502, 5th
Floor,
Gulmohar
Apartment
s, Ceaser
Road,
Amboli,
Andheri
(West),
Mumbai —
400058

47

0353477
2

31-Aug-
16

1. Clix Finance
India Private
Limited

2. Planetcast
Media
Services
Limited

3. Planetcast
Technologie
s Limited

4. Monnet
Ispat
Energy
Limited

5.AION India
Investment
Advisors
Private
Limited

6. Cloudcast
Digital
Limited

7. Planetcast
Broadcastin
g Services
Limited

8. Arcion
Revitalizatio
n Limited

9.JTPM Atsali
Limited

10. Creixent

Special
Steels
Limited

And

Steve
Martinez

Director

29 Horizon
Drive,
House D,
Chung
Hom Kok,
Hong
Kong

50

0676549
9

17-Jan-17

—

. Clix Finance
India Private
Limited.

. AION India
Investment
Advisors
Private
Limited
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7. | Rashmi Whole 1611A, 47 0707254 | 28- 1. Clix Capital
Mohanty | Time Mangolia, 1 November | Services

DLF Golf - Private

Links, 19 Limited

Phase V, 2. Hemera
Gurugram Resources
-122002 Private
Limited

3. Hemera
India Private
Limited

4. Hemera
Global

Trade

Private
Limited

5. Hemetron
Industries
Private Limited

Director

B. Details of change in directors since last three years:
Name Designation DIN Date of Director of the | Remark
Appointment | Company since | s
/ Resignation | (in case of
resignation)
Rashmi Whole Time 07072541 28-11-2019 NA NA
Mohanty Director
Venkat Whole Time | 02965798 23-09-2019 NA NA
Raman Director
Bharatwaj
Vikas Whole Time | 7685833 23-09-2019 24-05-2017 NA
Aggarwal Director
Suruchi Women Director 07901622 18-02-2019 23-09-2019 NA
Nangia
Pramod Director 01197009 31-08-2016 NA NA
Bhasin
Anil Director 00016555 31-08-2016 NA NA
Chawla
Parth Director 01658253 31-08-2016 NA NA
Gandhi
Shekhar Director 07471871 31-08-2016 NA NA
Daga
Kalpesh Director 03534772 31-08-2016 NA NA
Klkani
Steve Director 06765499 17-01-2017 NA NA
Martinez
Manoj Director 00128620 29-09-2015 31-08-2016 NA
Sagun Naik
Rupak Saha | Director 00056511 02-08-2011 31-08-2016 NA
Satyanaray | Whole Time | 05108831 17-02-2014 May 19, 2017 NA
na Eluri Director
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*Company to disclose name of the current directors who are appearing in the RBI defaulter list and /

or ECGC default list, if any: None

5.8 Following details regarding the auditors of the Company:
A. Details of the auditor of the Company:
Name Address Auditor since
S.R. Batliboi & Golf View Corporate September 30, 2017
Associates LLP Tower-B, Sector Road,
Gurgaon Sector 42,
Gurgaon - 122002,
B. Details of change in auditors since last three years:
Name Address Date of Auditor of Remarks
Appointment/ the Company
Resignation since (in case
of
resignation)
B.S.R. & Building No. 10, | September 30, NA NA
Associates LLP 8th Floor, 2017 — Date of
Tower-B, DLF Resignation
Cyber City,
Phase - I1
Gurugram -
122002, India
SR Batliboi & 2" & 3 Floor, | September 30, NA NA
Associates LLP Golf View 2017, Date of
Corporate Tower | Appointment
B, Sector 42,
Gurugram 122
002
5.9 Details of borrowings of the Company, as on latest quarter end i.e. March 31, 2020:
A. Details of Secured Loan Facilities as on March 31, 2020
Principal
Lender’s Type of Amqunt Amount Repayment .
Name Facili SauCHones Outstanding(Rs LX) RSty
ty (Rs. Crores) C LRS- Schedule
rores)
. 300 (Loan I:|190.91 (Loan I:| Loan I:
E(Ijnulile%d Bank Eg:ﬁe Term 200 and Loan | 90.91 and Loan | Quarterly E(e)g;vzj:s and
I1: 100) I1: 100 Crores) Loan II: Bullet
Rupee Term
HDFC Bank  [Loan  and | 235 86.88 pook Debts and
Over Draft Quarter]y ecervables
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Bank of Baroda | Rupee Term Book Debts and
(TL1) Loan 100 7222 Quarterly Receivables
Bank of Baroda | Rupee Term Book Debts and
(TL 2) Loan 100 85 Quarterly Receivables
Rupee Term 86.81 (TL -
ICICI Bank Loan  and | 100 78.75 Cr and OD | Quarterly (TL) Eggé‘iviﬁl’gs and
Over Draft —8.06)
Federal Bank Rupee Term 100 20 Book. Debts and
Loan Receivables
Quarterly
Yes Bank Rupee  Term 485 204.17 Half Yearly BOOk. Debts and
Loan Receivables
N Rupee Term Book Debts and
Bajaj Finserv Loan 50 22.22 Quarterly Receivables
Rupee Term Book Debts and
IDFC Bank Ltd Loan 150 120 Quarterly Receivables
. Rupee Term Book Debts and
Bank of India Loan 75 75 Quarterly Receivables
Rupee Short Bullet
Barclays Term Loan 30 30 SBLC
Rupee Term Half Yearly Book Debts and
Karnataka Loan 20 20 Receivables
B. Details of Unsecured Loan Facilities as on March 31, 2020 The Company has not availed any
unsecured loan facilities.
C. Details of Non-Convertible Debentures as on March 31, 2020:
Coup
Tenor on
Debent (Rate Date of Redempti Cred Secured
ure @iF Amount allotme on on it / Security
. . Intere (Rs.) Date / Rati | Unsecur
Series (in nt
st per Schedule ng ed
Months) .
m)
Book
Series A 1075 |2.000.000, |25- | 25-May- | SAR | Unsecur | DS
S % | 000 May-18 | 23 B e and
2018 ° Y ° AA- Receivab
les
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Book
Series B 1075 |3.000.000, | 27-Jun- | SAR | Unsecur | Debts
2 of | 60 o 000 18 27-Jun-23 | E od and
2018 ° AA- Receivab
les
Book
Series A | | 1150 |1.000,000, [06- | 06-May- | SR | Unsecur | D0t
M B % | 000 Nov-18 |21 B led and
2018 ° ov AA- | € Receivab
les
Book
Series B | 11.50 | 1,000,000, | 06- CAR | Unsecur | DeP1s
5 of | 32 o 000 Nov-18 06-Jul-21 | E od and
2018 ° AA- Receivab
les
Book
series C | 11.50 | 1,000,000, | 06- CAR | Unsecur | DEP1S
6 of | 34 % 000 Nov-18 06-Sep-21 | E od and
2018 ° AA- Receivab
les
Book
Series C 11.50 | 1,000,000, | 12- 12Nov- | AR | Unsecur | PPt
7o oryse % | 000 Nov-18 |21 B e and
2018 ° v AA- Receivab
les
Book
Series 8 | .- 1125 1000000, [17-  [17Dec- | AR DS
0 -
0f 2018 % 000 Dec-18 | 21 AA Reccivab
les
Book
Series A | g 1100 | 1000000, [27-  |27:May- | AR DS
) -
0f 2019 % 000 Dec-19 |21 A Receivab
les
Book
Series B | 5, 11.00 | 98,00,00,0 | 27- 27-Avg- | SN Secured aDne(}’tS
0, -
02019 % 00 Dec-19 |21 AA Roceivah
les
Book
Series C 1,000,000, CAR Debts
0f2019 000 E Secured | and
32.58082 ( 10.00 13- 29-Nov- | AA- Receivab
192 % Mar-20 22 les

D. List of Top 10 Debenture Holders (as on March 31, 2020)
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Name of Debenture Amount

a0 Holders (Rs. Cr)
Franklin Templeton
1. MF 900
2. ICICI Prudential MF | 198
3. Reliance MF 100
4 Sachin Bansal 100

Note: Top 10 holders’ (in value terms, on cumulative basis for all outstanding debentures issues)
details should be provided

E. The amount of corporate guarantee issued by the Issuer along with name of the
counterparty (like name of the subsidiary, JV entity, group-company, etc.) on behalf of
whom it has been issued. (if any):

S.No

Particulars

Amount (As on September
30,2019)

1.

The Company has provided a corporate guarantee to
Federal Bank Limited for a term loan amounting to
Rs.8,00,00,000 and over draft facility amounting to
Rs.2,00,00,000 availed by Clix Housing Finance
Private Limited.

Rs. 10,00,00,000

2. The Company has provided a corporate guarantee to | Rs.25,00,00,000
Indusind Bank Limited for a term loan amounting to
Rs.20,00,00,000 and over draft facility amounting to
Rs.5,00,00,000 availed by Clix Housing Finance
Private Limited.

F. Details of Commercial Paper: The total Face Value of Commercial Papers Outstanding as
on the latest quarter end i.e. March 31, 2020 to be provided and its breakup in following
table:

Maturity Date Amount Outstanding

nil

Nil

G. Details of rest of the borrowing (if any including hybrid debt like FCCB, Optionally
Convertible Debentures / Preference Shares) as on March 31, 2020: No preference shares,
hybrid debt or optionally convertible debentures have been issued by the Company.

H. Details of all default(s) and / or delay in payments of interest and principal of any kind of
term loans, debt securities and other financial indebtedness including corporate guarantee
issued by the Company, in the past 5 years: None
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5.10

5.11

5.12

5.13

5.14

Details of any outstanding borrowings taken / debt securities issued where taken / issued
(i) for consideration other than cash, whether in whole or part, (ii) at a premium or

discount, or (iii) in pursuance of an option: None

Details of Promoters of the Company:

Details of Promoter Holding in Company as on March 31, 2020:

S. Name of Total No No. of Total No of % of
No the of Equity | shares | sharehold | share shares
shareholde shares in ing as % S pledged
rs Demat | of total no | Pledg with
form of equity ed respect to
shares shares
owned
1.| Plutus 14075844 | 140758 | 99.99% 0 N/A
Financials | 50 4450
Pvt  Ltd
(Mauritius
)
2. | Plutus 2 2 0.01% 0 N/A
Capital Pvt
Ltd
(Mauritius)
Total 14,07,584, | 14,07,5 | 100% 0 N/A
452 84,452

Abridged version of the Audited Consolidated and Standalone Financial Information (like
Profit and Loss statement, Balance Sheet and Cash Flow statement) for at least last three
years and auditor qualifications, if any.

The relevant information is furnished in Annexure VII of the Information Memorandum.

Abridged version of Latest Audited / Limited Review Half Yearly Consolidated and
Standalone Financial Information and auditors’ qualifications, if any:

The relevant information is furnished in Annexure VII of the Information Memorandum.

Any material event / development or change having implications on the financials / credit
quality (e.g. any material regulatory proceedings against the Issuer / promoters, tax
litigations resulting in material liabilities, corporate restructuring event etc.) at the time
of Issue which may affect the Issue or the Investor’s decision to invest / continue to invest
in the debt securities.

There are no material proceedings against Issuer after March 2020 other than mentioned in
financials of March 2020, if any.

Names of the Debentures Trustees and Consents thereof
The Debenture Trustee of the proposed Issue is has provided written consent for appointment

as debenture trustee to the Issue and the inclusion of the name of the entity in the form and
context in which the name appears in this Information Memorandum and in all the subsequent
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5.15

5.16

5.17

5.18

5.19

periodical communication to be sent to the Debenture Holders. The consent letter from
Debenture Trustee is provided in Annexure 1V of this Information Memorandum.

Rating Rationale(s) adopted (not older than one year on the date of opening of the Issue) /
credit rating letter issued (not older than one month on the date of opening of the Issue).

The Credit Rating Agencies have assigned rating of A+ to the Debentures. Instruments with this
rating are considered as having an adequate degree of safety regarding timely servicing of
financial obligations. Such instruments carry low credit risk.

If the security is backed by a guarantee or letter of comfort or any other document / letter
with similar intent, a copy of the same shall be disclosed. In case such document does not
contain detailed payment structure (procedure of invocation of guarantee and receipt of
payment by the investor along with timelines), the same shall be disclosed in the offer
document.

None

Names of all the recognized stock exchanges where the debt securities are proposed to be
listed:

The Debentures are proposed to be listed on the WDM segment of the NSE. The Issuer shall
comply with the requirements of the listing agreement for debt securities to the extent applicable
to the Issuer on a continuous basis. The in-principle approval of the NSE is set out in Annexure
X.

Other details:
Debenture Redemption Reserve Creation:

As per Section 71 of the Act, any company that intends to issue debentures must create a
debenture redemption reserve to which adequate amounts shall be credited out of the profits of
the company until the redemption of the debentures. However, at present under the Companies
(Issuance of Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, NBFCs are exempt from this
requirement in respect of privately placed debentures. Pursuant to this exemption, the Company
does not presently intend to create any reserve funds for the redemption of the Debentures.

Issue / instrument specific regulations:

The Issue of Debentures shall be in conformity with the applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 including the notified rules thereunder, the SEBI Debt Listing Regulations, the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations™)
and the applicable RBI guidelines.

Application process:

The application process for the Issue is as provided in SECTION 8: of this Information
Memorandum.

A statement containing particulars of the dates of, and parties to all material contracts,
agreements:
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The contracts and documents referred to hereunder are material to the Issue, may be inspected at the
Registered Office of the Company between 10.00 am to 4.00 pm on working days.

Sr. No. Nature of Contract
1. Certified true copy of the Memorandum & Articles of Association of the Issuer.
) Board Resolutions dated read with the resolution passed by Management Committee of the

Board of Directors dated authorizing Issue.

(O8]

Shareholder Resolution dated authorizing the issue of non-convertible debentures by the
Company.

Shareholder Resolution dated authorizing the borrowing by the Company and Shareholder
Resolution dated authorizing the creation of security.

Copies of Annual Reports of the Company for the last three financial years.

Credit rating letter from the Credit Rating Agency.

Letter from Catalyst Trusteeship Limited giving its consent to act as Debenture Trustee.

Letter for R&T Agent.

A e R B

Certified true copy of the certificate of incorporation of the Company.

Certified true copy of the tripartite agreement between the Company, the Registrar &
Transfer Agent and NSDL.

11.

Copy of application made to NSE for grant of in-principle approval for listing of
Debentures.

5.20 Remuneration of Directors (during the current and last three financial years):

Ms.Rashmi Mohanty & Mr.Venkat Raman Bharatwaj (resigned) are employees of Issuer and
draw regular salary and compensation. There are no separate director fees payable

5.21  Details of default, if any, including therein the amount involved, duration of default and
present status, in repayment of —

i. Statutory Dues

ii.

Debentures and Interest thereon

iii. Deposits and Interest thereon
iv. Loans from any Bank or Financial institution and any interest thereon

S. No. | Details of default Duration Amount Present Status
Involved (in of Repayment
Rs.)

A. Statutory Dues

1. None IN/A IN/A IN/A

B. Debentures and Interest thereon:

1. None IN/A IN/A IN/A

C. Deposits and Interest thereon:

1. None IN/A IN/A INA

D. Loan from any bank or financial institution and interest thereon:

1. None [N/A IN/A IN/A

5.22  Any default in annual filing of the Company under the Companies Act, 2013 or the rules
made thereunder. None
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5.23

5.24

5.2§

5.26

5.27

5.28

5.29

5.30

5.31

5.32

5.33

5.34

5.35

Price at which the security is being offered including the premium, if any, along with
justification of the price Not Applicable

Name and address of the valuer who performed valuation of the security offered, and basis
on which the price has been arrived. Not Applicable. Receivables to be certified by the
chartered accountant.

Relevant date with reference to which the price has been arrived at Relevant Date means
a date at least thirty days prior to the date on which the general meeting of the company
is scheduled to be held. Not applicable

The proposed time within which the allotment shall be completed 2 days from Pay In Date

The change in control, if any, in the company that would occur consequent to the private
placement. None

Contribution being made by the promoters or directors either as part of the offer or
separately in furtherance of such objects. None

The number of persons to whom allotment on preferential basis/private placement/ rights
issue has already been made during the year, in terms of number of securities as well as
price. 11,05,00,000 shares against an amount of INR 19,39,275,000 were allotted on September
30, 2019 to Plutus Financials Private Limited on right basis at INR 17.55 per share.

The details of significant and material orders passed by the Regulators, Courts and
Tribunals impacting the going concern status of the Company and its future operations.
None

Any financial or other material interest of the directors, promoters or key managerial
personnel in the offer and the effect of such interest in so far as it is different from the
interests of other persons. None

The justification for the allotment proposed to be made for consideration other than cash
together with valuation report of the registered valuer. Not applicable

Details of any litigation or legal action pending or taken by any Ministry or Department
of the Government or a statutory authority against any promoter of the offeree Company
during the last three years immediately preceding the year of the circulation of the Offer
Document and any direction issued by such Ministry or Department or statutory authority
upon conclusion of such litigation or legal action shall be disclosed. None

Related party transactions entered during the last three financial years immediately
preceding the year of circulation of Offer Document including with regard to loans made
or guarantees given or securities provided.

The relevant information is furnished in Annexure VIII of the Information Memorandum

Summary of reservations or qualifications or adverse remarks of auditors in the last five
financial years immediately preceding the year of circulation of Offer Document and of
their impact on the financial statements and financial position of the Company and the
corrective steps taken and proposed to be taken by the Company for each of the said
reservations or qualifications or adverse remark.

38



There are no adverse remarks from the auditors of the Company in the last five financial years.

5.36  Details of any inquiry, inspections or investigations initiated or conducted under the
Companies Act or any previous Company law in the last three years immediately
preceding the year of circulation of Offer Document in the case of Company and all of its
subsidiaries. Also, if there were any prosecutions filed (whether pending or not), fines
imposed, compounding of offences in the last three years immediately preceding the year
of the Offer Document and if so, section-wise details thereof for the Company. None

5.37  Details of acts of material frauds committed against the Company in the last three years,
if any, and if so, the action taken by the Company. None

5.38  Profits of the Company before and after making provisions for tax, for the three financial
years immediately preceding the date of circulation of Information Memorandum:

Financial Year

Profits before making provision
for tax (In Rs Cr)

Profits after making
provision for tax (In Rs Cr)

2019-20 58 20.75
2018-19 10 7
*2017-18 -26 12

*2017 P&L numbers are in IGAAP

5.39 Dividends declared by the Company in respect of the said three financial years; interest
coverage ratio for last three years (Cash profit after tax plus interest paid/interest paid) Nil*
Interest Coverage Ratio for last three years is as below:

31% March 2020 -1.25
31% March 2019 — 1.22
31% March 2018 — 2.56
31% March 2017 — 21.59

*(Profits before tax+ Depreciation and Amortization + Provision- Tax+ Finance cost)/Finance

cost

5.40 A summary of the financial position of the Company as in the three audited balance sheets
immediately preceding the date of circulation of Offer Document:

As on 31st March 2020 2A(fl(;n Slst March As on
Financial Parameters (in Rs. Crores) (in Rs. Crores) 31st March, 2018
(in Rs. Crores)
Share Capital 1407.58 1297 1297
Reserves and Surplus 490.16 384 375
Borrowings 2529.92 2651 1483
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Investments 1212.6 1047 1079
Revenue from 480.70 343 93
Operations
Profit/ (Loss) before Tax 58.22 10 -26
Profit after Tax 20.75 7 12
Earnings Per Share(INR)
Basic 0.15 0.00057 0.00089
Diluted 0.15 0.00056 0.00088

5.41  Any change in accounting policies during the last three years and their effect on the profits
and the reserves of the Company. In 2019, the Company has started following the Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) and is no longer adhering to the Indian GAAP.

5.42  Details of Debt Securities Sought to be Issued

None

5.43  Issue Size

The aggregate issue size for the Debentures is up to Rs. 65,00,00,000 /- (Rupees Sixty Five Crores only).
5.44  Utilization of the Issue Proceeds

The Issuer undertakes that the proceeds of this Issue shall be used for general corporate purposes and
refinancing existing debt of the company and shall be utilised for the deployment of funds on the
Company’s balance sheet and not to facilitate resource requests of group entities / parent company /
associates of the Company.

The Issue shall not be utilised towards acquisition financing: i.e. buyback of shares / securities, purchase
of shares of other companies, promoter contribution towards the equity capital of a company, and / or as
a bridge loan

The Company undertakes that proceeds of this Issue shall not be utilized for the following purposes as
specified in the RBI Master Circular No. DBOD.BP.BC.No0.5/21.04.172/2015-16 dated July 1, 2015
including inter alia:

1) Bills discounted / rediscounted by NBFCs, except for rediscounting of bills discounted by NBFCs
arising out of: commercial vehicles (including light commercial vehicles) and two wheeler and three
wheeler vehicles, subject to the following conditions: The bills should have been drawn by the
manufacturer on dealers only; The bills should represent genuine sale transactions as may be
ascertained from the chassis / engine number and; Before rediscounting the bills, the bona fides and
track record of NBFCs which have discounted the bills would be verified.

2) Investments of NBFCs both of current and long-term nature, in any company / entity by way of
shares, debentures, etc. However, Stock Broking Companies may be provided need-based credit
against shares and debentures held by them as stock-in-trade.

3) Unsecured loans / inter-corporate deposits by NBFCs to /in any company.

4) All types of loans and advances by NBFCs to their subsidiaries, group companies / entities.

5) Finance to NBFCs for further lending to individuals for subscribing to Initial Public Offerings (IPO)
and for purchase of shares from secondary market.”
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5.45 Issue Details

9.30% Secured Rated Redeemable Listed Non-Convertible (“NCDs” or

the utilization of the
Proceeds

Security Name “Debentures”)
Issuer/Company Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Issuer/Company/Clix)
Tvpe of Instrument Secured Rated Redeemable Listed Non-Convertible Debentures
yp (NCDs/Debentures)
Nature of the
Secured
Instrument
Seniority Senior
Mode of Issue Private placement
e The Issue proceeds will be utilized to meet funding requirements of
the Issuer for on-lending purposes and for regular business activities.
e The Issuer undertakes that no part of the proceeds of the Debentures
shall be utilized by the Company directly or indirectly towards capital
markets (including equity, debt, debt linked and equity linked
Objects & Details of instruments or any other capital marketactivities), any speculative

purposes, land acquisition or usages that are restricted for bank
financing, any activity in the ‘Exclusion List’ (as such term shall be
defined under the Transaction Documents) or investment in the real
estate sector.

e The proceeds of the NCD shall not be used for any purpose, which
may be in contravention of the government/RBI/SEBI/Other
regulatory guidelines.

Rating of Instrument

“CARE A+” by CARE Ratings Ltd.

Debenture Trustee

Catalyst Trusteeship Limited

Registrar & Transfer
Agent

Link Intime Pvt. Limited

Eligible Investors Banks and Mutual Funds

Option to retain

oversubscription N.A.

(Amount)

Issue Size Rs.65 Crores (Rupees Sixty-Five Crores)

Face Value Rs. 10,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Lakhs only) per Debenture

Issue Price

Rs. 10,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Lakhs only) per Debenture

Tenor 18 Months from the Deemed Date of Allotment
Coupon Type Fixed
Coupon Rate 9.30% p.a.

Coupon Payment
Frequency

Annual and on Redemption

Coupon Step-up/ Step
down

In case of downgrade of credit rating of the Debentures by one notch,
Coupon Rate will be stepped up by 0.25% for each such downgrade. If the
rating is restored to earlier rating level, the pricing will be reduced by
0.25% for every notch upgrade.
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Provided that the coupon rate shall not be less 9.30% per annum during the
entire tenure of the Issuance.

Credit Rating
Covenant

If the long-term credit rating of the Debentures is downgraded to below
“BBB-", the Debenture Holders would reserve the right to recall the
outstanding amount of the Debentures.

Coupon Payment dates

The Coupon shall be payable annually from the Deemed Date of Allotment
and on Redemption subject to Business Day Convention

An illustration of the cash flows emanating from the Issuer, are set out in
Annexure [X hereto.

Redemption Date

At the end of 18 months from the Deemed Date of Allotment

Redemption Amount

Rs. 10,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Lakhs only) per Debenture.

Redemption Bullet, At Par.
Rgdemptlon Premium/ NA.
Discount

Discount at which

security is issued and

the effective yield as a | N.A.
result of such

discount.

Put Date N.A.
Put Price N.A.
Put Option Notice N.A.
Call Date N.A.
Call Price N.A.
Call Option Notice N.A.
Put Notification Time | N.A.
Call Notification Time | N.A.

Security & Security
Cover

The outstanding Debentures amount together with interest, default interest,
remuneration of the Debenture Trustee, charges, fees, expenses and all
other monies dues from the Company (“Outstanding Amounts”) shall be
secured by:

e First Pari-Passu charge via deed of hypothecation on standard asset
portfolio of receivables (“Company’s Receivables”, which shall
be more fully set out in the deed of hypothecation), to be executed
between the Company and the Debenture Trustee.

The aforesaid security shall be created& perfected within three months
from the Issue Closure Date.

The Issuer undertakes as follows:
1. Company’s Receivables shall be standard.

2. Company’s Receivables shall be existing at the time of
selection, and have not been terminated or prepaid.
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3. Company’s Receivables should not have been restructured or
rescheduled unless done as per the instructions/guidance of
Reserve Bank of India(“RBI”) from time to time.

4. All loans hypothecated under the deed of hypothecation should
comply with norms and guidelines issued by the RBI

5. The Company’s Receivables being charged must comply with
all extant “know your customer’ norms specified by RBIL.

6. The Company’s Receivables generated from lending to Issuer’s
associate/s & subsidiary/s and/or related party shall not be
provided as security for the Debentures and consequently, shall
not be considered for asset cover calculation for this issuance.

The Company undertakes to maintain Minimum Security Cover of
1.10times to be maintained on the outstanding NCD amount of the
Debentures along with interest thereonat all times during the tenure of the
NCDs.

Non-Maintenance of Minimum-Security Cover as mentioned above will
attract2% p.a. penalty over and above the Coupon Rate as specified herein,
for the period of non-maintenance of such cover. However, in no case
reinstatement of such security cover shall exceed 15(Fifteen) days from the
day such cover falls below the required cover.

The Company shall have option for providing additional /replacement of
security at any time during the tenure of the Debentures to ensure the
Minimum-Security Cover as provided hereinabove in consultation with
Debenture Trustee.

The Issuer shall execute Debenture Trust Deed and Deed of Hypothecation
and perfect the charge created by the Debenture Trust Deed and Deed of
Hypothecationby filing requisite forms with the Registrar of Companies
(“ROC”) within three months from the Issue Closure Date. The Company
shall, within three months from the Issue Closure Date Obtain NOCs and/or
letters ceding pari-passu charge to the Debenture Trustee, from the existing
Lenders. If the Issuer fails to execute the Debenture Trust Deed & Deed of
Hypothecationwithin the timelines stipulated in the Transaction
Documents, then the Issuer shall, at the option of the Debenture Holders,
either (i) return the subscription amount with the agreed rate of interest or
(i) pay additional interest at the rate of 2% (two percent) per annum above
the applicable Coupon Rate on all amounts outstanding under the NCDs
(including the outstanding principal amounts and any accrued interest)
from the Deemed Date of Allotment until such time the deed is executed
and the conditions prescribed by Debenture Holders (if any) have been
complied with.

Material Adverse
Effect

Means the effect or consequence of an event, circumstance, occurrence or
condition which has caused, as of any date of determination, or could
reasonably be expected to cause a material and adverse effect on (a) the
financial condition, business or operation of the Company, environmental,
social or otherwise, or prospects of the Company; (b) the ability of the
Company to perform its obligations under the Transaction Documents; or
(c) the validity or enforceability of any of the Transaction Documents
(including the ability of any party to enforce any of its remedies
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thereunder); or (d) the rights or remedies of the Debenture Trustee acting
for the benefit of the Debenture Holders hereunder or under any other
Transaction Document.

Financial Covenant

To be prescribed in the Transaction Documents. Including but not limited
to:

e The Company shall ensure that ‘Promoter Group’ at all times until the
Final Settlement Date, continues to own atleast 51% (Fifty One
Percent) or above of the equity shareholding of the Company, on a
fully diluted basis.

e The Debt Equity ratio shall not exceed 5 times during the entire tenor
of debenture.

o If the debentures get delisted during the tenor of the NCD, issuer will
bear all expenses for listing it again within 30 days from date of
delisting. During the period of such delisting, company to pay
additional interest @ 2% p.a. over the Coupon Rate per annum for the
period commencing from the date of such delisting, till the period it is
again listed in the stock exchange.

All covenants would be tested on quarterly basis for the Company, i.e. as

on 31st March, 30th June, 30th September and 31st December every year,

on standalone balance sheet till the redemption of the Debentures.

Within 45 days from the end of each quarter, the Issuer shall submit
covenant compliance certificate issued by CFO/authorised signatory in
favour of the Debenture Trustee and Debenture Holders

Day Count Basis

Actual / Actual

Interest on Application
Money

Payable at the Coupon Rate (subject to deduction of tax at source, as
applicable) from the date of realization of cheque (s)/ demand draft(s)/
RTGS up to one day prior to the Deemed Date of Allotment. Where pay-in
date and Deemed Date of Allotment are the same, no interest on application
money is to be paid.

Listing (including
name of Stock
Exchange(s) where it
will be listed and
timeline for listing)

e Proposed to be listed on the “Wholesale Debt Market Segment’ of NSE
Limited within 20 (twenty) days from the Deemed Date of Allotment.

e In case of delay in listing of the Debentures beyond 20 (twenty) days
from the Deemed Date of Allotment, the Company will pay penal
interest of 1% p.a. over the Coupon Rate from the expiry of 30 (thirty)
days from the Deemed Date of Allotmenttill the listing of such
Debentures.

Representations and
Warranties of the
Issuer

As mentioned in the caption titled “Representations and Warranties Of The
Issuer” in the Disclosure Documentto the Issue. The Representations and
Warranties shall be continuous in nature and shall be deemed to occur on
every day till redemption of the Debentures.

1. The Company is registered with the RBI as Non-Banking Finance
Company

2. No Event of Default has occurred and is continuing on the date of this
transaction.

3. The Debentures under this Issuance shall rank pari passu amongst
themselves, and with all other secured creditors.

4. Binding obligation of Transaction Documents.

5. No conflict with other obligations / constitutional documents.
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6. No Material Adverse Change in business, condition or operations of
the Issuer.

7. Company has the power and authority to issue Debentures and such
Transactions Documents are valid and admissible in evidence.

8. Absence of any pending or threatened litigation, investigation or
proceedings that may have a material adverse effect on the business
condition (financial or otherwise), operations, performance or
prospects of the Issuer or that purports to affect the Facility.

And as set out in greater detail in the Debenture Trust Deed

Minimum Application
size and in multiples
of debt security
thereafter

The minimum application size for the Issue shall be 10 (ten) Debentures
and in multiples of 1 (one) Debenture thereafter.

Issuance mode of the
Instrument

Dematerialised only

Trading mode of the
Instrument

Dematerialised only

Settlement mode of
the Instrument

RTGS/ Any other electronic mode

Depository

NSDL and CDSL

Arranger

A K Capital Services Limited, Mumbai

Business Day

Means any day, other than a public holiday under Section 25 of the
Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881 or a Sunday, on which banks are open
for general business in Mumbai.

Business Day
Convention

If any Coupon Payment Date or the due date for the performance of any
event falls on a day that is not a Business Day, then the succeeding Business
Day will be considered as the effective date. The interest for such additional
period shall be adjusted and paid in the next coupon cycle. Hence the
subsequent coupon payment period remains intact.

If the Redemption Date (also being the last Coupon Payment Date) of the
Debentures falls on a day that is not a Business Day, the redemption
proceeds shall be paid on the immediately preceding Business Day, along
with coupon/interest accrued on the Debentures until but excluding the date
of such payment.

Record Date

The date which will be used for determining the Debenture Holder(s) who
shall be entitled to receive the amounts due on any due date, which shall be
the date falling 15 (fifteen) calendar days prior to any due date.

Transaction
Documents

i.  Debenture Trustee Agreement
ii.  Debenture Trust Deed,
iii.  Deed of Hypothecation
iv.  Information Memorandum ;
v.  Letter appointing Trustees to the Debenture Holders;
vi. Board Resolution authorising this Issuance;
vii.  Applicable Shareholder Resolutions under the Companies Act,
2013;
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viii. Rating Agreement with the aforesaid Rating Agency(ies) with
respect to this Issuance;

ix. Undertaking from the Issuer mentioning all the borrowing
facilities of the Company are standard in nature.

x. Letter of Undertaking from the issuer undertaking that total
issuance covered under "Extended Partial Guarantee Scheme"
offered by Government of India to all Public Sector Banks should
be capped at 1.25 times of Issuer's total maturing liability over a
period of six month from date of issuance of bond/debenture/cp.

xi.  Letter of Undertaking from the issuer undertaking that it would
rework the Asset Liability structure within three months to have
positive ALM in each bucket for the first three months and on
cumulative basis for the remaining period

xii.  Such other documents as agreed between the Issuer and the
Debenture Trustee from time to time.

—_—

Execution of Disclosure Document,

2. Credit Rating Letter & Rationale

3. Trustee Consent Letter — wherein Debenture Trustee consents to act
as the debenture trustee for the Debenture holders,

4. NSE In-principle Approval for Listing,

5. Resolution of the Company's board of directors authorizing the
issuance of Debentures;

6. Resolution of the shareholders of the Company authorising
authorizing the issuance of Debentures

7. Execution of the Debenture Trustee Agreement,

8. Any other document as set out in the Transaction Documents.

Conditions Precedent
to Disbursement

The Company shall fulfil the following conditions subsequent, to the
satisfaction of the Debenture Trustee, pursuant to the Deemed Date of
Allotment:

i.  the Issuer shall ensure that the Debentures are credited into the
demat account(s) of the Debenture Holders within 2 (two)
Business Days from the Deemed Date of Allotment;

ii.  the Company will ensure listing of Debentures on ‘Wholesale Debt
Market Segment’ of NSE Limited within stipulated timelines;

iii.  the Company shall, inter alia, file a copy of Form PAS-3 of the
Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014
with the ROC within 15 (fifteen) days of the allotment of
Debentures along with a list of the Debenture Holders and PAS 5;

iv.  Execution of Deed of Hypothecation & Debenture Trust Deed &
perfect within 90 days from the Deemed Date of Allotment.

v.  Filing CHG-9 Form with ROC within stipulated timelines;

vi.  Execution of any other documents as customary for transaction of
a similar nature and size.

vii.  The Issuer shall ensure compliance with SEBI / Companies Act,
2013 (as applicable) for issuance of NCDs.

Conditions Subsequent
to Disbursement

Without prejudice to any other rights and remedies available to the
Debenture Trustee pursuant to the terms of Transaction Documents:

i.  If, atany time, a ‘Payment Default’ (as such term shall be defined
under the Transaction Documents) occurs, the Issuer agrees to pay
additional interest at the rate of 2% (two percent) per annum over
and above the applicable Coupon Rate on all amounts outstanding

Default Interest
Rate/Additional
Interest Rate
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under the Debentures (including the outstanding principal
amounts and any accrued but unpaid interest) from the date of
occurrence of such a ‘Payment Default’ until such ‘Payment
Default’ is cured or the Debentures are fully redeemed.

Event of Defaults

Events of default as stated in the Disclosure Document under captioned
“Event of Defaults, including but not limited to the following:

Failure to pay amounts due under the Issue on the relevant due date by
the Issuer;

Insolvency, reorganization, liquidation, suspension of payment of
debts, winding up, illegality, cessation of business by the Issuer;
Illegality, cessation of business of the Issuer;

Security in jeopardy;

Bankruptcy, CDR proceedings filed with respect to the Issuer;

Breach of any of the terms of the Transaction Documents by the Issuer;
Breach of any covenants;

Breach of any Representations and Warranties;

Nationalization or expropriation of any of a substantial part of the
assets of the Issuer;

Unlawfulness or moratorium

Consequences of
Event of Default

The consequences of default will, include but not be limited to the
following:

e Acceleration of all outstanding dues, cancellation of total Issue and
enforcement of Security;

e To transfer assets of the Issuer comprised within the Security
created in favour of Debenture Trustee or such other person by way
of lease, leave and license, sale or otherwise. Any surplus realized
from the transfer of assets after fulfilment of all the obligations of
the Issuer under the Issue shall be paid to the Issuer;

e Enforce its right under the Transaction Documents;

e Appropriate any amount in the Accounts and utilize it for
payment/repayment of any amount outstanding under the Issue;

e Charge Default Interest. It is clarified that the default interest shall
be charged from the date of occurrence of event of default
irrespective of the same being declared by the Investor(s) till such
date the default subsists;

Any cost incurred on any of the above shall be borne by the Issuer.

EBP Process

Issue and Payment Procedure

¢ Bidding Process

All Eligible Participants are required to apply for the Issue and make
payment of the full application amount in accordance with the Bidding
Process outlined in the Shelf Disclosure Document. The Issue will be
through open bidding on the EBP platform in line with EBP Guidelines
vide SEBI circular SEBI/HO/DDHS/CIR/P/2018/122 dated August 16,
2018 or such other circular issued from time to time.

e Manner of settlement
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Settlement of the Issue will be done through the NSE Clearing
Corporation and the virtual account details will be shared on Provisional
Allocation of Debentures.

¢ Provisional or Final Allocation

Allocation shall be made on a pro rata basis in the multiples of the bidding
lot size, i.e., in multiples of Rs. 10,00,000 (Rupees Ten Lakh Only). Post
completion of bidding process, the Issuer will upload the provisional
allocation on the NSE EBP platform. Post receipt of details of the
successful bidders, the Issuer will upload the final allocation file on the
NSE-EBP platform.

e Payment Mechanism

Payment of subscription money for the Bonds should be made by the
identified investors as notified by the Issuer.

The participants should complete the funds pay-in to the designated bank
account as per details as mentioned in the NSE EBP Platform

Successful bidders must do the subscription amount payment to the
Designated Bank Account on or before 10:30 a.m. on the Pay-in Date
(“Pay-in Time”). identified investors should ensure to make payment of
the subscription amount for the Bonds from their same bank account
which is updated by them in the NSE EBP platform while placing the
bids. In case of mismatch in the bank account details between NSE EBP
platform and the bank account from which payment is done by the
successful bidder, the payment would be returned.

Note: In case of failure of any identified investors to complete the
subscription amount payments by the Pay-in Time or the funds are not
received in the Designated Bank Account by the Pay-in Time for any
reason whatsoever, the bid will liable to be rejected and the Issuer shall
not be liable to issue Bonds to such Identified Investors.

e Settlement Process

Upon final allocation by the Issuer, the Issuer or the Registrar on behalf
of the Issue shall instruct the Depositories on the Pay-In Date, and the
Depositories shall accordingly credit the allocated Bonds to the demat
account of the successful bidder.

The Company shall give the instruction to the Registrar for crediting the
Debentures by 12:00 p.m. on the Pay-In Date. The Registrar shall provide
corporate action file along with all requisite documents to Depositories by
12:00 p.m. on the Pay-In Date. On the Pay-In Date, the Depositories shall
confirm to the Issuer the transfer of Bonds in the demat account(s) of the
successful bidder(s).

Method of Allotment | Uniform Yield
Bid Timing 11.30 am to 1.30 pm.
Settlement cycle T+1

48




Manner of Bidding

Open Bidding

Settlement Through

NSE Clearing Corporation

Provisions related to
Cross Default

Any financial indebtedness of the Company is not paid when due and the
applicable cure period has lapsed without the Company making payment
of the overdue amount in full

Role and
Responsibilities of
Debenture Trustee

To oversee and monitor the overall transaction for and on behalf of the
Debenture Holder(s).

Indemnification

The Issuer will indemnify, and hold harmless the Debenture Holder(s),
investment manager of the Debenture Holders, and their respective
shareholders, officers, directors, employees, representatives and attorneys
from and against any claim, liability, demand, loss, damage, judgment or
other obligation or right of action which may arise as a result of breach of
the terms of the Transaction Documents by the Issuer.

Arbitration

In the event of any dispute or difference between the parties in respect of
or concerning or connected with the interpretation or implementation of the
Transaction Documents or arising out of the Transaction Documents, such
dispute or difference shall be referred to arbitration by a sole arbitrator,
appointed mutually by the Issuer and Investor, in accordance with the
(Indian) Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996, or any modification or
amendment thereof. The arbitration shall be held in Delhi. The language of
the arbitration proceedings shall be English. The expenses of the arbitration
shall be borne by the Issuer. The decision of such arbitration shall be
binding and conclusive upon the parties and may be enforced in any court
of competent jurisdiction.

Governing Law and
Jurisdiction

The Debentures and documentation will be governed by and construed in
accordance with the laws of India and the parties submit to the exclusive
jurisdiction of the courts in Delhi and as more particularly provided for in
the Debenture Trust Deed.

Transaction Costs

The Issuer shall bear all transaction related costs incurred by the Debenture

Holder with respect to legal counsel, valuers and auditors/ consultants.

Such costs include:

e Debenture Trustee’s fees;

e Rating fees;

e Stamping and registration costs in relation to all Transaction
Documents;

e Any other reasonable transaction related expense incurred by the
Debenture Holders

Taxes, Duties, Costs
and Expenses

Relevant taxes, duties and levies are to be borne by the Issuer.

e The charges/ fees and any amounts payable under the Debentures by
the Issuer as mentioned herein do not include any applicable taxes,
levies including service tax etc. and all such impositions shall be borne
by the Issuer additionally.

Issue Timing

Issue Opening Date
Issue Closing Date
Issue Pay-in Date
Issue Deemed Date of
Allotment

August 14, 2020
August 14, 2020
August 17, 2020
August 17, 2020
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Note:

1. Capitalised terms used but not defined in the ‘Issue Details’ in 5.45 above shall have the meanings
ascribed to the terms in the Debenture Trust Deed

2. The list of documents which have been executed or will be executed in connection with the issue
and subscription of debt securities shall be annexed.

3. The default interest rates mentioned above as payable by the Issuer are independent of each other.

4. If the Company fails to execute the Debenture Trust Deed within 3 months from the Issue Closing
Date, the Company will refund the subscription with agreed rate of interest or will pay penal interest
of atleast 2% p.a. over the Coupon Rate till these conditions are complied with at the option of the
investor.

5. Default in Payment: In case of default in payment of Interest and/or principal redemption on the due
dates, additional interest of at least @2% p.a. over the Coupon Rate will be payable by the Company
for the defaulting period.

6. Delay in Listing: In case of delay in listing of the debt securities beyond 20 days from the deemed
date of allotment, the Company will pay penal interest of at least 1% p.a. over the Coupon Rate from
the expiry of 30 days from the deemed date of allotment till the listing of such debt securities to the

investor.

7. 1In the event of conflict between the Debenture Trust Deed and this document, the terms of the
Debenture Trust Deed shall prevail.

SECTION 6: DISCLOSURES PERTAINING TO WILFUL DEFAULT

In case of listing of debt securities made on private placement, the following disclosures are required to
be made vide SEBI (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) (Amendment) Regulations, 2016 w.e.f. 25-05-
16:

A. Name of the Bank declaring the entity as a Wilful Defaulter: NA

B. The year in which the entity is declared as a Wilful Defaulter: NA

C. Outstanding amount when the entity is declared as a Wilful Defaulter: NA

D. Name of the entity declared as a Wilful Defaulter: NA

E. Steps taken, if any, for the removal from the list of wilful defaulters : NA

F. Other disclosures, as deemed fit by the Issuer in order to enable investors to take informed
decisions: NA
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G. Any other disclosure as specified by the Board: NA

SECTION 7: TRANSACTION DOCUMENTS
The following documents shall be executed in relation to the Issue (“Transaction Documents”):

A. Debenture Trustee Agreement, which will confirm the appointment of as the Debenture Trustee
(“Debenture Trustee Agreement”);

B. Debenture Trust Deed, which will set out the terms upon which the Debentures are being issued

and shall include the representations and warranties and the covenants to be provided by the
Issuer (“Debenture Trust Deed”);
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E.

Deed of Hypothecation whereby the Issuer will create an exclusive charge by way of
hypothecation over the Hypothecated Receivables in favour of the Debenture Trustee to secure
its obligations in respect of the Debentures (“Deed of Hypothecation™);

Non-Disposal Undertaking to be obtained from AION Capital Partners Limited for non-disposal
of their shares in the Issuer, in form and manner acceptable to Debenture Trustee / Debenture
Holders (“Non-Disposal Undertaking”); and

Such other documents as agreed between the Issuer and the Debenture Trustee.

The Debenture Trustee Agreement and the Non-Disposal Undertaking shall be executed on or prior to
the Issue Opening Date.

SECTION 8: OTHER INFORMATION AND APPLICATION PROCESS

The Debentures being offered as part of the Issue are subject to the provisions of the Act, the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Issuer, the terms of this Information Memorandum,
Application Form and other terms and conditions as may be incorporated in the Transaction Documents.

8.1

Mode of Transfer / Transmission of Debentures

The Debentures shall be transferable freely; however, it is clarified that no Investor shall be
entitled to transfer the Debentures to a person who is not entitled to subscribe to the Debentures.
The Debenture(s) shall be transferred and / or transmitted in accordance with the applicable
provisions of the Act and other applicable laws. The Debentures held in dematerialised form
shall be transferred subject to and in accordance with the rules / procedures as prescribed by
NSDL / CDSL and the relevant DPs of the transferor or transferee and any other applicable laws
and rules notified in respect thereof. The transferee(s) should ensure that the transfer formalities
are completed prior to the Record Date. In the absence of the same, amounts due will be paid /
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8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

redemption will be made to the person, whose name appears in the register of debenture holders
maintained by the R&T Agent as on the Record Date, under all circumstances. In cases where
the transfer formalities have not been completed by the transferor, claims, if any, by the
transferees would need to be settled with the transferor(s) and not with the Issuer. The normal
procedure followed for transfer of securities held in dematerialised form shall be followed for
transfer of these Debentures held in dematerialised form. The seller should give delivery
instructions containing details of the buyer’s DP account to his DP.

Debentures held in Dematerialised Form

The Debentures shall be held in dematerialised form and no action is required on the part of the
Debenture Holder(s) for redemption purposes and the redemption proceeds will be paid by
cheque / fund transfer / RTGS to those Debenture Holder(s) whose names appear on the list of
beneficiaries maintained by the R&T Agent. The names would be as per the R&T Agent’s
records on the Record Date fixed for the purpose of redemption. All such Debentures will be
simultaneously redeemed through appropriate corporate action.

The list of beneficiaries as of the Record Date setting out the relevant beneficiaries’ name and
account number, address, bank details and DP’s identification number will be given by the R&T
Agent to the Issuer. If permitted, the Issuer may transfer payments required to be made in any
relation by EFT / RTGS to the bank account of the Debenture Holder(s) for redemption
payments.

Trustee for the Debenture Holder(s)

The Issuer has appointed Catalyst Trusteeship Limited to act as trustee for the Debenture
Holder(s). The Issuer and the Debenture Trustee intends to enter into the Debenture Trustee
Agreement and the Debenture Trust Deed inter alia, specifying the powers, authorities and
obligations of the Debenture Trustee and the Issuer. The Debenture Holder(s) shall, without
further act or deed, be deemed to have irrevocably given their consent to the Debenture Trustee
or any of its agents or authorized officials to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things in respect
of or relating to the Debentures as the Debenture Trustee may in its absolute discretion deem
necessary or require to be done in the interest of the Debenture Holder(s). Any payment made
by the Issuer to the Debenture Trustee on behalf of the Debenture Holder(s) shall discharge the
Issuer pro tanto to the Debenture Holder(s). The Debenture Trustee will protect the interest of
the Debenture Holder(s) in regard to the repayment of principal and coupon thereon and they
will take necessary action, subject to and in accordance with the Debenture Trustee Agreement
and the Debenture Trust Deed, at the cost of the Issuer. No Debenture Holder shall be entitled
to proceed directly against the Issuer unless the Debenture Trustee, having become so bound to
proceed, fails to do so. The Debenture Trustee Agreement and the Debenture Trust Deed shall
more specifically set out the rights and remedies of the Debenture Holder(s) and the manner of
enforcement thereof.

Sharing of Information

The Issuer may, at its option, but subject to applicable laws, use on its own, as well as exchange,
share or part with any financial or other information about the Debenture Holder(s) available
with the Issuer, with its subsidiaries and affiliates and other banks, financial institutions, credit
bureaus, agencies, statutory bodies, as may be required and neither the Issuer nor its subsidiaries

and affiliates nor their agents shall be liable for use of the aforesaid information.

Debenture Holder not a Shareholder
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8.6

8.7

8.8

8.9

The Debenture Holder(s) shall not be entitled to any right and privileges of shareholders other
than those available to them under the Act. The Debentures shall not confer upon the Debenture
Holders the right to receive notice(s) or to attend and to vote at any general meeting(s) of the
shareholders of the Issuer.

Modification of Debentures

The Debenture Trustee and the Issuer will agree to make any modifications in the Information
Memorandum which in the opinion of the Debenture Trustee is of a formal, minor or technical
nature or is to correct a manifest error.

Any other change or modification to the terms of the Debentures shall require approval by the
Debenture Holders in the manner as provided for in the Debenture Trust Deed.

Right to accept or reject Applications

The Issuer reserves its full, unqualified and absolute right to accept or reject any application for
bid, in part or in full, without assigning any reason thereof in accordance with the Operational
Guidelines.

Notices

Any notice may be served by the Issuer / Debenture Trustee upon the Debenture Holders through
registered post, recognized overnight courier service, hand delivery or by facsimile transmission
addressed to such Debenture Holder at its / his registered address, e-mail or facsimile number.

All notice(s) to be given by the Debenture Holder(s) to the Issuer / Debenture Trustee shall be
sent by registered post, recognized overnight courier service, hand delivery, email or by
facsimile transmission to the Issuer or to such persons at such address / facsimile number as may
be notified by the Issuer from time to time through suitable communication. All correspondence
regarding the Debentures should be marked “Private Placement of Debentures”.

Notice(s) shall be deemed to be effective (a) in the case of registered mail; 2 (Two) Business
Days after posting via certified or registered mail, return receipt requested; (b) 1 (One) Business
Day after delivery by recognized overnight courier service, if sent for next Business day
delivery; (c) in the case of facsimile at the time when dispatched with a report confirming proper
transmission; (d) in the case of personal delivery, at the time of delivery; or (e) or in case of e-
mail at the time of the sending thereof (provided no delivery failure notification is received by
the sender within 24 hours of sending such email).

Issue Procedure
Who can bid?

Only Eligible Investors as given hereunder and identified upfront by the Issuer are eligible to
bid for this Issue.

All Eligible Investors are required to comply with the relevant regulations/ guidelines applicable
to them for investing in this Issue in accordance with the norms approved by the Government of
India, RBI or any other statutory body from time to time, including but not limited to the
Operational Guidelines for investing in this Issue.

Right to Accept or Reject Bids
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d)

g2

h)

The Issuer reserves its full, unqualified and absolute right to accept or reject any application for
bid, in part or in full, without assigning any reason thereof in accordance with the Operational
Guidelines.

How to bid?

Only Eligible Investors can register themselves as a one-time exercise (if not already registered)
under the NSE Bond — EBP Platform offered by NSE for participating in the electronic book
mechanism. Eligible Investors will also have to complete the mandatory KYC verification
process. Eligible Investors should refer to the Operational Guidelines. The details of the Issue
shall be entered on the NSE Bond — EBP Platform by the Issuer at least 2 (two) working days
prior to the Issue Opening Date, in accordance with the Operational Guidelines. The Issue will
be open for bidding for the duration of the bidding window that would be communicated through
the Issuer’s bidding announcement on the NSE Bond — EBP Platform, at least 1 (one) working
day before the start of the Issue Opening Date. Some of the key guidelines in terms of the current
Operational Guidelines on issuance of securities on private placement basis through an
electronic book mechanism, are as follows:

Some of the key guidelines in terms of the current Operational Guidelines on issuance of
securities on private placement basis through an electronic book mechanism, are as follows:

Modification of Bid:

Eligible Investors may note that modification of bid is allowed during the bidding period /
window. However, in the last 10 minutes of the bidding period / window, revision of bid is only
allowed for upward revision of the bid amount placed by the Eligible Investor.

Cancellation of Bid:

Eligible Investors may note that cancellation of bid is allowed during the bidding period /
window. However, in the last 10 minutes of the bidding period / window, no cancellation of bids
is permitted.

Multiple Bids:

Eligible Investors are permitted to place multiple bids on the NSE Bond - EBP platform in line
with SEBI EBP Circular.

Manner of Bidding:

The details of the manner of the bidding shall be in accordance with the Operational Guidelines
and mentioned in the Information Memorandum and/ or as specified at the time of entering
details particular to the Issue on the NSE Bond - EBP Platform.

Manner of Allotment:

The allotment will be done in line with the Operational Guidelines and as mentioned in the
Information Memorandum and/ or as specified at the time of entering details particular to the

Issue on the NSE Bond - EBP Platform.

Manner of Settlement:
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)

k)

)

m)

8.10

a)

The settlement shall be in accordance with provisions of the Operational Guidelines and as
mentioned in the Information Memorandum and/ or as specified at the time of entering details
particular to the Issue on the NSE Bond - EBP Platform.

Settlement Cycle:

The process of pay-in of funds by investors and pay-out to Issuer will be done as per the
Operational Guidelines and as mentioned in the Information Memorandum and/ or as specified
at the time of entering details particular to the Issue on the NSE Bond - EBP Platform.

Withdrawal of Issue:

The Issuer may, at its discretion, withdraw the issue process on the conditions set out under the
Operational Guidelines. Provided that the Issuer shall accept or withdraw the Issue on the NSE
Bond — EBP Platform within 1 (one) hour of the closing of the bidding window, and not later
than 6 pm on the Issue Closing Date.

However, Eligible Investors should refer to the Operational Guidelines as prevailing on the date
of the bid.

The disclosure of estimated cut off yield (as defined in the Operational Guidelines) by NSE
Bond - EBP Platform to the Eligible Investors, pursuant to closure of the Issue, shall be at the
discretion of the Issuer. If the Issuer has withdrawn the Issue, the NSE Bond - EBP Platform
shall mandatorily disclose the estimated cut off yield to the Eligible Investors. Estimated cut off
yield should be disclosed on NSE Bond - EBP Platform at least one hour prior to the bid start
time. An Issuer may choose to disclose the estimated cut-off yield to all the Eligible Investors
before the bidding.

Application Size:

Applications for the Debentures are required to be for a minimum of 10 (ten) Debenture and
multiples of 1 (one) Debenture thereafter.

All Eligible Investors under the Operational Guidelines and subsequent Debenture Holders (who
shall purchase the Debentures in the secondary market) are required to consult their own
advisors in investing in the Debentures and comply with the relevant rules, regulations,
guidelines or notifications applicable to them for investing in the Debentures.

Offer or Issue of executed offer document to Successful Bidders

The offer document along with the Application Form will be issued to the successful bidders.
Successful bidders will be required to complete and submit the Application Form to the Issuer
in order to accept the offer of Debentures. No person other than the successful bidders to whom
the offer document has been issued by Issuer may apply for the Issue through the Application
Form received from a person other than those specifically addressed will be invalid.
Allocation and basis of Allotment

Provisional or Final Allocation

Allocation shall be made as per the Information Memorandum. Post completion of bidding
process, the Issuer will upload the provisional allocation on the NSE Bond - EBP Platform. Post
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receipt of details of the successful bidders, the Issuer will upload the final allocation file on the
NSE Bond - EBP Platform.

Payment Instructions

The Application Form should be submitted directly. The entire amount of Rs. 10,00,000/-
(Rupees Ten Lakhs only) per Debenture is payable along with the making of an application.
Applicants can remit the application amount through RTGS on Pay-in Date. The RTGS details
of the Issuer are as under:

Beneficiary Name: Clix Capital Services Private Limited

Bank Account No. 57500000195104

IFSC CODE: HDFC0000572

Bank Name HDEFC Bank

Branch Address: HDFC Bank Ltd, Vatika Atrium, "A" Block, Golf Course
Road, Sector - 53, Gurgaon - 122002 (Haryana)

Date of Subscription

The date of subscription shall be the date of realisation of proceeds of subscription money in the
designated account.

Settlement Process

Upon final allocation by the Issuer, the Issuer shall instruct the depositories on the Pay In Date,
and the Depositories shall accordingly credit the allocated Debentures to the demat account of
the successful bidder.

The Company shall give the instruction to the registrar for crediting the Debentures as per the
Operational Guidelines.

Post-Allocation Disclosures by the EBP

Upon final allocation by the Issuer, the Issuer shall disclose the Issue size, coupon rate, ISIN,
number of successful bidders, category of the successful bidder(s), etc., in accordance with the
Operational Guidelines. The EBP shall upload such data, as provided by the Issuer, on its
website to make it available to the public.

Eligible Investors

The following categories of Investors, who have been specifically approached and have been
identified upfront, are eligible to apply for this private placement of Debentures subject to
fulfilling their respective investment norms / rules and compliance with laws applicable to them
by submitting all the relevant documents along with the Application Form:

a) Scheduled commercial banks in India;

b) NBFCs and RNBCs registered with RBI;

¢) Indian companies and Individuals;

d) Mutual Funds;

e) Rural regional banks in India;

f) Insurance companies registered with IRDA;

g) Financial institutions, including All India Financial Institutions;

h) Housing finance companies registered with the National Housing Board; and
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Other eligible investors as per the concerned guidelines and regulations.
All potential Investors are required to comply with the relevant regulations / guidelines
applicable to them for investing in this issue of Debentures.

Note: Participation by potential Investors in the Issue may be subject to statutory and / or
regulatory requirements applicable to them in connection with subscription to Indian securities
by such categories of persons or entities. Applicants are advised to ensure that they comply with
all regulatory requirements applicable to them, including exchange controls and other
requirements. Applicants ought to seek independent legal and regulatory advice in relation to
the laws applicable to them.

Procedure for Applying for Dematerialised Facility

A.

The applicant must have at least one beneficiary account with any of the DPs of NSDL /
CDSL prior to making the application.

The applicant must necessarily fill in the details (including the beneficiary account
number and DP - ID) appearing in the Application Form under the heading “Details for
Issue of Debentures in Electronic / Dematerialised Form”.

Debentures allotted to an applicant will be credited to the applicant’s respective
beneficiary account(s) with the DP.

For subscribing to the Debentures, names in the Application Form should be identical to
those appearing in the details in the Depository. In case of joint holders, the names should
necessarily be in the same sequence as they appear in the account details maintained with
the DP.

Non-transferable allotment advice / refund orders will be directly sent to the applicant by
the R&T Agent to the Issue.

If incomplete / incorrect details are given under the heading “Details for Issue of
Debentures in Electronic / Dematerialised Form” in the Application Form, it will be
deemed to be an incomplete application and the same may be held liable for rejection at
the sole discretion of the Issuer.

For allotment of Debentures, the address, nomination details and other details of the
applicant as registered with his / her DP shall be used for all correspondence with the
applicant. The applicant is therefore responsible for the correctness of his / her
demographic details given in the Application Form vis-a-vis those with his / her DP. In
case the information is incorrect or insufficient, the Issuer would not be liable for the
losses, if any.

The Redemption Amount or other benefits would be paid to those Debenture Holders
whose names appear on the list of beneficial owners maintained by the R&T Agent as on
the Record Date. In case of those Debentures for which the beneficial owner is not
identified in the records of the R&T Agent as on the Record Date, the Issuer would keep
in abeyance the payment of the Redemption Amount or other benefits, until such time that
the beneficial owner is identified by the R&T Agent and conveyed to the Issuer,
whereupon the Redemption Amount and benefits will be paid to the beneficiaries, as
identified.

Depository Arrangements
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The Issuer shall make necessary arrangement with NSDL for issue and holding of Debenture in
dematerialised form.

List of Beneficiaries

The Issuer shall request the R&T Agent to provide a list of beneficiaries as at the end of each
Record Date. This shall be the list, which will be used for payment or repayment of redemption
monies.

Application under Power of Attorney

A certified true copy of the power of attorney or the relevant authority as the case may be along
with the names and specimen signature(s) of all the authorized signatories of the Investor and
the tax exemption certificate / document of the Investor, if any, must be lodged along with the
submission of the completed Application Form. Further modifications / additions in the power
of attorney or authority should be notified to the Issuer or to its agents or to such other person(s)
at such other address(es) as may be specified by the Issuer from time to time through a suitable
communication.

In case of an application made by companies under a power of attorney or resolution or
authority, a certified true copy thereof along with memorandum and articles of association and
/ or bye-laws along with other constitutional documents must be attached to the Application
Form at the time of making the application, failing which, the Issuer reserves the full,
unqualified and absolute right to accept or reject any application in whole or in part and in either
case without assigning any reason thereto. Names and specimen signatures of all the authorized
signatories must also be lodged along with the submission of the completed Application Form.

Procedure for application by Mutual Funds and Multiple Applications

In case of applications by mutual funds and venture capital funds, a separate application must
be made in respect of each scheme of an Indian mutual fund / venture capital fund registered
with the SEBI and such applications will not be treated as multiple application, provided that
the application made by the asset management company / trustee / custodian clearly indicated
their intention as to the scheme for which the application has been made.

The application forms duly filled shall clearly indicate the name of the concerned scheme for
which application is being made and must be accompanied by certified true copies of

A.  SEBI registration certificate

B.  Resolution authorizing investment and containing operating instructions

C.  Specimen signature of authorized signatories

Documents to be provided by Investors

Investors need to submit the following documents, as applicable

A.  Memorandum and Articles of Association or other constitutional documents
Resolution authorising investment

C Power of Attorney to custodian

D.  Specimen signatures of the authorised signatories

E. SEBI registration certificate (for Mutual Funds)

F Copy of PAN card

G Application Form (including EFT / RTGS details)
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Applications to be accompanied with Bank Account Details

Every application shall be required to be accompanied by the bank account details of the
applicant and the magnetic ink character reader code of the bank for the purpose of availing
direct credit of the Redemption Amount and all other amounts payable to the Debenture
Holder(s) through EFT / RTGS.

Succession

In the event of winding-up of the holder of the Debenture(s), the Issuer will recognize the
liquidator or such other legal representative of the Debenture Holder(s) as having title to the
Debenture(s).

The Issuer may, in its absolute discretion, where it thinks fit, dispense with production of such
other legal representation, in order to recognize such holder as being entitled to the Debenture(s)
standing in the name of the concerned Debenture Holder on production of sufficient
documentary proof and / or an indemnity.

Mode of Payment
All payments must be made through EFT / RTGS as set out in the Application Form.
Effect of Holidays

In case any Interest Payment Date falls on a day which is not a Business Day the payment to be
made on such Interest Payment Date shall be made on the immediately succeeding Business
Day. When the Redemption Date falls on a day which is not a Business Day, all payments to be
made on the Redemption Date (including accrued Coupon), shall be made on the immediately
preceding Business Day.

Tax Deduction at Source

Tax as applicable under the Income Tax Act, 1961, or any other statutory modification or re-
enactment thereof will be deducted at source. For seeking TDS exemption / lower rate of TDS,
relevant certificate / document must be lodged by the Debenture Holder(s) at the office of the
R&T Agents of the Issuer at least 15 (Fifteen) days before the relevant payment becoming due.
Tax exemption certificate / declaration of non-deduction of tax at source on interest on
application money, should be submitted along with the Application Form.

If any payments under this issuance is subject to any tax deduction other than such amounts as
are required as per current regulations existing as on the date of the Debenture Trust Deed,
including if the Company shall be required legally to make any payment for tax from the interest
/ coupon payable under the Issue, (“Tax Deduction”), the Company shall make such Tax
Deduction, and shall simultaneously pay to the Debenture Holders such additional amounts as
may be necessary in order that the net amounts received by the Debenture Holders after the Tax
Deduction shall equal the respective amounts which would have been receivable by the
Debenture Holders in the absence of such Tax Deduction.

Provided however, if such rate of Tax Deduction reverts to the increased rate existing prior to
June 1, 2013, the Company shall not be required to gross up, i.e., pay additional monies on
account of any Tax Deduction for any interest / coupon payments to the Debenture Holders, so
long as the holder of the Debentures is a FP1/ QFI / FII. It is clarified that any increase in the
Tax Deduction on interest/coupon payments exceeding the rate existing prior to June 1, 2013
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will be grossed up only to the extent of the differential rate arising from such increase in Tax
Deduction and the rate existing prior to June 1, 2013.

Letters of Allotment

The letter of allotment, indicating allotment of the Debentures, will be credited in dematerialised
form within 2 (Two) Business Days from the Deemed Date of Allotment. The aforesaid letter
of allotment shall be replaced with the actual credit of Debentures, in dematerialised form,
within 7 (Seven) Business Days from the Deemed Date of Allotment or within such timelines
as permissible under applicable law.

Deemed Date of Allotment

All the benefits under the Debentures will accrue to the Investor from the specified Deemed
Date of Allotment.

Record Date
The Record Date will be 15 (Fifteen) days prior to any Payment Date.
Refunds

For applicants whose applications have been rejected or allotted in part, refund orders will be
dispatched within seven days from the Deemed Date of Allotment of the Debentures.

In case the Issuer has received money from applicants for Debentures in excess of the aggregate
of the application money relating to the Debentures in respect of which allotments have been
made, the R&T Agent shall upon receiving instructions in relation to the same from the Issuer
repay the moneys to the extent of such excess, if any.

Interest on Application Money

Interest shall be payable on all application monies received at the Interstate of 12.45% (Twelve
Decimal Point Four Five per cent) per annum from the date of realization of the application
monies by the Issuer until the Deemed Date of Allotment and the same shall be paid to the
relevant Investors within 15 (Fifteen) Business Days from the Deemed Date of Allotment.

PAN Number

Every applicant should mention its Permanent Account Number (“PAN”) allotted under Income
Tax Act, 1961, on the Application Form and attach a self-attested copy as evidence. Application
forms without PAN will be considered incomplete and are liable to be rejected.

Payment on Redemption

Payment on redemption will be made by way of cheque(s) / redemption warrant(s) / demand
draft(s) / credit through RTGS system / funds transfer in the name of the Debenture Holder(s)
whose names appear on the list of beneficial owners given by the Depository to the Issuer as on
the Record Date.

The Debentures shall be taken as discharged on payment of the Redemption Amount by the
Issuer on maturity to the registered Debenture Holder(s) whose name appears in the Register of
Debenture Holder(s) on the Record Date. On such payment being made, the Issuer will inform
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NSDL / CDSL and accordingly the account of the Debenture Holder(s) with NSDL / CDSL will
be adjusted.

On the Issuer dispatching the amount as specified above in respect of the Debentures, the
liability of the Issuer shall stand extinguished.

Disclaimer: The list of documents provided above is only indicative, and an investor is
required to provide all those documents/ authorizations/ information, which are likely to
be required by the Issuer. Investment by investors falling in the categories mentioned
above are merely indicative and the Issuer does not warrant that they are permitted to
invest as per extant laws, regulations, etc. Each of the above categories of investors is
required to check and comply with extant rules / regulations / guidelines, etc. governing or
regulating their investments as applicable to them and the Issuer is not, in any way,
directly or indirectly, responsible for any statutory or regulatory breaches by any investor,
neither is the Issuer required to check or confirm the same.
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SECTION 9: DECLARATION

The Issuer declares that all the relevant provisions in the regulations / guideline issued by SEBI and
other applicable laws have been complied with and no statement made in this Information Memorandum
is contrary to the provisions of the regulations / guidelines issued by SEBI and other applicable laws, as
the case may be. The information contained in this Information Memorandum is as applicable to
privately placed debt securities and subject to information available with the Issuer. The extent of
disclosures made in the Information Memorandum is consistent with disclosures permitted by regulatory
authorities to the issue of securities made by the companies in the past.

(a) the Company has complied with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made
there under;

(b) the compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules thereunder does not imply that
payment of dividend or interest or repayment of debentures, if applicable, is guaranteed by the Central
Government; and

(©) the monies received under the offer shall be used only for the purposes and objects indicated in
this Information memorandum

I am authorized by the board of directors of the Company, vide board resolution dated November 28,
2019, to sign this form and declare that all the requirements of Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made
thereunder in respect of the subject matter of this form and matters incidental thereto have been complied
with. Whatever is stated in this form and in the attachments thereto is true, correct and complete and no
information material to the subject matter of this form has been suppressed or concealed and is as per
the original records maintained by the promoters subscribing to the Memorandum of Association and
Articles of Association.

It is further declared and verified that all the required attachments have been completely, correctly and
legibly attached to this form.

For Clix Capital Services Private Limited

PH<Ra~

Authorised Signatory
Name: Rashmi Mohanty
Title: Director

Date: August 14, 2020
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MCDS, 1 BKE NESERRSry SRS (NoUMing, due HHpEncE of Sppocmtans foe eubeibieg e NCDS.
setilement, paymand and axecuhon al &l ather decumanss], papens), and appication|s] as may be
reequirad, and o ¢io all acts, dasds and Mings & may ba necessaEny ar ncidanial o ihe forgong

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT mir Aumorised Offcas 1| be and aoe Ty sevaially aullonsed, & oo ab
otha g ralated Aling o Awsculion wilh ny auharty, including thie BSE, e NSE, the Nalional Security
Ceaoiliony Linied ("HS0OLT, the Cantal Dapouiory Servced (India) Limited "COSL") and! @i mny cihe
enlify, ail or any auch decumants as may be requred to complala e process of allckment (Ingluding e.
BECATHY) af e ML N oesnaierialized fom,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Aushorised Officers | ba and are hereby authorised io, to the midant that
the limds prescrbed for the tssusnce of WCDe pursusnt b this resclufion of the Bosm hews nol bean
i, mwndicale o g of appiuaval of Um Dol o aucds farllio paiid o el a8 iay b i,
Irsctuadirgg ho this purpcded of complante wilh ipolcokie iy @' of regulatans of i RO

RESQOLVED FURTHER THAT officars as manfoned in Autherization Tabla 1, acting any tea jainty, am
authaeised 1o madily i Bst af pereon(s) in Aulhorzatian Table 3, rom lims o ime:

RESOLYED FURTHER THAT any one of the Directors o fhe Company Secelary be and i harsby
severally authorised b0 insus nalice o oonvane an s codnary ganeral mesling ol the sharshciders Gl the
Gwmﬂ: spprove by wit of 8 soecal fesciuiion en esuence of e NGO & requined, in accordance wilh
appilcatilo

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT mny ana af tha Oirectors o the Company Secretary bo and s haraby
gvarally miltorssd fo make steluloy and’ of reguialory Bings for ihe lssuance of fhe NCDs s
eontamalaled hergin

RESOLVED FLURTHER THAT any ane of e Dirscior, dhe Cheel Financial officer andd of the Company
Emmﬂ of the Company e and are heraby savermdy authonssd @ certify & copy of ihe faregaing
reschilions s irus

Clix Sarvices Privabe Limited
BOIN, U Mair, Two Horome Center, DLF Paaen W, . 122003, b
Ll '!J-I-luullglr‘i'rlrull III-I-“-"FT: u; (LT ll--: ||'l|!|r |erm:u Y Mlml CU NI S .,E’ﬂw
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ANNEXURE II: SHAREHOLDER RESOLUTION

LK

e ——————
CERTMED TRUN GOPY OF THE REBCUUTION PASSETD I THE EXTRA ORDHNARY GERERAL MEETING OF THE
SHAREHOLGDERE ("EGUM™) OF CLIN CAPITAL BERVICES PRIVATE LMITED (“THE COMPANY) HELD ON
THUREDAY, DECEMOER 4, 2018 FROM 4104 P TO 813 PA AT BOARD RODN, B 0, BTH FLOGRA, TWO
HORIZON GENTAE, DLF FHASE-Y, GURUGRAN 123002

SRECOLVED THAT sutiect to the previslans ol Section 42, 62 of the Cosgasies et J0U2 and cter spplcatle peosan,
if iy, o the Companis het, 003 aad the rules thereondar, the coment of the sharehoers be md is by acconded
e thet Poard of Oirechers of thi Company or a committes appointar by the Board of Dimcior of sy personls)
authormed by tae Baard of Tinsctars, b raise fonds o aeet e Tundng requisements for the businass activites of the
Companyy Ty iy of esance, on 3 private plicsment basis, of rated) unrzsed, lted [ enlisted, seoured/unsecured,
redemmabin won-comeersble debantures (Detsitures”], In one or mone trndhes’ seances on sach terms and
conitions s iy be debermined by the Brard of Dreciors of the Compeay of @ cosimittes appointed by the Board of
tirmetors, prosided thatthe speregabe amaun raised throuph the isswanes of such Dabestures pursuant 16 the authority
\tbér this resclution shall it soéed As. 3000 Crones /- [Rupees Thees Thewsard Crores onby) and weh issance chall be
i acrordance wah ol spplcsidn liw and ragulations, the Memorardum and Artickes of Assocation of the Campany; and
1lie Rafing apreament wikh b reevaat stoch axchanges, iFany,

RESOLVED FLIRTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company of @ commitber appaintad by the Scand of Directors
ar any parsenii) metheizad by the Board of Direchses ke sed s herety authortsed v fingl e thi terms and cardions to
|55 the Diebaniures and do any and al such ses, deads sed things as may be necessary to gve effect to This resoktion,
inciding try delegating the authonty confemed by this resclution.

UESCLVED FURTHER THAT ooy of the director or the Company Secretaey of the Comeany & hereby asthesined 1o isun o
e lilied true copy of these rédo kdions.

AL3IEE

[ooh

Clix Chgilal Sarvizes Privato Limited vt | i)

10, 5 Poor Canbor, TLT PHass vV, B §EEE, B hella@chi canitel
K'E..“‘;,.c....l.'.’.'." mﬂuu.uﬁ.»ﬁ?ﬁﬂﬂ'ﬂ—”ﬂiﬁmq{m— 1 by 807 134 TS0
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ANNEXURE III: RATING LETTER & RATING RATIONALE

e Ratings

rofemampl Eid Cipiphinr

CARE/DRO/RL/ 2020-21/ 1583

M. Kavesn Khurans

Treasury Lesder

Clix Caqpital Services Pyt Lbd.

5048, 5 Floar, Two Horizon Centre,
DLF Phase ¥, ELrE'a-:rn — 133003

August 12, 2020
Lonfidentral
Dz Sir,
Credit rating for Mon-Comvertible Debenturs and Market Link=d
Debenture issue

Please refer to your reguest for rating of propozed long term nor—oonvertible debenture (NCD)

issue and market inked debenture isswee szgrepating to Rz 300 oore of your company.

The following ratings hawe been assigned by cur Rating Committes:

Instrument amaount Rsting’ Rating Action
|R=. crore)
Frooossd Non-Comeertiais 200 CARE At Stable :.s:i.E;r'.eu
Debenture issue [Rupees Twao [Sirgie A Fuus; Outhock:
Hundred Crone onky] Stabie]
Frooosed Market Linked 100 CARE PP-MLD A Stabdx .!.SF:E;I".tI‘.I
Debenture issue [Rup=e One (Principal
Hundred Crose only] | Frotected Mariet Uinked
Diebanture Single A
Plus; Dutiook: Stabke)

‘Compiate definiions of the rofings cmigned ang evoilbie of Www.conanatings. com avd 0 obher CARE

Dublostons

CARE Ratmes Lid
CORPORATE OFFICE: 4* Floo, Godrej Coliseum, 13h Floar, E-1 Elock, Videoooo Towsr
Sty Boapital Rrad, (F Fastom Fapress Highoan: Franvkroatn Fromeion, Mo Dialli - 110
Sion (), Dbt - 400 022, il
Tal: +51-22- 6754 3436 .« Foor; +90-11- (22 67 3457 Tk +51-11-5533 3200 » Fax +91-11-43733

Eomil: camuiicaramiing com s WWW.CRDRIRITS COE 1338
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3. Please arrange to pet the rating revafidated, in case the proposed issue & ot made

within & period of six months from the date of our initial communication of rating to you
{that is August 12, 2020).
4. in caze there iz any change in the size or terms of the proposed izsue, please zet the

rating resadidated.

5. Please inform us the below-mentioned detedls of issue immediately, but not iater than 7

days from the date of placing the instrument:

Instrsment | ISIN | Iszue | Coupon | Coupon Termzof | Rederaphon | Name and Desbedls
typ= Soe | Rste | Payment | Redemption date contact of top 10
(Rs Dates. deteils of | imesions

o} Dehenture:

Trustee

6. Eindly arrange to submit to u= & copy of esch of the documents permining to the KCD

issue, induding the offer document and the trust deed.

7.  The rationale for the rating will be communicated to you separately. A write-up {press
release} on the abowve rating is proposed to be issued o the press shortly, a draft of
which is enclosed for your perusal as Annesure. We reguest you to peruse the annexed
document and offer your commenis if any. We are doing this a5 a matter of courtesy to
our dlients and with & view to ensure that no factusd inacoursoies have inadvertently
crept in. Kindly revert as early as possible In any case,  we do not hear from you by

Hspe=z 12, 2020, we will proceed on the basis that you have no zny comments to offer

8. CARE reserses the right to undertake 2 sureeillznoefreview of the mting from time to
time, based on circumstsnoes warranting such reviews, subject to at least one sudh

reviewy surveiflance every year.

5. CARE reserves the right to revise/reaffirm/fwithdraw the rating assigned as also reviss the

gutlook, as a result of periodic review/surveillance, baszed on any event or information

CARE Rating: Ltd

13th Floor, E-1 Block, Tideccos Tower, Thandawalan Fxereacs, Mew Dalbi - TLO0FS
Tal: +00-11-4333 3200 » Faox +91-10-4333 3238
F:E'.E 2afd
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which in the opinion of CARE warrants such an action. In the event of failure on the part
of the entity to fumish such information, materal or clarifications as may be reguired by
CARE zo as to enable it to casmmy out continuous monitonng of the. mting of the debt
instrument, CARE shall carry out the review on the basis of best awvailable information
throughout the life time of such instrument. In such cases the oedit rating symibod shall
b= accompanied by "ISSUER NOT OOOPERATING™. CARE shall o be entitled to
publicize/tisserminate all the afore-mentioned rating ations in any manner consdered

appropariate by it, without reference to you.

10, Our ratings do not factor in sy ratng related trigper classes as per the terms of the
facilityfinstrument. which may irvohve accelerateon of payments in case of rating
downgrades. However, if any such dauses are introduced and if triggered, the ratings
may ses wolstility and sharp downgrades

11. Users of this rating may kindly refer our website www.careratings.com for latest update

on the outstanding rating.
12. CARE ratings sre not recommendations to buy, sell or hold any seourties.
If you need any clarfiztion, you are weicome to spproach us in this regerd. We are indeed,
grateful to you for entrusting this assignment to CARE.
Thanking you,
Yours faithfully,

A .-}-.'.l

A

[hyoti Rautela] [Fhubha Bhanu]

Deputy Manager Senior Manager
jyotirautelaiflcareratings.com shubhsz.bhanu reratings.com

CARE Fatmes Ltd

13th Floar, -1 Block, Videccon Towear, Thandewalan Pxtancion, New Dalhi - T10 055
Tel: 70E-11-4533 3200 » Fax +91-11-2533 3138

Fage3afd
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Encl &5 sbove

Dscimimer
CARE's ratings are opinians o the Ekeiihood of timely payment of the chiigations under the rated
instrurment and are ot remmmmendetions to Snction, renewy, disburse of recall the corosrmed bank
r-:nu'hﬂm't:l:uf' ma:rn:rh:lmf'sen.nq.' m:mgmm:mnwmhh’hrrmmfmm
investor w:mmmmmmm:tmwmmm- CARE has based iz
mnﬁshm MIWTFMDU:HTHWF mb&ww&mbemwmm
MMM,M,FMEMW,HEWWWUMTMM
i:mtrmuﬁbhhrqummﬂﬁ:immhrﬁzrﬂﬂ:nbﬂinﬂjﬁmﬂmml:l':-l.u:h
informathion. Most sniites wihose bank facitissinsbruments are mated by CARE hae Pudan:ruﬂt
ruhrE'ne,busudmﬂEmmtpedmrmlmﬂ-m CARE or #z
mmsnyummmrmmummmm In o= of
Fﬂhuﬂip{pﬂ:ﬂimﬁmmmﬁnﬁ .fmmnkunigﬂb:,-i:ﬂ.ﬂE iz, mbar-mis bazed on the
cq:-rl:u.ldq:h:lllu:lb'llﬂt pmhmmmﬁmdmwmmﬁmﬂm.m
reting/outiook mey under=d chanze in cze of withdrewal of capitsl of the unsecured lans brought in
wmm@ﬁenhuﬂﬁmtuﬂ:mmﬂNﬁMﬁmﬂmm
i.sMrmmintfﬂmr’mmwmmhmﬁnﬁmmIhﬁ&rmtuﬁ:md

Our r¥EnsT OO0 NOT fRClOr in o any mAting reisted Dsser Clusmas Az per the berms of the
mﬁrﬂmuﬂmlm BICElErETion urpu',rrm:'nm:ur i ORISR,
M.memmsnimm?fﬁﬂﬂeummﬁnﬁswmmqwm
COWNETBIES.

CARE Ratings Lid

13th Flogr, E-1 Block, Videcoon Tower, Thamdenaten Prmncics, Moo Dalbi - ILE05E
Tl +91-11-4533 3200 &« Faoc +51-11-8533 3238

P'-!.EE-!-UI'-!-
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a8 Ratings
Press Rejemce S|,

Agad 12, X020
Asrmun
t
Faciitiss s croend Ratiegd Rating Action
Loiyg-teim Bank Fadite 1EX0 CARE &«; Stable RealMismed
[Feduced from FLIOH Eirige & Migd; Dutheok:
Eralvla}
Liviyi- bt S bt - L Bk 1o CARE A+ Stablefils el ed
Factlities lagin A& Pl Outiook:
Stabie, & One Plul
Total Bani Fealithe S0
[Tt Thsisand and Filty Crore
oy
hicn-Cotreertible DeSentum T CARE & r; STable Adalginnd
|Prepossd) { Az T Hundend Crone onls) | Sinafe & Mes; Gutiook:
Stalsla)
Mirhet Lishen Dwbent ueri 103 CARE PRAALD &, Sable Bankined
|Prepased) {Pugen Dae Humdred Crors oaly] | Principal
Frotmtd Market Unked
Db tuen Saghe &
Plan; Cutiooi. Stabike)
Cosmret cdal Papai =] CARE Al Reaffiimed
iz Trom 22000 & O Puis
[Twu Haihdred Drore sidy]

Dty af st et Tuelitie in Amesie-1

Devailed Rationeis & Key ba iy Drivers
CARE hin Baed 2 o The Bditad N ds of CEx Cacltal taking @ comlimd view of Dl Cophal Services
P Lad {Oe Casival] and s 1006 subbdlary Obi Finescs nda Py U | Cls Anaence)

The futliy Foi the baak Paciltie asd non-cosvertile defsmunes of Ols Caphal b realMimed @ CARE A+; Suable and retlags
for commercial paper 5 maffroed ot CARE Alr, The rating were revised dows 1o carment vl on bune 30, 2000 on account
ol company’s ielathvely moden Book it Somecs Ih valloo el clase malnly 5 the el ending, sedesiton B the
loan Beok growth and moden profitakiliy prolis of the cogany. Owisg Lo compiny's felathvely dhort Bk fecord of
opetition madisg o modeiae seasnig of e real loan book sl builiess mrodel which remiing wisaed s
metmofni cyches, the tompeny b mepected 1o remsin bk 1o axiel guality chadk

Thi it hirwerver Conlibee 1 deilve afength o Be apedtise of s Capha's shareholder, vz, AON Capltad Parness
Umited, My Paraed Bhisie avd M Ani Chewla in tee Minancial sendon induntry ot well o et becking 1o Cle in eeme of
managetial snd copltal supporn, sxpesienced menagement leam with srong ak meegeeent and conticl selees
adeguate casitalization eeels with overall geadng @ 236 dme o on Aarch 53, 2000 [dewn from 3.4 (e o on March 33,
2ma).

CARE ahio Laky pote of B feosst mesune/sconomic stimubs ssaounced by RS and Goverment of inda b Bghtof e
Cordd- 29 pandemic ta phiwide derabls lguliny and protect maet guafity. Aneunssmest whh feipect 10 Tangetied Loy
Teis Repo Opesatizn 2.0 (TLTRO 200 Toif MBFCS snd MFS, sesclal iefinance Taclley by NABSRD, SIDBI and NHE 1o sddien
sctoend crmlll nesds, asset deaificstion sesdstl For el scocunts whese merstorium b graniel, lomn gpoaresbes,
wtoidinited debl snd ae wguity corpus fund T MEME soctor are expectnd bo prosdde some melel 1o e siset gually and
Exguidity profils of Cha.

e Capitsl wida its exchings Slsg dalod 15 jose 2000 statad thit i akong with it 1008 subsidery Clh Finahcs, sssaiied &
relminery, non-binding ketter of intent with Lakehuni Yie Bank (U] Tor 8 eaitcaly asreed bindiag sxclusvity pesied un
VB for dus dilgence and Sstisilom 1o soiluale a iralegic combination of sy ollei sullable arangeiment with Be Cli
Gz, A, i beme 2020, Apolo Global Managemend and 101 Vst sfded Chilf joinl veslure, A0 Captal Parihers.
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Buting Seithities

Pexiltbew Faclon-

* GrowTh in odn Book

* Mokl rsoutors o compeive coat from divens rsourors sod brisging down e ool of Borsowisg
*  Sustsin Bealthy st quality parametans snd Smil credi oosts

Wegative Fation -
& Dedine b emh siiplus asd lgeed ity Bafer beyvend @ bieshold shic el s e ek sbsoeptios abiley
& Deteiiodalion ihasee! guality lnidisg i MW indealng beyod 2600 d suilained bish

- high opatating wlevated condit comts, wiz, Peudtivg in low seofiabdity vn e sustsnmd Saws
Pt Dol i e T —————

Ky Rating Strengta

Exrorg il iog i g privite egolty fusd AION Cigital Partiers Limited

Cin Capital Serviem Pt Lid [formeely kniwe o GE Motey Flinandal Servioes 01d] and Cla Finderoe Pt L (Formerdy bnown
GE Capital Sordos inda P L) eere oiglnally et op by GE group bo carry on Ge Budineid of consme Tnesce, s
beming, letviding and health ki L dng Tor GE group preducts in inde in August 2518, Jk Caphal
i Raian ower By Private Egulty (PE} Bead, AN Casiial Partsers Limited (555 stake) end ladiidial - My Framod Bhain
and br Asll Chewle. The promoters and the PE fund hive coserthe In the Sheeclel seevioes ndutry and continem 1o extend
rinigerial and cisilal supgert 1o O Group. in une D20, Apolo Glokal Managemnt ard 100 Vet anded thelr ol
wrfilur, AN Cagital Fasbsin.

Exgerienced managorant Lako

The i of the e d By i b d ared gofeaslonal board asd Ledim. & pufnber of
ey people with sxtenshe expiciencs hove been ducied s the mesagesen e i vailon apaitie dnoe September
DNE tu dtrangthen the binkhes, i el ik Psrreti Tem overtill management of Se goop b
v By the Bowd of Difectotd, which Indude the 2 promoted dinecion dhd 4 seereseatitive Trom the PE Fusd AION
Caplial Partsans Lud.

Feaithy capitalestion e o aml abue e ! ! and peddutin in et levels durkg Fro

¥
Caprital scdegu acy of Ol Deoup sntithes ramain well shove he minimus egslabory cigliel feguinemmst (10 Thei 1 sl 155
(AR Tod NBRCa). ik facal Hi00, the promiotens. nfused & total of Rx 295 creer n S group. A & reaill of egqulty iefiales dlos
with steital accrusl of geoli and marginal decreesd i the chik welghted aiists, the tonal CAR stood o 3940% end 4298%
For Clix Capital il Ols Frases frigectively as on March-20 up from 21 21% and 299059 feapectialy i o Madch 31, 209
it debit bevieki coming dows, the comiined coverall gearing of O gioup hini sk ieducsd Soim 3.é e o Mas-19 0o 240 as
o harch 31, MO0

Adecuute rsk mansgeren and onteol syt b plce
The dwdit and hwestmest rhh managerment polises of the cmpeny were pfopled from the GF Geous which bais

b by by i By L nusdi in Che cisps Jaiviling semimit fahich coffunm TP of AUM of
Cix m on Mandh-20 declihed from 55% o on Me-19], e focul of e comgey B on leeding 1o eatiies With sirosy
Eaterats and wd wirih Mooy, [/ refinanceg ability with minimal sxpoies 10 fifel seclors weh o infrsmtiuciurs,

comiruction Snance/real evtEte sic Aho, the company hin developed s oedit police for the new products in line with I
Totwy b et busliwss sajrmests we. SME wad Lonsumer Lending. The company b sul in place sleguate credit appratul
machanives and Inbmgraled MIS iystems inoaddition 1o the syslems fof D ediling busnese, Dwo company
strangtining |04 systens and o ocride for the new Budneis The has Been Pilurwl t
prerstaben g policy.

I redding shire of the retail lan gefelio in the cverall kan Beok

Tha Fatagesa? Bad adguined the lnan poitfelis from GE Group bh fus dews imada 1o Ragadit 2006 Pravicusly T loes bock
of the conmparies malnly comi bed corposte lnding, el eguismen Dundng and aie eise icens. Howeet, dece
hi Laketrei by e oo privmoters, Seis bad bean growih i loan Book in the ediing segmenis with i koeaded fosse on

e e
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e granuler, retall foosied lsam e wel a8 on accoust of eniry Inlo SME Snescirg and Consimer Fleance ipecs,
Comsequmithy, AUM had grows feom sl 455 oo e on Mardh 31, 2007 o BS5.110 aers m on Manch 3, 2009 {we yeai
ARG S0, AT Racal DIrlS).

I-H-i-—rIhF‘ﬁI‘.!D-Hh.hh-h:i-pﬁﬂhHNJM#MMSJ.HM'-HMM!LJN’&MEUWMMH&
I3, pabd fdown 11% ¥oo-v) The dedine I AUM b lagely besn o0 sceounl of ok d iy’ tha
MJH-MHHW&_.IHMH&M&n.M i by de-
prowiag I owpotEle e book and loosley on growing I retell boan Book wie SME sed Coesener Losss. The

dibiurssments in SME [ Consumes lending segmen hus | i whet i the bk recfuding Lisan agakest Shace
[LAS] mpeauie his been brought down by the masageses s This b tesufisd in scene in shane of te el Book from
SN of the AL = on March-19 0 T35 i on March 20 O the otiar hind, Liwiir el the ¢ iiting 375

i oon March-2ML In odew of e carenl onld duation, the company's el poftfoly growth B expecied 1o fmmain
eonitraised whie B dare of corporate loan porticin coud funtSer come doen,

Koy Rating Weaknoise

Blewated rFlik sverilon in the markel towardi MEFC seftor post Sept . 18

Thistn his besn fnchesis th ol of Tusding and medeiatien In mssunos mobiliatics by Ok on eccount of the slevaied sl
wvaison bn The markat Cowards NBFC sector panl Sept- 18 Oix had outstanding boerowlngs of B 3,800 crore m oo March -0
[redicmd from fid, 185 gofe o on March 19]. Thi gdmanly nchedie Pendieg in the e of tein Loass/ 0000 Bt Bom
banks eod finencis attetom o wel o caphal merket wie. mggwity of which wae
el by st fundi. With deb el funds wil i h bon pisiite, the cofgany hai itarted fafsing fusds
framwhmmmmm-mnmnmnmmmuumnmmnu«spe
18 and 3% i on Oct- 15 and had been iepleced by midium term boriowlige.

Sho truck recid of soemtions

A b shor wack secord ol fewia wd i th nivw 0 et ik ol this kein Dok foorperite b swsll s eal]
bwing bull duting the last 3 yaars and henee the company down’t heve & lesderahie poslon i aiy of the ddaset clese in
which i cperate, The consaimes hending sorfoby s legsy been buft duing the 15-18 montis fom Dec-18 Sl detewith o
sakalamtidl shfl s e porticio mis duing the Lol lew guarten. Due o aael qualty e in o porate book, Clis hes bean
ey tincands bulbilig moor ganiler retall book as reflected by lerease In et sndinent poitfollo o 758 of e AURE
o Pl 2100 i aggidin S5% s on Abar-29. Ghen the imited irack recond, the shifity of Cis 1o proffistdy scale up e Busibeaes

whila miinlanieg swel geality aotos buiiies e possoimic crcle wisdd b & key Dating demil bty

Maoderate seisoning of the selall book and ikl on corponite baok

Thi gress and met NP&s of O on e burils worm Fonable &1 L35 s 090 smigectvely ai o Manch 31, 3000
tranalatifg Inby prodslon covage fiSo of AE TN o on dite. However, the Grods HP% and et BNPA e inoeised Trom
DEFR and DN reipedively w5 oh See-19 [LE and 0% mapectively ai o8 Marck 31, 2029). Fuithar, ghen nearly 275% of
the e bonk Eetag corporate loan book @ on Maer- 20, aoy licpage will be dgni®eait amd hence will be moniored closely.
O’y alility to comtiol sddhional sl I sontfobs and meover feos the ittesied goitfollo weold be o kel
T It o madatals m-uqn-mvuul--d-&uuh-hrruluﬁum The sk of poitfolie ahe ahes Bom s
wxpuie o han again dhite |LAGY Segrst; Torming nearly 258 of the pveall AUM a1 o6 Sest-19 albelr feduced from
DN e M- 19 upon recell of such loans)

With the group’s fotus on fending for netel products eed beiigig down The ske of compofsle sasosun, Tha fik of
cotiitation In crperates book b reduchy Alio, Beie b minknel epeies o feel etabs end nfreteces B the

B b, H i Ml e i, t i of thee growith in The et loan Book balng aees b Fra
and P20, the st quality Fand B the ielell segmanl b et 0o be evtablished. Ch b @ lege shire of useosned SHE
aibives bodite Labsect 2056 of AUM wod Marek D000 whersin O saderetitng & biied on asesoment of S etim il
[surirogate) cask Rows amd such losny, thoosgh high skeldng am more anceptble b sl quality chellenges. Ghees cuitest
wohomic Sowdown and Ipect on the busines and conssmer© cash fows, the oveesl] WSME segmant has come under

Immenae fnancial ki, With oped aticm of meat MEMEs iy curtaded o ted due 1o e b d whie the
rewthead cost 18] remaies o be Bome by these companies, There b o lack of Dieady income sbresn 1o cover experes that b
wxpurind o bad 1 incmoe in Chx's kending pordolio sueh o paraomal

Tears afio remali ot susceplilée 1o curest macro-ecenomic vulsetakiftes and coeld withe destel cufil oot
Wenkenimy proPeubRiny
] | TARY Ratings Urited
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Doaring FY20, (O Caglied aad Clx Finance on @ comiined bsh reponiml decdioe in PAT to Ao 6.7 crore o totel e otre |t
of terel sapemie) of BA47 oo o again PAT of R 106 cove oh ol iscame (e of staisl eapenee) of A 359 craiw
repofed privicus Necdl of account of Bighe provsioning expesaei in Ascal 7000, Further, with the S=s on The gosth in
retall dmgremt, T operating expesse B expacted 1o remaln elevated. For the year endiig Macch 335, 2000, the companys
Peosimbingd) PAT margis siood o 3.1% af agairt 15 7% @ year ago.

The group cegoriod ned inteiesl mngls (NI on serage el eaets) ot 4635 asd telum on bolsl aseets AoTA) ol D455
on March-10 o ageinst MM and RaTé @ 3 785 amd 2 25% mmpectively @ o6 March-1%. The opsraling ecpenss o &
pertantags of anags el skt oo st 4.24% 0 Y20 Durlsg Tacal 2020, the compainy creesed s properton of high
wheld rotafl book ahd also patied o8 B Nifeas & borfewing onl b5 Be culomers, o & fesu of which the megn
Exparaded duriing e year. Howevet, the s crrinl pioficaliliy dr d dus to high sedt cea [sound 1LII% of
Average Total Adsets s on March-20 o ageing 6% o on Mardh 31, 329 on acout of Jin's dedhion o increee
presialoning conl dos b ool 19, Growith s AlM asd retcaalizstien of dipestie of O along with meduction T the st of
beerodngs woskd be chadal frem the peripectne of improvisg the peafiadiiey proffle.

Ini whes of the Reietve Bank of indls [RBD': mowe 1o dlew Basis, NBFCS and BFCS o offer dlx mosth momloium 1o
Deetonwmri |eriesched O Asgrast e JO00 from sarlier May 32, 20500, Ol hos advanesd nedatofiun o Ble leas than el of
it wtal cusemer in U ussecered business, conaumar mnd e wheslsr oes goitfolioy. 'With Evoader challemges duch
diafuption n essomic st of MEMES migration of people adwsiesly aPlecting cuvioimer cosliel, ol looes scrosi
ety and demgehd denarnd, twie B lkely o B i npect on coliections aMckncy of e compairy 7 S Aear b
which could lead to deisticeation In st guallty of the comgesy. Althouh some me-lerm rapis b copected va the
reteal Backed credil lism and the eimrmbon gven By RE Tor fritruoiiing debt of eighle
BASRAE [sbandard scecunt as on March 1, JOR0) by another theee moniis io Barch 31, 2021

Lizodivy. adeguate

Ba por latest lguidivy nformatos shared by Ok, the comsasy joorackd ated] had cash and cash egubialests 1o the e of
appiel ATE crofe o Jese 30, 2000 whieh |8 salfickent 1o eks cere of this dhvol teim delbt obligetiens of R 366 of the
ity of upts 3 froof e (U0 1 S 2L Alin, OB hid wsuitiiind Lank K of Ro8D crive [oonsoldated) as o i 520,
IO, ahick peovided domm coslort o T Fguidity profle. Overall Cla has debt sepayirants amoustiog 1o R 873 crome
[etrinsabidat endl) v rutal sk Fvaths ol 20D 30].

Anstytical approsch: CARE o boed i on the of Qi Capltal weking & combined view of
Ol Capitsl Services Py L0 | Ohs Caphaf] and s 100 subdillery Oz Fineor indla Pa L Ol Faascs |

Applicable Crilaria

CARE'S iy Dol [T}

Rating P - Mz Finuafies Compan b

Financial Ratied - Flandal Sedte
Sheet Tettn insiummbs
Rt P bhimbolonty: Dol lation s Factotiog Linkage in Ratlrgs

About the Company

Oz Capltal Servlors Pt Led Josmerly known & GE Mosey Fnendal bendos M L) wias incorporeted n Febouiey 1994 a
Counirywide Conssti Financlal Seidce P L1d by GE Geous Lo tarry o0 The busives of consume© finance, sulo lnising,
cofporate lissdng and hashthcie egecipsen Taaedng Tor GF groop products inndla. i Merech 2036, GE grous enterad fto
Pranagaimel Bisyin evangemest with W Prafmod Bhadn ssd W Anll Ohaela, formaer Lop sxecithee @ GF india, 1o axi
Iidlas cominarclal Bnasce builives. The mahsgeimemt s by MeBhaiin and Mr Cavwla s Sacked by Tubding fros PE
Tirm AION Capitel Partners Linhied, Follsing the el of GE ai the shiraholder, the naime of ths compiny was changed 1o
i Caital Serdess P L (s Capltal] s Acgear MR, s Septenber 2016, Cix Frascs iredio Pet Ld formerdy knosen o
GE Cagltal Serviced Inidia), became o 1008 sebabilary of Ol Caplal. 0% fnascs b engeged in dsiller Boe of hisesn. Ol
enemenel liding cpesations through It BFC Ol Houting Anance Pt Lo oo Fab. 18 Axie b usde anagsrmen b of Ol
ool il Re.4 513 cone |Combised] s of Manch 31, M0,

T g
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ANNEXURE IV: CONSENT LETTER FROM THE DEBENTURE TRUSTEE

LelEL) @lL

ST AL R 2 R T
Mgitsl 11, 201

Too

Clix Capitad Servives Privide Limitsl {(Company)
Atk foor, Kailash Bailking. Kasturby Gandbi Marg.
Crsiiding it Plaee, Mow Dolki -1 10001

Dz Sir,

Consend o osel a5 Bebentare Trostee for Roteild. Sconrel, Beldeemabie, Listed, Mon-
tanvertible Bebeniores aggregntiog spio Bs 85 Crores to be sl Ty e Oampany

This is with nebfenmee to the discussions iy cpect of appointmenl el Cacdvsl Trsseeship Eimied
{0111 90 a8 Deheniure Pnssies Eor e Roted. Secuned, Bedsemishle, 1 bsiel, Non-convenibie
Drebsent ures ngureeating upto Rs, 65 Crores oo issmed by tve Company. [n this conmection, e
are dzrenhla ol as Troskse an ey (! luwhl‘ mrusseesh i|'| P o =

Avceplunce fees ¢ Hs. GO00N- plus sgplicable ek (e T Mon Rellimndahle pagulbi
oy appainiment os insstec)

Servhe Clarses © Rs, 6O0NNIK- pa, plus spplicnble wees. poyeble in advaece each yoar
o clae ol exncution - ermination of e tansscrkn, Pro-at
churges would appely for the first year Trom date of eoeoutian Bl 3arch
iF, 321,

Adl el ol pooc kel expenses i wdids lepal fez rpailing, lespection cluirgss, elc shall he
levied and re-imbnrsed eo actsal hasis

We nceept the above terme

Far Clie Capleal 5
/J"w

Ao Privace Einined
LY

HOTE: As por GET gaiddizes, CTL wonld by sequired 10 pay the sppficalde GET on the
ameiiets S elirtes payabile tons s indlented ohove. Phease mote dhat the Campany
wonkl be Hable 1o pay oll sech charges even in the event of cancelladion of the
afireaail teansaction. Thorelare, so refund of ngy statetory dees slredy pabil would

Be male
CATALPST TRLSTEESHP LIV = A S
el S Mk AT Ploa) s in, S04 C 7 Bl Rafina, Raryiar ras [Pk ] Aamba LOC200. Tl 11 K171 8007 WY Fam ] 07907 MBS
Sl OFkE CUW s FID0 M B B | OOy UL Panad Faocl Pask & | 008 L
[spid Wifice Office ria L Bk Meood, sl oy T, L oniwrbes, il ddgaq s ilind - 110080 Wad 1 236 28 00AEE
CF M Fraat

NPT CTROAT
Faw 0 Mnankat § o Bergeaw | Dwe | Cheorsl
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B L LISACHD- 2 TN
Augriid 012030

I,

Clix Caplsl Servicos Privame Limbied (Cuonpaev)
dth Moo, Kailash Buikliog, Kasturha CGasalhi Marg,
Coongnght Place Mew Delhi - |

(g Kir,

Cumsent to act gs Debentare Trasee For Boed, Secorel, Bedemable, Listed, Sen-
anvertible Dehewinres npgregniing apio B 6% Croces io be ssoned by the Comspany

Fhibs i3 wilh relrenes ke dessissions b rspect of apeainment ol Calalys Toeseeship Limizasd
i mel ns Dehesdure Tredee for dhie Bated, Secwradl, Fodovmabde, Lisled, Non-converi@he
[Drebeid pres apphephting updn B 65 Crorgs 1o be sl by (e Company. bn Uhis conngsetion, e
are agrecabds 0 acl us Tneses o thivedms aed conditions au munsafly agreed betvwoen the I 'restic
and the Company.

1T Comypany mwdd the Trisee dhall enier ineo mélevanl moster sgreemuents md olser necosery
choaments For the aSiredail B ol MDD aid alse agress & undenakes oo comply wish the
provlezans ol the SER {Debenvire Tnmstes) Regelmions, 1995 SER1 (e md Lt of Dbt
Spourities) Reogulotions, HHE. SER (Listnp Obdipmices and - Tisciosin Recplremuniz)
Rogulations, . 2005, @ miy  he amsided  oi thie e Ume, SERT Clireuilsr Mie
CIRMCFIVCRAMR 2018 dated Ooinber 13, 303 ond the Llsting Agreement purssant therela iobe
enecuind with Bombey Stock ExchunpeBSEY National Sk ExchmpgaMSE), the BB Cinub
M. REU2D12- 13560 doved Rune 27, 2033, the Companics Aok, 2015 nnd ony otler opplizablbe
st iies, regulatinns 2nd provesions as amended from time ba time.

Tha Compaiy shall enler isn Aprcenen with Tastes a3 regaired by Regulatian L2 nf SER]
iDenemture Trusieel Riegulotions, F99% thereby agrering (o crete the mecority withim hsuo minths
from s dote of elosure of |sses or I acenidaney. with the Conponies. Act, 2003 or as per he
priveisices a5 presoribed by any reguloiony outharity 25 applicohle amd comply with the provisions
of mpplicabhe baws.

We mre gl agreeshle (or inclesice of aur name 2 tnelees in the Company’s l:!!"l?r
documentAlisciosse docenent! listiag mpplicabondany ot docsmimi b b Tiled with the Stack
Exphimpafzh or aiy allier minBarliy ne regiibed

We oepd the thove erms,

Far g n@l\ ; .‘ Far Clin Capdtal Services PI?HEIU I.a‘:?i:d
. - . |

Amilstiec ‘-l:nﬂnr_'r ) y=

CATALTST TRUSTEFSHIP LINITEL A FRNER et
il.r.d._uml."r-l-n'l:i-.ll!l.l:n:ull.l.qwmpﬁnu—fulﬂ---mm|m_mulm|m—

KL Ol LN s Pion e e s by T | ) M P o | 0 T - 1 B

Dl 3 low  OFfow v SR, G Mo 8 i iy Eelicienn, 0w et G aihl Adae, resa Dyl - 1 R0 'I'-'ll-Jl-l.ﬂ'l:lll:t

CHE Ha UT R Frmall ribgied T Wkl mwee s @ ed i ned ma e
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ANNEXURE V: CONSENT LETTER TO THE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENT

T TR Rura b - BONCHL
L R i B ]

Fme =81 12 sHiE Rowi

tohel s Frioneres e e
L F e ST ]

LINKIntime S i s

Date : 11 Aug 2020

To
Clix Capital Services Private Limited

Eailash Building, Unit & & B 4th Floor, 26,

Easturba Gendhl Mang,

Barakhamba

M Dethi-1 10001

Dear SirfMadam,

Sub.: Consent to act as Registrar to the Proposed issue of ™ Secured Rsted Redesmable
Lifed Mor-Comeeribie Debeniures” OF Face Value Of Rs. 10 Lakh Each For Cash At Par upto
To Rs. 65 Crores to be issued on private placement basis

We refer bo the subjet issue and hersby accept our appointment B “Registrar” for
Electronic  Confechivity Provider to Bmue of "Eequmd fisted Redeemable Lisked Mon-Converbhls
Debectures™ OF Face Valve OF RS, 10 Lakh Bach For Cash At Par upto To Rs. 65 Crornes and
ghve our consant b0 Mcorporete our name as TRegistrar to the ISsue” n the offer
docurments.

Our Permanent SEB Bagistration No. @ INEDOOO04058.

Thrding Yew,

‘Iﬂlﬂ-llﬂ!{r#ﬁ"'-\‘
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ANNEXURE VI: APPLICATION FORM

CLIX CAPITAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
A company incorporated with limited liability under the Companies Act, 1956 Date of Incorporation:
11 February 1994
Registered Office: 4th floor, Kailash Building, Kasturba Gandhi Marg,Connaught Place New Delhi
North East DL 110001 INTelephone No.: 0124 330 2000

Website: www.clix.capital

| DEBENTURE SERIES APPLICATION FORM SERIALNO. [1] | [ | | | [ | |

(][]
DEBENTURE SERIES APPLIED FOR:

Number of Debentures  In words

Amount Rs. /- in words Rupees Crores Only

DETAILS OF PAYMENT:
RTGS
No. Drawn on

Funds transferred to Clix Capital Services Private Limited
Dated

Total Amount Enclosed
(In Figures) (In words)

APPLICANT’S NAME IN FULL (CAPITALS) SPECIMEN SIGNATURE

APPLICANT’S ADDRESS

&3




ADDRESS
STREET
CITY

PIN PHONE FAX

APPLICANT’S PAN/GIR NO. AAICM0721B IT CIRCLE/WARD/DISTRICT
WE ARE () COMPANY ( ) OTHERS ( ) SPECIFY

We have read and understood the Terms and Conditions of the issue of Debentures including the Risk
Factors described in the Memorandum and have considered these in making our decision to apply. We
bind ourselves to these Terms and Conditions and wish to apply for allotment of these Debentures. We
request you to please place our name(s) on the Register of Holders.

Name of the Authorised Designation Signature
Signatory(ies)

Applicant’s
Signature

We the undersigned, are agreeable to holding the Debentures of the Company in dematerialised form.
Details of my / our Beneficial Owner Account are given below:

DEPOSITORY NSDL () CDSL ()
DEPOSITORY PARTICIPANT NAME
DP-1ID

BENEFICIARY ACCOUNT NUMBER
NAME OF THE APPLICANT(S)

Applicant Bank Account:

(Settlement by way of Cheque / Demand Draft
/ Pay Order / Direct Credit / ECS / NEFT /
RTGS / other permitted mechanisms)

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY
DATE OF RECEIPT DATE OF CLEARANCE

(Note: Cheque and Drafts are subject to realisation)
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We understand and confirm that the information provided in the Information Memorandum is provided
by the Issuer and the same has not been verified by any legal advisors to the Issuer, and other
intermediaries and their agents and advisors associated with this Issue.

We understand that: 1) in case of allotment of Debentures to us, our Beneficiary Account as mentioned
above would get credited to the extent of allotted Debentures, ii) the Applicant must ensure that the
sequence of names as mentioned in the Application Form matches the sequence of name held with our
Depository Participant, iii) if the names of the Applicant in this application are not identical and also not
in the same order as the Beneficiary Account details with the above mentioned Depository Participant
or if the Debentures cannot be credited to our Beneficiary Account for any reason whatsoever, the
Company shall be entitled at its sole discretion to reject the application or issue the Debentures in
physical form.

Applicant’s
Signature
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY
DATE OF RECEIPT DATE OF CLEARANCE

(Note: Cheque and Drafts are subject to realisation)

(TEAR HERE)
- ACKNOWLEDGMENT SLIP -
| (To be filled in by Applicant)SERIAL NO. o Ll

Received from

Address

Cheque / Draft / UTR # Drawn on for
Rs. on account of application of Debenture
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ANNEXURE VII: LAST THREE YEARS AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2016-2017 CONSOLIDATED
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QW”MM(MW.GMMWWW
Sor the year ended 31 March 2017
m“-mm-m-—mm

Partiesh For the year ended
31 March 2017
Canh flow from operstisg astivithe
Prcfit befnee nex 1221
Adjusted foc
Lasbilision’ provisioes 20 lonper raqueral writies beck 22
Aevestrsent wrssten aff L3
Intorest on incuse-tes, refues] a3
fves (wmortised during e year)
Deprecittion ang imortbaion eopense 154
Nm(bww-'qm 104
oo d Surirg the year) 106
Mudﬂdwmm 3,981
Intorest on othees o
Nows perfsereng asiets welten off L)
Unreatised gair oo mytond fimds (l!:)
A petd
Provivoe foe bad and doubefi] amets pe3
Gale on sele of assons (re) s
Waates wral tacves L]
G ” agen swnded asws written hack o
Utrealised pasa co Sareign exchenge (eet) 16}
(Opersting profr: before wrekieg capinl chazges 9526
Mﬁ'-&w-wﬁvw
Decrease (6 trade rcervables 48
lacrense & ofher custent snd son cumeet snets 1AL
Tncrease m ‘oars wnd advances ard oBer anssy 54785
Decroase ie lisbilities and srovisoss 11,866
Escorre taxcy tefiend (net of tae puid) S35 2,003
Nef cash gemerated from operating activities TR7]
I Cah News from investing activities
Prrshuse of mutun] fundds (198,850)
Sale of menal finds 25080
Fved deposits with criginal matarity of mure fan 3 months crasted dudag the yeur un
Perchase of fised assom (irciuding cagital work-in-progress asd insagible sescts imder developrent) {10.231)
Perchase of debenturos (7,506)
Acquwitico of subediary (39,170)
Proceeds fam sede of fed assens | 476 4131
Canh Bows from Nnanelng scivites
.
! [P Borrowingy takes.
J Proceeds from e doas 1000
700
Borruwlsgy repsld/ share buyback
Teemt Loae o bask [CER 2N
Deyback of Luity Shames (15,083)
’ By boack e paid (408)
(57,313)
l Natcush said i frviog oo —E333)
Net decrease tn eash and cosh equivalents (70,181)
Cash and cosh egulvalents i the beginniag of the yenr 69,965
I Aot thressg scaulsbien f wahseliary 2981
Cash and eash ogquivalents at the end of the year > mf_

II STANDALONE
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Clix Cnphisd Services Privaie Limited (Formerly keown as GE Money Finahelal Secvices Privare Limited)
Balance Shecl as 3t 311 March 2017
(Al amouais in Lsdion Rupess in Lakhs. unless ofherwise stiied)

Significant sucounting podicies and noled to e fndvial salements

Tiie et refarred 1 ahove form imzgril pan of tiess fnancials sutements
A prer ot ey of gven dle afoched

For RS R & Assoclates LLP

Charrergil ACCoupane
Firm megistrotion No.: 116211 % W-100024

=

: As ul As
EQUITY ANIF LIABILITIES Note No. 1) Mireh 1013 14 Mareh 2016
-
Sharcholders’ fonds
Slwre capial 3 | &5, 08 Bl.560
Reserves wnd surphus 37162 120,446
164,870 18,008
Nun-gwrreal Haliblides
L=t bstrosvhngs § =2 .
Chilier bond o Jabililies & 40 &1
Lag-term proviabms 3 _Aam 118
783 159
Curreht aliilltes
Trmde payobles 3
- Total ontstanding dues of miler et prises and small enierprices
- Tolal nutslanding dues of ereditors olher than micro enterphises and small
colepriBes 180 404
Other curtent Habilitics 4 ¥323 03
Shori-lenn pRivisions o 4,109 1,333
15612 2,040
Tutnl 189,663 1B, 205
AREETS
Mai-curronl joecls
Finerd nssects 1]
- Tungible asssts it 11
- Ftangible ussets '-
« Capital work-in-progress 137
- Intangisle psuet upder develapment |28
_ Mom-curreil Investments 1 107 7%
Diefietred tax asseia (pei) 28 i1 4773
‘Longterm ioshs-and pdvanes 12 lanan ILTAR
(MbT nan-curreRl psse 14 N (. 2
[EREL] 38851
Curvenl ppels
Curient ivestments 15 1M 47,165
Eoly il ank bl 1§ 1,358 #9965
Hhortterm Joons oml alvaneds 17 SLBET 27,908
Cotfyer cugrem pesets 18 — 1,130 a6
35,525 14535i
Total 189,665 184205

("

#or and on hehalf of the Board of Dircetors of
Clix Caplinl Servives Private Limlbel | Formeely known s GE Mpaey

Flonemylal Serwives Preivate Dlniied)
) L

e
/ e

Anant ¥arwah 4 Vahokhar Dagy Vs A pgaraal
Paremer 4 oo Direeton
DN D24 TERTI DAN - OT6E5830

Menburshin Ma,: 510544

Phace: Gurgann
[aane: 29 June 2017

al
B =
Semesh hunar

Curipamy Secreien
Membership Mo A8

& Hardeep Singh
Chigt Finpncial Ufficer

Mace Lhspann
Thie, 1% Jime 20107
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Clix Cupital Services Private Limited (Formerly knows as CE Meney Financial Services Private Limied)
Starement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 Marzh 2007
AT amounts in Indian Rupevs in Lakhs, onléss olherwise staled)

= For the vear ended Far the yeur ended

LS : M-t 31 March 2017 3 March 216
Revenue from operations 19 4,165 1879
Other income 0 349 7,267
Yol reveaue ' . || . - | 1
Expenses
Firance cusls 1 144 ki
Employes benelits expense i) UHIN] 65
Other expenses n 2430 1,508
Depreciation and amortisauon cxpense I n 182
Provision modef{reversed) for bad and doubi ful debis 25 I 3630 {223
Tetal bxpenses —_— 9330 ___J-Lz ]
Profit helore tax 7RO 12,835
Tax expense:
- Current tax 1643 1351
- Cuarent tax for earlier years 4 112y
- Dieferred tax 26 (1288) 939
- Deferred @ for earlier years e {103y

369 4395
Profit for the year 357 BAdil
Earnings per eguity shure (par value of Rs. 10 per share) )
Bgsic und dituted 003 L]
Bipntficnnt neeountey poluoes andd mors Lo e Tgmeal silements b

The notés refieered 1o above form imegral part of these fnsncials statements
Ak por our report of even dole aliached

For wod on behollaf the Board of Directors of

Chyrrteiyed degomrmosns Ol l"n‘lilrll Services Privary Timinodl (Farmongf
Finanelal Services Prisate Linited)

Fim regisiration Mo, 116230 WAW- (024
f{,{‘_f_ -9. An

Anaat Murwah /
Fd

For BS R & Assoviates LILP
kaivw s as OOF Maoney

Partner
Memibership Ne.: 510349

Place: Curgoan
Dmte: 29 June 2017

Blire iin
PINOMTIET

o
Sumpgsh Kumur
Cenipany Secrear)

Place: Gurgann
Date; 29 June 2017

ALl
Memberthip No.: A48

TN OThEsgRay

alh Harderp Singh

Chie) Forumeial Uffiver
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Y AN Sery joes B rciie LIl graevierls Nsryie i GoE ST ey S Ul i e s v L)

Cash Maw stateneni Tor the year ewded 11 Murck 2607
(AN amonsik in [odian Repees. in Lakhe, unles ofenvise sised)

Fowr ey g wrudicsd For ihe vear ended
I Mdarch 2017 2 March 1018
Cah fiows from operating activides
Profiv b fare s Fh) 335
Depruzimion gnd amertisvicn popenre % 18
Uinrzal aed (gaae i loss an feresgn eachange 18] -
likeresi cu wilsens FE]
Lows! [ gaie) n wal 57 Exed ausess fnat) . ]
Prevvision (wrire back ) for bad and doubfyl assets and finance recervables sold 553 155
Procewang. foes famorliaed during die e} Fiad] 1370
Loan aaguesSlion wost | amartived during the vear) 551 o6
Contig ent provisbam ngainst standund asst im (EaTh
1rovision (weite back) on recoserable s viber advances - i
Raviserable wken-ofT = 1"
Liukiliies’ pravisdons se longer neuired wiviien bagk: 1 [i&p
Cim on male of current fmvesmaenia (per) 13258 400
LEnrenlissd jain fn ifiaal sy (5
Teietest om income-nx tefund (A3
Amprsabion off premibs padd on deboviures 4 -
Orperating profid before working caplial chisnges ALy IE 2
Decreaselinerense] in leans and advances snd odier asscis [18,524) 42,108
Trnreasel docreasct i Viabilithes and provisior 8,06 ]
Ircuiie Lo paiid {net of dax réfund) . E— 4 1]
Nt tagh fromi(used) in operating actlvifies - & 51538
Cank Movws froe investiog aetvitles
Farchase of fixed wsgets fimclubing capim] wark-m-progress and intagible assens under development) En
Froveeds from mic of fixed wssery 2] sy
IMikes) degpomits with sviplical maturity oFnsses thig 3 inouehi ereated disring the year z
I estment in cquity shames of submdianes
Thachuse of debenibyres
Prathine of manot funds 170,050
Sole of mutusl fnds —_— M40
* Mef xsh wyed In investing artivifien - 8 o 3 R = 10 )
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Crnh Reyes Tiwem M clmg o ke

Vinawce bease obligatans paid {#)
Procecds froen ierm Yoan

Huyhack of Shares

Diividensd dighribation (as

Mol cach uged in namcing sctlviiles - L]
Met Inereasedfdereeast) in ash o cavh equivalents (AHE 0 [LCN ST CRTE ]
Tl el exputiealoi o thie begwalng of e vesr {pelir 10 note 18] A8, e
Canh and equivaleni o (he mid of the yer |Refer W note (6] [E 9,505
N

Ciade Plam, Bizseszies) Dns b peegiored inseoonbence with odivect method 34 sel oat in the Acooanag Simdard-1 Cuh Fow Saacmnes’ oy etifted onde
Sextien 3ol ibe Conpanie Ace 201 3 read wgether with Risle 7 ol she compa ties {Aceousis | Rules 2004,

A gt vk et 0 even dale atached

Fir BS R & Assncisies LLP
Charreres dooouriamy
Ehmi egisiraton Moo 1 Ia250WOW . 10N

>

Amaitt Alarnal
Hirrmer

Slrmbershig So.- 51054

2017-18 CONSOLIDATED

4

4
¥

For and o bebalf of the Board of Directors of
Cllx Capltal Services Private Limitedd [Formerly koo w GE
Dloney Financial Services Frivate Lindied)

’{'U—’-F}‘\--'- &lfm’

Shakloar Doga Wiy A ggaraal
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o
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Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
Consolidated Balunce Sheet as at 31 March 2018
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in Lekhs, unless otherwise stated)

! As at Asat
EQUITY ANIERARILIITES Mot 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Shareholders® funds
Share capital k! 129,708 129,708
Reserves and surplus 4 38,953 37373
168,661 167,081
Non-curcent linbilities
Long-term borrowings & 121,882 24,125
Other long term liabilities 6 1,563 183
Long-term provisions 7 13,732 4.268
137,177 18576
Current linbilities
Trade payables
- Total outstanding duas of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
- Tatal outstanding dues of greditors other than micro enterprises and g
small entemrises 7242 3,561
. 9
Short-term borrowings 74,322
Other current liabilities 10 51,244 16,426
Shart-term provisions 11 1,355 6,255
135,163 26,142
Total 441,000 221,799
ASSETS
Non-gurrent asseis
Fixed assets
Tangiblo assets 12 6672 22354
Intingitle asscts Igars 36,773
Capital work-in-progress T 357
Tntan gible assers under development 1,081 129
INom current invesnments 13 7861 7,509
Deferred tas ssseis (net) 33 3477 &, (66
Long-tenm loans and advances 14 2433120 57,581
Other non-current asaets 15 19045 15850
4,74 146,619
Current assets
Current investinents 16 0 14,457
Trmde reccivables 17 1,175 294
Cash and bank halances 18 12,120 3,745
Shom-term loans and advances 1% T8 554 54,572
Mher current assets 20 4008 2,132
96,117 75, 160
Total 441,001 221,749
Summary of significant aceounting policies and notes 1o the financial 2
strlements
The sccompanying notes form integral part of these financials statements
A5 per our repart of even dale altached
L. Huliboi & Associntes LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Clig Capital Services Private Limited
o Mo 1049w E300002 i erly known ns GE Money Financial Services Private Limited

C et AL~
e .h.;il Chawda Vi l,pﬂul

Direcior i e
Membership MNo.: LI, D0G 16555 DIN,: 07685333 g

oA / i
©
Somesh Komar Bhavesh CGupta Hardeep Singh
Corpany Secreiary Chigf Executive afffcer Chia Firancial Officer

Membership No,; AJLIES
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Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)

Consolidated Profit & loss account for the year ended 31 March 2018
(All amounts in Indian Rupees m Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year For the year
Revenue Note ended ended
31 March 2008 31 March 2017

Revenue from operations 21 20,512 13,119
Other income 22 5.064 T.341
Total revenue 34.576 20,460
Expenses
Finance costs 23 7,703 3,130
Employes benefiis expense 24 7.207 1.663
Onther expenses 25 6,665 4687
Depreciation and amortisation expense 12 1570 3,581
Provision made (net off reverse) for bad and doubtful debts 26 B, 160 6.178
Total expenses 37,305 19.239
{Loss)/Profit before tax (2,729) 1,221
Tax expense:
- Current tax - [.654
- Current tax for earlier years {1,899) 4
= Deeferrad tax 33 (2410} {1,288)
{4.309) 370

Profit for the ycar 1,580 451

Earnings per equity share [nominal value of Rs. 10 per share{ 31 March 2017; Rs.

10|

Basic 37 012 no7

Diluted 37 W ) 0n.o7

Summary of significant accounting policics and notes to the financial statements 2

The accompanying notes form integral part of these financials siaements

As per our report of even date attached

For S.R. Baulibol & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Clartered Accountanis Clix Capital Services Private Limited

ICAI Fign Registration No.: 101040W/E300004 (Formerly known os GE Money, Financial

Services Private Limited) h

(A2 o ﬁpﬂ*ﬂ/

Amit Kabra T Anil Chawla kas Aggarwal
Partner Director Direcior
Membership No.: 0943533 DIM.: 0016555 \\ DIN.: 0T6R3R33
“'\‘U \ » il ®
(B = \\i = }1;_5&""‘{'/
Somesh Kumar Bhavesh Gupta “Hardeep Singh
Company Secretary Chief Execuiive officer Chief Financial
Membership No.: A31188 Officer

Place: Gurgaon Place: Gurgaon
Drate: 27 June 2018 Date: 27 June 2018
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Clix Capital Services Private Limited { Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limlted)
Consolidated Cash Flow Siatement for the year eoded 31 March 2018
{All emiounts in Indian Bupees in Lakhs, unless otherwise daied)

Far llltxﬂr

For the vear ended
Pariiculars ended 3
31 Mareh 2018 31 March 2017
Cush flow from operafing activities
Prafit before tax 2.2 1221
Adjusted for;
Lizhilitics! provisions oo leger required writlen back {3,005) (321)
[nwestment written off e B
[nterest on income-tax refund [B52) (432)
Diiscount oo commerzisi paper 085 £
Processing fees (amortised during the vear) {9293 1,492
Depreciation and amorisat 1570 1,5k1
Amgrization of borrowing cost 135 1,042
Loan seguisition cost (mnortised during the year) 319 106
Gain on sale of current investments (et (689) (3,563)
Unrealised (gain}’ loss on foreign exchange 3 (200
Non performing assets written off 3,086 &l
Unreafised gain on matual funds - (132)
Amoriisation of premium paid on debentures n 4
Provision for bad and doubiful assets 3154 5683
Galr on wle of assets (net) {432) (73}
Rates and tanes . 30
Contingent provisions agains standard assets 1,234 (&F]]
Unrealised gain on foreign exchange (ret) - ]
Operating profit before working capital changes B, 744 ST
Addferted for med eha nges I wovking capital
{ln i tradle rece EEL) 4iE
Increase in oller cavent and noo curment asaets 15,585) (1411
Ingrease in lnens and odvances and other azsens (2140193 (9A78)
Degreass in liobilitics and provisiosy ELO99 11866
Income tomes reflmd (et of o paid) 2,750 G5
Net casie figsad ta) geacrated flonm opdroting setivifios [T 11,520
Cash fows fenm imvesting activitie
Purebage: glmeud) Sands (4,086,491} (1.96, 250}
Sa%e sf'muiual fimds 421617 150897
Purehase of mon cument invesEneng {36
Fined depasits with origisal mawry of more thes 3 months crestsdSaring the year z 1
Reciepl ol pre asgquisition imenest on det - £
Purchase of fixed assels (incheding copisal work-in-propress and axsets undir P ¥ . (15426 {10231}
Purchase of debenibores {7508}
Acigaismian of subsidiary - {95, 1T}
Froceeds from sale of ftxed msieis SA30 hawe
M wash g frned iy e aviivitles III'JS &1 ATT,
Cash Mews From finaecing scivities
Barrowings inhendsivance of share capital
Frocesds from term lozn. | A9, 30% 37,000
Commercisl paper 102,800 -
Bank overdmi 5340 N
Bascpawings repaid! share buyvback
Tim Loan from bank (HRAS0] (41, B4l)
Repayment of commmercial papem E5M0
Buyback of Equity Shares {15,08H)
Buy back tax paid (#0571
Net camh used in fimancing sctivite P sy
Met decrense in cosh and cash eguivalents BITS (TLE=L)
Cazh nnd eash eqgulvolents st the Beghnnlng of the yesr 3,745 59,065
Addithen through sogubaition of subsidisey 1561
Cash snd eash equivalesis a1 ihe cod of the vear Iﬁ 3_?&
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II STANDALONE

Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Farmerly known as GE Money Flnancial Services Private Linsted)
Balange Sheet ns at 31 Mareh 2018

(ANl arsounts in Tndian Rupess in Lakhs, uiless stherwiss stated)

As al Asal
El Y AND LIAD §
) LT e 31 March 2013 31 March 2007
Sharcholders* funds 3
Share eapital 3 129,708 129,708
Reservies and sumplus 4 37,338 37,162
167,044 1664870
Now-curreot [kabiliiies
. Lang-tzrm homowings 5 4,162 4042
Other lang term [allities ] 51 40
Long-term provisions 7 12,108 3,101
B,798 7183
Current liabilities
Shart-term bomowings ] 56,564 i -
Tradz payables 4
- Total outstanding dues of micro enjerprises and small enterprises =
- Todal sutstanding duss of creditars other than micra enterprises amd small
eabecprises 3,937 1150
Cther current Habilithes il 21,m4 £33
Shari-lerm provisions 2 11 LEIY 410
82,744 15612
Total 336,586 189,665
il ===
ASSETS
Nom-gurrent assets
Property Plant and Equlpiteal 1z
- Tangible assets 1044 L]
- Intangible asscts 1307 5
- Capital witk-in-progress . 73 357
= Intanyible assel ender development 1,051 129
Mon-currend investiments 14 107870 107,678
Deferred tax assets (wsf) 25 BATT 6,060
Long-tcmm loans and advances I3 L4d,546 35821
Other pon-current psets £ 11471 7.238
276,039 137,390
Carrent assets
Current isvastisests 1] = 2,003
Cash and bank balanges L7 5352 Lad4
Shart-term loans and advarses 12 50,935 27,570
Oiher current ass=is 15 4,209 1,158
60,547 32,275
Total . 336,586 ﬂﬁ
B ry of sigmificant iz policies and nness to the finaseial séslement 2
The sccompanying rates form indegral pan of these financinls ststements T
As per ours repert of even date stsched
For 8. R. Butlibel & Asseeintes LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Dircctors of
Charrered Aceoumrants Clix Capital Serviees Private Limited (Foreserly known as GE Maney Financdal Services Privaie
A Birm registration No,: 101 040W/E200004. Limlted)
Amif Knbra Anll Chawly Aggarwal
Fartner Direetor B Director
Membership Mo.: 094533 DM 00DL6538 DM, OTGRIRIS
"
\ Goumed N ot
Somesh Kumar Bhavesh Cupla Hardeep Singh
Campauy Secraiary . Chigf Execrive Oificer Chivf Financial Qficer
Membership Moz AZL18S
Place: Gurujgram Place; Gury,

Date: 17 June 2008

g
Dhge: 27 June 2018




Clix Capital Services Frivate Limited {Formerly kmows a3 GE Moaey Financial Serviees Private Limited)
Sintemeat of Profit and Loss for the yesr ended 31 March 2008
(Al amaunss in Indian Rupees in Lakhs, onless otkerwise stated)

For tlvé vear ended For the year ented

Faraan Notue 31 March 2018 31 Morch 2017
Revenue from pperations 0 10498 4,145
Oither Inesme 1l 333 5,851
Total revenus 13,849 10056
Expemses
Finanes costs a2 4035 204
Emgloyes benefits axpemse 3 1850 a1
Crther gxpensss 24 4311 21431
Depreciation angd amartisation expenss | F 153 3
Provialos madefreversed) for bad and dowbiful debis 3 1,430 5 A5
Tatal expensis 17.584 8330
[Lass) Profit bsfure mx {4,135) 126
Tax expenge:
= Current fax - 1653
- Current tax For earfier years (1.808) 4
= Defered tax 25 (24100 (1,388)
- Deferred tax For eartier yeans - -

{43007 360
(Loas)' Profit For the year LI, 357,
Earnings per equlty sharo [naminal vabae of Rs. 10 per shace] 31 Murch 2007: Rs. 0
imp
Basic ) 0. 0.03
Dilubed 0.0 0.03
Significant sccounting policies and nodes bo s financial satements 2
The atcompanying nodes foom inlegral part of these Enanclals statements
Ag peraur report of even date anached
For 8. R, Batllboi & Associnres LLP For andl on bebalf of the Board of Direetors of .
Chartered Accountants Clix Capital Services Private Limbied {F Iy knawe a5 GE Morey Fisanckil Services Private

I,

rm registration Mo.: 101 D49WEIN0004 Limilted)

T

Amit Anil Chavvla v
Piartrer Dhiruetor Dirsctar .
Membership No.: 094533 DIN.: [0016555 DIN,: 07633835 ‘\
Somesh Kuomar Bhavesh Guptn Hardeap Singh
Company Srcriary Chigf Execulive Officer Citef Finamein! Qfffcer

Membership No.: A1 L85

Hace: Gurisgram
Jate: 27 June 2018

Place: Gunagram
Drate: 27 June 2018
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Clix Capltal Services Privade Limited (Formerly knmwi a8 GE Money Financiol Services Private Limited)

Cusgh Mow statement for e year ended 31 March 2018

Cash Mows Trem operating activites
{Lossl Profit befone rax

Depreciation and amartismian expense
Unrepized {gnin) bass an Bareign exchange
Provision for bad and doubtild assets and finance receivables sold
Processing fees (amorised during the year)

Lagn apquisitien oot (amertised during the year)
Discount on commercial paper

Contingant provisions againet standard assed
Resoverahle whitten-off -

Liahililies' provisions ne lenger requdrsd wrilten back
Gain en sale of cumrent inveshnents (net)
Ucrrealised gain oa maulsl fsds

Interest on income-x refund

Aunartisation of préimium paid an deb
Operating profit before worklag capltal changes

{[mereass) in baem and sdvances and olher nsssts

Increase In liahilities and provisions
Direct taxes paid (nil of lax felund)

Met cash generntesd from{used in) operating activities - A

Cadlh fows from Investing aztivities

Fisamos brase oblipation taken

Fimamoe bease oblipstion repald

Proceeds fram tenn lozan

Repayment of tem loan

Frocopds fram commencial papers
Repayment of serrmancial pagers

Busback of Shanes

Diividend distribution tax on equily shares

Net cash g i fie Im} agtlvities - C

Met inercasefdecrease) in nu‘lﬂl ar cush equivalents (A¥B+C)
ol and squivalenis at the beginning of the year (refer to nate 1T

!Z'l-lsh and squivalents at the end of the year (Refer to noe 17)

Mode : W have not included fixed deposit balances in Cash flow since all the FI¥ are Lien Marked

A pes our repoit of even dite sminched

For 5. Bailibai & Associznes LLF

(Al amounts in [adian Rupees in Lakhs, unless olherwise siwizd)

Forthe year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 Muarch 2007
(4,135) 726
358 30
3 (6}
5146 5,663
(30 [{0]
LAIg 333
9ds
g8 7
384 &
(2,800} {14
{288} (3,256)
(5
{168} (432}
K
1434 3119
{140,949} {16.924)
0,288 [ Al
2,066 66
(128,160} (5,033}
118 &
(62) (1M
91,400 1 2,0H
{11,650y -
£8,510
{35,000 - .
e {15,088)
a (206}
1X3.316 3,437}
4008 (G8,621)
1,344 69,065
5352 1,344

For asd oa behall of the Board of Diredios of

[ Aecouatneg Clix Capitul Services Private L (Formerdy kmown 8s GE Moacy Financial
Firen segastraion New 10 L0STWEI00004 Services Private Limited)
Amit Kabra Anil Chawta Vikas Aggarwal
Parer Diractor Director \;
Membership No.: 004533 DN D001 8555 nm.—""'V
@ oA T“G_).L \\\ oh.
Ha Kumar Bhavesh Gupta Hardeep Singh
Compony Secraiary Chief Execurive Gifficer Chia Finarche! Offear

Membership No.: A3 135

Place: Gurugram : Placa: G
Dite: X7 June 2008 Diate: 37 Jume 2018
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2018-2019 CONSOLIDATED

Clix Copital Services Private Limited (Formerly knownas GE Maney Financial Services Private Limited)
Consolidated Balance Sheetas ot 31 Mareh 2013
{Allamoant i INR locs, except for share date unless stated otherwisef

Hisite Asal As at As at
3L hWarch 72013 31 viarch 2018 1 Agrll 2047
RGSETS
Financial assets
Cashand cash equivalents [ 40,193 12118 3,748
fank balance other than above &8 42 433 137
Loans 7 472128 207,055 100,579
lrwestments & 336 7,666 12,184
Other financial asseis -] 6,196 1,409 475
Mon- financal azsaks
Current tax assets (net| 15,2856 175561 14,583
Disfertat tae assats [net) 23 170z 8,487 6,620
Preperty, plant and equipment 104 23,087 16,672 12,354
Goodwill B 35,768 34,798 36,768
Intangible assets 108 1580 1,507 5
Capital work in-progress 114 200 73 357
Inkaagible assets under development 118 Lz 1051 128
Cther nan- financial assels 1z 1,780 4065 3,087
Asseks held for sale 12 13 %
Total assars 622,292 425,984 211,332

SRA DN TIEE AR EATITTY
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LIABILITIES ANOEQUITY
LIABILITIES
Finanda| fabilities
Payahles ia
1) Tradle payables
a} Total autstanding ducs of micro enterprises . -
& sroall enterprises
&) Total outstanding dues of crediiars Giher 10,835 4,340 223
{aan iz 2nterprises & small anterprises
11y Oaher paynlsles
a) Tatal suzstanding dues of micrs anterpnses - = =
He amall pnterprises

b Total oukstanding dies of creditors other 3,554 3,101 1,329
than micrs Erterprises & mall enteronses
[abt zecurithes 1 anl, 548 BaS72 ol
Bamowings (oTharthian dabt securities) 15 ligar 172,761 AN
Cither financial Babslites 15 7437 4,162 2,701
Blan fmanelal Habilivics
Currant ta ahilivies [net) - E 1
Prowigions 17 1,158 139 2,058
Crher non-fnancial liabitilies 12 3232 1533 SEG
Tosallizhilities 451,742 257,208 45,700
Equity
Erpaity share capits| 14 129,708 129,708 129,708
Otiar aquity BE - 49,842 30,058 35,523
Tolal equity 174,550 168,776 185,631
Toeal Babilities and eguity 621,293 425,984 211,332
Seemificant accounsing polickes 3

The arcoammaanyng notes are an inbegral past of the finandal statemenis.

N per our repart of avan date

For SR, Batlibol B Agscclstes LLP For and on benatf of the Board of Directars
ICAl Firm Reglsoration Ko, 2010480 /EI00004 Clix Ca pital Services Private Limited (Foemerly known a: GE Merney
{.nam,ren ALCOUATANG Financlal Servives Private Limited]
-
f o e ’f{m«s‘; s

i 4 1"\-1"" .
par Lra # Shekhar Dag= Venhatmraman Bharabwaj
Partner £ Director Director
Bdembershin Mo, 098533 DFM: OTET1ETL M- 2965708
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Clix Capital Services Private Lirmited {Farmerly krown s GE Maney Financdal Services Private Umited)
Consalidated Statemant of Profit and loss for the year ending 31 March 2019
{All amotnt in INR tacs, excapt for share dota untess stoted othensise)

o Year ended Year ondad
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Revenue from operations
Interest income il 51,757 18,706
Aental income 11401 10117
Fess and commission Income 2 1,608 29
Net gain on fair value changes 3 2,610 653
Total reventss from operations 67376 29 881
Other income 4 2,603 4,333
Total Incorme 50,975 38774
Expenses
Finarce costs Fi 34,113 7.600
Fees and commission espense ima 105
Impelrment an financial instrumants 16 2,830 M3
Emglovee beaefits expense 27 11,356 7,544
Depraciation, amordzatien and impairment 10 9,166 7570
Cther expensag 28 7,502 5,358
Total expenses 65,246 35,233
Profit/[loss) hefore tax 4,733 [958)
T axpense: il
11} Current tex 2543 {LB33
1L Delatrnd b 3541] (28—
FrofEi{iant] for the year 10,525 3,530
Dt compr I
& [teres that willl et be reclassFled 1o peolit or loss
Rer al defined benefi Fagiliny 14 145
Inzeum tazx eifed =) 23y
b, toerns that will be reclossified to proftor lass 3 5
Deher tamprehensie Intcomre . netaf e ose tes E 13
Totel comprehensive incom o for thn yesr 10,5633 'g'g!
Eamnings per equity sksog ]
Hawic (MR} oAz k2
Giluted {iMR) 031 0.z
HamEn velue per shang |kt noo 100
Sgnilicant acoounfing policies ]
The accompanying iiates ar= an integra? p2rm of the Bnanclal sraements
A5 B D PRET Of Sven dete
For 50, Batlibed & Assoclates LLP Forand anbahald of the Basnd of Directos
FEAL Fiim Bagictrathon Mo. S000600 EI00004 Clis Capital Servicas Private Limbted [formscly & novws as GE Wznep
] | Arcoesrtants Frantial Sesvices Private Eimited)
/ |
i}
' LB V. Kha
[ Raiit Kb Shekhar Dags Venkataramon Bharetes
Partree Cirectar Drecicr
Mo Wo 093533 Tin: DPATET] Dokl O29ESTOR
Plaay Gurugram
Dabe= 23 Samamber 2019 m‘ . % AR
% o Bhavash Gupea Asthish K Faanday R
Chisf fasrudve OFlice: Company Saomtang AL
Aembership Moe AZ1165 Fagr
Moo Gurdpram [ )

Dane; 25 September 3000

101




CFin Capital Services Privats Umibed [Farmeily know os G2 Meney Finsstal Sarvices Private Umited)
Cassslidaed Cash Flow 5% Fer shi e epded 31 March DIR8
FAN arrmaunit b WA dokis. BACEER O Share dma wniess stoved otferass)

Particulars Yeear grabedd ‘toar ended
1 March 2099 31 March 2018
Enmiby Borar Teaim ogaerating activities
Profit Bafarn g 473 {959
Aifjusted fon
Frowsinm Rabiie no longar requime witen bedk LTEl 13,005)
anagsment feg anorized 8 ey 1584)
Depredaticn and aseri B 1182 T.5%
Amortisatien of bafrgming s 1 135
Urraskrdling of decaurt om defarred haie sxponses 41 3]
Usradioling of premiim an deferrad m o ™ -
Pt pain on sale of nvestments (L1238 (3]
ECL o lopr @355 and loas commit it 2,184 #an
Prerripm a redemption of prefer erce shares 125) -
Intered e incomg i refund 156€] 1168}
Arnortiation of leen scquiition castanid mesagemunt faey
L] [#i)
it gain oo derecognibon of poperty, plast and equipmant: [1Bd) B3
bt bl L2kt I o
Jesets hald for @le L] 4
o atle wiltes-of Lo7a 3e2
Ext det wileien ot &l 1.EM1
e ealised |gain]) lous oo fereign anchange 1 Ly
lagirast incoeme on urweecing of SSLoUnT an ooy depocd (i) e
Hars jpairi 0ot Bar eztoes changes [5,531) LE6E)
Ehare bamed payméent a1 1492
Ro-measuramart of petusrin les 13 46
(Dizerating prafit before working capitsl changas 13,258 0,057
Adjested for met chan pes 47 warking opies
pryeade in Finarel waiels and sther dasecs 1ITLARE] [ESL D
rerwaai ta Financial lmhiiy aed oiber HakiSkas 10, 796 12,531
Teeisd {pmid|dnefund recenaed [net] [RIELTY 2.0
Mt Cach el innapernling nefmifes 1147320 jL=4,978]
‘Cas= flomy fram fpessaing artuities
Prerchise of InEsmenss {1.B50, 1404 [A0EHETY
iz af Imeesimenty 1LERD. 150 AILEIT
Purghase of properiy, plot aml arpegmant 12 555) 2730
Brocaeds from pregary, piont ond sgepment 45207 5355
n enuity Fhares o d %
Amortizatian of pre acpiition eeees o debentee - B
f§it Cogh genenmied from investing aciiviizs 1,451 3e7

Aracends Fanr ssuance of equity shore cap'tel .
Froceeds fram non-careeruble debssntures ITL530 -
Firanee kake apkgatantakan & .
Fizance leiue obBganion epaid - &

[Frnresc fam wnking copiinl demaad| san ko s ¢ b Lot 250 Latsaty
Eepapmentol working tip fal demand laanfreen Sanks o fesw Loan |¥3,50%] 17705
Procesds from bank gaii alt [k ang
Refrsent of bask ovendraft [ERE] -

Prucesds Miom leter Coiporate kaan 25 P +

Feoayment of Iner Congorate Loen it

Prace ety From cummirtial papers AT AT R0
Repayr=ent of commpndal papars = 1257 0004 (=)
gt Coh pen peo e fronr Qeoncing oo iies 74542 PG5
rist ircrease ks cash ana cash equbminngs 24T RETL
Cazh pnc] cagh sguiil ears ar the begineing of the ymar 12,115 i e
Cagh aned cash mouivalists a1 the el of the year 40,153 1R A%
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STANDALONE

Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019
Al amount in INR lacs, except for shore data unless stated otherwise}

o As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6A 32,393 5,352 1,344
Bank balanee other than above [1:] 96 95 18
Loans 7 231,695 183,247 56,425
Investrments 8 104,725 107,904 110,220
Other financial assets 9 3,414 3,332 181
Non- financlal assets
Current tax assets (net) L] 10,344 10,165 5,886
Deferred tax assets [net) 9 8,602 8487 619
Property, plant and equipment 104 1,054 1,044 96
Intangible assets 108 2,680 1,507 5
Capital work-in-progress 11A 1A1 T3 357
Intangible assets under development 118 347 1,051 129
Other non- financial assets 12 2,248 1,032 887
13831 asséts 448,360 323,290 182,167

TR Y TTR

103




LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Fimancial liabilities
Payahies
I} Trade payahles
a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises
and srmall enterprises
b total outstanding dues of creditors other than
micro enterprises and small enterprizes
11} Other payables
a} Total outstznding dues of micro enterprises
and small enterprises
b} total outstanding dues of creditors other than
micro enterprises and small enterprises
Debt securities
Barrewings [other than debt securities)
Other financlal labikties

Non finandal labilities
Provisigns
Cther nan-fimancial habilities
Total liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital
Other equity
Total equity

Total liabilities and aquity

Significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes ara an integral part of the financal statements

A5 per our report of even dats

For 5.R. Batllbol & Associates LLP
ICA) Firm Registration No. T01045W/E300004
C Accountants

per & e
Partner

Membership No. 0894533

15

Ir
18

L]
0

3

hekhar Daga
Directar
DiN: 07471871

6487 1,364 2,102
2,706 1,573 1,078
139,363 54,455 -
125,749 43,849 12,088
3,638 2102 159
B33 889 B22
1,455 343 B3
280,237 156,073 16,342
128,708 119,708 129,708
38,415 37 509 36,117
168,123 167,217 165,825
ﬁi IED 473,790 193,167
For and on behalf of the Bpard of Directors
Clix Capital Services Privata Limited {farmefy known as GE
Meney Financial Services Private Limited)
2
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Clix Capital Serviees Private Limited (Farmerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
Statement of Profit and loss for tha year anding 31 March 2019
(AN amount in (NR focs, except for share date unless stated otherwdse)

Niibas Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Revenue from oparations
Imterest income 21 31,542 8,980
Fees and commlssion Income 22 1,300 -
Met gain on fair value changes 23 1,474 288
Total revenue from operations 34,316 9,268
Other income 24 1,140 3,078
Taotal income 35,456 12,346
Expenscs
Finance costs 25 20,613 3,966
Fees and commission expensa 171 &9
Impairment on financial instruments 26 2,841 4703
Employee benefits expense 7 5,687 3,073
Depreciation and amortization 11 B51 358
Other expenses 28 4,233 2,809
Total expenses 34,406 14,978
Profit/{loss) before tax 1,050 (2,632)
Tay expense; i}
[1) Current Tax 437 11,8099)
{2) Deferrad Tax |128) {1,230}
Profit for the year 741 1,157
Other cornprehensive income
@, Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remezsuraments of defined benefit liability 36 66
Income tax effect {13} 123}
b items that will be reciassified to profit or loss - -
Other Comprehansive Income , net of income tax 23 43
Total comprehensive income for the year 764 1,200
Earnings per equity share 30
Basic {INR) 0.06 0.0
Diluted {INR} 0.085 o.0e
HNominal Value per share {INR) 10.00 10,00
Significant accounting policies 3
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
Az per gur report of even date
For 5.R. Batliboi & Asscciates LLP For and on behalf of the Baard of Directors
ICAI Firm Registration Mo, 101049W/E300004 Clix Capital Services Pri itad (formerly known as GE
terad Accountants Money Financlal Servicas e Limited )
bra khar Daga Wi rwal
Parftrner Directar D
Membership No. 094533 DM Q7471871 DN 07685833 d\f
Hace: Gurugram M \}‘
Jate: 28 June 2019 \J - C)\
Bhavesh Gupta Hardeep Singh Ashhish K Paanday
Chief Executive Officer  Chief Finandlal Officer Company Secretary
Membership Mo
A23155
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Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Farmerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2019
(AN amaount in iNR Jacs, except for share date unless stated otherwise]

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax 1,050 (2,632}

Adjusted for: .
Provisions, llabilities na longer required written back {173) (2,850)
Depreciation and amartisation 861 358
Amortization of borrowing cost i 96 23
Urwinding of discount on deferred lease expenses 27 17
Met gain on fair value changes {1474} (288)
Impairment on financial instruments : 1,762 4,318
Amaortization of loan acquisition cost and management fees 340 1,17%
Interest on income-tax refund (455} (168)
het loss on derecognition of property, plant and equipment 7 -
Share based payments 122 157
Re-measurement of Actuarial loss 35 &6
Recoverable written-off 1,078 " 3B
Unrealised (gain)/ loss on foraign exchange 1 3
Interest income on unwinding of discount on security deposit {25) (16}

Operating profit before working capital changes 3,553 511

Adiusted for net charaes in workina canited

Adjusted for net changes in working copital

Increase in Financlal assets and other assets {103,706) [140,5348)
Dwecrease in Financial liabilkity and other abilities 7.524 9,265
Tanes [paid)frefund received {net| 1858) 2,066
Net Cash used in from operating activities (93,087) (129,106}
Cash flews fram investing activities

Amortisation of pre acquisition interest an debenturas . - B
Purchase of |mestments (9BE,650) {220,431}
Sala of Investrents 957,624 222,722
Investment in equity shares of subsidiaries |4, 300) -
Purchase of praparty, plant and equipment |Z,106} {3,485)
Proceeds from property, plant and aquipment 6% 35
Net Cash genercted from / {used in) investing activities 2,637 {1.147)
Finance lease aifigation taken a5 118
Finance lease obligation repaid |10:8) {a2)
Proceads fram term laan 49, (HHD 91,400
Repayment of t2rm loan (35,477) 110,705}
Proceeds from commercial papers 80,662 88,510
Repaymant of commerclal papers (124,500) 135,000}
Praceeds frorm Mon Convertible Debentures 120,000 -
Proceeds from inter corporate depaosit 31,500 -
Fepayment of inter corporate deposit &,500) -
Bank pvardraft (3,111} -
Net Cosh generated from financing octhitles 117,481 134,261
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ANNEXURE VIII: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

2016-17 CONSOLIDATED

Clix Capital Services Private Limited
(Formerly known 15 GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
(Al amounts in Indizn Rupees in Lakhs, unbess otherwise statod)

34, Related party disclosure

(n) Relsted Parties where control existy

Halding conpandes, Including the ultimate holding company till 31 August 2016 (refer note 1)
General Electric Company, USA (Ultinsste holding company)
OF Capital International (Mauritius) (Holding company)

Holding companies after 31 August 2016 (refor note 1)
Plutus Financials Private Limited (Mauritius) (Holding company)

(b) Other parties (fellow subsidiaries) till 31 August 2016 (with whom tramsactions have taken phace during
the eurrent year) (refer note 1)

In India

BHEL - GE Cas Turbine Services Private Limited

GE Capital Business Process Management Services Private Limited
GE Globad Sowrcing Indin Private Limited

GE Indin Business Services Private Limited

OE India Exports Private Limited

GE Indin Industrial Private Limited

GE India Technology Centre Private Limited

GE International Inc,

GE Power Services (India) Private Limited

Wipro GE Healthoare Private Limited

Clix Floance India Unlimited (before the date of scquisition of shares)

Subsidinries’ fellow Subsidinries after 31 August 2016 (withrwhom transactions have taken place during
the currest yeary

Clix Analytics Private Limited (Incorporsted ca 27 February 2017)

(C) Key Mansgerial Personnel
Satyanarsyans Eluri (w.e.f. December 2016) (Director in Clix Capital)

Anand Sakuja (w.e.f. 4 November 2016) (Director in Clix Finance)

o
[
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STANDALONE

Clix Capltal Services Private Limited
(Formerly known a5 GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
(ANl amounts in Indian Rupees In lakhs, unless otherwise stuted)

27, Related party tramsactions
(W) Related Parties whete control exlss
Hoklun-p-ﬂu.luhl-glh uhtimate lullh.ullpuyﬂln August 2016 (refer note 1)
Electric Company, USA (Ullimwte holding company
GthiuI i '(“ Htius) (Holding company)

Holding companies after 31 August 2016 (refer note |}
Plutus Financials Pvt. Limited (Mauritius) (Holding company)

(b) Cther parties (fellow subsidiaries) tll 31 Augast 2016 (with whom transactions have mken place dunng the current
year and/or previous year) (refer note 1)

(e} InIndia
BHEL - GE Gas Turbine Services Private Limited
OE BE Private Limited
GE Capital Busi Process M Services Private Limited

Clix Finance Indin Unbimited (fmty known as GE Capltal Services Indin)
Synchrony Internationsl Services Private Limited ({formerly GE Global Servicing Private Limited)
GE Global Sourcing India Private Limiced

GE Healthcare Bio Sciences Limited

GE Indin Business Services Private Limied

GE India Exports Private Limited

GE India Industriol Private Limited

GE India Technobogy Centre Private Limited

GE Intelligent Platforms Private Limvited

GE Inemational [ne.

GE Medical Systeims (1) Private Limited

GE Power Services (India) Private Limited

Wipra GE Healthoare Priviate Limited

Ovsice Indin

GE Capital Flum Auvstralia
GE Japan

GE Consumer Finance Mauritius

SubsidiarlesTellow Subsidiaries after 31 August 2016 (with whom transactions have taken place during the
current year)

Clix Finance India Unlimited (formerly keown as GE Capital Services India)

Clix Housing Finance Private Limited (Incorporated on 2 December 2016)
Clix Analytics Private Limited (Incorporated on 17 Febouary 2017)

() Key managerial Personnel
Q)' )
Satyanarayana Ehari (with effect from December 2016) )
o
-

112




Fdavind (1 Uy Waewn o0 GE Maney Fimnncind Servies
Lissbedd

Frives
are be Indian I Lakbu, cabeas ath,

Rt anste Db o1 (b vrms mated 1 Bhwech 2087

Lol

e 5

5=
P e e Ve 1t b
Ot v e .

N ke | whmiegy Covire Povew Linind
OF v b

Doy

Tow

Ao ey o corvaren drpvin

U P bk Vi (v beows o U0 Cnor Sermse il
Crrvedt e

o o9 Ao senw b e

e Pt Sarvom ik
Cwm wvenawa e
n

Frwwnws on rmmbrers sk tons whom
lirwré Mo Commary, 1154

Fanrmw (mwber oot

v,
s:_“lkwm_-au“-l
Tud

Ammwns ashd ox betudl of e Cummans
Ok

il Acytus Pivae Lot
OF buls bb sl Prvws Lirond
Dol

Tond

Berbach of Nowres
P P wts e Gl (e

Bons e (ol e e omb |
Mo Fomewndy Pt L Macnmi

Candd oo Vol

R adde v b emee
Ot P hebs Cimtnd Fpmes tnoes @ OF Ciche Sevea wildl
Cls Mmawa Fmwnce Private Lanises

1 s O Corid Sevion bt

rm‘wﬂl-ﬁ-‘lﬂlwww
Nt L ———

c':‘;-u-muw-nm-m Loy Sorme wbat
grv—uu-_u--au-uh—m

Aswrsi gren e Sy b
Gwvm
o= i Capird Sevviins I |

Tt ks Tachnhary Catae Pova Lsind
Cle Posmr ok Lot Pty b e OF Conus Sovkian bt
-

Tow
W g Pt ot *
Ll gmsin.

§ Bousech

T -
¥

z8

L . .

LU
1o

L -

2
5

2R P ~
Eapsfz
*

e =

v « Pw vy
o

113



Chs Caghta! Secviom Privam Lisvied (Furreeredy hown o8 GE Mowey Flasnital Servies
Private Limived

I or an
Al Tofisn Lakax,

o e T —

i
|
i
I

i
iz

(13 laa N
s Nawrs Fasscs Proae ket R}

-
|

. . st
Soal e
OF Capiel Sovinem Pracom blamgurancs Sarviom Privae Lissaas
&

G s bt armad Proem Lt
Towd

suEs
3

o enbe mernades o -
Dy Fmtox Caway (Fd .t

!

-

114




2017-2018 CONSOLIDATED

Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)

(n

(Notes to the consohidated financial statements for the year ended 31March 2018)
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Un-hedged foreign currency exposure

The Company's unhedged foreign currency exposure on account of foreign currency denominated payables not
hedged as on 31 March 2018 i1s USD 2.43 (Rs 158) and 31 March 2017 USD 3.55 (Rs.240)

No frauds were reported on/ by the Group during the year 31 March 2017,

Related party disclosure

) Related Parties where control exists

Holding companies, including the ultimate holding company till 31 August 2016
General Electric Company, USA (Ultimate holding company)

Holding companies after 31 August 2016
Plutus Financials Pvt. Limited (Mauritius) (Holding company)

(b) Other parties (fellow subsidiaries) tll 31 August 2016 (with whom transactions have taken place during the

)

current vear and/or previous year) :
In India till 31 August 2016

GE Capital Business Process Management Services Private Limited
GE India Business Services Private Limited

GE India Exports Private Limited

GE India Industrial Private Limited

GE India Technology Centre Private Limited

Wipro GE Healthcare Private Limited

Fellow Subsidiaries after 31 Angust 2016 (with whom transactions have taken place during the current
year):

Clix Analytics Private Limited (Incorporated on 27 February 2017)
Clix Loans Private Limited (Incorporated on 29 May 2017)

Key managerial Personnel

Whole-time Director - Satyanarayuna Eluri (from December 2016 till May 2017)
Whole-time Director - Vikas Aggarwal (from May 2017)
Whole-time Director- Anand Kumar Saluja
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Clis Cagital Serviees Private Limited
AFwrmerty known as GE Masey Finsocial Services Private Limited)
CAN mmsmnts In bacSom Rupeos bn Lakiw, unbos oobervine stated )
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STANDALONE

Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
(Al amounts in Indian Fupees In lakhe unless otherwise stated)

17. Related party transactions

(a) Related Parties where control exists

Holding companies, including the ultimate holding company (il 31 August 2006 (refer note 1)
(Feneral Elzctric Company, USA (Uldmate holding company)

Haulding companies after 31 Augast 2016 (refer nots 1)
Pluius Finangials Pyvt. Limited (Mauritivs) (Holding company)

() Other parties (fillow subsidiaries) Hll 31 August 2016 (with whom tramsactions bave taken place during the cureent
year andior previous year) (refer note 1):

T Inclin 381 31 Angust 2016

GE Capital Business Process Management Services Private LimitedGE India Business Sarvices Private Limiled
GE India Exports Private Limited .

GE Indin Industrial Private Limited

GE Indin Technology Cenire Private Limited

Wipro GE Healthears Private Lismdted

Subsidiarles/fellow Subsidiaries after 31 August 2016 (with whom transactions have taken place during the
carrent year):

Clix Finance [ndia Private Limited (formerly known as Clix Finance India Unlirmited)
Clix Heusing Finance Private Limited (Incorporated on 2 December 2016}

Clix Analytics Private Limited (Incorporated on 27 February 2017)

Clix Loans Private Listited (Incorporated on 29 May 2017)

(e} Key managerial Personnel

Whols-time Director - Satyatarayana Elurd (from December 2016 till May 2017)
Whols-time Director - Vikas Aggarwal (from May 2017)
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Clix Capltal Serviees Private Limlted { Formarely known as GE Mesry Financlal Services
Frivate Limited
(Al amount gre In Indlan Rupees i Takhs, unbss othervise siated)
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Clix Capltal Servlces Frivate Limited {Formerely kaown as € Money Fisancial Services
Private Limlted
AT amuunt are in Indizn Rupees In Lakhs, unless atherwlse stated)
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2018-19 CONSOLIDATED

(2] Brbvante Livliee | ~ 1 GE Money Frandsl Servces Priwns Limaed]
Nt Flaancid T year andied 31 Masch 2019
AT a0 10 WA LabAs, ewont fir S0aTe 000 wokesi SISTRT SOOI

Note 55 Neleved party dodoseres
Asgerind AS 34, tha dasiowsres of traneactions with the related pertier are geee batow:
0 Ut of s a8 parSes whee coetrol enists sl tolatond it adIN wam [arGactions have Tekes place doed relationshipe

Paticaten Vet alizeabis

Futun Francils e Limiies (Vsthan Moldng Cormpary

e Arwbytacs Privete teretedd [rcorpossted on 21 Februey 2000 Felow S sidintien tvef 42 dagast 2018)
Che Lowrs Private Uereted {ycorporaied on 239 Ny 2007 e Subsidinrber fved 93 dagest 2018)
Sny rmaragen sl gersoonsl

Satywrarepens Do (from Decenber 2016 o8 May 1017 Vhzie time Dwwcior

Whas Aggaral fham Mey 2007 Vhzie-time Dyector

Wraewh Gty Vhzie tims Deeciar

Soereish K [T Febraary 2019) Compary Secrewry

Aheen K Fawnday [Fram February 1019, Comgary Secey

(6 The rature ol volurne of ITROEactions carmad cun wITY the seer rebanad parties ia the ordeary cosrse a1 busnest are 2 folows ©
A Sermamerstion %o key msssgerist perwoerad”

Yo ended Vaur srced
31 March 7009 31 Macch 2010

Wikt Aggarwd - Whoke e shreciae (From May 1017}

Frriareretion ™ "

e bared pryrrent = 4
PR _ — - )

Samvedh Kumar - Comgary Secowtary - (T8 February 2018}

Renurendas » w

e easst pwreer - e
— 0

® The rereareraOen Een 10 by Mgl BENoaesl Soes ROt KAME T Sy made S Eranaty aed eve DaoefL, s they we

Setarrined on sctusral basks for The Seone o6 2 whele

1. Dther traniscons

Name of rekiind party Voar mded Foar e
A1 March 2033 | 34 Marcs 2048

Aeninants pote o8 bl of the Lomganry

e Arwhytics Private Lissberd 5 -

Tl Lowrm Private Lissted s n

1 Balance Shoet - Ounstanding Ralances
Nare of releted party 31 Wharch 2009 | 31 March 2008] 1 Aprk 2uL?
Dadance Cusstanding as ot yesr end

120




STANDALONE

Mote 35: Related party disclosures

A per ind A5 24, the disclosures of transactions with the related parties are given below:

List of related parties where contral exists and related parties with whom transactions have taken place and

relationships:
Particulars Ralationship
Plutus Financials Pvt. Limited {Mauritius) Holding Comgarny

Clix Financa India Private Limited (formerly known as Clix Finance India Subsidiary
Undirnited)
LClix Housing Finance Private Limited (Incorporated on 2 December 2016} Subsidiary

Clix Analytics Private Limited (Incorporated on 27 February 2017) Fallcw Subsidiary
Clix Loans Private Limited {Incorporated an 29 May 2017) Fallowr Subsidiary

Key managerial personnel

Satyanarayana Elurl (from December 2016 ill May 2017} Whole-onme Director
Wikas Aggarwal [from May 2017} Whale-time Director
Somesh Kumar (Till 24 Fab 2019} Cormpany Secretary

3 The nature and volume of transactions carrled out with the above related parties in the ordinary course of
Business are as folkws -

1. Remuneration to key managerial personnel®

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 20138

Vikas Aggarwal - Whole time director [From May 2017)

Ramuneration 78 821
Share-based payment 5 4
&3 85

Somesh Kumar - Company Secretary - (TN February 2019}

Remuneration 3 10
Share-based payment - -
E 10
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Ll Capital Serdces Private Limited (Farmerly known as GE Monay Financial Services Private Limited)
Motes to Standalone Financial Satements for the year ended 31 March 2019

(AT gmount in INR Locs, grcett for shave dota uniess stated othenuse)

2, Other transactions

Hame of related party

\Waar andad 11
| March 2019

‘oar ended 31
March I008

Iranzcticns

Incams

interest on finoece lease recebrmbler

Clia Financa India Private Limied [Farmary knewn as Cie Finance India
Unlimited]

Exdpenditura

Infevest oo finmnee inase ahilgation

x Finance India Prisate Limited {Fommerly known as Clis Finance India
Urdimited]

laterest o inder-corpornte deposits

Clin Frsance Inda Privata Limited (Formerty knaws as Clic Finance india
Unlimited)

Lown onlginmtion coar

Clix Finance India Private Limitad [Fermerky knowm as Chx Finesce Indi
Unlinied)

Expanis reimbursemonts

ANocetions made

Clix Finance kndia Private Umited |Farmedy known 2s s Rirancs India
Undimibed|

Oilx Housing Financ= Pyt Limited

Allocothons reeshpd
Qi Finance India Prvate Limited (Formerky known as Clis Finance Indis
Unlimied)

Amounts paid on behelf of the Company

Chix Finance Indis Private Limitad [Formedy known as Clix Finases india
Unlimited)

i Homing Finance Private Limiged

Clx Analytics Private Limited

i Losans Private Limited

L madie by the Compry
Clis Hausing Finange Private Limibed

i

343

2,675

183

i

1,267

2,504

148
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Clis Capital Sersices Private Limited [Formery known as GE Money Francial Sersices Private Lisitad)
Motes to i Financial Stak s Bor the pear encted 31 Marnch 2019
AN amount ke IR Locs, sxcepd For share dofo unkess stated antersise)

Mame of related party Woar gnded 31 |Yaar andad 31
Felarch 2015 Sdarch 2018

Inker-corporste deposity

Takew

Clis Finance India Private Limted 5,500 .
Clix Finance india Private Limited 5500

Assets taken finsnce lease
Tokem

Clts Finance India Private Limited L 113
Fepad
Clte Finance Indla Private Limited 106 13

Assets prven on finence lease
Given
Clta Finance Indla Private Limited a1 4T

Repaid
Cliw Finance India Frivate Limited El =

Balarce Sheet - Dutstanding Balances

31 March 2049 | 34 March 2018 | 1 Ageil 2047

Balarae Duistanding 2 at year ond @
Ammounts recoverabke
Firance lease recetvabli

Clix Finance ndia Privats Limitad A 2] an

Fwld by tha Company
Clin Financa India Privata Limited a0,370 317 909,170
Clix Howsing Finarce Privata Limited 5500 1,21 1000

Ditvir advances.
Intarecmpinty racsivable
Clin Finance Indka Brivates Limibed 2078 2507 3
Clin Howsrg Finsnce Private Limited 110 -
Clin Loans Private Umited
Inbercompany pagable
Clin Analytics Private Limited 1
Trade payable
Clti Finance Indla Private Limited - - 2.066

B

(Financa kasa obligations
Clin Financa kecka Private Lirmited T
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ANNEXURE IX: ILLUSTRATION OF DEBENTURE CASH FLOWS

Bond Cash Flows on a per Debenture Basis

Face Value Rs. 10,00,000 ( Total Issue Size Rs.65,00,00,000.00)
Coupon Rate 9.30% p.a.
Net Cash Principal
Months Date Principal | Interest O/s days
17 August
2020 (10,00,000) 10,00,000
17 August
12 2021 93,000 - 93,000 | 10,00,000 | 365
17 February
18 2022 10,46,882 | 10,00,000 | 46,882 - 184
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ANNEXURE X: IN-PRINCIPAL APPROVAL

O NSE -2

National Stock Exchange Of India Limited
Refl No NSE/LIST/ 2627 Aupust 13, 2020

The Company Secretary [ Compliance Oflieer
Clix Caprtal Services Private Limated
4th floor, Kailash Budding, Kasturba Gandhir Marg,
Connaught Place New Delln
North East Delhi- 110001
Kind Attn.: Mr, Ashhish Pandey

Dear Sir,

Sub.: ln-principle approval o listing of Non-Convertible Debentures on private placement
hasis

This is with reference o your application dated August 13, 2020 requesting for In-principle
approval for listing of Rated. Listed, Sentor, Secured, Redeemable, Taxable, Non-Convertuble
Debentures of face value of Rs. 10.00.000/- each, aggregating up to Rs. 65 Cr. to be issued by
Clix Caprtal Services Private Lumited on private placement basis. In this regard, the Exchange is
pleased to grant mm-pnnciple approval for the said 1ssue, subject o adequate disclosures 1o be
made i the Offer Document m terms of SEBT {Issue and Listing of Debt Securines) Regulatons,
2008 as amended from time to ume, applicable SEBI Crreulars and other applicable laws i this
regard and provided the Company prints the Disclaimer Clause as miven below in the Offer
Document after the SEBL disclaimer clause:

“As required, a copy of this Offor Docoment has been submitted to National Stock
Exchange of Indin Limited (hercinafter referred (o as NSE) It is (o be distinetly
understood that the aloresaid submission or in-principle approval given by NSE vide its
letter Rel: NSE/LIST/2627 dated Auvgust 13, 2020 or hosting the same on the website of
NSE in terms of SEBI (Issue and Listing of Debt Secorities) Regulations, 2008 as amended
from time to tme, should not in any way be deemed or construed that the offer document
has been cleared or approved by NSE: nor does it in any manner warrant. certily or
endorse the correctness or completeness ol any of the contents of this efler document; nor
does it warrant that this Issuer’s securities will be listed or will continoe to be listed on the
Exchange: nor does it take any responsibility for the linancial or other soundness of this
Issuer, its promoters, ils management or any scheme or project of this [ssoer,

Every person who desires to apply for or otherwise acquire any securities of this Issuer
may do so pursuant to independent inguiry, investigation and analvsis and shall not have
any claim against the Exchange whatsoever by reason of any Inss which may be sulfered hy
such person consequent Lo or in connection with such subseription /facquisition whether by
reason of anything stated or omitted to be stated hercin or any other reason whatseever™

The Dooumen i Dl Signad
Mathowel Stock Ezchas g of India Limited | Exchengs Flazs, 0-1, Block G, Bandm Kerie Comples, Bandng {Ely Bumbed = 4001051,
Indin 491 22 26 GRE100 | wwrw.nsindincom | CIN UET1IOMHLO0 2PLEOERT 60 Darer Thu, A 13, 2320 2X51:5 15T

. 0 NSE Laooion: “‘.:E
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Please note that the approval gven by us should not inany way be deemed or construed that the
dralt Offer Document has been cleared or approved by NSE; nor does it moany manner wartant,
cerily or endomse the correctness or completeness of any of the contents of this draft offer
document; nor does it warraat that the securities wall be listed or wall continue o be listed on the
Exchange; nor does it take any responsibility for the financial or other soundness of the
Cormpany. IL§ promaoters, is management or any scheme or project.

Kindly also note that these debt mstruments may be listed on the Exchange afier the allotment
process has been completed, provided the securties of the 1ssuer are cligible for listing on the
Exchange as per our listing criteria and the issuer fulfills the listing requirements of the
Exchange. The ssuer 15 responsible 1o ensure compliance with all the applicable gurdelines
1ssued by appropriate authontes from time to tme includng SEBI (Issue and Listing ol Debt
Secuntwes) Regulanons, 2008 as amended from time o tme, applicable SEB] Circulars and other
applicable laws in this regard.

Yours faithiully,
For National Stock Exchange of India Limited

Priva lyver
Manger

This Docunrnt is Digially' Signad
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S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP B e o ate Tower - B

Chartered Accountants Sector - 42, Sector Road )
Gurugram - 122 002, Haryana, India

Tel :+91 124 681 6000

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Clix Capital Services Privéte Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements ,
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of Clix Capital Services
Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2019, the Statement
of Profit and Loss including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement
and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2019, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS:;
Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with - .
the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical - .
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the. Act
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with.
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained'is,
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial
statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information which are included in the annual report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The annual report is expected to be made available to us
after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether such the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those Charged with Governance.

Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with

respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and

S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP, a Limited Liability Partnership with LLP Identity No. AAB-4295
Regd. Office : 22, Camac Street, Block ‘B', 3rd Floor, Kolkata-700 016
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India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone
Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going

. concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’'s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i} of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. '

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

+  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’'s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
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inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 1” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(@) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books; :

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended:;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2019
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2" to this report;

(9) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company
for the year ended March 31, 2019;
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(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone Ind AS financial statements — Refer Note 49 to the standalone Ind AS financial
statements;

i. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts — Refer Note 48 to the standalone Ind AS financial statements;

ii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Figf\ Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Amit Kabra
" Partner :
Membership Number: 094533
Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: June 28, 2019
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ of our report of even date

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full” particulars, including quantitative

details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) Allfixed assets were physically verified by the management in the previous year in

accordance with a planned programme of verifying them once in three years which, in our
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title deeds of

(ii)

immovable properties included in property, plant and equipment/ fixed assets are held in the
name of the company.

The Company'’s business does not involve inventories and, accordingly, the requirements under
paragraph 3(ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented
upon.

(iii) () According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties

_covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly,
the provisions of clause 3(iii)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and
hence not commented upon. '

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans,
investments, guarantees, and securities given in respect of which provisions of section 185 and
186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and hence not commented upon.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the
Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable. .

To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Company is not in the business of sale of
any goods. Therefore, in our opinion, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

(vii) (@) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax,

value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues have generally been
regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities though there has been a slight delay in a
few cases. The provisions relating to duty of excise and sales-tax are not applicable to the
Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in |

respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, goods and services tax,
cess and other material statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable. The provisions relating to customs duty
and excise duty are not applicable to the Company.

©) According to the records of the Company, the dues of income tax, service tax, value added tax

and cess on account of any dispute, are as follows:
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(viii)

(ix)

)

(xi)

(xii)

(xii)

Amount | Period to
Nature  of | (Rs.) which  the | Forum where the dispute is
Name of the statute the dues (in amount | pending
Lakh) relates
. Customs, Excise and
Finance Act, 1994 | SSVIce 18X | 5759 | 200304 to | o 0 ™ 1007 Appellate
dues 2007-08 .
Tribunal
) 2006-07 to | Assistant Commissioner
Plasthan VAT Act, X(j'd”:d o | 21 2010-11 & | Works Contract and Leasing
2012-13 Tax
. Value Assistant Commissioner
Delni VAT Act, 2004 | ) jded Tax | 42 2012-13 (Special Hearing Officer)
2005-06 to
Maharashtra VAT | Value 767 2007-08 and | Joint Commissioner of Sales
Act, 2002 Added Tax 2010-11  to | Tax (Appeal)
2011-12
Kerala VAT Act, | Tax, Interest 2 2005-06 Inspecting Assistant
2003 and Penalty Commissioner, Ernakulum
Rajasthan VAT Act, | Value 5 2011-12 Assistant  Commissioner,
2003 Added Tax VAT
Value Assistant  Commissioner,
UP VAT Act Added Tax 14 2011-12 VAT

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a financial institution, bank
or government or dues to debenture holders.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has
not raised money by way of initial public offer / further public offer and hence not commented
upon. Further, monies raised by the Company by way of term loan were applied for the purpose
for which they were raised, though idle/surplus funds which were not required for immediate
utilization have been invested in liquid assets payable on demand.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view
of the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, we report that no fraud by the Company or no fraud/material fraud on the
Company by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during
the year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the provisions of
section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act is not applicable to the Company and hence
reporting under clause 3(xi) are not applicable and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as
required by the applicable accounting standards.
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(xiv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review and hence,
reporting requirements under clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the company and, not
commented upon.

(xv)  According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as
referred to in section 192 of Companies Act, 2013.

(xvi)  According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the Company has
registered as required, under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

Partner
Membership Number: 094533
Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: June 28, 2019
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Annexure 2 referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

Report on Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Clix Capital Services Private
Limited (the “Company”) as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting -criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation<and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial -
reporting with reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the
Companies, Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal fihancial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
. our audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
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reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with
reference to these financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections
of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. '

For S. R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP
ICAI Firm registration number: 101049W/E300004
CharteredAccountants

-

per Amit Kabra

Partner

Membership Number: 094533
Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: June 28, 2019




Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019

(All amount in INR lacs, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Notas As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6A 32,393 5,352 1,344
Bank balance other than above 6B 96 96 18
Loans ¥ 281,695 183,247 56,425
Investments 8 104,725 107,904 110,220
Other financial assets L2) 3,414 3,332 181
Non- financial assets
Current tax assets (net) 29 10,344 10,165 5,886
Deferred tax assets (net) 29 8,602 8,487 6,619
Property, plant and equipment 10A 1,054 1,044 96
Intangible assets 108 2,680 1,507 5
Capital work-in-progress 11A 161 73 357
Intangible assets under development 11B 947 1,051 129
Other non- financial assets 12 2,249 1,032 887
Total assets 448,360 323,290 182,167
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Payables 13
1) Trade payables
a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises - - -
and small enterprises
b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than 6,487 2,364 2,102
micro enterprises and small enterprises
11) Other payables
a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises - - -
and small enterprises
b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than 2,706 1,573 1,078
micro enterprises and small enterprises
Debt securities 14 139,369 54,453 -
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 15 125,749 93,849 12,088
Other financial liabilities 16 3,638 2,102 169
Non financial liabilities
Provisions 17 833 889 822
Other non-financial liabilities 18 1,455 843 83
Total liabilities 280,237 156,073 16,342
Equity
Equity share capital 19 129,708 129,708 129,708
Other equity 20 38,415 37,509 36,117
Total equity 168,123 167,217 165,825
Total liabilities and equity 448,360 323,290 182,167
Significant accounting policies 3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
ICAI Firm Registration No. 101049W/E300004
Cha Accountants

Partner
Membership No. 094533

Place: Gurugram
Date: 28 June 2019

For and on behalf of the
Clix Capital Services Priv:
Money Financial Service

Shekhar Daga
Director
DIN: 07471871

"Bhavesh Gupta
Chief Executive Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: 28 June 2019

ard of Directors

ivate Limited)

Director
DIN: 07685833

Jod> 2

Hardeep Singh
Chief Financial Officer

Limited (formerly known as GE

Ny\(““

Ashhish K Paanday
Company Secretary
Membership No:
A23155



Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
Statement of Profit and loss for the year ending 31 March 2019
(All amount in INR lacs, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

otes Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Revenue from operations
Interest income 21 31,542 8,980
Fees and commission Income 22 1,300 -
Net gain on fair value changes 23 1,474 288
Total revenue from operations 34,316 9,268
Other income 24 1,140 3,078
Total income 35,456 12,346
Expenses
Finance costs 25 20,613 3,966
Fees and commission expense 171 69
Impairment on financial instruments 26 2,841 4,703
Employee benefits expense 27 5,687 3,073
Depreciation and amortization 11 861 358
Other expenses 28 4,233 2,809
Total expenses 34,406 14,978
Profit/(loss) before tax 1,050 (2,632)
Tax expense: 29
{1) Current Tax 437 (1,899)
(2) Deferred Tax (128) (1,890)
Profit for the year 741 1,157
Other comprehensive income
a. Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of defined benefit liability 36 66
Income tax effect (13) (23)
b. Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Other Comprehensive Income , net of income tax 23 43
Total comprehensive income for the year 764 1,200
Earnings per equity share 30
Basic (INR) 0.06 0.09
Diluted (INR) 0.06 0.09
Nominal Value per share (INR) 10.00 10.00
Significant accounting policies 3
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date
For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
ICAI Firm Registration No. 101049W/E300004 Clix Capital Services Private|Limited {formerly known as GE
rtered Accountants Money Financial Services P| iva;\e Limited)
Shekhar Daga Vikas Aggarwal
Partner Director Direct
Membership No. 094533 DIN: 07471871 DIN: 07685833 :
Place: Gurugram \(«’ M
Date: 28 June 2019 * O\\
Bhavesh Gupta Hardeep Singh Ashhish K Paanday

Chief Executive Officer  Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No:
A23155

Place: Mumbai

Date: 28 June 2019
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Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2019

{All amount in INR lacs, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 1,050 (2,632)
Adjusted for:
Provisions/ liabilities no longer required written back (173) (2,890)
Depreciation and amortisation 861 358
Amortization of borrowing cost 396 23
Unwinding of discount on deferred lease expenses 27 17
Net gain on fair value changes (1,474) (288)
Impairment on financial instruments 1,762 4,318
Amortization of loan acquisition cost and management fees 340 1,179
Interest on income-tax refund (455) (168)
Net loss on derecognition of property, plant and equipment 7 -
Share based payments 122 157
Re-measurement of Actuarial loss 36 66
Recoverable written-off 1,078 384
Unrealised {gain)/ loss on foreign exchange 1 3
Interest income on unwinding of discount on security deposit {25) (16)
Operating profit before working capital changes 3,553 511
Adjusted for net changes in working capital
Increase In Financial assets and other assets (103,706) (140,948)
Decrease in Financial liability and other liabilities 7,924 9,265
Taxes (paid)/refund received {net) (858) 2,066
Net Cash used in from operating activities (93,087) (129,106)
Cash flows from investing activities
Amortisation of pre acquisition interest on debenture - 8
Purchase of Investments (988,650) (220,431)
Sale of Investments 997,624 222,722
Investment in equity shares of subsidiaries {4,300) -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {2,106) (3,485)
Proceeds from property, plant and equipment 69 39
Net Cash generated from / (used in) investing activities 2,637 (1,147)
Finance lease obligation taken 25 118
Finance lease obligation repaid (108) (62)
Proceeds from term loan 49,000 91,400
Repayment of term loan (39,477) (10,705)
Proceeds from commercial papers 89,662 88,510
Repayment of commercial papers {124,500) (35,000)
Proceeds from Non Convertible Debentures 120,000 -
Proceeds from inter corporate deposit 31,500 -
Repayment of inter corporate deposit (6,500) -
Bank overdraft (2,111) -
117,491 134,261

Net Cash generated from financing activities




Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amount in INR lacs, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 27,041 4,008
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 5,352 1,344
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 32,393 5,352
Notes :
Cash and cash equivalents balance include:
Balances with banks:

- Current accounts 32,393 5,352
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 6A) 32,393 5,352

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
ICAl Firm Registration No. 101049W/E300004
Ch red Accountants

Place: Gurugram
Date: 28 June 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Clix Capital Services Private Limited (formerly known as GE
Money Financial Services Private Limited)

s

Shekhar Daga Vikas Aggarwal

Director Director

DIN: 07471871 \ DIN: 07685833
>

Bhavesh Gupta
Chief Executive Officer

i

Ashhish K Paanday
Company Secretary
Membership No:
A23155

Hardeep Singh
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: 28 June 2019



Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amount in INR Lacs, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

1. Corporate information ; .

Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly GE Money Financial Services Private Limited) (“CCSPL’) (“the Company’) is a private
limited company domiciled in India and incorporated in 11 February 1994 under the provisions of Companies Act, 1956 with CIN-
U65929DL1994PTC116256. The Company is Non-Banking Finance Company (‘NBFC’) registered with the Reserve Bank of India
(‘RBI’) with Registration No. B-14.02950. The Company is primarily engaged in Commercial; Micro, Small and Medium enterprise
(MSME} and Consumer lending. The Company does not accept deposits from the public. The Company’s registered office is at
4th floor, Kailash Building, Kasturba Gandhi Marg, Connaught Place New Delhi North East DL 110001 IN.

Pursuant to the new business strategy announced by General Electric (GE), the Company’s shareholders entered into an
agreement dated 1 March 2016 to sell the entire issued share capital of the Company to Plutus Financials Pvt. Limited
(Mauritius), post obtaining the RBI approval on dated 13 June 2016. Accordingly, GE sold its 100% stake in the company and
transaction was consummated on 31 August 2016.

Further, during the financial year 2016-17, the Company changed its name to Clix Capital Services Private Limited and received
fresh certificate of incorporation from Registrar of companies dated 5 September 2016.

2 (i) Basis of preparation
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Iind AS) notified
under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time).

For all periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance
with accounting standards notified under the section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP or previous GAAP). These financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2019 are the first the Company has prepared in accordance with Ind AS.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for financial assets held for trading and financial
assets and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), all of which have been measured at fair value. The
financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and aH values are rounded to the nearest lakhs, except when
otherwise indicated.

Disclosures as required in accordance with RBI circular no. DNBR DNBR (PD) 'CC.No.002/03.10.001/2014-15 dated November 10,
2014 and subsequent amendments thereof, have been prepared on the basis of previous GAAP, such disclosures have been
presented solely based on the information compiled by the Management.

(ii) Presentation of financial statements

The Company presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported gross
in the balance sheet. They are only offset and reported net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event, the parties also intend to settle on a net
basis in all of the following circumstances:

A. The normal course of business

B. The event of default

C. The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company and/or its counterparties.




Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
{All amount in INR Lacs, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

3. Significant accounting policies

3.1 Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the Fr'nanagement to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the management's best
knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes
requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods. Further, refer note 4 for
significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions used by Company.

3.2 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances on hand, cash balances in bank, and highly liquid investments with maturity
period of three months or less from the-date of investment.

3.3 Recognition of income and expense

Revenue (other than for those items to which Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments are applicable) is measured at fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. :

The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five step model as set out in Ind 115:

Step 1: Identify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that creates
enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract that must be met.

Step 2: [dentify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a contract with
a customer to transfer a good or service to the customer.

Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to
be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that has more than one
performance obligation, the Company allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount that depicts
the amount of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each performance obligation.

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Group satisfies a performance obligation




Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amount in INR Lacs, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

a) Interest and similar income

Interest income, for all financial instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, is recorded using the effective interest rate {EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where
appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset. The calculation takes into account all contractual terms of the

financial instrument {for example, prepayment options) and includes any fees or incremental costs that are directly attributable
and are an inteoral nart of tha FIR hiit not futire credit logsesg

The Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial assets other than credit-
impaired assets. When a financial asset becomes credit-impairéd and is, therefore, regarded as ‘Stage 3, the Company
calculates interest income by applying the effective interest rate to the net amortised cost of the financial asset. If the financial
assets cures and is no longer credit-impaired, the Company reverts to calculating interest income on a gross basis.

b) Interest expense

Interest expense includes issue costs that are initially recognized as part of the carrying value of the financial liability and
amortized over the expected life using the effective interest method. These include fees and commissions payable to arrangers
and other'expenses such as external legal costs, provided these are incremental costs that are directly related to the issue of a
financial liability.

c) Foreclosure charges and other fees
Foreclosure charges and other fees which include cheque bounce charges, penal fee, legal charges and prepayment charges etc.
are recognised as income when there is certainty regarding the receipt of payment.

d) Dividend income :
Dividend income is recognized when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably. This is
generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

e) Lease rental income

Lease rental income arising from operating leases is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in
rental income in the statement of profit or loss, unless the increase is in line with expected general inflation, in which case lease
income is recognised based on contractual terms.




Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amount in INR Lacs, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

f) Debt advisory fees )
Revenue from contract with customer is recognised point in time when performance obligation is satisfied {when the trade is
executed). These include debt advisory fees which is charged per transaction executed.

3.4 Foreign currency
The Company’s financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) which is also the Company’s functional currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at their respective functional currency spot rates at the
date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. Income and expenses in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the
Company at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the functional currency spot rates of
exchange at the reporting date and exchange gains and losses arising on settlement and restatement are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss. ‘

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item {i.e.,
translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in OCl or profit or loss are also recognized in OCl or

3.5 Operating Leases

Lease arrangements where the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset substantially vest with the lessor are
recognized as operating leases. The Company has ascertained that the payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line
with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases and therefore, the lease
payments are recognized as per terms of the lease.agreement in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.6 Property, plant and equipment (PPE) and Intangible assets

PPE .

PPE are stated at cost (including incidental expenses directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its
intended use) less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Subsequent expenditure related to PPE is
capitalized only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Company and the cost
of item can be measured reliably. Other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed off as and when incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised. '

Intangible fixed assets
The Company's intangible assets mainly include the value of computer software. An intangible asset is recognised only when its
cost can be measured reliably and it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to it will flow

to the Company. :

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets
are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.




Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
{All amount in INR Lacs, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

3.7 Depreciation and amortization
Depreciation
(i) Owned assets

(a) Leasehold improvements are amortised over the lease term as stated in the lease agreement or useful life of the asset
whichever is lower.
(b) Depreciation on other owned fixed assets is provided on straight line method at the rates, computed based on estimated
useful life of those assets as prescribed under Schedule 1I to the Companies Act, 2013. Land is not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives are, as follows:

- Computers 3 years
- Office equipment 5 years
- Furniture and fixtures 10 years
- Computer softwares 5 years

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial
year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Assets given on operating lease
Assets given on operating lease are depreciated to their residual value as estimated by the management, on a straight-line basis
over the expected useful life of the asset or lease term, whichever is Iower

Assets taken on finance lease

Vehicles taken on finance lease are being depreciated on the straight-line method to a residual value over the lease term or
useful life, whichever is lower. In the opinion of the management, the aforesaid depreciation rates reflect the etonomic useful
lives of the fixed assets.

3.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based on
internal/external factor An impairment loss is recognised wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the assets, net selling price and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price,
recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. [fno such transactions can be identified, an appropriate

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.
3.9 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is

probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.




Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amount in INR Lacs, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Provisions (excluding retirement benefits) are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on the best
estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. If the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

3.10 Contingent liabilities and assets

The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements. Contingent liability
is disclosed in the case of:

It is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation:
- Apresent obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible
- Apossible obligation arising from past events, unless the probability of outflow of resources is remote

Contingent liabilities are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Contingent assets are not recognised. A contingent asset is disclosed, as required by Ind AS 37, where an inflow of
economic benefits is probable.

3.11 Retirement and other employee benefits

The Company’s obligation towards various employee benefits has been recognised as follows:

Short-term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable/ available within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee
benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages and bonus etc., are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in
which the employee renders the related service.

Defined contribution plan
Provident fund is a defined contribution plan. The contribution towards provident fund has been deposited wnth Regional
provident fund commissioner and is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Defined benefit plan
The Company pays gratuity to employees who retire or resign after a minimum period of five years of continuous service. The
Company makes contributions to its own Gratuity Trust. The gratuity trust invests the contribution in insurer managed scheme.




Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amount in INR Lacs, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Other long-term benefits — Compensated absences

Entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. Balance leaves, if any can be encashed at the time
of retirement/ termination of employment. The Company determines the liability for such accumulated leave entitlements on
the basis of actuarial valuation as at the year end.

Actuarial valuation

The liability in respect of all defined benefit plans and other long term benefits is accrued in the books of account on the basis of
actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method. The obligation is measured at
the present value of estimated future cash flows.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets {(excluding amounts included in net.interest on the net
defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent

3.12 Taxes
Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.
Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities in accordance with Income tax Act, 1961, Income Computation and Disclosure Standards and other
applicable tax laws. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively
enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which during the specified period gives future economic
benefits in the form of adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that
the Company will pay normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as an asset in the Balance Sheet when it is highly
probable that future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the Company.




Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amount in INR Lacs, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporafy differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities dre measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCl
or directly in equity. :

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

3.13 Earning per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of
an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares.
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amount in INR Lacs, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

3.14 Share based payments

Equity-settled share based payments to employees and others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share based payments is expensed on a straight
line basis over the vesting period, based on the Company’s estimate of equity instruments that will

eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting period, the Company
revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss such that the cumulative expenses reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the Share Based Payments Reserve.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted
earnings per share. i

3.15 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

3.15.1 Financial Assets

3.15.1.1 Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets, with the exception of loans and advances to customers, are initially recognised on the trade date,
i.e., the date that the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Loans and
advances to customers are recognised when funds are disbursed to the customer The classification of financial
instruments at initial recognition depends on their purpose and characteristics and the management’s intention
when acquiring them. All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset.

3.15.1.2 Classification and Subseduem‘. measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

. Debt instruments at amortised cost

. Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

. Debt instruments and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss {(FVTPL)

. Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

3.15.1.3 Debt instruments at amortised costs

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

. The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows, and

Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPP1) on the principal amount outstanding. :

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method less impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in
interest income in the statement of profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.
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3.15.1.4 Debt instruments at FVOCI

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:
- The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial
- The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPLI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at
fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the
Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in
the P&L. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from
the equity to P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the
EIR method.

3.15.1.5 Debt instruments at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the
criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost
or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a
measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). Debt instruments included
within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L.

3.15.1.6 Equity Investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for
trading classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to
present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such
election on an instrument-by- instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCIL. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI
to P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within
equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
P&L.

3.15.2 Financial Liabilities
3.15.2.1 Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified and measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at
FVTPL if it is classified as held-for trading or it is designated as on initial recognition. All financial liabilities are
recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
The company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts
and derivative financial instruments.
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3.15.2.2 Classification and Subsequent measurement - Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near
term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the company that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such
at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as
FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCl. These gains/
loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss
within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

3.15.2.3 Loans and borrowings
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using

the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.
This category generally applies to borrowings.

3.15.3 Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The company doesn’t reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the
exceptional circumstances in which the company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business line.

3.15.4 De recognition of financial assets and liabilities

3.15.4.1 Derecognition of financial assets due to substantial modification of terms and conditions

The Company derecognises a financial asset, such as a loan to a customer, when the modification of terms and
conditions have been renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new loan, with the difference
recognised as a derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not already been recorded. If
the modification does not result in cash flows that are substantially different, the modification does not result in
derecognition. Based on the change in cash flows discounted at the original EIR, the Company records a
modification gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not aiready been recorded.
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3.15.4.2 Derecognition of financial assets other than due to substantial modification

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets)is
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired. The Company also
derecognises the financial asset if it has both transferred the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for
derecognition.

The Company has transferred the financial asset if, and only if, either:

- The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset, or
- It retains the rights to the cash flows, but has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a ‘pass—through’ arrangement.

Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the Company retains the contractual rights to receive the
cash flows of a financial asset (the 'original asset'}, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to
one or more entities (the 'eventual recipients'), when all of the following three conditions are met:

- The Company has no obligation to pay amounts to the eventual recipients unless it has collected equivalent
amounts from the original asset, excluding short-term advances with the right to full recovery of the amount lent
plus accrued interest at market rates.

- The Company cannot sell or pledge the original asset other than as‘security to the eventual recipients.

In addition, the Company is not entitled to reinvest such cash flows, except for investments in cash or cash
equivalents including interest earned, during the period between the collection date and the date of required
remittance to the eventual recipients.

A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either:

- The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

- The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

The Company considers control to be transferred if and only if, the, transferee has the practical ability to sell the
asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without imposing
additional restrictions on the transfer.

When the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards and has retained
control of the asset, the asset continues to be recognised only to the extent of the Company’s continuing
involvement, in which case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of
the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration the Company could be
required to pay.

If continuing involvement takes the form of a written or purchased option (or both) on the transferred asset, the
continuing involvement is measured at the value the Company would be required to pay upon repurchasé. In the
case of a written put option on an asset that is measured at fair value, the extent of the entity's continuing
involvement is limited to the lower of the fair value of the transferred asset and the option exercise price.
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3.15.4.3 Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. Where
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying
value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss. )

3.16 Impairment of financial assets

3.16.1 Overview of the ECL principles

The Company is recording the allowance for expected credit losses for all loans and other debt financial assets not
held at FVTPL, together with loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, (in this section all
referred to as ‘financial instruments’). Equity instruments are not subject to impairment under IND AS 109.

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (the lifetime expected
credit loss or LTECL), unless there has been no significant increase in credit risk since origination, in which case, the
allowance is based on the 12 months’ expected credit loss (12mECL).

The 12mECL is the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date.

Both LTECLs and 12mECLs are calculated on collective basis.

The Company has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of
whether a financial instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition.

Based on the above process, the Company groups its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2, Stage 3, as described below:

Stage 1: When loans are first recognised, the Company recognises an allowance based on 12mECLs. Stage 1 loans
also include facilities where the credit risk has improved and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 2 or Stage 3.
Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the company records
an allowance for the LTECLs. Stage 2 loans also include facilities, where the credit risk has improved and the loan
Stage 3: Loans considered credit-impaired (as outlined in Note 8). The Company records an allowance for the LTECLs

For financial assets for which the company has no reasonable expectations of recovering either the entire
outstanding amount, or a proportion thereof, the gross carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced. This is
considered a (partial) derecognition of the financial asset.

3.16.2 The calculation of ECLs

The Company calculates ECLs based on a probability-weighted scenarios and historical data to measure the
expected cash shortfalls, discounted at an approximation to the EIR. A cash shortfall is the difference between the
cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the entity expects to
receive.
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The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:

-Probability of Default (PD) - The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time
horizon. A default may only happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the facility has not been
previously derecognised and is still in the portfolio.

- Exposure at Default (EAD) - The Exposure at Default is an exposure at a default date.

* Loss Given Default (LGD) - The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default
occurs at a given time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the
lender would expect to receive, including from the realisation of any collateral. It is usually expressed as a
percentage of the EAD.

The maximum period for which the credit losses are determined is the expected life of a financial instrument.
The mechanics of the ECL method are summarised below:

Stage 1: The 12mECL is calculated as the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from default events
on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. The Company calculates
the 12meCL allowance based on the expectation of a default occurring in the 12 months following the reporting
date. These expected 12-month default probabilities are applied to a EAD and multiplied by the expected LGD .

Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the Company records
an allowance for the LTECLs. The mechanics are similar to those explained above, but PDs and LGDs are estimated
over the lifetime of the instrument. ' '

Stage 3: For loans considered credit-impaired (as outlined in- Note 8), the Company recognizes the lifetime
expected credit losses for these loans. The method is similar to that for Stage 2 assets, with the PD set at 100%.

Loan commitments: When estimating LTECLs for undrawn loan commitments, the Company estimates the expected
portion of the loan commitment that will be drawn down over its expected life. The ECL is then based on the
present value of the expected shortfalls in cash flows if the loan is drawn down.

For loan commitments, the ECL is recognised within Provisions.

3.16.3 Forward looking information

While estimating the expected credit losses, the Company reviews macro-economic developments occurring in the
economy and market it operates in. On a periodic basis, the Company analyses if there is any relationship between
key economic trends like GDP, unemployment rates, benchmark rates set by the Reserve Bank of India, inflation
etc. with the estimate of PD, LGD determined by the Company based on its internal data. While the internal
estimates of PD, LGD rates by the Company may not be always reflective of such relationships, temporary overlays,
if any, are embedded in the methodology to reflect such macro-economic trends reasonably.

3.16.4 Collateral repossessed »
The company's policy is to sell repossessed asset. Non financial asset repossessed are transferred to asset held for
sale at fair value less cost to sell or principal outstanding, whichever is less, at repossession date.
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3.16.5 Write-offs

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Company has stopped
pursuing the recovery. If the amount to be written off is greater than the accumulated loss allowance, the
difference is first treated as an addition to the allowance that is then applied against the gross carrying
amount. Any subsequent recoveries are credited to profit and loss account.

3.17° Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date using valuation techniques.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when -
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use
of unobservable inputs.
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All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

- Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable.

- Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.

3.18 Dividend

The Company recognises a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders when the distribution is authorised
and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. Final dividends on shares are recorded as a
liability on the date of approval by the shareholders and interim dividends are recorded as a liability on the date of
declaration by the Company’s Board of Directors.

3.19 Expenditure

Expenses are recognised on accrual basis and provisions are made for all known losses and liabilities. The Company
has also entered into certain cost sharing arrangements for resources shared with other entities. The costs
allocated to the Company under the cost sharing arrangements are included in the respective expenses. The costs
" allocated to other entities under the cost sharing arrangement are shown as amounts recoverable from the
respective parties.

3.20 Investment in Subsidiaries

Investment in subsidiaries is recognised at cost.and are not adjusted to fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Cost of investment represents amount paid for acquisition of the said investment. The Company assesses at
the end of each reporting period, if there are any indications that the said investment may be impaired. If so, the
Company estimates the recoverable value/amount of the investment and provides for impairment, if any i.e. the
deficit in the recoverable value over cost. :
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4, Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

4.1 Business model assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the SPPI and the business model
test. The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how financial assets of the
Company are managed together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes
judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and
their performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed
and how the managers of the assets are compensated. The Company monitors financial assets measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income that are derecognised prior to their
maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the
objective of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring is part of the Company’s continuous
assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financial assets are held continues to be
appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in business model and so a
prospective change to the classification of those assets.

4.2 Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell. an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date
under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price) regardléss of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded in the balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of
valuation techniques that include the use of valuation models. The inputs to these models are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, estimation is required in establishing fair
values. Judgements and estimates include considerations of liquidity and model inputs related to items such
as credit risk (both own and counterparty), correlation and volatility.

4.3 Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method

The company's EIR methodology, recognises interest income / expense using a rate of return that represents
the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioural life of loans given / taken and
recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates at various stages and other characteristics of the
product life cycle (including prepayments and penalty interest and charges). This estimation, by nature,
requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and life-cycle of the instruments, as
well expected changes to India’s base rate and other fee income/expense that are integral parts of the
instrument.
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4.4 Impairment loss on financial asset

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires judgement, in
particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when
determining impairment losses and the assessment of a signiﬁcanf increase in credit risk. These estimates
are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result in different levels of allowances.

The company’s ECL calculations are outputs of complex models with a number of underlying assumptions
regarding the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of the ECL models that are
considered accounting judgements and estimates include:

- The Company’s internal model, which assigns PDs.

- The Company’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and so allowances
for financial assets should be measured on a LTECL basis and the qualitative assessment.

- The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis.

- Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs.

- Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic inputs, such as

unemployment levels and collateral values, and the effect on PDs, EADs and LGDs.

- Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to derive the
economic inputs into the ECL models.

it has been the Company’s policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss experience and
adjust when necessary. '

4.5 Defined employee benefit assets and liabilities

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of
the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making
various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the

determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes
in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

4.6 Share based payments

Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate
valuation model, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires
determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the share
option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them.
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4.7 Provisions and other contingent liabilities

The Company operates in a regulatory and legal environment that, by nature, has a heightened element of
litigation risk inherent to its operations. As a result, it is involved in various litigation, arbitration and
regulatory investigations and proceedings in the ordinary course of the Company’s business.

When the Company can reliably measure the outflow of economic benefits in relation to a specific case and
considers such outflows to be probable, the Company records a provision against the case. Where the
probability of outflow is considered to be remote, or probable, but a reliable estimate cannot be made, a
“contingent liability is disclosed.

Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of losses, the Company
takes into account a number of factors including legal advice, the stage of the matter and historical evidence
from similar incidents. Significant judgement is required to conclude on these estimates.

5. Standard issued but not yet effective

5.1 Ind AS 116 : Leases
Ind AS 116 Leases was notified on March 31, 2019 and it replaces Ind AS 17 Leases, including appendices
thereto. Ind AS 116 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after April 01, 2019.

Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases
and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar to the accounting
for finance leases under Ind AS 17. The standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of
‘low-value’ assets and short-term leases. At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a '
liability to make lease payments and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during the
lease term. Lessees will be required to separately recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and the
depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.

Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantially unchanged from today’s accounting under Ind AS 17.
Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same classification principle as in Ind AS 17 and
distinguish between two types of leases: operating and finance leases. '
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The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 116 is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The
standard permits two possible methods of transition:

(a) Full retrospective — Retrospectively to each prior period presented applying Ind AS 8 Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

(b) Modified retrospective — Retrospectively, with the cumulative effect of initially applying the Standard
recognized at the date of initial application.

Under modified retrospective approach, the lessee records the lease liability as the present value of the
remaining lease payments, discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and the right of use asset either as:
(a) Its carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the commencement date, but discounted at
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application or

{b) An amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments
related to that lease recognized under Ind AS 17 immediately before the date of initial application.

Certain practical expedients are available under both the methods.
The company is still under the process of evaluation of available transition options and a reliable estimate of

the quantitative impact of Ind AS 116 on the financial statements will only be possible once Company
completes its assessment.
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As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017

Note 6A: Cash and cash equivalents :
Balance with banks in current accounts 32,393 5,352 1,344

32,393 5,352 1,344

Note 6B: Bank balance other than above
Earmarked balances with bank* 96 96 18
96 96 18

Total : © 32,488 5,447 1,362

* Fixed deposits accounts with bank are held under lien. The Company has the complete beneficial interest on the
income earned from these deposits.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

As at As at As at

31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Balance with banks in current accounts 32,393 5,447 1,344

32,393 5,447 1,344
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Asat As at Asat
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017

Note 7: Loans

In India

At Amortised cost
Term loans 295,677 195,438 64,194
Finance lease receivables * 90 72 171
Inter company receivable - - 24
Total (A) Gross ' 295,767 195,510 64,389
Less: Impairment loss allowance 14,072 12,263 7,964
Total {A) Net 281,695 183,246 56,425
Secured** ' 193,837 170,091 62,911
Unsecured : 101,929 25,419 1,478
Total (B) Gross 295,767 195,510 64,389
Less: Impairment loss allowance 14,072 12,263 7,964
Total (B) Net ’ 281,695 183,247 56,425

Loan in India
Public sector - - -

Others 295,767 195,510 64,389
Total (C) Gross : 295,767 195,510 64,389
Less: Impairment loss allowance 14,072 12,263 7,964
Total (C) Net 281,695 183,247 56,425

* Finance lease receivable includes receivables from related parties as at 31 March 2019: INR 84 {31 March 2018: INR 64, 1 April 2017: INR 80 )

** Secured by tangfblé assets (hypothecation of equipment's, plant and machinery, equitable mortgage of immovable property, pledge of securities, trade
receivables, etc.)
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(i) Finance lease receivable
Vehicles given under finance lease have been recognised as receivables at an amount equal to the net investment in lease. Reconciliation between the total gross
investment in leases and the present value of minimum lease payments receivable as at 31 March 2019, 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2017 is as follows:

particulars As at Asat Asat

31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Present value of minimum lease payments receivable 87 68 - 138
Add: Un-guaranteed residual values accruing to the benefit of the lessor 3 4 33
Add: Unearned finance income 13 13 21
Gross investment in finance lease 103 85 192

The maturity profile of the finance lease receivables as at 31 March 2019, 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2017 is as follows:

As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018 As at 1 April 2017
Minimum Unearned Present Minimum  Unearned Present Minimum Unearned Present value
lease finance value lease finance value lease payments finance income
payments income payments income
Receivable within one year 52 9 43 40 6 34 129 14 115
Receivable between 1-5 years 51 4 47 45 7 38 63 7 56
Total 103 13 90 85 13 72 192 21 171

During the year, an amount of INR 15 was recognized as income in the statement of profit and loss (31 March 2018 : INR 13}.
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Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amount in INR lacs, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Note 7.2 Loan Commitment
7.2.1 Credit Quality of assets

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Company’s
internal credit rating system and year-end stage classification. The amounts presented are gross of impairment
allowances. Details of companies risk assessment model are explained in Note 40 and policies whether ECL
allowances are calculated on individual/collective basis are set out in Note 7.4

A Name of Portfolio

As at 31 March
2019

2018

As at 31 March

As at
1 April 2017

Corporate portfolio

5,000

3,440

Total

5,000

3,440

7.2.2 An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL allowances in relation to

loan commitment is, as follows:

Particulars FY 2018-19 FY 2017-18
Gross carrying amount opening balance 5,000 3,440
New assets originated - 5,000
Assets disbursed/cancelled (5,000) (3,440)
Gross carrying amount closing balance - 5,000
Reconciliation of ECL balances is given below:

Particulars ' FY 2018-19 FY 2017-18
ECL allowance - opening balance 2 6
New assets originated - 2
Assets disbursed/cancelled (2) (6)
ECL allowance - closing balance - 2

There have been no transfer between Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3 during the

March 2019 and hence not shown separately in above tables.

year ended 31 March 2018 and 31




Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amount in INR lacs, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Note 7.3 impairment assessment
The references below show where the Company’s impairment assessment and measurement approach is set out in
these notes. It should be read in conjunction with the Summary of significant accounting policies.

- Definition of default and cure

The Company considers a financial instrument as defaulted and classifies it as Stage 3 {credit-impaired) for ECL
calculations typically when the borrower becomes 90 days past due on contractual payments. The Group may also
classify a loan in Stage 3 if there is significant deterioration in the loan collateral, deterioration in the financial condition
of the borrower or an assessment that adverse market conditions may have a disproportionately detrimental effect on
the loan repayment. Thus, as a part of the qualitative assessment of whether an instrument is in default, the Company
also considers a variety of instances that may indicate delay in or non repayment of the loan. When such events occur,
the Company carefully considers whether the event should result in treating the borrower as defaulted and therefore
assessed as Stage 3 for ECL calculations or whether Stage 2 is appropriate.

Classification of accounts into stage 2 is done on a conservative basis and typically accounts where contractual
repayments are more than 30 days past due are classified in stage 2.

It is the Company’s policy to consider a financial instrument as ‘cured’ and therefore re-classified out of Stage 3 when
none of the default criteria are present. The decision whether to classify an asset as Stage 2 or Stage 1 once cured
depends on the updated credit grade once the account is cured, and whether this indicates there has been a significant
reduction in credit risk.

- Probability of default
The credit rating provided by the external rating agencies/account level delinquency/ internal matrix has been
considered while assigning Probability of Default (PD) at a portfolio level. The PDs are computed for homogenous
portfolio segments.

" - Exposure at default

The outstanding balance as at the reporting date is considered as EAD by the Company. Considering that PD determined
above factors in amount at default, there is no separate requirement to estimate EAD.

- Loss given default
The Group uses historical loss data/external agency LGD for identified homogenous pools for the purpose of calculating
LGD. The estimated recovery cash flows are discounted such that the LGD calculation factors in the NPV of the
recoveries.

- Significant increase in credit risk
The Company evaluates the loans on an ongoing basis. The Company also assesses if there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since the previously risk taking into consideration both qualitative and quantitative information .
One key factor that indicates significant increase in credit risk is when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due.

- Grouping financial assets measured on a collective basis

The Company calculates ECLs on retail portfolio on collective basis and corporate portfolio on individual basis.




Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amount in INR lacs, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Note 7.4 Collateral

The Company hold collateral to mitigate credit risk associated with secured financial assets. The main type of collateral
and type of assets these are associated with are listed in the table below. The collateral presented relates to
instruments that are mieasured at amortised cost.

As at As at
Nature of Collateral 31 March | 31 March As at
2019 2018 1 April 2017
Equity shares of the Company, personal guarantee of
the director / promoter, charge against assets of the
borrower and other financial collaterals such as fixed
assets, debtors, etc.* 164,752 162,073 62,740
Cars** 90 73 171
Two wheeler** 2,649 - -
Property** 26,346 7,945 -
Total 193,837 170,091 62,911

* Collateral for corporate portfolio
** Collateral for retail portfolio

The company did not hold any financial instrument for which no loss allowance is recognised because of collateral at 31
March 2019, 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2017. There was no change in the Company's collateral policy or collateral
quality during the period.

Refer Note 40.2.2 for risk concentration based on "Rating and Industry analysis" for corporate portfolio and "Sub
portfolio's and Secured/unsecured” for retail portfolio.
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Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formeérly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amount in INR lacs, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Note 12: Other non-financial assets
Prepaid expenses 367 140 101
Minimum alternate tax recoverable 1,291 595 595
Capital advances 105 35 169
Balance with statutory and government authorities
- Considered good 484 230 23
- Considered doubtful 964 338 227
Less: Provision (964) (338) (227)
484 230 23
Fair value of plan assets of gratuity 2 32 -
Total o 2,249 1,032 838
Asat - As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Note 13: Payables
Trade payables* 6,487 2,364 2,102
Other payables* 2,706 1,573 1,078
Total outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small - - -
Enterprises*
Total 9,193 3,937 3,180

* The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an Office Memorandum dated 26 August 2008
which recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its
customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated after filing of the Memorandum. Based on
information received and available with the Company, there are no amounts payable to Micro and Small
Enterprises as at 31 March 2019, 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2017.

At



Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amount in INR lacs, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Asat Asat Asat
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017

Note 14: Debt Securities

At Amortised Cost
Secured

Non-convertible debentures *

- From Other parties 30,000 - -
Unsecured

Commercial paper

--From Bank - 9,667 -

- From Other parties 19,616 44,786 -

Non-convertible debentures *

- From Other parties 89,753 - -
Total gross (A) 139,369 54,453 -
Debt securities in India 139,369 54,453 -
Total (B) to tally with (A) 139,369 54,453 -

# NCD is secured by first pari passu and continuing charge on all current and future standard book debts/receivables of
the company.

* Non-convertible debentures

Due within 1 More than3
Original maturity of NCDs (In no. of days) year Due lto 2years Due 2to 3 years years Total
Issued at par and redeemable at par - - - - ~
365-730 - ' - - - -
730-1095 ) - 20,000 30,000 - 50,000
1095 - 1460 - - 20,000 - 20,000
More than 1460 . - - - 50,000 50,000
120,000
- Interest rate ranges from 9% p.a. to 11.5% p.a. as at 31 March 2019.
Commercial papers as at 31 March 2019 are repayable at par as follows:
Due within 1 More than 3
Original maturity of CPs (In no. of days) year Due 1to2years Due 2to 3 years years Total
Issued at par and redeemable at par - - - - -
Up to 365 19,616 - - - 19,616
19,616
- Interest rate ranges from 9.2% p.a. t0 9.95% p.a. as at 31 March 2019.
- Face value of commercial paper is INR 20,000 as at 31 March 2019.
Commercial papers as at 31 March 2018 are repayable at par as follows:
Due within 1 More than 3
Original maturity of CPs (In no. of days) year Duelto2years Due 2to3years years Total
.Issued at par and redeemable at par - - - - -
Up to 365 54,453 - - - 54,453
54,453

- Interest rate ranges from 8.15% p.a. to 8.75% p.a. as at 31 March 2018.
- Face value of commercial paper is INR 56,000 as at 31 March 2018.
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Clix Capital Services Private Limited {Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amount in INR lacs, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Note 16: Other financial liabilities

Interest accrued but not due

- On term loan and non convertible debenture from bank 394 562 23

- On term loan and non convertible debenture from financial institution 1,329 6 -

- On inter corporate deposit 12 = -

Security deposit from customers 70 95 -

Employee payables 786 . 632 101

Capital creditors 149 762 -

Advances from customer 880 27 27

Stock options outstandihg account (under GE share based compensation plan) 18 18 18
Total 3,638 2,102 169

As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017

Note 17: Provisions :
Pravision for employee benefits .

- Compensated absences (Refer Note 31) 141 113 34

- Gratuity (Refer Note 31) - - 47
Provision for loan commitment - 2 6
Provision for contingent expenses (Refer Note 34)

- Provision for indirect tax 673 613 574
Provision for customer disputes (Refer Note 34) 18 161 161
Total 833 889 822

As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Note 18: Other non-financial liabilities '

Statutory dues payable 1,455 843 83

Total 1,455 843 83




Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

(All amount in INR lacs, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Note 19: Equity Share Capital
Authorised :
2,160,000,000 Equity Shares of INR10/- Each 216,000 216,000 216,000
216,000 216,000 216,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up:

1,297,084,452 Equity Shares of INR10/- Each Fully paid 129,708 129,708 129,708
Total 129,708 129,708 129,708
Details of authorized, issued, subscribed and paid up share capital

As at As at As at
March 31 2019 March 31 2018 1 April 2017
Authorized share Capital
2,160,000,000 (31st March, 2018: 2,160,000,000 and 1st April, 2017: .
2,160,000,000) Equity Shares of INR 10/- each 216,000 216,000 216,000
216,000 216,000 216,000

Issued , Subscribed & Paid up capital
Issued and Subscribed Capital
1,297,084,452 (31st March, 2018: 1,297,084,452 and 1st April, 2017:
1,297,084,452) Equity Shares of INR 10/- each 129,708 129,708 129,708
Called-Up and Paid Up Capital
Fully Paid-Up . 129,708 129,708 129,708
1,297,084,452 (31st March, 2018: 1,297,084,452 and 1st April, 2017:
1,297,084,452) Equity Shares of INR 10/- each
Total 129,708 129,708 129,708
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Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amount in INR lgcs, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Note 20: Other equity

Capital reserve

Opening balance 121 121
Addition/(Deduction) - -
Closing balance ‘ : 121 121
Capital reserve created pursuant to merger : -
Opening balance ‘ 4,000 4,000
Addition/(Deduction) . ' - -
Closing balance 4,000 4,000
Statutory reserve
Opening balance 19,942 19,907
Transfer from retained earnings 153 35
Closing balance 20,095 19,942

Capital redemption reserve pursuant to buy back of shares

Opening balance 11,880 11,880
Transfer from retained earnings - -
Closing balance 11,880 11,880
Share based payment reserve
Opening balance 192 -
Addition/{Deduction) 142 192
Closing balance 334 192
Retained earnings
Opening balance 1,374 209
Profit for the period 741 1,157
Transfer to other reserves ' (153) (35)
Remeasurement of defined employee benefit plans 23 43
Closing balance 1,985 1,374
Total 38,415 37,509

Nature and purpose of reserves:

Capital reserve: Till the year ended 31 March 2012, the Company was not required to pay any
amount to the General Electric Company, USA (then ultimate holding company) towards the cost of
options granted or shares allotted to the employees of the Company under these share based
compensation plans. Therefore, till the year ended 31 March 2012, the Company recognized share
based compensation in the Statement of Profit and Loss with a corresponding credit to Capital
Reserve Account (Share Options Outstanding Account).




(e)

Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(Al amount in INR lacs, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Capital reserve created pursuant to merger: During 2012-13, Maruti Countrywide Auto Financial
Services Private Limited (MCW} was amalgamated with GE Money Financial Services Private Limited
(GEMFSPL) pursuant to the scheme of amalgamation. Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the
entire amount of authorised share capital of the transferor company amounting to INR 4,000
divided into 40,000,000 equity shares of INR 10 each got transferred from the authorised share
capital to the authorised share capital of GEMFSPL as equity shares and Capital Reserve of INR 4,000
was created during the year ended 31 March 2013.

Statutory reserve: Statutory reserve represents the reserve fund created under Section 45-IC of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Under Section 45-IC, the Company is required to transfer sum not
less than twenty percent of its net profit every year. Accordingly, the Company has transferred INR
182 (31 March 2018: INR 35), being twenty percent of net profits for the financial year to the
statutory reserve. The statutory reserve can be utilised for the purposes as specified by the Reserve
Bank of India from time to time.

Capital redemption reserve pursuant to buy back of shares: During the year ended March 2017, the
Board of Directors in their meeting held on 4 November 2016 approved buy back of 118,803,425
equity shares of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company at a price of INR 12.7 per fully paid
equity share from shareholders. The total number of equity shares of 118,803,425 were purchased
by the Company under the offer of buy back for a consideration of INR 15,088.

Share based payment reserve: The share based payment reserve is used to recognise the value of
equity-setiled share based payments provided to employees and its subsidiary’s employees,
including key managerial personnel, as part of their remuneration.

Retained earnings: These represent the surplus in the profit and loss account and is free for
distribution of dividend.




Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

{(All amount in INR lacs, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Note 21: Interest income
On financial assets measured at amortised cost
Interest on loans
- Loans and advances 31,387 8,116
- Finance lease receivables 15 13
Interest income on debt securities 140 851
Total (A) Gross 31,542 8,980
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Note 22: Fees and commission
Debt advisory fees ( refer note 38) 994 -
Application fees 139 -
Other charges 167 . -
1,300 -
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Note 23: Net gain on fair value changes
(A) Net gain on financial
instruments at fair value through
profit or loss '
(i} On trading portfolio

- Investments 1,474 288
Total Net gain on fair value changes (C) 1,474 288
Fair value changes:

-Realised 1,474 288

-Unrealised - .

Total Net gain on fair value changes(D) to tally with (C) 1,474 288
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Note 24: Other income
Liabilities/provisions no longer required written back
Interest income
- on income tax refund
- on fixed deposits
Interest income on unwinding of discount on security deposit
Total '

173

2,890

168
4
16

3,078




Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

(All amount in INR lacs, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Year ended
31 March 2019

Year ended
31 March 2018

Note 25: Finance costs

At amortised cost
Interest on borrowings (other than debt securities)

- Term loan from banks 8,783 2,980
- Term loan from financial institutions 848 10
- Bank overdraft 68 16
- Inter-corporate deposit 223 -
- Finance lease obligation 9 14
- Other interests 6 1
Interest on debt securities
- Discount on commercial papers 3,613 945
- Non convertible debentures to financials institutions 7,063

Total 20,613 3,966

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Note 26: Impairment on financial instruments
At amortised cost

ECL on loan assets 1,809 4,299

Loan assets written off 1,078 384

Investments (45) 24

. Loan commitment (2) (4)

Total 2,841 4,703
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Note 27: Employee benefits expenses
Salaries and bonus
Share based payments to employees
Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer Note 31)
Staff welfare expenses
Total

5,173 2,619
122 157
288 211
104 86

5,687 3,073




Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amount in INR lacs, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Note 28: Other expenses

Rent 587 247
Rates and taxes 148 321
Printing and stationery : 94 44
~ Advertisements and sales promotion 606 120
Legal and professional charges 1,511 1,599
Outsourced service cost 533 -
Postage, telegrams and telephones 68 37
Travelling and conveyance 428 221
Repairs and maintenance 149 142
Insurance 77 45
Net loss on derecognition of property, plant and equipment ' 7 -
Miscellaneous expenses 26 33
Total 4,233 2,809

* Legal and professional charges includes auditors remuneration (excluding goods and service tax)
comprises the following:

Particulars Year ended Year ended

’ 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
As auditor .
- Statutory audit 24 17
- Tax audit 3 2
- Other services 2
Reimbursement of expenses - 1

Total 28 22




Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amount in INR Lakhs, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Note 29: Income tax

The components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018 are:

Year ended Year ended
Profit or loss section March 31 2019 March 31 2018
Current income tax:
Current income tax charge 416 -
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous year 21 {1,899)
Deferred tax: - .
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (128) {1,890)
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 309 (3,789)
Current tax 437 (1,899)
Deferred tax (128) {1,820)
Year ended Year ended
Other Compreshensive Income section March 31 2019 March 31 2018
Deferred tax:
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 13 23
Income tax expense reported in the Other Comprehensive section 13 23
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 322 (3,766)

Reconciliation of tax exp and the acc ing profit multiplied by India’s d ic tax rate for March 31, 2019 & March
31,2018 )
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31 2019 March 31 2018
Accounting profit before tax from continuing operations 1,050 (2,632)
Accounting profit before income tax 1,050 (2,632)
Tax at statutory Income Tax rate of @29.12%/34.61% 306 {911)
Tax provision/(reversal) related to earlier years [A) 21 (1,899)
Current income tax charge (B) 416
Deferred tax on temporary differences
Property, Plant & Equipment 673 740
Trade Receivable Provision {589} (1,623}
Provision for expense {603) (49)
43B Disallowance {263) {(3)
Unabsorbed Loss 367 {367)
Others (183) (135)
Un-amortised loan crigination costs (net of un-amortised processing fee) 484 . {429)
Permanent item (D) - 993
Impact due to rate difference on timing items/previous year true up (E} 18 (13)
Tax on Other Comprehensive Income (F) (13) (23)
Tax at effective Income Tax rate (G= B+C+D+E+F) 306 (911)
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss { A+G-D-E-F} 322 {3,766}




Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)

Notes to lal F ial Stat ts for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amount in INR Lakhs, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Deferred Tax

The following table shows deferred tax recorded in the balance sheet and changes recorded in the Income tax expense:

Deferred tax Deferred tax Net Deferred Income
. Tax Asset / oct
assets liabilities P statement
{Liabilities)
31 March 2019 31 March 2019 31 March 2019 2018-19  2018-19
Property, Ptant & Equipment 2,461 - 2,461 673 -
ECL on Loan & Advances/Investment/Loan Commitment 4,891 - 4,891 (589) -
Provision for expense 840 - 840 {603) -
43B Disallowance 322 - 322 (263) -
Unabsorbed Loss - - - 367 -
Others 739 - 739 (183) -
Unamortised Cost (net of unamortised fees) - (651) (651) 484 -
Remeasurement of defined benfit liability - - - {13) 13
Total 9,253 (651) 8,602 (128) 13
Deferred tax Deferred tax Net Deferred Income
assets liabilities Tax Asset / statement oa
{Liabilities)
31 March 2018 31 March 2018 31 March 2018 2017-18  2017-18
Property, Plant & Equipment 3,134 - 3,134 740 -
ECL on Loan & Advances/Investment/Loan Commitment 4,302 - 4,302 (1,623) -
Provision for expense 237 - 237 (49) -
438 Disallowance 59 - 59 {3) -
Unabsorbed Loss 367 - 367 (367} -
Others 556 - 556 (135) -
Unamortised Cost {net of unamortised fees) - (167) (167) (429) -
Remeasurement of defined benfit liability - - - {23) 23
Total 8,654 (167) 8,487 (1,890) 23
Net Deferred
Deferred tax Deferred tax ~ Tax Asset/
assets liabilities  (Liabilities)
recognised
1 April 2017 1 April 2017 1 April 2017
Property, Plant & Equipment 3,874 - 3,874
ECL on Loan & Advances/Investment/Loan Commitment 2,679 - 2,679
Provision for expense 188 - 188
43B Disallowance 56 - 56
Unabsorbed Loss - - -
Others . 421 - 421
Unamortised Cost {net of unamortised fees) - (596) (596)
TOTAL 7,216 (596) 6,620




Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amount in INR Lakhs, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Note 30: Earning per share

Basic earnings per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to equity holders of Company by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive
potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

Year ended Year ended

March 31 2019 March 31 2018
Following reflects the profit and share data used in EPS computations:
Basic
Weighted average number of equity shares for computation of Basic EPS (in Lakhs) 12,971 12,971
Net profit for calculation of basic EPS (INR) 741 1,157
Basic earning per share (In INR) 0.06 ) 0.09
Diluted
Weighted average number of equity shares for computation of Diluted EPS 13,174 13,080
Net profit for calculation of Diluted EPS (INR) 741 1,157
Diluted earning per share (In INR) ) 0.06 0.09
Nominal / Face Value of equity shares {In INR) : 10 10

Reconciliation of weighted average number of equity shares for the year ended 31 March 2019 for basic and diluted earnings per share:

Particulars Weighted average no. of shares
Basic Diluted
~ Equity shares of face value of INR 10 per share
Opening 12,971 12,971
Additions for potential equity shares - 203
Closing 12,971 13,174

Reconciliation of weighted average number of equity shares for the year ended 31 March 2018 for basic and diluted earnings per share:

Particulars ’ Weighted average no. of shares
Basic Diluted
Equity shares of face value of INR 10 per share
Opening 12,971 12,971
Additions for potential equity shares - 109

Closing 12,971 ) 13,080
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Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(Al amount in INR Lacs, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Note 32, Segment information

The Company’s primary business segment is reflacted based on the principal business carried out, i.e. Commercial financing (comprising
corporate loans, finance lease and operating leases). Accordingly, no separate disclosure for segment reporting is required to be made in the
financial statements of the Company. The Company operates principally within India and does not have operations in economic
environments with different risks and returns; hence, it is considered operating in single geographical segment.

Note 33. Change in liabilities arising from financing activities

Particulars 1April2018  Cash flows Changes in Exchange Other* 31 March 2019
fair values difference

Debt securities } 54,453 85,163 - - (247) 139,369

Borrowings other than debt securities 93,849 32,459 - - (558) 125,749

Total liabilities from financing activities 148,302 117,621 - (805) 265,119

Particulars 1April 2017  Cash flows Changes in Exchange Other* 31 March 2018
fair values difference

Debt securities - 54,453 - - - 54,453

Borrowings other than debt securities 12,088 81,890 - - (129) 93,849

Total liabilities from financing activities 12,088 136,343 - (129) 148,302

* Other column includes amortisation of transaction cost.
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Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amount in INR Lacs, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Note 34: Contingent liabilities, provisions and commitments
To meet the financial needs of customers, the Company enters into various irrevocable commitments, which primarily consist of undrawn
commitment to lend. Further the Company is also exposed to contingent liabilities arising from legal claims.

Contingent liabilities

Claims against company not acknowledged as debts

The Company’s pending litigations comprise of claims against the Company by the customers and pertaining to proceedings pending with
Income Tax, Excise, Custom, Sales/ VAT tax and other authorities. The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and
has adequately provided for where provisions are required and disclosed as contingent liabilities where applicable, in its financial statements.
The Company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a materially adverse effect on its financial results.

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts amounts to INR 78 (31 March 2018 : INR 139). These relate to lawsuits, claims,
investigations and proceedings, which arise in the ordinary course of business and includes amounts litigated against the Company net of
amount provided for contingencies. While the ultimate liability cannot be ascertained at this time, based on facts currently available and its
current knowledge of the applicable law, management believes that the cases will not have a material adverse affect on the Company’s
financial statements or its business operations.

Based on the demand notices received from the tax departments, the Company is contingently liable for INR 927 for direct and indirect tax (31
March 2018 : INR 927 for direct and indirect tax). The Company has challenged these demands. While the ultimate outcome of the above
mentioned appeals cannot be ascertained at this time, based on current knowledge of the applicable law, management believes that these
law suits should not have a material adverse affect on the Company's financial statements or its business operations.

Provisions

The disclosure of provisions movement for the year ended 31 March 2019 is as follows:-

Nature of provision Opening Addition Reversal/ Closing
utilisation

Provision for indirect tax 613 60 - 673

Provision for customer disputes 161 - (142) . 18

Total 774 60 (142) 691

The disclosure of provisions movement for the year ended 31 March 2018 is as follows:-

Nature of provision ) Opening Addition Reversal/ Closing
utilisation

Provision for indirect tax 574 39 - 613

Provision for customer disputes 161 - - 161

Total 735 39 - 774

Nature of provisions:

Provision for indirect tax: The Company has recognised provisions on account of estimated potential losses arising out of its inability to
recover indirect tax related amounts from clients and other litigation with various sales tax/service tax/ goods and service tax autharities.

Provision for disputes with clients: The Company has recognised provision for settlement of certain disputes with its customer.

Commitment

(i) Capital commitment amounting to INR 3,035 (31 March 2018 INR 1,057 ) as at 31 March 2019.
(i)} The Company has a revocable loan commitment of INR 1,821 (31 March 2018 INR 5,000) towards undrawn loan sanctions as at 31 March
2019.

(iii) Operating lease commitments — Company as lessee
The Company has entered into commercial leases for premises. These leases have an average life of between three and five years with no
renewal option included in the contracts.

“Future minimum lease payments under non—cancellable operating leases as at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018 are, as follows:

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Within one year 297
After one year but not more than five years 208
’ 505




Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amount in INR Lacs, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Note 35: Related party disclosures
As per Ind AS 24, the disclosures of transactions with the related parties are given below:

(a) List of related parties where control exists and related parties with whom transactions have taken place and
relationships:

Particulars Relationship
Plutus Financials Pvt. Limited (Mauritius) Holding Company
Clix Finance India Private Limited (formerly known as Clix Finance India Subsidiary
Unlimited)

Clix Housing Finance Private Limited (Incorporated on 2 December 2016)  Subsidiary

Clix Analytics Private Limited (Incorporated on 27 February 2017) Fellow Subsidiary
Clix Loans Private Limited (Incorporated on 29 May 2017) Fellow Subsidiary

Key managerial personnel

Satyanarayana Eluri (from December 2016 till May 2017) Whole-time Director
Vikas Aggarwal (from May 2017) Whole-time Director
Somesh Kumar (Till 24 Feb 2019) Company Secretary

(b) The nature and volume of transactions carried out with the above related parties in the ordinary course of
business are as follows : :

1. Remuneration to key managerial personnel*

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Vikas Aggarwal - Whole time director (From May 2017)

Remuneration 78 81

Share-based payment 5 4
83 85

Somesh Kumar - Company Secretary - (Till February 2019)

Remuneration ’ 9 10

Share-based payment -

10




Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

(All amount in INR Lacs, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

2. Other transactions

Name of related party

Year ended 31
March 2019

Year ended 31
March 2018

Transactions

Income

Interest on finance lease receivables

Clix Finance India Private Limited {(Formerly known as Clix Finance India
Unlimited)

Expenditure

Interest on finance lease obligation

Clix Finance India Private Limited (Formerly known as Clix Finance India
Unlimited)

Interest on inter-corporate deposits

Clix Finance India Private Limited (Formerly known as Clix Finance India
Unlimited)

Loan origination cost

Clix Finance India Private Limited (Formerly known as Clix Finance India
Unlimited)

Expense reimbursements

Allocations made

Clix Finance India Private Limited (Formerly known as Clix Finance India
Unlimited)

Clix Housing Finance Pvt. Limited

Allocations received
Clix Finance India Private Limited (Formerly known as Clix Finance India
Unlimited)

Amounts paid on behalf of the Company

Clix Finance India Private Limited (Formerly known as Clix Finance India
Unlimited)

Clix Housing Finance Private Limited

Clix Analytics Private Limited

Clix Loans Private Limited

Investments made by the Company
Clix Housing Finance Private Limited

15

11
211

349

2,675

242

533

183

4,300

10

14

1,287.

2,904

80

148

10

10

200




Clix Capital Services Private Limited {Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amount in INR Lacs, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Name of related party

Year ended 31
March 2019

Year ended 31
March 2018

Inter-corporate deposits

Taken

Clix Finance India Private Limited
Repaid

Clix Finance India Private Limited

Assets taken finance lease
' Taken
Clix Finance India Private Limited
Repaid
Clix Finance India Private Limited

Assets given on finance lease
Given
Clix Finance India Private Limited

Repaid
Clix Finance India Private Limited

6,500

6,500

25

106

81

61

118

33

a7

29

Balance Sheet - Outstanding Balances

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

1 April 2017

Balance Outstanding as at year end :
Amounts recoverable

Finance lease receivable

Clix Finance India Private Limited

" linvestments held by the Company
Clix Finance India Private Limited
Clix Housing Finance Private Limited

Other advances
Intercompany receivable
Clix Finance India Private Limited
Clix Housing Finance Private Limited
Clix Loans Private Limited
Intercompany payable
Clix Analytics Private Limited
Trade payable
Clix Finance India Private Limited

Finance lease obligations
Clix Finance India Private Limited

84

99,170
5,500

2,075
259
15

37

64

99,170
1,200

2,987
110

117

80

99,170
1,000




Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amount in INR Lacs, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Note 36: Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium
and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the
Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic
conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. The Company monitors capital using debt equity
ratio.

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017

Debts ‘ 2,66,854 1,48,870 12,111
Net worth 1,68,123 1,67,217 1,65,825
1.59 0.89 0.07

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to
ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings. Breaches in
meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended 31
March 2019 and 31 March 2018.

Note 37. Events after reporting date

There have been no events after the reporting date that require disclosure in these financial statements.

Note 38: Revenue from contracts with customers

Credit compliance and debt advisory fees

The performance obligation in regards of arrangements where fees is charged per transaction executed is
recognised at point in time when trade is executed. In other arrangements, where fees is fixed irrespective of
number of transaction executed is recoghised over the term of contract. -




Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Particulars

Type of services or service
Credit compliance and debt advisory fees 994 -
Total revenue from contracts with customers 994 -

Geographical markets

India 994 -
Qutside India - -
Total revenue from contracts with customers 994 : -

Timing of revenue recognition

Services transferred at a point in time 994 -
Services transferred over time - -
Total revenue from contracts with customers 994 -

Information about company’s performance obligation

The performance obligation in regards of arrangements where the above fees is charged per transaction
executed is recognised at point in time when transaction is executed and services are completed.
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Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amount in INR Lacs, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Note 40: Risk Management

40.1 Introduction and risk profile ‘

Company has operations in India. Whilst risk is inherent in the Company’s activities, it is managed through
an integrated risk management framework, including ongoing identification, measurement and monitoring,
subject to risk limits and other controls. This process of risk management is critical to the Company’s
continuing profitability and each individual within the Company is accountable for the risk exposures relating
to his or her responsibilities. The Company is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and

40.1.1 Risk management structure and policies

The Board of Directors are responsible for the overall risk management approach and for approving the risk
management strategies and principles. The Risk Management Committee has the overall responsibility for
the development of the risk strategy and implementing principles, frameworks, policies and limits. The Risk
Management Committee is responsible for managing risk decisions and monitoring risk levels and reports to

The Risk Management Unit is responsible for implementing and maintaining risk related procedures to
ensure an independent control process is mairitained. The unit works closely with and reports to the Risk
Management Committee, to ensure that procedures are compliant with the overall framework.

The Unit is also responsible for monitoring compliance. with risk principles, policies and limits across the
Company. Each business group has its own unit which is responsible for the control of risks, including
monitoring the actual risk of exposures against authorised limits and the assessment of risks of new
products and structured transactions. The Company’s Treasury is responsible for managing its assets and
liabilities and the overall financial structure. It is also primarily responsible for the funding and liquidity risks

40.2 Credit Risk )

Credit risk is the risk that the Company will incur a loss because its customers or counterparties fail to
discharge their contractual obligations. The Company manages and controls credit risk by setting limits on
the amount of risk it is willing to accept for individual counterparties and for geographical and industry
concentrations, and by monitoring exposures in relation to such limits. Credit risk is monitored by the credit
risk department of the Company’s independent Risk management Unit. It is their res'ponsibility to review

40.2.1 Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to
credit risk was INR 2,99,180, INR 1,98,842 and INR 64,570 as of 31 March 2019, 31 March 2018 and 1 April
2017 respectively, being the total of the carrying amount of balances and other financial assets.




Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

{All amount in INR Lacs, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

40.2.2 Analysis of risk concentration

The Company’s cancentrations of risk for loans are managed by type of loan- Corporate and Retail.

Loans to customers

31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017

Corporate
(A) Rating
A
A-
B
B+
BB
BB -
BB+
BBB
BBB -
BBB+
Not rated

(B) industry portfolio
- Airlines & related services
- Conglomerate
- Crane rental
- FMCG
- Hotels & Restaurants
- Infrastructure
- Insurance
- Media and entertainment
- Paper Manufacturing
- Real estate
- Textile
- Electrical Equipment
- Financial services
- Pharmaceutical
- Education

Retail
(A) Sub-portfolio
- Loan against Property
- Hire / Info Lease
- Loan against shares
- Business Loans and personal loans
- Consumer Durables
- Loan against electronic payables
- Supply Chain
- Two Wheeler

(B) Secured/ Unsecured
- Secured
- Unsecured

Total

7,282 7,502 -
- 10,144 -
- - 7,691
- - 10,321
1,176 10,076 5,052
1,768 -
28,447 15,212 8,719
49,790 50,883 5,138
47,087 25,633 -
19,663 28,524 14,690
11,308 11,363 11,626
164,752 161,105 63,237
1,176 11,844 2,407
- - 3,770
- - 2,640
14,554 26,162 13,858
10,009 10,003 7,681
38,651 16,981 3,008
15,644 10,584 5,284
14,647 10,144 1,282
11,308 11,363 11,626
10,028 13,967 10,234
- 130 1,358
- 7,502 -
21,846 27,582 -
22,612 14,844 -
4,279 -
164,752 161,105 63,237
26,346 7,944 -
90 73 171
- 968 -
84,474 18,883 -
3,648 1,905 -
12,835 4,122 .
973 509 957
2,649 - -
131,015 34,405 1,127
29,088 8,985 171
101,927 25,419 957
131,015 34,405 1,127
295,767 195,510 64,365
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Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amount in INR Lacs, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

40.4 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market factors.
Such changes in the values of financial instruments may resuit from changes in the interest rates, credit, liquidity and other market
changes. The Company’s exposure to market risk is primarily on account of interest rate risk.

Interest rate risk

The company is subject to interest rate risk, primarily since it fends to customers at rates and for maturity periods that may differ from
funding sources. Interest rates are highly sensitive to many factors beyond control, including the monetary policies of the Reserve Bank
of India, deregulation of the financial sector in India, domestic and international economic and political conditions, inflation and other
factor. In order to manage interest rate risk, the company seek to optimize borrowing profile between short-term and long-term loans.
The company adopts funding strategies to ensure diversified resource-raising options to minimize cost and maximize stability of funds.
Assets and liabilities are categorized into various time buckets based on their maturities and Asset Liability Management Committee
supervise an interest rate sensitivity report periodically for assessment of interest rate risks.

The company mitigates its interest rate risk by keeping a balanced portfolio of fixed and variable rate loans and borrowings.
Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates {all other variables being constant) of
the Company’s statement of profit and loss:

(a) Loans (floating)

Year ended 31 March 2019 Year ended 31 March 2018
Particulars Basis points Effect on profit  Basis points Effect on profit
before tax before tax
Increase in basis points 50 644 50 168
Decrease in basis points -50 (644) -50 (168)
(b) Borrowings {other than debt securities) (floating)
Year ended 31 March 2019 Year ended 31 March 2018
Particulars Basis points Effect on Profit  Basis points Effect on Profit
before tax hefore tax
Increase in basis points 50 (466) 50 (165)

Decrease in basis points . -50 466 -50 : 165




Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

{All amount in INR Lacs, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

(iii) Movements during the year

The following table illustrates the number and weighted average exercise prices (WAEP) of, and movements during the year:

Particulars - 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Number Number Number Number

Grant -I Grant -l Grant -l Grant -ll
Outstanding at 1 April 24,161,650 - - -
Granted during the year - 7,735,000 25,658,650 -
Forfeited during the year (6,242,400} (250,000) (1,497,000} -
Exercised during the year - - - -
Expired during the year - - - -
Qutstanding at 31 March 17,919,250 7,485,000 24,161,650 -
Exercisahle at 31 March - - - -
Weighted average exercise prices (WAEP) 13.10 15.10 13.10 -

! The weighted average remaining contractual life for the share options ou
and (31 March 2018 : 8.56 years (Grant-I)).

tstanding as at 31 March 2019 was 7.56 years (Grant-l), 8.69 years (Grant -If)

? The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year was 6.80 (31 March 2018: 6.83).

3 The range of exercise prices for options outstanding at the end of the year was INR 13.10 per option to INR 15.10 per option (31 March 2018: INR 13.10

per option).

The following tables list the inputs to the models used for the options granted during the year ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018, respectively:

Particulars

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Model used

Dividend yield (%)

Expected volatility (%)
-Tranche |

-Tranche Il

- Tranche lli

Risk-free interest rate (%)
-Tranche |

-Tranche Hl

-Tranche 1l

Life of the options granted (years}
- First vesting

- Second vesting

- Third vesting

Fair value of the option (INR})
-Tranche |

-Tranche il

- Tranche lII

Black-Scholes
Model
0%

43.37%
43.43%
43.68%

7.39%
7.44%
7.47%

3years
4 years
5 years

6.18
6.82
7.40

Black-Scholes
Model
0%

43.66%
43.99%
44.18%

6.77%
6.87%
6.95%

3years
4 years
Syears

6.25
6.86
7.39



Clix Capital Services Private timited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
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Note 41. Corporate social responsibility

In accordance with section 135 (S) of the Companies Act, 2013 {‘the Act’} requires a company to spend a certain amount as expenditure towards Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR}. The proviso to section 135 (5] of the Act provides that if the specified amount is not spent by the company during the year, the Directors’
Report should disclose the reasons for not spending the amount. In accordance with the above section, the amount which is not spent as per the provisions of
the Act on CSR activities, the company is not required to create provision in the financial statement. The Company has nat created any provision with regard to

the CSR activities in the Financial Statement.

The company has notincurred any expenditure on CSR activities for the year ended 31 March 2019 (31 March 2018: NIL)

Note 42. Expenditure in foreign currency

particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Corporate and other service charges - 68
Legat and professional 59 -
Advertisement and sales promotion 38 -
97 68

Note 43. Un-hedged foreign currency exposure

The Company does not have any material exposure in respect of foreign currency denominated assets or liabilities not hedged as at 31 March 2019 by derivative
instruments or otherwise. [31 March 2018 : USD Nil (INR Nil}].

Note 44. Employee Stock Option Plan

(i) Details of the plan are given below:

The Company has formulated share-based payment schemes for its employees (including employees of subsidiaries) - Employee Stock Option Plan 2017 (“Plan”).
Details of all grants in operation during the year ended March 31, 2019 are as given below:

Particulars

Grant-

Grant-ll

Scheme Name

Employee Stock Option Plan 2017 (“Plan”)

Employee Stock Option Plan 2017 {“Plan”)

Date of grant 18-Oct-17 07-Dec-18
No. of options approved 12,97,08,445 12,97,08,445
No. of options granted 2,56,58,650 77,35,000
Exercise price per option (in INR) 13.10 15.10
Method of settlement Equity Equity

Vesting period and conditions

A} 50% options to vest as per stipulated
vesting schedule ("Fixed Vesting")

B) 50% options to vest as per stipulated
vesting schedule on fulfilment of
stipulated conditions ("Conditional

A) 50% options to vest as per stipulated
vesting schedule ("Fixed Vesting")

B) 50% options to vest as per stipulated
vesting scheduie on fulfilment of
stipulated conditions ("Conditional

Vesting") Vesting")
Fixed vesting period is as:
- 1st vesting "3 years from the date of grant 85,52,883 25,78,333
- 2nd vesting "On expiry of one year from the 1st 85,52,883 25,78,333
vesting date"
- 3rd vesting "On expiry of one year from the 2nd 85,52,883 25,78,333

vesting date”
Conditional Vesting
Exercise period

Linked with conditions over the three
Five years from the date of each vesting

Linked with conditions over the three
Five'years from the date of each vesting

(i) The expense recognised for employee services received during the year is shown in the following table:

particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Expense arisiﬁg from equity-settied share-based payment transactions 122 157

Total expense arising from share-based payment . 122 157




Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as " GE Money Financial Services Private Limited") ’
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
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Note 45 : Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled.

31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Within 12 A 12 ithin 12 A 1 Within 12 After 12
Assets fenin fer Total Within frer 12 Total fenin e Total
months months months months months months

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 32,393 - 32,393 5,352 - 5,352 1,344 - 1,344
Bank Bal ther than (a

ank Balance other than (a) 96 - 9% 9% - 9% 18 - 18
above
Loans 87,842 193,853 281,695 47,759 135,488 183,247, 24,528 31,897 56,425
Investments - 104,725 104,725 - 107,904 107,904 2,203 108,017 110,220
Other financial assets 3,195 219 3,414 3,108 224 3,332 - 181 181
Non-financial Assets
Current tax asset - 10,344 10,344 - 10,165 10,165 - 5,886 5,886
Deferred tax assets (net} - 8,602 8,602 - 8,487 8,487 - 6,619 6,619
Property, Plant and Equipment - 1,054 1,054 - 1,044 1,044 - 96 96
Other Intangible assets - 2,680 2,680 - 1,507 1,507 - 5 5
Capital work in progress - 161 161 - 73 73 - 357 357
Intangible assets under . 947 947 ; 1,051 1,051 . 129 129
development :
Other non-financial assets 958 1,291 2,248 437 595 1,032 292 595 887

Total Assets 124,483 323,878 448,360 56,751 266,538 323,290 28,385 153,782 182,167
LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities
Trade Payables
(i} total outstanding dues of _
creditors other than micro 6,487 - 6,487 2,364 - 2,364 2,102 - 2,102
enterprises and small enterprises
Other Payables
(i) total outstanding dues of
creditors other than micro 2,706 - 2,706 1,573 1,573 1,078 - 1,078
enterprises and small enterprises
Debt Securities 19,616 119,753 139,369 54,453 - 54,453 - - -
i h

Borrowings (Other than debt 52,073 73,677 125780 19,789 74,060 93843| 8086 4,042 12,088
securities)
Other financial liabilities 3,568 70 3,638 2,007 g5 2,102 169 - 169
Non-Financial Liabilities
Provisions 27 806 833 20 869 889 73 749 822
Other Non-financial Liabilities 1,455 - 1,455 843 - 843 83 - 83
Total liabilities 85,931 194,306 280,237 81,050 75,023 156,073 11,551 4,791 16,342
Net 38,552 129,572 168,123 (24,298) 191,515 167,217 16,833 148,991 - 165,825




Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as " GE Money Financial Services Private Limited")
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
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Note 46. First-time adoption of Ind AS

These financial statements, for the year ended 31 March 2019, are the first financial statements the Company has prepared in accordance with ind AS.
For periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with accounting
standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian
GAAP or previous GAAP).

Accordingly, the Company has prepared financial statements which comply with Ind AS applicable for periods ending on 31 March 2018, together with
the comparative period data as at and for the year ended 31 March 2018, as described in the summary of significant accounting policies. In preparing
these financial statements, the Company’s opening balance sheet was prepared as at 1 April 2017, the Company’s date of transition to Ind AS. This
note explains the principal adjustments made by the Company in restating its Indian GAAP financial statements, including the balance sheet as at 1
April 2017 and the financiat statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2018.

a. Exemptions applied
ind AS 101 allows first-time adopters certain exemptions from the retrospective application of certain requirements under Ind AS. The Company has
applied the following exemptions/exceptians:

1. Estimates

The estimates at 1 April 2017 and at 31 March 2018 are consistent with those made for the same dates in accordance with indian GAAP apart from the
following items where application of indian GAAP did not require estimation:

- Impairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model

'- Determination of discounted value

The estimates used by the Company to present these amounts in accordance with Ind AS reflect conditions at 1 April 2017, the date of transition to Ind
AS and as of 31 March 2018. :

2. Classification and measurement of financial assets
The Company has classified the financial assets in accordance with Ind AS 109 on the basis of facts and circumstances that exist at the date of
transition to Ind AS.

3. Impairment of financial assets

The Company has applied the exception retated impairment of financial assets given in Ind AS 101. It has used reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort to determine the credit risk at the date that financial assets were initially recognized and compared that
to the credit risk as at April 1, 2017.

4. Investments in subsidiaries in separate financial statements

In the preparation of separate financial statements, the company has opted to account for its investments in subsidiaries at Previous GAAP carrying
amount at the transition date.

5. Arrangements containing a lease:

Appendix C to Ind AS 17 requires an entity to assess whether a contract or arrangement contains a lease. In accordance with Ind AS 17, this
assessment should be carried out at the inception of the contract or arrangement. However, the Company has used Ind AS 101 exemption and
assessed all arrangements based for embedded leases based on conditions in place as at the date of transition.




Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
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b. Balance Sheet reconciliation for 1 April 2017

Footnotes Previous GAAP Adjustments Ind AS
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,344 - 1,344
Bank balance other than above 18 - 18
Loans (i} 57,995 {1,570) 56,425
Investments (i) 110,241 (21) 110,220
Other financial assets {iii) 243 (62) 181
Non- financial assets
Current tax assets (net) 5,886 - 5,886
Deferred tax assets (net) A (vi) 6,066 553 6,619
Property, plant and equipment 96 0 96
Other Intangible assets 5 - 5
Capital work in progress 357 - 357
Intangible assets under development 129 - 129
Other non-financial assets (iii) 826 61 887
Total assets 183,206 (1,039) 182,167
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
~ LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Payables
(1) Trade payables 2,102 - 2,102
(1) Other payables 1,078 - 1,078
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 12,088 - 12,088
Other financial liabilities 169 - 169
Non financial liabilities
Provisions (i} 816 6 822
Other non-financial liabilities 83 - 83
Total liabilities 16,336 7 16,342
Equity
Equity share capital 129,708 - 129,708
Other equity (i), (i), ii), 37,162 (1,045) 36,117
(vi)
Total equity 166,870 (1,045) 165,825
Total liabilities and equity 183,206 (1,039) 182,167
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¢. Balance Sheet reconciliation for 31 March 2018

‘Footnotes Previous GAAP Adjustments Ind AS
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5,352 - 5,352
Bank balance other than above 96 - 96
Loans . (i) 183,070 177 183,247
Investments (ii), (iv) 107,914 (10} 107,904
Other financial assets (iii) 3,414 (82) 3,332
Non- financial assets
Current tax assets (net) 10,165 - 10,165
Deferred tax assets (net) (vi) 8,477 10 8,487
Property, plant and equipment 1,044 - 1,044
Other Intangible assets 1,507 - 1,507
Capital work in progress 73 - 73
Intangible assets under development 1,051 - 1,051
Other non- financial assets (iif} 952 80 1,032
Total assets 323,115 175 323,290
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
" LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Payables
(1) Trade payables ‘ 2,364 - 2,364
(1) Other payables 1,573 - 1,573
Debt securities 54,453 - 54,453
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 93,849 - 93,849
Other financial liabilities 2,102 - 2,102
Non financial liabilities
Provisions (i) 887 2 - 889
Other non-financial liabilities 843 - 843
Total liabilities 156,071 2 156,073
Equity
Equity share capital 129,708 - 129,708
Other equity (i), (i), (i), (vi 37,336 173 37,509
‘ ), (vi)
Total equity 167,044 173 167,217

Total liabilities and equity 323,115 175 323,290




Clix Capital Services Private Limited {Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year enided 31 March 2019
(All amount in INR lacs, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

d. Profit reconciliation for the year ended 31 March 2018

Footnotes Previous GAAP Adjustments Ind AS
Revenue from operations :
Interest income 8,980 (0) 8,980
Net gain on fair value changes 288 - 288
'_I'otal revenue from operations _ 9,268 (0) 9,268
Other income (iii) 3,062 16 3,078
Total income 12,330 15 12,345
Expenses
Finance costs 4,035 (69) 3,966
Fees and commission expense - 69 69
Impairment on financial instruments (i), (ii) 6,430 (1,727) 4,703
Employee benefits expense (iv) 2,850 223 3,073
Depreciation, amortization and impairment 358 - 358
Other expenses (iii) 2,792 17 2,809
Total expenses 16,465 (1,486) 14,979
Profit/(loss) before tax (4,135) 1,501 (2,634)
Tax expense:. ,
(1) Current tax (1,899) - (1,899)
(2) Deferred tax {vi) (2,410) 520 (1,890)
Profit/(loss) for the year 174 982 1,156
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of defined benefit liability v) - 66 66
Income tax effect - (23) (23)
Other comprehensive income , net of income tax - 43 43
Total comprehensive income for the year 174 1,025 1,199
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Footnotes to the reconciliation of equity as at 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018 and profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2018

Loans and advances

Under indian GAAP, the Company has created provision for loans and advances based on the Guidelines on prudential norms issued by Reserve
Bank of India. Under Ind AS, impairment allowance has been determined based on Expected Loss model (ECL). Due to ECL model, the Company
impaired its loans and advances by INR 1,570 on 1 April 2017 which has been eliminated against retained earnings. The impact of INR 1,747 for year
ended on 31 March 2018 has been credited in the statement of profit and loss. In addition, ECL on off balance sheet has also been determined as
per Ind AS for INR 6 as on 1 April 2017 which has been eliminated against retained earnings. The impact of INR 4 for year ended on 31 March 2018
has been credited in the statement of profit and loss.

Investments

Under Indian GAAP, the Company accounted for long term investments in debt securities as investment measured at cost less provision for other
than temporary diminution in the value of investments. Under Ind AS, the Company has designated investment in debt securities at amortised cost.
Ind AS required amortised cost financial assets to be measured using effective interest rate. The difference between amortised cost and the Indian
GAAP carrying amount on the date of transition has been recognised in retained earnings.

Under Ind AS, impairment allowance is determined on the debt securities based on Expected Loss model (ECL). Due to ECL model, the Company
impaired its loans and advances by INR 21 on 1 April 2017 which has been eliminated against retained earnings. The impact of INR 23 for year
ended on 31 March 2018 has been debited in the statement of profit and loss.

Discounting of security deposits for leases

Under Previous GAAP, the security deposits received for leases are accounted at an undiscounted value. Under Ind AS, the security deposits for
leases have been recognised at discounted value and the difference between undiscounted and discounted value has been recognised as ‘Deferred
lease rent income’ under 'Other Non-financial liabilities' which has been amortised over respective lease term as rent income under ‘other income’.
The discounted value of the security deposits is increased over the period of lease term by recognising the notional interest expense by netting it
rental income under ‘other income’.

Share Based Payments

Under Indian GAAP, the Company recognised only the intrinsic value for the share based payments plans as an expense. Ind AS requires the fair
value of the share options to be determined using an appropriate pricing model recognised over the vesting period. An expense of INR 24 lakhs has
been recognised in profit or loss for the period ended March 31, 2018 with corresponding impact in other equity for ESOP issued by Holding
Company.

Remeasurements of defined benefit plans

Both under indian GAAP and Ind AS, the Company recognised costs related to its post-employment defined benefit plan on an actuarial basis.
Under Indian GAAP, the entire cost, including actuarial gains and losses, are charged to profit or loss. Under Ind AS, remeasurements [comprising of
actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the
return on plan assets excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability] are recognised immediately in the balance
sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCl. Thus the employee benefit cost is reduced by INR (80.04) lakhs and
Remeasurement gains/ losses on defined benefit plans has been recognised in the OCI net of tax.

Deferred tax

Indian GAAP requires deferred tax accounting using the statement of profit and loss approach, which focuses on differences between taxable
profits and accounting profits for the period. Ind AS 12 requires entities to account for deferred taxes using the balance sheet approach, which
focuses on temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the balance sheet and its tax base. The application of Ind
AS 12 approach has resulted in recognition of deferred tax on new temporary differences which was not required under Indian GAAP.

In addition, the various transitional adjustments lead to temporary differences. According to the accounting policies, the Company has to account
for such differences. Deferred tax adjustments are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in retained earnings or a separate
component of equity.
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(vii) Other comprehensive income

Under Indian GAAP, the Company has not presented other comprehensive income (OCI) separately. Hence, it has reconciled Indian GAAP profit or
loss to profit or profit or loss as per Ind AS. Further, Indian GAAP profit or loss is reconciled to total comprehensive income as per Ind AS.

{viii) Statement of cash flows

The transition from Indian GAAP to Ind AS has not had a material impact on the statement of cash flows.

(ix)  Figures under previous GAAP have been regrouped/ reclassified for Ind AS purpose wherever applicable.

47 Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

There are no amounts that need to be disclosed in accordance with the Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 {the 'MSMED')
pertaining to micro or small enterprises for the year ended 31 March 2019 ( no supplier has intimated the Company about its status as micro or
small enterprises or its registration with the appropriate authority under MSMED).

48 At the year end, the company did not have any long term contracts including derivatives contracts for which ther were any material forseeable

losses.

49 The Company’s pending litigations comprise of claims against the Company primarily by the customers. The Company has reviewed all its pending
litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required and disclosed the contingent liabilities where applicable,
in its financial statements. The Company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a material adverse effect on its financial

statements of the Company as at March 31, 2019.

50 Disclosures as required in accordance with RBI circular no. DNBR DNBR (PD) CC.N0.002/03.10.001/2014-15 dated November 10, 2014 and

subsequent amendments thereof, have been prepared on the basis of previous GAAP and are disclosed in Annexure 1.

51 Previous year figures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever applicable.
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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Al. Restructured accounts:

There are no restructured accounts during the year and as at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018.

A2. Capital adequacy ratio

I Capital to Risk Assets Ratio (CRAR)

Items Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
i) CRAR (%) 21.21% 33.08%
ii) CRAR - Tier I capital (%) 20.45% 32.58%
iii) CRAR - Tier II Capital (%) 0.76% 0.50%
iv) Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-II capital - -
v) Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instruments - -
A3. Investments

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

(1) Value of Investments

(i)  Gross Value of Investments
(a) In India
(b) Outside India,

(ii) Provisions for Depreciation
(a) InIndia
(b) Outside India,

(iii) Net Value of Investments
(a) In India

(b) Outside India.

104,670

104,670

107,870

107,870

(2) Movement of  provisions held towards

depreciation on investments.
(i) Opening balance
(i) Add: Provisions made during the year

(iii) Less : Write-off / write-back of excess provisions during
the year

(iv) Closing balance

Ad. The company has no transactions/exposure in derivatives during the year and as at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018.

AS. There are no securitisation/ assignments during the year and as at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018.
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A®6. Details of non-performing financial assets purchased/ sold

(a) Details of non-performing financial assets purchased:

Particalues Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
1 | (a) | No. of accounts purchased during the year 5 B
(b) | Aggregate outstanding 2 =
2 | (a) | Ofthese, number of accounts restructured during the year s =
(b) | Aggregate outstanding = -

(b) Details of non-performing financial assets sold:
Year ended Year ended

Particulars

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

1 | No. of accounts sold

2 | Aggregate outstanding

3 | Aggregate consideration received




(P9C T 1'$Y 1k snoirdid) 60, TT 'Y JO s1asse Furmurio}rad-uou 10§ uoIsir0id JO 19N

9¢ - - - - - - - 9¢ SONIIQRI] AOU.LIND UF19I0,]
= - = - - - - - = $19SSE Aoua.1Ino ug1aio]
[E34141 - 688°8 €LTS9 66£T1 88L°6€ 168°S 0SL'ST 874 ssuimoLog
0LS LOT 0LE°001 - - = 5 . 00S°L & SIUSUISAT]
89L€8T 8¢Sy €Ieie T91°L6 LYE'ST 8€0°C1 68¢€°S 796°1 611°¢ % SOOUBADY
2 5 = = . - - B & syusodaq
syjuow
Iea § syjuow ¢ 03dn syjuow (Yyuowr duo)
saeak SIBIX S 0} SIB3A €0} | T o)syjuow | 9 0} Syjuow syjuout 7 03 Yjuow skep 1¢

[ejo], S JAQ SIB3A € JI9AQ | JBIA [ J9AQ 9 JAQ € 1AQ T IBAQ U0 JIAQ -0€ 03 Aep [
8TOT Y2IBJA] € J& S¥ SONI[IQRI] PUE S)ISSB JO SWA)I UIEIIAD Jo usaped Ayinjejy
L = # 2 - - = - L sanIjiqer|] Aoualing ug1alo,]
- - - - - - - - - S$19ss€ Aoua.Lmno uS1aIo]
688°S9T = £EE°SS LEL'SET 0S1°1¥ €L0°01 vT6'l 16T°61 18€°¢ ssuimousiog
0L9b0T 0L9%01 = = - - - - - S)UOUIISOATL]
666°78T 160°91 cer'sy 868°1¢€1 v0T°0v 81€°9¢ £88°01 €v6°S 6759 x SOOURADY
# = = < = = # & & sysoda(g

syjuow
BUED ¢ syjuow ¢ 03dn syjuow (yyuow suo)
sIeak SIB3A G 01 SIB9X €0} | T 0} syjuowi | 9 0} syjuoOw Syjuow 7 01 Yjuowr sAep 1¢
[elo], S JBAQ saeak € 1BAQ | JBIA | J9AQ 9 JIAQ € 19AQ T 1AQ U0 .IPAQ -0€ 03 Aep |

Isurege uoisiaold Jo jou st junowre sy, “Auedwio)) oY) JO SIAUWOISNO SY) 0} USALT SIOUBAPE PUE SUEO| PUE SIN0Ang o1]0j110d ‘0]qBAT091 9SBI] SoUEULy

S2OUBADE [NJIQNOP

opnjoul SadUBAPY

610T Y2IBIA| T€ 38 St SINI[IqRI] PUR S)OSSE JO SWAJI UIB}I9D Jo utdyed Ayanjey

(Pajels 9SIMISYIO SSO[UN “Se] U $9adny] UBIPU] UL S)UNOWE [[y)
610C YdIBJA] [€ PIPUD 1824 3Y) 0] S)UIWI)EB)S [BIOUBULJ 0] ()S "ON JON 0} [ dINXUUY
(PaymwirT 9JeALI] SIOIAIDS [BIOURUL] AQUOIAl L) SE UMOWY A[IOULIO,]) PIYIWI 9JBALLJ $INAIIG [ende) X1

JudWIBRURA] AN[IQRIT J9SSY LY



Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)

Annexure 1 to Note No. 50 to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts in Indian Rupees In lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

A8. Exposures

A8.1 Exposure to Real Estate Sector

Category

Year ended
31 March 2019

Year ended
31 March 2018

(ii)

(iii)

a) Direct exposure
(i) Residential Mortgages -

Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential
property that is or will be occupied by the borrower or
that is rented;

Commercial Real Estate -

Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real
estates (office buildings, retail space, multipurpose
commercial premises, multi-family residential
buildings, multi-tenanted commercial premises,
industrial or warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition,
development and construction, etc.). Exposure would
also include non-fund based (NFB) limits;
Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and
other securitised exposures —

(a) Residential

(b) Commercial Real Estate

36,174

21,822

Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector

36,174
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(All amounts in Indian Rupees In lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

A8.2 Exposure to Capital Market

Category Year ended Year ended

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

a) direct investment in equity shares, convertible -* -
bonds, convertible debentures and units of equity-
oriented mutual funds the corpus of which is not
exclusively invested in corporate debt;

b) advances against shares/bonds/debentures or other - -
securities or on clean basis to individuals for
investment in shares (including IPOs/ESOPs),
convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and units
of equity-oriented mutual funds;

c) advances for any other purposes where shares or 67,275 69,506
convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units
of equity oriented mutual funds are taken as primary
security;

d) advances for any other purposes to the extent - -
secured by the collateral security of shares or
convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units
of equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where the
primary security other than shares/convertible
bonds/convertible debentures/units of equity
oriented mutual funds does not fully cover the
advances;

e) secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers - -
and guarantees issued on behalf of stockbrokers and
market makers;

f) loans sanctioned to corporates against the security 6,990 -
of shares / bonds/ debentures or other securities or
on clean basis for meeting promoter’s contribution
to the equity of new companies in anticipation of
raising resources;

g) bridge loans to companies against expected equity - -
flows/issues;

h) all exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both - -
registered and unregistered).

Total Exposure to Capital Market Sector 74,265 69,506

* Investment in equity shares of wholly owned subsidiary has been excluded.

A9. Details of financing of parent company products

The Company has not financed any product of its parent company during the financial year ended 31 March 2019  and
31 March 2018.

A 10. Details of Single Borrower Limit (SBL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the NBFC

The Company has not exceeded the prudential exposure limits during the year ended 31 March 2019 and
31 March 2018.

All. Total loans and advances include Rs. 101,181 (previous year Rs. 25,132) which are unsecured loans.
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Annexure 1 to Note No. 50 to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts in Indian Rupees In lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Al12. Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators
The Company has not obtained any registration from other financial sector regulators.
A13. Disclosure of Penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators

No penalty has been imposed by the RBI or any other regulator during the year and previous year.

Al4. Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year :

Instrument Rating agency Rating assigned
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Bank Loans CARE CARE AA- CARE AA-
Long Term debt programme CARE CARE AA- CARE AA-
Short Term debt programme CRISIL/CARE CRISIL A1+/CARE Al+ | CRISIL A1+/CARE
Al+

AlS5. Revenue Recognition

There have been no instances where revenue recognition has been postponed pending the resolution of significant
uncertainties during the year ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018.

Al6. Provisions and contingencies

Break up of 'Provisions and Contingencies' shown under| Year ended Year ended
the head Expenditure in Profit and Loss Account * 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
345 5,166

Provision made/(reversed) towards NPA

Provision made towards Income tax -
Provision for Standard Assets 1,203 380
Other provision and contingencies:
Provision for sales tax and service tax 59 39
Provision for other litigation matters for income tax - -

* does not include net reversals/write back of provisions and contingencies.

Al7. Draw down from reserves

There has been no draw down from reserves during the financial year ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018.




Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)

Annexure 1 to Note No. 50 to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts in Indian Rupees In lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

A18. Concentration of deposits, advances, exposures and NPAs

Al8.1. Concentration of advances

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Total advances to twenty largest borrowers 163,093 162,418
Percentage of Advances to twenty largest borrowers to Total 55.34% 83.24%
IAdvances of the NBFC
A18.2 Concentration of exposures
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Total exposure to twenty largest borrowers/ customers 164,843 167,418
Percentage of Exposures to twenty largest borrowers / 55.9% 83.65%
customers to Total Exposure of the NBFC on borrowers /
customers
A18.3Concentration of NPAs
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Total exposure to top four NPA accounts 11,377 11,364
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Annexure 1 to Note No. 50 to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
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A18.4 Sector-wise NPAs

Percentage of NPAs to Total Advances
NS - Sector in that sector (in %)
. Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
1. |Agriculture & allied activities = -
2. \MSME 0.66% -
3. |Corporate borrowers 6.86% 7.01%
4. |Services = =
5. |Unsecured personal loans 1.75% .
6. |Auto loans 0.52% -
7. |Other personal loans = =
A18.5 Movement of NPAs
. Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018
(i) |Net NPAsto Net Advances (%) 0.28% 0%
(if) |Movement of NPAs (Gross)
(a) |Opening balance 11,364 13,944
(b) | Additions during the year 2247 =
(c) |Reductions during the year 1,122 2,580
(d) | Closing balance 12,488 11,364
(iii) |Movement of Net NPAs
(a) |Opening balance - 7,746
(b) | Additions during the year 1,050 -
(c) [Reductions during the year 270 7,746
(d) |Closing balance 780 -
(iv) |Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions on standard assets)
(a) |Opening balance 11,364 6,198
(b) |Provisions made during the year 1,197 5,682
(c) | Write-off/ write-back of excess provisions 852 516
(d) |Closing balance 11,709 11,364
A19. Disclosure of complaints
] Year ended Year ended
S1. No. [ Particulars* 31 March 2019 |31 March 2018
(a) No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year = =
(b) No. of complaints received during the year 13 #
(¢ No. of complaints redressed during the year 13 7
(d) No. of complaints pending at the end of the year & 2

* Includes complaints pertaining to consumer portfolio (sold in the year ended 31 March 2013).
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A20. Overseas assets (for those with joint ventures and subsidiaries abroad)
There are no overseas assets as at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018.
A21. Off-balance Sheet SPVs sponsored

There are no off-balance sheet SPVs sponsored by the company during the year ended 31 March 2019 and
31 March 2018.

A22. There has been no fraud reported during the year ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018.

A23. The previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified in the current year as compared to the previous year,
wherever necessary.
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Schedule to the Balance Sheet of a Non-Banking Financial Company as required in terms of Paragraph 18 of the Master
Direction.

Particulars Year ended Year ended
Liabilities side: 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
1) Loans and advances availed by the non- Amount po— Fro— o —

banking financial company inclusive of interest

seeried thegeon bt ot paids outstanding | overdue | outstanding | overdue

(a) | Debentures: Secured 31,328 - - -
(b) | Debentures: Unsecured
(Other than falling within the meaning of public 90,000 - - -
deposits)
(c) | Deferred Credits - - - -
(d) | Term Loans (Long term and short term) 101,665 - 92,318 -

@ ?nter-corporate loans and borrowing (including 25,104 i i i
interest accrued)

(f) | Commercial Paper 19,616 - 54,453 -

(g) | Public Deposits = = . -

(h) | Other Loans

-~ Finance lease obligation (Long term and 34 - 117 -

short term)

Assets side: Amount Amount
outstanding outstanding
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

(2) | Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables
[other than those included in (4) below]:
(a) Secured * 193,437 169,927
(b) Unsecured * 101,181 25,132
(3) | Break up of Leased Assets counting towards AFC activities

(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors:
(a) Finance lease 90 72

(b) Operating lease - -

(4) | Break-up of Investments :
Current Investments:
1. Quoted:
@) Shares: (a) Equity
(b) Preference - -

(ii) Debentures and Bonds - -

(iii) Units of mutual funds - -

(iv) Government Securities - -

W) Others - -
2. Unquoted:

1) Shares: (a) Equity - -
(b) Preference - -

(ii) Debentures and Bonds - -
(iii) Units of mutual funds =
(iv) Government Securities - -

(v) Others Certificate of deposit - -
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Annexure 1 to Note No. 50 to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
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Assets side: Amount Amount
outstanding outstanding
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Long term investments:
1. Quoted:
6] Shares: (a) Equity = &
(b) Preference - -
(ii) Debentures and Bonds 7,500
(iii) Units of mutual funds - -
(iv) Government Securities - -
W) Others - -
2. Ungquoted:
i) Shares: (a) Equity 104,670 100,370
(b) Preference - -
(ii) Debentures and Bonds - -
(iii) Units of mutual funds - .
(iv) Government Securities = -
W) Others — Pass through Certificates - -

* Gross amount before adjustment of provisions

5) Borrower group-wise classification of all leased assets and loans and advances:
Category Amount net of provisions*
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Secured | Unsecured Total Secured Unsecured Total
1. Related Parties
(a) Subsidiaries - - - - - -
(b) Companies in the . R4 34 64 i 64
same group (including
fellow subsidiaries)
(c) Other related parties - - - - - -
(including associates)
2. Other than related parties 181,345 99,292 | 280,637 157,928 24,700 182,628
Total 181,429 99,292 | 280,721 157,992 24,700 182,692
6) Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securities (both
quoted and unquoted) :
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Category Market Value Book Value Market Value/ | Book Value (Net of
/ Break up or (Net of Break up or fair Provisions)
fair value or Provisions) value or NAV
NAV
1. Related Parties
(a) Subsidiaries 104,670 104,670 100,370 100,370
(b) Companies in the - - - -
same group
(including fellow
subsidiaries)

(c) Other related parties
(including associates) - . s -
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2. Other than related parties # 7,500 7,500
Total 104,670 104,670 107,870 107,870

*Net of contingent provision against standard assets amounting to Rs. 2,279 (previous year Rs 1,076) and provision for Non-
performing asset amounting to Rs 11,709 (previous year Rs 11,364).

# excluding interest accrued but not due on debentures.

@) Other Information Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
6] Gross Non-Performing Assets
(a) Related parties - -
(b) Other than related parties 12,488 11,364

(i) Net Non-Performing Assets
(a) Related parties
(b) Other than related parties

(iii) | Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt (net of provisions) -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Clix Capital Services Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Clix Capital Services
Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company"), its subsidiaries (the Holding
Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as ‘the Group”) comprising of the consolidated
Balance sheet as at March 31 2018, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, including other
comprehensive income, the consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated Ind AS financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as “the consolidated Ind AS financial statements”),

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group
as at March 31, 2019, their consolidated profit including other comprehensive income, their consolidated
cash flows and the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Ind AS Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the ‘Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements.

Other Information

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information which are included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The annual report is expected to be
made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
Identified above and, in doing so, consider whether such the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those Charged with Governance.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated ind AS Financial Statemenis

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated Ind AS financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and
2o view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other
£ Jtﬁ’?:’é}}i' rehensive income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity of
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the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Compantes (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. The respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
aceuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatarnent, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of
the consolidated Ind AS financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

in preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group. !

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate. they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consclidated Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements. whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks. and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstaternent resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal contral.

+  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are aiso
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

«  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by management,
Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern pasis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exisis related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consoclidated Ind AS financial
staterments, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or

business activities within the Group of which we are the independent auditors, fo express an
~opirion on the consolidated ind AS financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,

“Supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in

5
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the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other
entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other
auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit apinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of which we are the independent auditors
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We aiso provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have com plied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
Ind AS financial statements;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidation of the financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination
of those books and reports of the other auditors;

(¢) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as
on March 31, 2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its
subsidiary companies, none of the directors of the Group's companies, incorporated in India is
disqualified as on March 31, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2)
of the Act;

(f)  With respect to the adequacy and the operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Holding
Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure 1" to this report;

(9) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Holding
Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in India for the year ended March 31, 2019:

For 8.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAIl Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Amit Kabra
Partner
Membership Number:

UDIN: 19094533AAAAHN1034
Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: September 23, 2019
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Annexure 1 fo the independent Auditor's report

Report on internal Financial Controls under Clause {i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 {the “Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Clix Capital Services
Private Limited as of and for the year ended March 31, 2018, we have audited the internal financial
controls over financial reporting of Clix Capital Services Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as the
“Holding Company’} and its subsidiaries, which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date to
the extent applicable. The provisions for reporting on internal financial control under clause (i) of sub
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply to Ciix Housing Finance Private
Limited and accordingly it is excluded from the definition of subsidiaries for the purpose of opinion on
internal controls over financial reporting.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries to the extent applicable,
which are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internat
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India. These responsibilities include the design. implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of its business, including adherence to the respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and the Standards on
Auditing, both, issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, and deemed to be prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those
standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit inveolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, whether due 1o fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls sysiem over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated
ind AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
“rsfiect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2} provide reasonable assurance
fransactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of consolidated Ind AS financial




S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected, Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are su bject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company and its subsidiaries to the extent applicable, which are companies
incorporated in india, have, maintained in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For 8. R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP
ICAI Firm registration number: 101049W/E300004
Chartered Accountants

3

per Amit Kabra
Partner
Membership Number: 094533
UDIN: 19094533AAAAHN1034

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: September 23, 2019



Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)

Consalidatad Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2013

{Aflamount in INR lucs, except for share dato unless stoted otherwise]

fotes Asat Asat As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents GA 40,193 12119 3,748
Bank balance other than above &8 342 433 237
Loans 7 472,128 307,955 100,579
fnvestments 8 396 7,866 22,284
Other financial assets 9 6,196 1,409 478
Mon-financal assets
Current tax assets (net) 15,286 17,561 14,583
Deferred tax assats {net) 23 17,022 8,487 6,620
Property, plant and equipment 104 25,087 26,672 22,354
Goodwill 108 35,768 36,768 36,708
Intangible assets 108 2,690 1,507 5
Capital work-in-progress 11A 200 73 357
Intanzible assets under development 118 1,192 1,051 129
Other non- financial assets 12 4,780 4,065 3,067
Assets held for sale 12 18 6
Total assets 622,282 425,984 211,332
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY :
LIABILITIES
Financdial liabilities
Payables 13
1) Trade payables
a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises = -
& small enterprises
b} Total outstanding dues of creditars other 10,836 4,140 222
taan micro enterprises & small enterprises
Il} Dther payables
a} Total outstanding dues of micra enterprises s - 4
& sroall enterprises
b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other 3,654 3,101 3,339
than micro enterprises & small enterprises
Cabt securities 14 201,548 62,572 =
Borrowings jother than dabt securlties) 15 213,827 172,761 36,811
GCther financial lizbilities 16 7,437 4,162 2,701
Non financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities (net) - - 1
Provisions 17 3,158 1139 2,058
Cther non-financial Liabitilies 18 3,282 1,933 563
Total liabilities 442,742 257,208 45,701
Equity
Equity share capital 19 129,708 129,708 129,708
Other eguity 20 49,842 39,068 35,923
Total equity 179,550 168,776 165,631
Total liahilities and equity 622,282 425,984 211,332
Significant accounting policies 3

The sccompanying notes are an Integral part of the financial statements.

As per ourreport of even date

For 5.R. Batiiboi & Associates LLP
[CAl Firm Registration No. 101048W//E300004

Clzw)rjd Accountants
per ﬁm‘ﬂ%:

Partner
tembership Mo, 024533

Place: Gurugram
Date: 23 September 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Ciix Capital Services Private Limited {formerly known as GE Maney
Financial Services Private Limited)

f 1B
//;Ii{chat Da::\f

Director
DIN: 07471871

g

Bhavesh Gupta
Chief Executive Dfficer

Place: Gurugram
Date: 23 September 2013

Venkataraman Bharatwaj
Dirgctor
DiN: 02965798

o
%}v\\r\/\
Ashhish K Paanday
Company Secretary
Membership No: A23155
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Clix Capital Services Private Limited {Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)

Consolldated Statement of Profit and loss for the year ending 31 March 2019
{All amount in INR lacs, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Notes Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Revenue from operations
Interest income 21 51,757 18,706
Rental income 11,401 10,117
Fees and commission Income 22 1,608 369
Net galn on falr value changes 23 2,610 689
Tatal revenue fram operations 67,376 29,881
Other income 24 2,603 4,393
Total income 69,979 34,274
Expenses
Finance costs 25 34,113 7,600
Fees and commission expense 279 105
Impairment on financial instruments 26 2,830 6,045
Employee henefits expense P 11,356 7,544
Deorediation, amortization and impairment 10 9,166 7570
Cther expenses 28 7.502 6,369
Total expenses 65,246 35,233
Profit/{loss) before tax 4,733 {959)

Tax expense: 29

i1} Current tax 2,649 (1,899

(2} Deferred tax (8,541) (1,890}

Profit/(loss) far the year 10,625 2,830

Other comprehensive income

a. Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurements of defined benefit liability 14 146
Income tax effect {6) {23)

b. Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Other comprehensive Income , net of income tax 8 123
Total comprehensive income for the year 10,633 2,953
Earnings per equity share £}

Basic {INR) 0.82 0.22

Dilutad {INR) 0.81 0.22

Nominal value per share (INR) 10.00 10.00
Significant accounting policies 3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date
For 5.R. Batlibol & Associates LLP

ICAl Firm Registration No. 101049W/E300004
Chartered Accountants

par Amit Kabra Shekhar Daga
Partner Director
Membership No. 094533 CiN: 07471871

—

Bhavesh Gupta

Place: Gurugram
Date: 23 September 2019

Place: Gurugram

Chief Executive Officer

Date: 23 September 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Clix Capital Services Private Limited {formerly known as GE Money
Financial Services Private Limited)

e V Mﬁ z’Mﬂ/

Venkataraman Bharatwaj
Director
DIN: 02965798

A

Ashhish K Paanday
Company Secretary
Membership No: A23155




Clix Capital Services Private Limited {Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
Consalidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2013
(Al arrount in INR lakhs, except for share data unfess stated otherwise)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2015 31 March 2018
Cash Aow fram operating activities
Profit before tax 4,733 {959)
Adjusted for:
Provisions/ liabilities no longer required written back {673} (3,005}
tanagement fee amortized {750) {588)
Depreciaticn and amortisation 9,162 7,570
Amaortisation of barrowing cost 761 135
Unwinding of discount on deferred lease expenses 41 19
Unwinding of premium on deferred incame 73 .
Net gain on sale of investments {1,129) {801}
ECL an loan assets and loan commitment 2,184 2,371
Premium on redemption of preference shares {29} -
Interest on income-tax refund {568} {168)
Amortization of loan acquisition cost and management fees
14 {20}
Net gain on derecagnition of property, plant and equipmeant (268} {431}
Rates and taxes 2 592
Assets held for sale 6 4
Recoverable written-off 1,078 383
Bad debt writien off 61 3,601
Unrealised lgain)/ loss on foreign exchange 1 3
Interast income on unwinding of discount on security deposit (121} {19y
Met gain on fair value changes (L481) (288}
Share based payment 142 192
Ra-measurement of actuarial loss 13 146
Operating profit before working capital changes 13,258 8,037
Adjusted for net changes in working capital
Increass in Financizl asiets and other assets {171.463) (215,294}
Increase in Financial liability and other liabilities 10,798 12,501
Taxas [paid)/refund received {net) {503) 2,780
Net Cash used in aperating activities (147,810) (124,978}
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of investments (1,850,140) {408,851}
Sale of investments 1,860,250 423,617
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (12,965) {19,733)
Broceeds from property, plant and equipment 4,307 5,345
Investment in equity shares of subsidiaries =
Amortisation of pre acquisition interest on debenture % 8
Net Cash generated from investing activities 1,452 387
Proceeds fram issuance of equity share capital - =
Proceeds from non-convertible debentures 172,500 -
Finance |zase obligation taken - .
Finance lease abligation repaid = -
Proceeds from working capital demand loan from banks / term Loan 94,250 145,400
Repayment of working capital demand loan from banks / term Loan (73,502) (17,705)
Proceeds from bank overdraft (925) 3,238
Repayment of bank overdraft {3,238) -
Praceeds from inter Corporate Loan 25,000 -
Repayment of Inter Corporate Loan -
Proceeds from commercial papers 117,447 103,030
Repayment of commercial papars 1157,000) (35,000)
Het Cash generated from financing activities 174,532 202,953
Net increasa in cash and cash equivalents 28,074 8374
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 12,119 3,745
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 40,193 12,119




Qix Capital Services Private Limited {Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
G lidated Cash Flow § for the year ended 31 March 2019
{All amount in INR lakhs, except for share dute unless stated otherwise)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Notes :
Cash and cash equivalents balance include:
Balances with banks:

- Current accounts 40,193 11419

-Fixed deposits with maturity of less than 3 months - 700
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year {refer note 6A) 40,193 12,119
Significant aceounting policies 3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per aur report of even date

For S.R. Batfiboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
ICAI Firmy Registration No. 101049W/E300004 Clix Capital Services Private Limited {formerly known as GE Money
Chnartered Accountants Financial Services Private Limited)
f - »
k-4, » Aou
per Amit Kabra / Shekhar Daga Venlataraman Bharatwa]
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 054533 DIN: 07471871 DIN: 02965798

Place: Gurugram (_ X
Date: 23 September 2019 \/ N ) R
Bhavesh Gupta Ashhish K Paanday

Chief Executive Officer Company Secretary
Membership Na: A23155

Place: Gurugram
Date: 23 September 2019
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Clix Capital Services Private Limlted (Formerly known as GE Maney Financial Services Private Limited)
Motes to lidated Financial Stak far the year ended 31 March 2019
{Al amount in INR Lokhs, except for shure dato unless stoted otherwise}

Corporate information

Clix Capital Services Private Limitad {Fermerly GE Money Financial Sarvices Private Umited) |'CCSPL) ("the Halding Company’} is a private limited
tompany domiciled in india and incorporated in 11 February 1994 under the provisions of Companies Act, 1956 with Cin-
UB5929011994PTC116256. The Company is Non-Banking Finance C y 'NBFC') registered with the Reserve Bank of India {'RBI"} with
Registration Mo. B-14.02950. The Company is primarily engaged in Commercial; Micro, Small and Medium enterprise (MSME) and Consumer
lending. The Company doas not accept deposits from the public. The Company’s registered office is at th floor, Kailash Building. Kasturba Gandhi
Marg Connaught Place New Delhi North East DL 110001 India,

Pursuant to the new business strategy snnounced by General Electric {GE}, the Company's shareholders enterad into an agreement dated 1
March 2016 ta sell the entire issued share capital of the Company to Plutus Financials Pvt. Umited (Mauritius), post obtaining the RB! approval an
dated 13 June 2016. Accordingly, GE sold its 100% stake in the company and transaction was consummated on 31 August 2016,

Further, during the financial year 2016-17, the Company changed its name to Clix Capital Services Private Limited and received fresh certificate of
incorporation fram Registrar of companies dated s September 2016,

On Septembar 2016, the Holding Company has acquired 100% stake in Clix Finance india Private Limited {'Clix Finance'} {formely known as Clix
Finance India Unlimited). Clix Financa Is domiciled in india and incarporated on 22 October 1993 under the provisions of Companies Act, 1956
with CIN-UB5924DL1993PTCO55761.1t is also NBEC registerad with the RB| with Registration No. N-14,01381, The Company s primarily engaged in
commercial and retail lending. The Company does not accept depasits from the public. The Company's registerad office is at 4th flogr, Kailash
Building, Kasturba Gandhi Marg, Connaught Place, New Delhi Marth East DL 110001 India. Further during year 2017-18, the Company changed its
name ta Clix Finance India Private Limited and abtained a frash certificate of incorporation from Registrar of Companies dated 24 January 2018,

Further, during the financial year 2016-17, the Helding Company has also Incorporated a whally owned subsidiary Clix Houisng Finance Private
Limited {'Clix Housing')

The Halding Company along with its subsidiaries {both incorporated in India) has been referred to as "the Group".

(i} Basis of preparation

The Consalidated financial st {herein referred to as ‘CFS') of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Campanias (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 {as amended from time to time).

For all periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group prapared its financial stat in accordance with ace g
standards notified under the section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read togather with paragraph 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014
(Indian GAAP or previous GAAP). These CES for the year ended 31 March 2019 are the first the Group has prepared in accordance with Ind AS.

The CFS have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for financial assets held for trading and financial assets and liabilities designatad at
fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), all of which have been measured at fair value. The CES are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all
values are rounded to the nearest lakhs, except when othzrwise indicated.

(i) Pr ion of financial st t

The Group presents its balance sheet in order of liguidity. Financlal assets and financial liabifities are genarally reported gross in the balance
sheet. They are only offset and reported net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amaunts witheut being contingent an 2 future event, the parties also intend to settle on a net basis In #ll of the following circumstances:

A. The normal course of business

B. The event of default

C. The event of insalvency or bankruptey of the Group and/or its counterparties.

(iii} Basis of consolidation

The CFS comprise tae financial statements of the Group and its subsidiarias as at 31 March 1019 including controlled structured entities. The
Group consolidates a subsidiary when it contrals it. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
invol t with the i and has the ability to affect those retums through its power over the investes.

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in contral. To support this presumption and when the Group has less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an Investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
power gver an investee, including:

(i) The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee

(i1} Rights arising from ather contractual arrangemants

(iii} The Group's voting rizhts and potential voting rights

{iv) The size of the Group's holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersian of the holdings of the ather vating rights holders.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investss if facts and circumstances indicate that there are charges to oae or more of the
three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtsins control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group
Ioses contral of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
cansalidated financial statements from the date tha Group gains control until the data the Group ceases to control the subsidiary,




Clix Capital Servicas Private timited {Formerly known as GE Meney Financial Sarvices Private Limited]
Netes to Consolidated Finandal Statemants for the year ended 31 March 2019
{All amount in INR Lakhs, except for share doto unless stated otherwise)

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances.
If a member of the Company uses accounting policies ather than those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like transactions and
wvents in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that Company member’s financial statements in preparing the consaolidated
financial statements to ensure confarmity with the Company’s accounting policies.

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date as that of the parent company,
i.e., year ended on 31 March,

Consolidation procedura:

a. Combine like iterns of assets, liahilities, aquity, incoms, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of its subsidiaries. For this purpase,
income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and liabilities recognised in the consalidated financial statements
at the acquisition date.

b, Offset [eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s portion of equity of each subsidiary.

¢. Eliminate in full intragroup assets and labilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the Group
{profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full).
|ntragroup losses may indicate an impairment that recuires recognition in the consolidated financtal statements, Ind AS 12 Income Taxes applies
1o temporary differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup transactions.

Prafit or inss and each companent of OCl are attributed to the equity holdars of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interasts,
even if this results in tha nen-controliing interests having a deficit balance,

When necessary, adjustrments are made to the financial statements of subsidiories to bring their accounting policies in ling with the Group's
accounting policies. Al intra-group assets, fiabilities, equity, income, expansas and cash flows relating to transactions betwesn members of the
Group are eliminated in full an consolidation.

If the Group loses cantrol over a subsidiary, 1t:

[it Derecognises the assets (including goodwill} and liabilities of the subsidiary

{ii) Derecognises the carrying armeunt of any non-controlling interests

(iii} Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity

{iv} Recognises the fair value of the consideration received

(v) Recogrilses the fair value af any investment retained

{wi} Recognises any surpius or deficit in profit or loss

{vli) Rackassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OC! to profit or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate, as would be
required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Achange in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction,

Significant accounting policies

3.1 Use of estimates

The preparation of CF5 in conformity with Ind AS requires the gement to make judg estimates ond assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilitias and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at tha end of the raporting perind,
Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring 2 material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilites in future
periods. Furiher, refer note & for significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptinns used by Group.

3.2 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivatents comprise cash balances on hand, cash balances in bank, and highly liquid investments with maturity period of thiee
manths or less from the date of investment.

3.3 Recogrition of income and expense

Revenue {other than for those items to which Ind AS 109 Financial Instrumen:s are applicable} is measured at fair value of the consideration
recajved or receivable.

The Group recognises revenue from contracts with custemers based on a five step model as set out in Ind 115

Step 1: Identify contractis) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that creates enforceable rights
and obligations and sets out the ¢riteria for every contract that must be met.

Step 2: identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a contract with
a customer to transfer a good or service to the customer,

Step 3: Determine the w2nsaction price; The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Group expetts to be entitled in
exchange for transferring promised gaods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the perfarmance obligations in the contract: For a contract that has more than ane periormance
obligation, the Group allocates the fransaction price to each performance obligation in an amaunt that depicts the amount of consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each performance obligation.

Step 5: Recognise revenus when (or a5} the Group satisfies a performance obligation




Clix Capital Services Private Limited [Formerly known as GE Money Finandial Services Private Limited)
Notes to C lidated i ial § for the year ended 31 March 2019
{All amaunt in INR Lakhs, except for shore data unless stated otherwisef

a} Interest and similar income

Intecest income, for all financial instruments measured either 4t amortised cost or at fair wvalue through other comprehensive
income, is recorded using the effactive interast rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discaunts the estimated future cash payments or
reczipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter pedad, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the fnancial
asset. The calculation takes into account all contractual terms of the financial fnstrumant {for example, prepayment options) and includes any
fees or incremental costs that are directly sttributable and are an integral part of the €IR, but not future credit losses.

The Group calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the Eross carrying amount of financial assets ather than credit-impaired assets.
When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired and Is, therefore, regarded as "Stags 3', the Group calculates interest income by applying
the effective interest rate to the net amortised cost of the financial asset. IF the financial assets cures and is no longer credit-impaired, the Group
reverts to calculating interest income on 2 gross basis.

b} Interest axpense

Interest expense includes issua costs that are initially recegnized as part of the carrying value of the financial liability and amortized over the
expected life using the affective interest method, These include faes and issions payable to arrangers and other expenses such as external
legal costs, provided these are incremental costs that are directly related to the lssue of a financial liakiliny,

¢} Foreclosure charges and other feas
Foreclasure charges and other fees which Tnclude cheque bounce chazges, penal fee, legal charges and prepayment charges ete. are recognised
as income when there is centainity regarding the receipt of payment.

e) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the Group's right to receive the payment is established, it is probable that the economic benefits assaciated
with the dividend will flow to the entity snd the amount of the dividend can ba measured reliably, This is generally when sharehalders approve
the dividend.

f) Leaserental income

Lease rental income arising from operating leases is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in rental income in
the statement of profit or loss, unlass the increase is in line with expected general inflation, in which case lsase income is recognised based on
contractual terms.

f} Debt advisory fees
Revenue fram contract with customer is recognised point in time when perfarmance obligation is satisfied {whan the trade is executed), Thasa

include debt acvisary fees which is charged per transaction executed.
3.4 Foreign cutrency
The CFS are presented in Indian Rupees (INR} which is also the Group's functional currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group at their respective functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction
first qualifies for racognition. Income and expenses in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group at the exchange rates prevailing an
the date of the transaction.

Foreign currancy denominated monetary assets and liabilitiss are transiated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the
reporting date and exchange gains and losses arising on settlement and restatement are recognized in the statemant of profit and loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost ina foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the
initial transactions. Mon-monetary items measured at fair value in 2 foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when &
fair valuz is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monslary items measured at fair value is treated In lne with the
recognition of the gain or loss cn the change in fair value of the item (i.e., transiation differences on items whose fair valus gain or loss is
recognized in OCI or profit or loss are also recognized in OC or profitar loss, respectivelyl.
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3.5 Operating Leases

iease arrangements where the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset substantially vest with the lessor are recognized as
operating leases. The Group has ascertained that the payments to the lessor are structured fo increase in line with expected general inflation to
campensate for the lessar's expected inflationary cost increases and therefora, the lease payments are recognized a5 per terms of the [ease
agreement in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.6 Property, plant and equip (PPE} and Intangible assets

PPE

PPE are statec at cost lincluding incidental expenses directly attributable to bringing the asset te its working condition for its intended use} less
accurmulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comgrises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its
viarking condition for its intended use. Subsequent expenditure related to PPE s capitalized only when it is prooable that future ecanomic
benefits associated with these will flow to the Group and the cost of item can be measured reliably. Other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed off as and when incurred.

An iten of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognisad upon disposal or when no future economic
bepefits are expectad from its use or dispasal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset fcalculated as the difference between the
net dispasal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assat! is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecogrised.

Intangible fixed assets

The Group's intangitle assets mainly include the value of computer software. An intangible asset s recogrised only when its cost can be
measured reliably and itis probable that the expectad future pconomic benefits that are attributable to it will flow to the Group.

Intangible assets acquirad separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost
less any accumulated amertisation and accumulated impairment losses.

3.7 Dapreciation and amortization

Depreciation

(i} Owned assats

{a) Leasehold impravaments are amortised over the lease termas stated in the legse agreement or useful life of the assat winchever s lower.

(b} Depraciation on athzrowned fixed assets is provided on stralght line methad at the rates, computed based on estimated useful lifz of those
assets a3 prescribed under Schedule 1! to the Companies Act, 2013, Land is not depreciated.

The estimated usaful fives are, as follows:

- Computers - 3years

- Office eguipment - 5 years
- Furniture and fixtures - 16 years
- Computer softwares F 5 years

The residual values, useful fives and methods of deprediation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, if aporopriate.

Assets given on operating lease
Assets glven on operating fease are depreciated to their residual valuz a5 estimated by the mamegenient, on a straight-line basis over the
expectad useful life of the assat or lease term, whichever is lower.

Assets taken on finance lease
Vahicles taken on finance lease are being depreciated on the straight-line methad to 2 residual value over the lease term or useful life, whichever
is lower. Inthe opirion of the management, the aforesaid depreciation rates reflect the economic useful lives of the fixed assets.

3.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impal t based on i Ifaxternal factors.
An impal t loss is recognised wheraver the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, The recoverable amount is
the greater of the assets, net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash fows are discounted to their
presant valile using 2 pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessmants of the time value of muney and risks specific to the
asser. (n determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, If avadable. If no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

After impairmant, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset aver its ramaining useful life,
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3.9 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has 3 present obligation {legal or constructiva) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying econamic benefits wil be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the oblization.

Provisions {excluding retirement benelits) are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on the best estimate required to
settle the obligaticn at the balance sheet date. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions ara discounted usfng a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the lability. When discounting s used, the increase in the provision due o
the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

3.10 Contingent liabilities and assets

The Group does not recognize 3 contingent liability but discloses its existenca in the financial statements, Contingent liability is disclosed in the
case of:

Itis not probable that an outflow of resourcas embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation:
- A present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possitle
- A possible obligation arising from past events, unfess the probability of outflow of resources is remote

Contingent fiabilities are reviewed at each balance shest data,

Contingant assets are not recognised. A contingent asset is disclosed, as required by Ind AS 37, where an inflow of economic benefits is
probable.

3.11 Retiremant and other employee benefits

The Groug’s obligation towards varfous employee benefits has been recognised as follows:

Short-term employae benefits

All employee benefits payable/ avaitable within twelve months of rendering the service are classifiad as short-term employee benefits. Benefits
such as salaries, wages and bonus etc., are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which tie employes renders the related
service,

Defined contribution plan
Provident fund is a defined contribution plan. The contribution towards provident fund has been deposited with Regional provident fund

commissioner and is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Defined benefit plan
The Group pays gratuity to employees who retire or resign after a minimum period of five years of contlnuous service. The Group makes

contributions to its awn Gratuity Trust, The gratuity trust invests the contribution in insurer managed scheme.

Other long-term benefits — Compensated absences
Entitlemants to annual leave are recognised when they acerue to employess. Balance leaves, if any can be encashed at the time of retirement/
termination of employment. The Group determines the liability for such accumulated leave entitlemants on the basis of actuarial valuation as at
the year end.

Actuarial valuation

The liability in respect of all defined benefit plans and other long term benefits is accrued in the books of account on the basis of actuarial
valuation carried out by an independent actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method. The obligation is measured at the present value of
estimated future cash flows.

Remeasurements, comprising of aciuarial Bains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included I net intarest an the nat
defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in nat interest an the net defined benefit liability), are
recognized immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCH in the period in which they
occur. Remeasurements are not raclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periads.
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3.12 Taxes

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.

Currentincome tax

Current incoma tax assets and llabilivies are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or pald to the taxation authorities
i accordance with Income tax Act, 1961, income Computation and Disclosurs Standards and other applicable tax laws. The tax rates and tax faws
used 1o compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating ta items recognised outside aroflt or loss is recognised autside profit or loss {either in ather comprehensive income
arin eguity). Current tax items are recogmised in carrelation to the undarlying transaction either in OCl or directly in equity.

Midimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which during the spacifiad period gives future economic berefits in the form
of adjustment to future income tax liability, is consicered as an asset it there is convincing evidence that the Group will pay normal income tax
Accordingly, MAT is recognised as an assatin the Balance Sheet when it is highly probable that future economic benefit associated with it will
flaw to the Group,

Deferred tax

Deferrad tax is provided using the fability methad on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reparting purposes at the reporting date.

Geferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differances, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any ynused tax losses.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temparary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax cradits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 15 reviewsd at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probabie
that sufficient taxable prafit will be available to aliow ail or part of the defarred tax asset to be ctilised. Unrecognised defarred tax assets are ra:
assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferrec tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expectad to apply in the year when the asset is raalised or the liability is

settled, based on Lax rates [and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date,

Deferrad tax relating to items recognised outside profit or [loss is recognised outside profit or loss {either in other comprehensive
income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OC! or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferrad tax liabllities are offset if 3 legally enforceable right exists to set off currant tax assets against current tax
[iabilites and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and tne same taxation authority.

313 Earning per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the aet profit ar loss for the year attributable to equity sharaholders by the welghted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the pedod. Partly paid ecuity shares are trested ¢s a fraction of an equity share to the eatent that

they are entitied to participate in dividends relativeto a fully paid egquity share during the reporting year.

For the purpose of caleulating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attiibutable to equity shareholders and the
ighted average ber of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive petential equity shares.

3.14 Share based payments

Equity-settled share basad payments to empioyees and others providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments
at the grant date.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share based payments is expensed on a straight line basis over the vesting
period, based on the Group’s estimate of equity insts ts that will tually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity, At the end
of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected o vest. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, s recognised in Statement of Profit and Lass such that the cumulative expenses reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to the Share 3ased Paymants Reserve.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options s reflacted as additional shara dilution in the computation of diluted eamings per share.
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3.15 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise o a finandal asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
anather entity,

3.15.1 Financial Assats

3.15.1.1 initial recognition and

Financial assets, with the exception of loans and advances to customers, zre initfally recognised on the trade date, ie., the date that the Group
becomes a party ta the contractual provisions of the instrument. Loans and advances to customers are recognised when funds are dishursed to
the customers. The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on thelr purpose and characteristics and the
management's intention when acquiring them, All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not

recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

3.15.1.2 Classification and Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

L] Debt instruments at amortised cost

s Debt instruments at falr value through other cormprehensive income [FYTOCH)

s Debt i its and equity instr at fair value through profit or loss (FUTRL)

® Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income {F¥TOCI)

3.15.1.3 Debt instruments at amortised costs

A‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if bath the faliowing conditions are met:

®  Theassetis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

Cantractual terms of tha asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest {5PPI) on the principal
amount outstanding.

After Initial ameont, such fi Ial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) methad less
impairment. Amartised cost is calculatad by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in interest income in the statament of profit or loss. The losses arising fram impairment
arerec din the of profit and loss.

3.15.1.4 Debt Instruments at FYOCI

A ‘debtinstrument’ is classified as at the FYTOCIif both of the following criteria are met:
- The objective of the business modetis achisved bath by collecting cantractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and
~The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FYTOC! category are mensured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value, Fair valus
movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Group recognizes interest income, impairment losses
& reversa’s and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
OC1 is reclassified from the equity to P&L Interest earned whilst holding FVTOC! debt Instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR
methad.

3.15.1.5 Debt instruments at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for cebt instrumants, Any debt instrument, which does not meest the criteria for categorization as
at amartized cost or as FVTCC|, Is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Group may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise mests amortized cost or FYTOC! criteria, 25 at
FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or efiminatss a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to
as "accounting mismatch’). Debt instruments included within the FVTPL categary are meastred at fair value with all changes recognized in the
P&L,




Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formarly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
Maotes to Consolidated Finandal Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(&l amount in INR Lekhs, except for share dota unless stoted otherwise)

1.15.1.6 Eguity Investments

All equity investments in scope of ind AS 109 are maasured at fair value. Equity instruments which are hald for trading classified as at FVTPL. For
all other equity instruments, the Group may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive Incoms subsequent changes in
tha fair value. The Group makes such election on an instrument-by- instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is
irrevocable.

If the Group decides to classify an equity fnstrument as at FYTOC, then all fair valug changes on the instrument, excluding dividends,
are recogrizerd in the OC), There is no recycling of the smounts from OCI to PEL, even on sale of investment. However, the Group may
transfer the cumulative gam or loss within eguity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the PEL

3.15.2 Financial Liabilitias
3.15.2.1 ipitial recognition and measurement

Financial labllities are classified and measured at amortised cost or EVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for
trading or it is designated as on initial recognition, All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly ttributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities inciude trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts and derivative financial
instruments.

3.15.2.2 Classification and Subsequent measurement - Financial liabilities at fair valug through profit or loss

Financial fiabifities at fair value through profit or loss include financial Babilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated uoon
initial racogrition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financlal liabilities are classified as held for trading If they are incurred for the
purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instrumants entered into by the Group that are
not dasignated as hedging i in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109, Separated embedded derivatives are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or lasses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss,

Einancial iabilicies designated upon Initial racognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of
recognition, and only if the tritera in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable 1o changes
in own credit risk are recognized in OCI These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Group may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

3.15.2.3 Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interast-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amostised cost using the EIR method. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the Habilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amaortisation process.

Amortised cost is caleulatad by taking into account any discount or premiur on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR.
The BIR amortisation ks included 35 finance costs in the staternent of profit and tass. This category generally applies to borrowings.

3153 Reclassification of financial assets and Rabilities

The Group doesn’t reciessify its financial asses subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the exceptional circumstances in
which the Group acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business line. Financial liabilities are never reclassified.

3.15.4 De recognition of financial assets and liabilities

3.15.4.1 Derecognition of financial assets due to substantial modification of terms and conditions

‘The Group derecognises a financial asset, such as aloan to a customer, when the modification of terms and conditions have heen renegotiated to
tha extent that, substantially, it becomes a new loan, with the difference recognised as a derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an
impairment loss hias not already been recorded. if the modification does not result in cash flows that are substantially different, the madification
daes not result in deracognition. Based on tha change in cash flows discaunted at the original £IR, the Group records & madification gain or loss,
torthe extent that an Impairment iogs has not already been recorded,
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3.15.4.2 Derecognition of financial assets sther than due to substantial madification

A financial asset [or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of 2 group of similar financial assets)is derecognised when the rights 1o
receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired. The Group also derecognises the financial asset if it has baoth transferred the financial
asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition.

The Group has transfarred the financial asset if. and only if, eithar:

B-The Group has transferred its contractual rights to receiva cash flows from the financial asset; or .
B- 1t retains the rights to the cash flows, but has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows In full without materizl defay to a third
party under a ‘pass-through’ arranzement.

Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the Group retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of a financial asset (tha
‘original asset'), but assumes a contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to one or mora entities (the ‘eventual recipients’), when all of the
following three conditions are met;

B The Group has no cbiigation te pay amounts to the eventual recipients unless it has collected equivalent amounts from the original asset
exeluding shiert-term advances with the right to full recevery of the amount lent plus accrued interest at market rates.

B-The Group cannot sell ar pledge the original asset other than as security to the eventual recipients.

B-The Group has to remit any cash flows it collects on behalf of tha eventual recigients without matarial dalay.

in addition, the Group is not entitled to reinvest such cash flows, except for investments In cash or cash equivalents including interest earned,
during the perioe between the collection data and tha date of required remittance to the eventual reciplents,

Atransfer only qualifies for derecognition if either:
» The Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
B The Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,but has transferred control of the asset.

The Group considers control to be transferred if and anly if, the transferes has the practical ability to sell the asset in its entlrety to an unrelated
third party and i5 able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer.

When the Group has nelther transferrad nor retained substantialfy all the fisks and rewards and has retained control of the asset, the assat
continues to be recognised only to the extent of the Group's continuing Involvement, in which case, the Group also recagnises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated lizbility are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and ohligations that the Group has
retained, Cantinuing involvement that takes the form of a puarantee over the transferred asset is measured ar the lower of the ariginal carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration the Group could be required to pay.

I continuing involvement takes the form of a written or purchased option {or both) on the transferred assetthe continuing involvement is
meastred at the value the Group would be required to pay upan repurchase. In the case of 3 written put option on 2n asset that is measured at
fair value, the extent of the entity's continuing invoivement is limited to the lower of the fair value of the transferred asset and the option
exercise price.

3.15.4.2 Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liabllity is discharged, cancelled or expires.Where an existing financial Hiability is
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, ar the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original fiability and the recognition of & new lizbility. The difference betwaen the
carrying value of the ariginal financial liability and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.
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3,16 |Impairment of financial assets

3,161 Overview of the ECL principles

Tha Group is recording the allowance for expacted credit osses for ail loans and other debt financial assets not held at FYTPL, together with
foan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, (in this section all referred to as ‘financial instruments’}. Equity instruments are nat
subject to impairment under IND AS 109

The £CL gllowarce is based on the credit losses expected ta arise aver the life of the asset {the lifetime expected cradit loss or LTECL), unless
there has been no significant increase in credit risk since origination, in which case, the allowance s based on the 12 months’ expected credit
Joss [12mECL] .

The 12mECL is the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within the
12 manths after the reporting date.

Both LTECLs and 12mECLs are calculated on collective basis.

The Group has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of whether a financlal instrument’s
credit risk has inoreasad significandy since initial recognition.

Based on the above process, the Group groups its 'oans into Stage 1, Stage 2, Stage 3, as described balow:

Stage 1: When loans are first recognised, the Group recognises an allowance based on 12mECLs. Stage 1 loans also include faciliies where the
credit risk has improved and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 2 or Stage 3.

Stage 2: When a lcan hes shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the Group records an allowance for the LTECLS.
Stage 2 loans also include facilities, where the credit risk has improved and the loan has been recla ssified from Stage 3.

Stage 3: Loans considerad credit-impaired (as outlined 'n Note 8). The Group records an alfowance for the LTECLs

tor financial assets for which the Group has no reasonable expectations of recovering either the entire outstanding amount, or 2
praportion theresf, the gross carrying amountaf the financial asset is reduced. Thisis considerad a {partial) derecognition of the financial asset.

3.16.2 The calculation of ECLs

The Groug calculates ECLs based on a probability-welghted scenarios and histerical data o measure the expected cash shortfalls, discounted at
an approximation to the EIR. A cash shortfali is the differance between the cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the entity expects to receiva.

The machanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follaws:
-Probability of Default [PD) - Tha Probatility of Default is an estimate of tne likelihood of default over a given time horizan. A default may only
happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the facility has not been previously derecognised and is still in the portfolio.

- Exposure at Default (EAD) - The Cxposure at Default is an estimate of exposure at default date.

+ Loss Given Default {LGD] - The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at 2 given time. It is based
on the difference betwaen the contractual cash fiows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, including from the realisation of any
collateral, it is usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD.

The maximum pericd for which the credit [osses are determined is the expacted |ife of a financial instrument.

The mechanics of the ECLmethod are summarised below:

Stage 1: The 12mECL is caloulated as the portion af LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from default events on a financial instrument that
ara possiblz within the 12 months aftar the reporting date. Tha Group calculates the the 12mECL allowance based on the expectation of a default
oecurring in the 12 months following the reperting date. These expectad 12-month default probabilities are applied to a EAD and muitiplied by
the expected LGD .

Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since arignation, the Group records an allowarce for the LTECLs.
The mechanics are similar ta those explained above, bul POs and LGDs are estimated over the lifetime of the Instrument.

Staga 3: For foans considered credit-impaired (as outlined in Note 8), the Group recognizes the |ifetime expected credit losses for these loans.
The method is sirmilar ta that for Stage 2 assets, with the PD set at 100%.

Loan commitments: When estimating LTECLs for undrawn loan commitments, the Group estimates the expected portion of the loan commitment
that will be drawn down over its expected life. The ECL is then based on the present value of the expected shortfalls in cash flows if the loan is

drawn down.

Eor loan commitments, the ECL is recognised within Provisions.
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3.16.3 Forward looking information

While astimating the expected credit losses, the Group reviews macro-economic developments occurring in the economy and market it operates
in. On @ periadic basis, the Group aralyses if thers is any relfationship between kay economic trends like GDP, unemplayment rates, benchmark
rates set by the Reserve Bank of India, inflation etc. with the estimate of PD, LGD determined by the Group based on its internal data. While the
internal estimates of PD, LGD rates by the Group may not be always reflective of such refationships, temporary overlays, if any, are embedded in
the methodology to reflect such macro-econamic trends reasona bly.

3.16.4 Collateral repossessed
The Group's policy is to sell repossessed assets, Non financial 2ssets repossessed gre transferced to assets held for sale at fair value less cost o
sell or principal outstanding, whichever is less, at repossession date.

3.16.5 Write-offs
Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Group has stopped pursuing the recovery. If the
amount to be written off is greater than the acc lated loss all 2, the difference is first treated as an addition to the allowance that is

then applied against the grass carrying amount. Any subsequent recoveries are credited to profit and loss account,

3.17 Fairvalue measurement ;
The Group measures financial instrumants at fair value at sach baiance shaet date using valuation techniques,
Falr value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction hetween market
participants at the measurement data. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place sither:

- In the principal market for the asset ar lability, or

= In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or hability.

The principal or the most 2dvantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assyming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of 3 non-financial asset takes into account a marxet participant’s ability to generate aconomic benefits by using the
assetin its highest and best use ar by selling it to another market participant that would use the assetin its highest and best use,

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the drcumstances and for which sufficient dats are available to measure
fair value, masimising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inguts,

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or diselosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant ta the fair value measurement a5 2 whole:

- Level 1 — Quated (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or lighilities,

- Level 2 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable.

- Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the falr value measurement is unaobservable,

For assets and liabifities that are recogaised in the fnancial statements ¢n a recurring basis, the Group determines whather transfers have
cccurred between levels in the hlerarchy by re-assassing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair valua
measurement as a whale} at the end of sach reporting period.

3.18 Dividend

The Group recognises a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders when the distribution is autharised and the distribution is no longer
at the discretion of the Group. Final dividends an shares are recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the shareholders and interim
dividends are recorded as a liability an the date of declaration by the Group's Board of Directors.

3.19 Expenditure

Expenses are recognised on accrual basis and provisions are made for all known losses and liabilties, The Graup has also entered into certain cost
sharing arrangements for resources shared with other entities, The costs allocated to the Group under the cost sharing arrangaments are
Included in the respective exg The costs all d ta other entities under the cost sharing arrangement are shown as amounts recoverable

from the respactive parties.
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Significant accounting jud; imates and assumptions

4.1 Busi model it
Clzssification and messurement of financisl assats depends on the rasults of the SPPI and the business model test, The Group determines the
business model at a lavel that reflects how Groups of Fnancial assets are managed together to achieve a particular business objective. This
nt includes judg reflecting all relevant evidence including hew the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance
measured, the fisks that affect the performance of the sssets and how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are compensated.
Tha Group manitors financial assets measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income that are derecognised prior to
their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent witn the objective of the business for which the
asset was held. Manitaring is part of the Group's continuous nt of whether the busi model for which the remzining financial assets
are held continues 1o be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a changa in business model and so a prospective change to
the dlassification of those assets.

4.2 Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transler a lability in an orderly transaciion in
the principal (or most advantageous) markat at the measurament date under current market conditians (l.e., an exit price] ragardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technigue. When Lhe Tair values of financial assets and financiai liabifitias
recorded in the balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets, they are determinad using 2 variety of valuation techniques that include the
use of valuation models. The inputs to these models are taken from ohservable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, astimation
is required in sstablishing fair values. Judgements and estimates include considerations of liquidity and medel inputs related to items such as credit
risk {both own and counterpartyl, correlation and volatility.

4.3 Effective Interest Rate (EIR} method

The Group's EIR methodolagy, recognises interest income / expense using a rate of return that represents the bast estimate of a constant rate of
return over the expected behavioural life of loans given / taken and recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates at various stages
and ather characteristics of the product life cycle (including prepayments and penalty interest and charges). This estimation, by naturg, requires an
element of judgemant regarding the experted behaviour and life-cycle of the instruments, as well expected changes to India’s base rate and ather
fee Income/fexpense that areintegral parts of the Instrurment.

4.4 Impairment loss on financial asset

The measurament of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires judgement, in particular, the estimation of the amaunt and
timing of future cash flows and collateral values when determining impairmant losses and the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk.
These estimates are driven by 3 number of factors, changes in which can result in different levels of allowances.

The Graug’s ECL calculations are outputs of complex madals with 3 number of underlying assumptions regarding the choice of variable inputs and
their interdependendies. Elements of the ECL models that are considerad accounting judgements and estimates include:

- The Group's internal model, which assigns PDs,

- The Group's criteria for assassing if thera has been a significant increase in credit risk and 50 allowances for financial assets should be measured
on a LTECL basls and the qualitative assessment.

- The segmentation of financial assets when their ECLis sssessed on a collactive basis,

- Development of ECL models, induding the various formulas and the choice of inputs.

- Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic inputs, such as unemployment levels and collateral values, and
the effect on PDs, EADs and LGDs.

- Selection of forwari-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to derive the econemic inputs into the ECL models.

it has been the Group's policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss experience and adjust when necessary.
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4.5 Defined employee benefit assets and liabilities

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity pian and othar post-employment benefits and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined
using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation Involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future.
These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complesities invalved in the valuation
and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation js highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumplions are reviewed at each
reparting data.

4.6 Share based payments

Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation maodel, which is dependent
on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model
including the expectad life of the share option, valatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them,

4.7 Pravisions and other contingent liabilities
The Group operates in a regulatory and legal environment that, by nature, has 3 heightened element of liigation risk inherent ta its operations. As
aresult, it is involved in various litigation, arbitration and regulatory investigations snd proceedings in the ordinary course of the Group's business.

When the Group can relfiably measure the outflow of economic benefits in relation to a specific case and considers such outflows to be probable,
the Group records a provision against the case. Whera the probability of outflow is considered ta be remote, or probable, but a relizble estimate
cannot be made, a contingent liability is disclosed.

Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of losses, the Graup takes into account a number of factars
including legal advice, the staga of the matter and historical svidence from similar incidents. Significant judgement is required to conclude on these
estimates.

Standard issued but not yet effective

Ind AS 116 : Leases
Ind AS 116 Leases was notified on March 31, 2019 and it replaces Ind AS 17 Leases, including appendices thereto. Ind AS 116 is effective for anaual
periods beginning on or after Agril, 01, 2019,

Ind AS 116 sets out the pringiples for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all
leases under a single en-balance sheet model similar to the accounting for finance leases under Ind AS 17, The standard includes two recognition
exemptions for lessees — leases of ‘low-value’ assets and shert-term leases. At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise 2 liability
to make lease payments and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term. Lessees will be required io
separately recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.

Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantially unchanged from today’s accounting under Ind AS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases
using the same classification principle as in Ind AS 17 and distinguish between twa types of leases: operating and finance leases,

The effective date for acoption of Ind AS 115 is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019, The standard permits two possible methods of
transition:
{a} Full retrospective - Retrospectively to each prior period presented applying Ind AS 8 Accounting Polictes, Changes in Accounting Estimates and

Errars
(b) Modified retrospective — Retrospectively, with the cumulati effect of initially applying the Standard recognized at the date of initial

application.

Under medified retrospective approach, the lessee records the lease liabilizy as the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted at
the incremental borrowing rate and the right of use asset citheras:

(a) Its carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the commencement date, but discounted at lessee’s incremeantal borrowing rate
at the date of initial application or

(b) An amount equal to the lease lizbility, adjusted by the amount of any prapaid or acerued lease payments refatad to that lease racognized under
Ind A5 17 immediately before the date of initial application.

Certain practical expedients are avallable under both the methods.

The Group is still under the process of evaluation of available transition options and a reliable estimate of the quantitative impact of Ind AS 116 on
the financial statements will anlv be oossible once Groun comoletes its assessment.
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As at Asat As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017

Note 6A: Cash and ¢ash equivalents

Balance with banks In current accounts 40,193 11,419 2,745
In deposiis with original maturity of less than three manths - 700 1,003
40,193 12,118 3,748

MNote 6B: Bank balance other than above
Earmarked balances with bank® 342 433 237
342 433 237
Total 40,535 12,552 3,985

* Earmarked balances with bank are held as Margin money/ are under lien. The Group has the comrplete beneficial interast on the income earned
from these deposits.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

As at As at As at
310arch 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017

Balance with banks in current accounts 40,193 11419 2,745
In deposits with original maturity of less than three months ~ 700 1,003
40,193 12,119 3,748
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As at Asat As at
31 March 2019 31t March 2018 1 Aprll 2017
Note 7: Loans
In lndia
At Amortised cost
Term loans 473,115 307,392 7,376
Finance lease receivablas 14,026 13,353 13,746
Inter company receivable - - 24
Inter-corporate laan** = z =
Total {A) Gross 487,141 320,735 111,136
Less: impairment loss allowance 15,013 12,750 10,457
Total {A) Net 472,128 307,955 100,679
Secured * 364,150 295,326 109,858
Unsecured 122,991 35419 1,478
Total (B) Gross 487,131 320,745 111,136
Less; impairment loss allowance 15,013 12,750 10,457
Total (B} Net | 472,128 307,955 100,679
Loans in [ndia
Public secter % * +
Others 487,148 330,745 111,146
Total {C} Gross 487,141 320,745 111,146
Less: Impairment loss allowance 15,013 12,790 10,457
Total {C} Met 472,128 307,355 100,673
* Secured by tangible assets (hypott ion of equipment's, plant and machinery, equitable mortgage of immovable property, pledge of securities, trade

receivables, et}

{} Finance lease raceivable
Assets given under finance lease have been recognised as receivables at an amount equal to the nat i in lease, Recanciliation b the total gross
investment in lezses and the present value of minimurn lesse payments receivable as at 31 March 2019, 31 March 2018and 1 April 2017 is a5 follows:

O Asat As at Asat
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Present value of minimum leasa payments receivable 13,247 12,717 12,997
Add: Un-puaranteed residual values accruing ta the benefit of the lessar 1,008 855 358
Add: Unearned finance income 3,768 3.185 2,392
Gross investment in finance lease 18,023 16,457 15,787
The maturity profile of the financa lease recelvables as at 31 March 2018, 31 March 2018 and 1 Agrit 2017 is as follows:
As at 31 March 2019 Asat 31 March 2018 As at 1 April 2017
Minimum Present Minimum Present value Minimum Present
lease value lease lease value
payments pnvmeng payments
Receivable within one year E,541 4,811 5,430 4,582 7.6561 5,263
Receivable batween 1-5 years 11,221 5,193 9,500 7,804 8,086 7,132
More than 5 year 261 251 527 486 - -
Tatal 18,023 14,255 16,457 13,272 15,787 13,395
% —=< =
Curing the year, anamount of INR 2,071 lakhs was recognized as income from finance leases in tha ¢ fidated st t of profit and loss [Previaus year:

INR 1,662 lakhs).




*sajqe} anoqe w Alselados

LUAVOLIS 10U BT SAAI5URY HIUAY PUR GTOT YIICIN TE PUB BTOET YN TE papua fead ayy Buunp g adeis oue ¢ #3els T alelg usamiag Qoj1i0d B1mi00i00 Al Ul 193SUERL) OU uaag aney Bralg |

€61°TT S9E'TT ) 528 R0EZT TOE'TL {o} BOD'T asugjeq Jujsaj - Sauemolr 133
yIl's PIT'S = = - 3 = E suopEINyEs 133 20} pasn sindu] pue Sjapow o) sailvey
foea't) {oren - “ # = . - 10 UBIHIM SIUNOLLY
lext'z) IBTH'T {n6b) {eoz) {5eg (g9l . [Fad3] {5440 s3um Buipnjpxa) pledad s1assy
QEL = QEL 6% - - 6% paseyund 1o pajeuidLD S19558 Ma
98901 626 08k 90E TET'TT YIE'TT il 678 ssuejeq Buusdo - SaUBMO|E 103
|E10L £ AR 7 afleig T adeis [ ELES T T odelg Slejnonied
BI-LTUE Ad GL-BIOT Ad
TMOjag Usn|d 5] SEIUE[EY TF 40 UOPEI[EU0IAY
595252 IETL o 202" 10T BIF'SLT 10E'TT + BIT'Y9T e2uB|Eq Hupiop Mumowe Suilled ssoug
{Tws'z) (2t6'e) = = - = - E: HO uRRLM .
{EvE'sY) |zoB'z) feriel {vzeov) [106'20T! {55} # (6E8'z0T) (5340 am Fuipnane) predad syassy
8L0'922Z - 2 5L0°922 aL'sTT = = VSL'SLT paseyasnd 10 pAIRUIBLO sasse Map
SEL'BL BOL'L1 £11'9 05¥'55 S95'Z5T PIE'TT 8 OTTPT aauejeq Suuado yunowe Jujkiued ssoin
jel0L, € afdeis ¢ adeis 1 afleyg [B0L £ adeig Z 29oi5 1 odes SIB[NIHEY
BT-LI0T AJ GT-BIOZ Ad

isMo||o) 58 51 Bujpus) sjeiodiod 03 uopElR U] SERUEMO| e 123 Bujpuodsaliod au) pue Junowe Sullues ssoad 2w U sHIURLD Jo SISA|ELE iy
oljopued ariodio] T4

LTI ShL0ZE IrT'isy je100L

LYE'TE OBT'RY LTLTIT oNe oy 810y

SLL'BL 4$95'25C BIt'sLT s1eiodiog

LTOZ MO T BTOZ YMBN STDZ YuBN

1B 5y TE 30 5y TE 38 sy Ol ORI JO SWeN
e mep

Ut 1D 335 2UE S|SEG SAAJI03/{ENPIAIPUL U0 PRPINDIED 3R STRUEADOIIE 137 JAUSUM SDRI0O PUT D S10N Ul pRlte|dxs Jae |apoLr Y A5U saIUETUGD (0 SI212(] "SATURMO]|E JaL e
o ssoifl ale pajuzsasd sunowe ay) UoigEsysses afels pud-sEah pur JUALUSRT 1AWOISNT AYT LD PISEY Y51 1P oY BANSOUNa WRLIXEW aUl puE AljeEnb 1pads ay ssaljs rmaogag 3pgel sty
syasse ju Ajjlenly Wpesd T4 M0N

(Asiruanylo paos ssUn pIog aioys Jof jdadxs ‘saof ¥N| wr Junows iy
GLOT Yui TE papus Jeah ay Joy HELS (9 H pmepijesuio) o3 saon
[Paiwy 318ALYd $301US (BIURUE ADUOIAL 35 52 UmoUy Apauiod) paiiuly sjeatld saotalag jeandes ki




Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)

Motes to Consolidated Finandal Stat ts for the year ended 31 March 2019
Al amount in INR lacs, except for shore date unless stated otherwise)

Note 7.1.3 Retail lending portfolio

#n analysis of changes in the gross carrying and the corr ding ECL all es in relation to retail portfolio Is, a5 follows:
FY 2018-19 FY 2017-18
Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross carrying amount opening balance 631,583 4,591 - 68,180 30,582 821 44 32,347
Mew assets eriginated ar purchased 170,612 2,158 - 172,770 43,925 3,452 L 53,377
Assets repaid {exciuding write offs) (26,132} (3,036) - {29,167} {15,181} (416} (292 (16,889)
Transfersto Stage 1 1,653 {1,653) - 2 &6 (65} - -
Transfers to Stage 2 (5,208} 5,106 = = {795} 799 =
Transfers to Stage 3 {1,389} {395} 1,735 - 34 - 3 -
Amounts writtan off - - {61) {61} - - 655} {655}
Gross carrying amount closing balance 203,128 6,870 1,724 211,722 653,589 4,591 - 68,180
Reconciliation of ECL balancesis given balow:
FY 2018-19 FY 2017-18
|Particulars Stagel Stage2 Stage3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ECL allowance - opening balance 456 100 fa) 596 2z 7 286 381
New assets originated or purchased 1394 58 - 1,452 464 88 - 562
Assets repaid {axcluding write offs) (258) {26} - {284} (58] {5} (91} {152}
Transfers to Stege 1 17 {89) - {51) 4] 1) - s)]
Transfers to Stags 2 (4g) 39 - {9} (41] 2 - 1
Transfers to Stage 3 (42) {2} 1,045 1,001 - - - -
Amaunts writtan off - - i1) - - {195] {195]
ECL allowance - clasing batance 1,560 100 1,044 2,704 496 101 @) 597
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Nete 7.2 Loan Commitment

An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL allowances in relation to loan
commitmentis, as follows:

|Particulars FY 2018-19 FY 2017-18
Gross carrying amount opening balance 14,502 17,807
New assets originated 142 14,502
Assets disbursed/cancelled {14,502) {17,807}
Gross carrying amount closing balance 142 14,502

Reconciliation of ECL balances is given below:

Particulars FY 2018-19 FY 2017-18

ECL allowance - opening balance 27 100
Mew assets originated kL 27
Assets disbursed/cancelied 27) (100)

ECL allowance - closing balance 1 27
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Mote 7.3 Impairment assessmant
The notes below set out the Group's impai it and nent approach is set cut in these notes, It should be read in conjunction with

iy

the Summary of significant aceounting policies.

- Definition of default and cura
The Group considers a financial instrument as defaulted and classifies it as Stage 3 (eredit-Impalred) for ECL calculations typically when the Borrower
becomes 90 days past due on contractual payments. The Group may alsa classify a loan in Stage 3 if there is significant daterioration in the |oan

i 1, deterforation in the fi ial conditicn of the borrower or en assessment that adverse market conditions may have a disproportionately
detrimental effact on the loan repayment. Thus, as a part of the qualitative assessment of whether an instrument is in default, the Group also considers
a varlety of instances that may indicate defay in or ron repayment of the loan. When such events occur, the Group carefully considers whether the event
shauld result in treating the borrower as defsulted and th d as Stage 3 for ECL calculations or whether Stage 2 i3 appropriate,
Classification of accounts inta stage 2 is done on a conservative basis and typically accounts where contractual repaymeants are mora than 30 days past
due are classified in stage 2,

It is the Group's policy to consider a financial instrument as ‘cured” and therefore re-classified out of Stage 3 when none of tha default criteria are
present. The decision whether to classify an asset as Stage 2 or Stage 1 once cured depends on the updated credit grade once the acceunt is cured, and
whether this indicates there has been a significant reduction in credit risk,

- Probability of default
The eradit rating provided by the external ratirg iesfaccount level deling v/ internal matrix has been considered while assigning Probability of
Default (PD) at a portfolio level. The PDs are computed for home il portfolio segment

- Exposure at default
The outstanding balance as at the reporting date s considered as EAD by the Group. Considering that PO determined zhave factars in amount at default,

there is no separate requirement to estimate EAD.

= Loss given default
The Group uses historical loss data/external agency LGD for identified homogenous peols for the purpase of caleulating LGD. The estimated recovery
cash flows are discounted such that the LGD ealeulation factars in the NPV of the recoveries.

- Significant increase in credit risk
The Group evaluates the loans on an angoing basis. The Group also assesses if there has been 2 significant increase In cradit risk since the previously risk
taking into cansideration both qualitative and guantitative information. One key factor that indicates significant increase in credit risk is when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.

- Grouping financial assets measured on a collective basis
The Group caleulates ECLs on retail portfolio on coliective basis and carporate portfolio on individual basis.

MNote 7.4 Collateral

The Group holds collatera! to mitigate credit risk associated with secured financial assets. The main type of collateral and type of assets these are
associtaed with ara listed in the table below. The call fpr ted relates to inst that are measured at amortised cost.

Nature of Collateral Asar As at Asat

31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017

Equity shares of the Company, personal guarantee of the director f

promoter, charge against assets of the borrower and other financial 275.419 253,534 77,321
collaterals such as fixed assets, debtors, etc.

Cars® 2,168 1,411 171
Two wheeler® 2,643 - =
Property’ 34,718 8,120 -
Healtheare equipmeants® 35,228 18,979 18,602
Vehicles, squipments, machinery, ete.* 13,968 13,282 13,574
Tatal 354,150 295,326 103,668

! Colfateral for corporate portfolio

* Coliateral for Infoleasa

* Collateral for two wheeler loans

* Collateral for Loan against property

* Callateral for HFS Portfolic

¥ Coltataral for Eguipment Finance Portfalio

The Group did not hold any financial instrument for which o loss aliowance is recognised because of collateral at 31 March 2019, 31 March 2018 and 1
April 2017. There was no change in the Group's collateral pelicy or collateral quality during the perind.

Refer Note 40.2.2 for risk concentration based on "Rating and Industry analysis® for corporate portiolio and “Sub portfolio's and Secured/unsecured” far
retail portfolio.
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As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018 As at 1 April 2007
Amortised Fair value Total Amortised Fairvalue Total Amortised Fair value Total
eost through Cost through profit Cost thraugh profit
profit or loss orloss or loss
Mate 8: Invastments
Wutual funds - - - - - - - 14,437 14,437
Debt securities 396 - 396 7,811 - 7311 7,868 - 1.868
Government securities 1 - 1 1 = 1 1 = 1
Total gross (A) 397 - 397 7,912 - 7,912 7,869 14,437 22,306
Investments in India 397 . 197 7912 . 7,912 7.869 14,437 22,306
Total {8) 397 397 7912 - 7,912 7.8569 14,437 22,308
Total {A) to tally with {B) 397 - 397 7,912 - 7.912 7,863 - 22,306
Less: Allowance for Impairment
loss {C) i . 1 46 - 46 12 - 22
Total Net D = {A) -{C] 396 - 396 7,866 - 7,866 7.847 - 22,284
Mare information regarding the valuation methodologies can be found in note 37.
As at As at As at
31 March 31 March 2018 3 Apiil 2017

Maote 9: Other financial assets

Security depaosit® 421 24 181

Recelvables from customers 5,000 224 138

Operating lease receivables 735 951 156

Other advances 40 10 -
Total 6,196 1,408 a75

* Represents securities pledged as security with government authorities.
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Clix Capital Services Private Limited {Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
{All amount in INR Iacs, except for share data unfess stated utherwise)

Asat As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017

Mote 12: Other non-financial assets

Prepaid expenses 725 180 117
Minimum alternate tax recoverable 1,291 595 5395
Capital advances 105 i5 169
Fair value of plan assets of pratuity - 80 -
Balance with statutory and government authorities
- Considerad good 2,443 3,077 1,932
- Considered doubtful 2,285 1,598 1,435
Less: Provision (2,285) {1,598 {1,435)
2,443 3,077 1,932
Security deposit
- Considered doubtiul Z 2 2
Less: Provision (2} {2} {2}
Lease rental accrued but not due 215 94 250
Advance to suppliers 1 2
QOther advances = 2 2
Total 4,780 4,065 3,067
As at Asat Asat
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Nate 13: Payables
Trade payables* 10,836 4,140 222
Other payables® 3,654 3,101 3,339
Total 14,430 7,241 3,561

* The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an Officc Memarandum dated 25 August 2008 which recommends that the
Micro and Small Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated
after filing of the Memorandum. Based on information received and available with the Graup, there are no amounts payable to Micro and Small
Entarprises as at 31 March 2019, 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017,




Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2013
(Al amount in INR lacs, except for share dota unlass stoted otherwise)

As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 Mlarch 2018 1 April 2017

Mota 14: Debt Sscurities

At Amortised cost
Secured #
Mon-convertible debenturas '
- From Bank 5,930 - -
- Fram Other parties 62,500 - =
Unsecured
Commercial paper
- From Bank = 14,470 .
- From Othar parties 28,420 54,502 =
Nan-convertble debentures *
- From Cither parties 99,638 -
Total gross (A) 201,548 58,972 -
Debt securitias in India 201,548 68,972 -
Dekt securities outside Indis . - X
Total [B) to tally with {A} 201,548 68,972 ¢

# Mon-convertible debentures (NCDs) 15 secured by first pan passu and continuing charge an all current and future standard book

dehts/receivables of the Group.

* Non-covertible det

Original maturity of NCDs Due within 1 Duelto 2 Due2to3  Morethan3 A
o
{In no, of days} year years years years
Issuzd at par and redeemable at face value
365- 730 22,500 - - - 22,500
730 - 1095 . 30,000 40,000 - 70,000
1095 - 1460 = » 30,000 - 30,000
Maore than 1460 - : E: 50,000 50,000
22,500 30,000 70,000 50,000 172,500
-Interest rate ranges from 9.00% p.a. to 11.50% p.a. as at 31 March 2019,
2 Commercial papers
Commercial papers as at 31 March 2018 are repayabla at par as follows:
Due within 1 Duelto? DueZtod Morethand
Original maturity of CPs {In no. of days) year years years years Total
lssued at par and redaemable at par - - - - .
Up to 365 28,420 = - - 29,420
29,420 - - - 29,420
- Interest rate ranges from 9.20% p.a. to 9.95% p.a. as at 31 March 2019,
- Face value of commercial paper is 30,000 as &t March 2019,
Commarcial papers as at 31 March 2018 are repayable at par as follows:
Due within 1 Duelto2 Due2te3 Vigre than 3
Original maturity of CPs {In no. of days} year years years years Total
Issued at par and redeemable at par - - - - -
Up to 385 58,372 - - - 68,977
68,972 4 = = 68,972

-interest rate ranges from 8.15% p.a. to 8.75% p.a. as at 31 March 2018,
- Face value of commercia! paper is 71,000 as at March 2018,
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Clix Capital Services Private Limited {Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(Al amount in INR lucs, except for share dota unless stated otherwise)

As at Asat Asat
31March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Note 16: Other financial liabifities
Interest accrued but not due
= On term loan and non convertible debenture from bank 1,139 810 134
- On term [ean and nan convertible debenture from financial institution 1,944 6 -
- On inter corporate daposit 12 - -
Security deposit from customers 1,354 401 212
Employes payables 1,407 1,275 251
Capital creditors 257 863 893
Advances received from customer 925 408 517
Stock options outstanding account {under GE share based compensatian plan) 398 353 399
Payable to minarity shareholders of erstwhile amalgamating company - - 295
Total 7,437 4,162 2,701
Asat Asat As at
31 March 2019 31 March2018 1 April 2017
Mote 17: Provisions
Provision for employee benefits
- Compensated absenses (Refer note 31) 287 181 101
- Gratuity (Refer note 31) 25 - 94
Provision for loan cormmitment 1 27 100
Pravision for sales tax and service tax [Refer nota 33) 1,791 1,720 1,574
Pravision for customer disputes {Refer note 34) 47 204 182
Provision for decline in value of immovable property 7 7 7
Total 2,158 é,lSS 2,058
Asat Asat Asat
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Mote 18: Other non-financial liabilities
Statutory dues payable 2,544 1,793 463
Lease rental accrued but not due 114 15 95
Deferred income 824 125 11
Total 3,282 1,933 565




Clix Capital Services Private Limitad (Formerly known as GE Maney Financial Services Private Limited)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
{All armount in INR locs, excepr for share data unless stated otherwise)

Asat Asat As at
31 March 2013 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Note 19: Equity Share Capital
Autherised :
2,160,000,000 Equity Shares of INR 10/ Each 216,000 216,000 216,000
215,000 216,000 216,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up:

1,297,084,452 Equity Shares of INR 10/- Each Fully paid 129,708 129,708 129,708
Total 128,708 129,708 128,703
Details of authorized, issued, subscribed and paid up share capital

Asat Asat Asat
March 31 2019 March 31 2018 1 April 2017
Authorized share Capital
2,160,000,000 {31st March, 2018: 2,160,000,000 and 1st April, 2017
1,160,000,000) Equity Shares of INR 10/- each 216,000 216,000 216,000
216,000 216,000 216,000

fesued |, Subscribad & Paid up capital
ssued and Subscribad Capital
1,297,084,452 (315t March, 2018: 1,297,084,452 and 1st Agril, 2017
1,297,084,452) Eauity Shares of IN? 10/- each 128,708 129,708 123,708

Hled-Up and Paid Un Capital
Fully Paid-Up 139,708 129,708 129,708
1,297,084,452 {315t March, 2018: 1,297,084,452 end st April, 2017;
1,297,084,452) Equity Shares of INR 10/- each

Total 129,708 129,708 129,708
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Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
Notes to Consalidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
{alf amaunt in INR facs, except for share data unless stated atherwise)

As at Asat
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Mote 20: Other equity

Capital reserve

Opening balance 121 121
Addition/{Deduction) - +
Closing balance 121 121
Capital reserve created pursuant to merger

Opening balance 4,000 4,000
Addition/(Deduction) - -
Clasing balance 4,000 4,000
Statutory reserve

Opening balance 20,116 20,008
Tranfer from retained sarnings 2,160 111
Clasing balance 22,276 20,115
Capital redemption reserve pursuant to buy back of shares

Opening balance 11,880 11,880
Transfer from retained earnings - -
Closing balance 11,880 11,880
Share based payment reserve

Opening balance 192 -
Addition/{Deduction) 141 192
Closing balance 333 192
Retained earnings

Opening balance 2,759 {83)
Prafit for the year 10,625 2,830
Transfer to statutory reserves (2,160} (111)
Remeasurement of (losses)/ gains on defined employee benefit plans, net of tax B 123
Closing balance 11,232 2,753
Total 45,842 39,068

Nature and purpose of reserves:

Capital reserve: Till the year ended 31 March 2012, the Company was not required to pay any amount Lo the General Electric Company, USA (then
ulimate halding company) towards the cost of options granted or shares allotted to the employees of the Company under these share based
cempensation plans. Therefore, 1ill the year ended 31 March 2012, the Company recognized share based compensation in the Statement of Profit
and Loss with a corresponding credit to Capital Reserve Account,

Capital reserve created pursuant to merger: During 2012-13, Maruti Countrywide Auto Financial Services Private Limited {MCW) was
amalgamated with GE Money Financial Services Private Limited {GEMFSPL) pursuant to the scheme of amalgamation. Upon the Scheme becoming
effective, the entire amount of authorised share capital of the transferar company amounting to INR 4,000 divided into 40,000,000 equity shares of
INR 10 each got transferred from the authorised share capital to the authorised share capital of GEMFSPL as equity shares and Capital Reserve of
IMR 4,000 was created during the year ended 31 March 2013,

Statutory reserve; Statutory reserve represents the reserve fund created under Section 45-1C of the Reserve Bank of tndia Act, 1934, Under Section
45-IC, the Company is required to transfer sum not fess than twenty percent of its net profit every year. Accordingly, the Compzny has transferred
INR 182 fakbs {previous year INR 35 lzkhs), being twenty pereent of net profits for the financial year to the statutory reserve, The statutery reserve
can be utilised for the purposes as specified by the Rasarve Bank of India from time to time.

Capital redemption reserve pursuant to buy back of shares: During the year endad March 2017, the Board of Directars in thelr meeting held on 4
Novemnber 2016 approved buy back 118,803,425 equity shares of the paid-up equity share capizal of the Company at 2 price of INR 12.7 per fully
paid equity share from shareholders. The total number of equity shares of 118,803,425 were purchased by the Company under the offer of buy
back for a consideration of INR 15,088 lakhs.

Share based payment reserve: The share based payment reserve is usad to recognise the value of equity-settled share based payments provided
to employees and its subsidiary's employees, including key managerial personnel, as part of their remunaration.

Retained earnings: These represent the surplus in the profit and loss account and is frea far distribution of dividand.




Clix Capital Servicas Private Limited {Formerly known as GE Maney Financial Services Private Limited)

Nates to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
{All amcunt in INR lacs, except for share data unless stoted otherwise)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Mote 21: Interest incoms
On financiol assets measured at amortised cost
Interest on loans
- On tarmloans 48,548 16,194
- On finance lease receivablas 2,271 1,661
Interest incomea on debt securities 140 851
Total (A) Gross 51,757 18,706
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Note 22: Fees and commission
Debt advisory fees {refer note 38) 1,181 B
Application faes 169 1
Insurance commission (refar note 38} 76 91
Other charges 182 277
1,608 369
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Note 23; Net gain/ {loss) on fair value changes
(A} Net gain/ {ioss) on financial instrumants a1 fair value through profit or loss
{i) On trading portfoliv
- Investments 2,610 689
Total Net gainf(loss) on falr value changes (A} 2,610 B89
(B} Fair value changes:
-Realised 1,610 689
-Unrealised = -
Total Net gain/{loss) on fair value changes{A} to tally with (B) 2,610 689
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2018
Note 24: Other income
Lisbilities/provisions no longer requirad written back 672 3,008
Interest iIncorme
- on income tax refund 1473 852
- an fixed deposits 32 76
interast income on unwinding of discount on security deposit 121 18
Accrued redemption premium on preference share 79 7
Met gain/(loss) on derecognition of property, plant and equipment 75 432
Net gain or loss on foreign currenty transaction and translation {other than considered as - 3
finance cost)
Total 2,603 4,393




Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Maney Financial Sarvices Private Limited)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(Al amount i INR lacs, except for share date unless stated otherwisg)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Naote 25: Finance costs
At amortised cost
Interest on borrowings (other than debt securities)
- Terrn loan fram banks 17,693 6,575
- Term Ioan from financial institutions 848 10
- On bank overdraft 153 27
-Inter-corporate deposit 12 -
- Cther interests 6 i
Interest on debt securities
- Discount on commercial papers 5,237 985
- Mon convertible debentures 10,084 -
Unwinding of discount on security deposits 80 2
Total 34,113 7,600
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Mote 26: Impairment on financizl instruments
At omortised cost
ECL on loan assets 2223 2,323
Bad debt written off/recovered 678 3,771
Investments {45) 24
Loan commitment {26} {73}
Total 2,830 5,045
Yaar ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Note 27: Employee benefits
Salaries and bonus 10,547 6,906
Share based payments to employees 142 192
Contribution to prevident and other funds {Refer note 31) 515 336
staff welfare expenses 152 110
Total 11,356 ?.éi
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Note 28: Other expenses
Rent 1,278 759
Rates and taxes 207 1,280
Printing and stationery 109 46
Advertisements and sales promotion 674 158
Legal and professional charges* 3,466 3175
Outsourced service cost 537 1
Travelling and conveyance 651 383
Repairs and maintenance 307 154
Insurance 89 52
Loss or: foreign exchange 1 .
Net lass on derecognition of property, plant and equipment 7 =
Credit investigation cost 7 -
Provision for customer disputes . 22
Miscellaneous expenses 169 273
Total 7,502 6,369
* Legal and professional charges includes auditors remuneration (excluding goods and service tax) comprises the following:
Yearended Year ended
Prnian 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
As auditor
- Statutory audit 44 32
- Tax audit 5 4
- Other services & 4
Reimbursernent of expenses 1 2
Total 54 42
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Clin Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Maney Financial Services Private Limited)
MNotes to O lidated Fi ial s for the year ended 31 March 2013
{Allamount in INR Lekhs, except for share data unfess stoted otherwise]

Mote 29: Income tax

The companents of income tax expense for the years ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018 are:

Profit or loss section Year ended ¥ear ended
March 312019 March 312018
Current income tax:
Currant income tax charge 1,945 -
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous year 705 {1.899)
Defarred tax:
Relating te origination and reversal of temporary differences {524) (1,890}
Adjustments in respact of Deferrad tax recognised for previous year (8,017) -
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss {5.852) (3,789)
Current tax 2,645 {1,893)
Deferred tax {8,541) {1,830}
Other comprahensive income section Year ended ‘Year ended

March 312018 March 312018

Deferred tax related to items recognised In OC! during the year;

et loss/{gain) on re-measurments of defined benefit pians 7 23
Income tax expense reported in the other comprehensive section 7 23
Income tax expense reportad in the statement of profit and loss {5,886) {3,766)

Raconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's damestic tax rate for March 31, 2019 & March 31, 2018

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 312019 farch 31 2018

Accounting prefit bafore incore tax 4,899 {2,632)
Taxat applicable statutory income tax rate 1,427 1911}
Tax provision/{reversal] related to earlier years (A} {7,302} (1,899}
Current income tax charge (B) 1,945 -
Deferred tax on temperary differences/ Expenses [allowed}/disallowed in Income tax

Act{C}

Property, Plaat & Equipment [125) 70
Trade Receivabile Provision (653) |2,623)
Provision for expense {240§ {49}
438 Disallowance (131} {3}
Unahsorbed Loss 27 (267}
Others 281 [135)
Un-amortized loan origination costs {net of un-amortised processing fee) 533 (425)
Permanant item (D} {2} 993
Impact due to rate difference on timing items/previous year true up (E) 13 {L3)
Tax on Other Comprehensive Income {F} {7 {23)
Tay at effective income tax rate (F= B+(+D+E) 1,426 {911)

income tax expense reported in the consolidated statement of profit and loss (5,885) (3,756}




Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)

Notes to C lidated Fi Fal 5t for the year endad 31 March 2019
(Al emount in INR Lakhs, except for shore data uniess stoted otherwise)
Defarred Tax

The following table shows deferred tax recorded in the balance sheet and changes
recorded in the Income tax axpensa;

Deferred tax Deferred tax Net deferred tax Income act
assets liability asset | statement
{liabilit
31 March 2013 31 March 2019 31 March 2019 2018-13 2018-19
Property, plant and equipment 9,505 - 9,505 (6,371} -
ECL on Loan and advancas/ | / Loan cc i t 5,020 + 5.020 {718} -
Provision for expense 840 - 840 {603} -
438 Disaliowance 322 « 551 (493) 7
Unabsorbed loss & - & 361
Others 1,699 - 1,699 {1,143) .
Unamartised cos: {net of unamortised fees) - {507} {724} 627 -
Loan orjgination Income 287 - 287 {287}
Provision for Diminution in Investment - 92 |92} 92 -
17,673 (415) 17,022 {8,541) 7
Deferred tax Deferred tax Met deferred tax Income ol
assets liability asset f statement
{liabifities)
31 March 2018 31 March 2018 31 March 2018 2017-18 2017-18
Property, plant and equipment 3,134 - 3,134 740 -
ECL on Loan and advances/ | t/ Loan commi 4,302 - 4,302 {1,623) -
Provisian for expense 237 - 237 (49} -
438 Disallowance 59 - 59 (26}
Unabsorbed loss 367 - 57 (267) 2
Others 556 - 556 (135} -
Unamortised cost (net of unamortised fees) - {167) {167) {429) N

8,654 {167) 8,487 {1,890} .




Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limlted}
Nates to Consolidated Financial for the year ended 31 March 2019
{4l amountin INR Lakhs, excent for shore dota uniess stated otherwise)

Deferred tax Deferred tax Net deferred tax
assets liab assatf
{liabilities)
1 Aprii 2017 1 Aprit 2017 1 April 2007
Property, plant and equipment 3,874 - 3,674
ECLon Loan and advances/ Investment/ Loan commitment 2679 - 2,679
Provision for expanse 188 123
436 Disallowarce 56 56
Unabsorbed lass . -
Others 421 . 421
Unamartised cost {net of unamortised fees) - {596} (596)
TOTAL 7,216 (596) 6,620




Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Farmerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
Nates to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
{Alt amount in INR Lokbs, except for shore dato unless stated atherwiss)

Note 30: Earning per share
Basic earnings per share (EP5) is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted

average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to equity holders of Company by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity sharss that would be issued an the conversion of all the dilutive
potential ordinery sharesinto ordinary shares.

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2018 31 March 2018
Following reflects the profit and share data used in PS5 comautations:
Basic
Weighted average number of equity shares for computation of Basic EPS (in Lakhs) 12,871 12,871
Met profit for calculation of Basic EPS (INR} 10,625 2,830
Basic eaming par share {in INR) 0.82 0.22
Diluted
Weighted average number of equity shares for computation of Diluted EPS 13,174 13,080
Net profit for calculation of Diluted EPS (INR) 10,625 2,830
Diluted earning per share {In INR) 0.81 0.22
Nominal [ Face Value of aquity shares (In INR) 10 10

Reconciliation of weighted average number of equity shares for the year ended 31 March 2019 for basic and diluted earnings per share:

Particulars Weighted average no. of shares

Basic Diluted
Equity shares of face value of INR 10 per share
Opening 12,971 12971
Additions - 2c3
Closing 12,971 13,174

Reconciliation of weighted average number of equity shares for the year ended 31 March 2018 for basic and diluted earnings per shara:

Particulars Weighted average no, of shares
Basic Diluted
Equity shores of face volue of INR 10 per shore
Opening 12,971 12,971
Additions 4 109

Closing 12,971 13,080
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Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formarly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 21 March 2019
(Al gmount In INR Lakhs, except for share data uniess stated othervise)

Note 32:5egment information

The Group’s primary business segment is reflecied based on the principal business carrled out, |.e. Commercial financing {comprising corporate
loans, finance lease and operating leases), Accordingly, no separate disclosure for segment reporting is required to be made in the financial
statements of the Graup. The Group aperates principally within India and does nat have gperations in economic environments with different
risks and returns; hence, itis considered operating in single geographical segment.

The Groua is not reliant on revenues from transactions with any single external customer and does not receive 10% or more of its revenues from
transacticns with any single external customer,




Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Sarvices Private Lirnited)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements far the year ended 31 March 2019
(Al amount in INR Lokhs, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Note 33. Change in liabilities arising from financing activities

Particulars 1Aprit2018 Cashflows  Changesin Exchange Other™ 31 March 2019
fair values differance

Debt securities 68,972 132,948 - - (372) 201,548

Borrowings other than debt securities 172,761 41,923 - - (857) 213,827

Total liabilities from financing activities 231,733 174,871 - (1,229) 415,375

Particulars 1April 2017 Cash flows Changesin Exchange Other 31 Miarch 2018
fair values differance

Debt securities 68,972 = + - 58,972

Borrowings other than debt securities 36,811 136,288 = - (338) 172,761

Total liabilities from financing activities 35,811 205,260 - {338) 241,733

* Others column includes amortisation of transaction cost.
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Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
Al amaunt in INR Lakhs, except for shore dota uniess stoted othenwise)

Mote 34: Contingent liabilities, provisions and commitments
Te meet the financial needs of customers, the Company enters into various irrevocable commitments, which primarily consist of undrawn
commitment to land. Further the Company is also exposed to contingent liabilities arising from legal claims.

Contingent liabilities

Clalms against Group not acknowladged as dabts

The Group's pending litigations comprise of claims against the Group by the customers and pertaining to proceadings pending with Income Tax,
Excise, Custom, Sales/ VAT tax and other authorities. The Group has reviewed all its pending iitigations and proceedings and has adequately
provided for where provisions are required and disclosed as contingant liabilities where applicable, in its financial statemients, The Group does
not expect the outcome of these proceedirgs to have a materially adverse effect on its financial results.

Claims against the Greup not acknowledged as debts amounts to INR 481 [previous year INRA4S8). These relate to lawsults, claims,
investigations and praceadings, which arise in the ordinary course of business and includes amounts litigated against the Group net of amount
provided for contingencdies. While the ultimate liahility cannot be ascertsined at this time, based on facts currently avallable and its current
knowledge of the apglicabie law, management believes that the cases will not have 2 material adverse affect on the Group’s financial
staterments or its business aperaticns,

Based on demand notices received from the income tax department and indirect tax autherities, the Group ts contingently liable for INR 5,157
lakhs {Previous year INR 5,650 lakhs), The Group has challenged thess demands of the respective suthorities. While the ultimate outcome of the
above mentioned appeals cannot be ascertainad at this time, based or current knowledge of the applicable law, management balieves that
these law syits should not have a material adverse effect on the Group's finarcial statements ar its business operatians.

Provisions

The disclosure of provisions movement tor the year ended 31 March 2019 is as follows i

Nature of provision Opening Addition Reversalf Closing
utilisation

Provision for sales tax and service tax 1,719 72 - 1,791

Provision far customar disputes 204 - (156} 47

Total 1.923 72 (156) 1,838

The disclosure of provisions movement for the year ended 31 March 2018 is as follows:-

Nature of provision Opening Addition Reversal/ Ciosing
utilisation

Provision for sales tax and service tax? 1574 145 . 1,719

Provision for customer disputes® 182 22 - 204

Total 175 167 - 1,923

*® The Group has recoznised provisions on its bast assessment.
Nature of provisions:

Provision for sales tax and service tax: The Group has recognised pravisions on account of estimated potential lasses arising out of its inability
to recover indirect tax related amounts from clients and other litigation with various sales tax/service tax authorities.

Provision for disputes with clients: Tha Group has recognised pravision for settlement of certain disputes with its customers.
Commitment

(i} The Campany has a capital commitment of INR 11,839 {previous year INR 11,198} as at 31 March 2019,
{ii) The Company hias a revocable luan commitment of INR 8,881 (previous year INR 14,502) towards undrawn loan sanctions as a1 31 March
2019.

{ifi) Oparating lease commitmants — Group as lasses

The Group has entered into commercial leases for premises, leases vehicles, machine tools, cranes, research and development equipment’s,
earth moving machines, computars, helicopter ete. and air jet looms on operating leases. These leasas have an averaze life of between thrae
and five years with no renewal option inciuded in the contracts,

Fustura minimum lease payments under non—cancellable operating leases as at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018 are, as follaws:

31 March 2013 31 March 2018
Within ong year 1,012 511
After one year but not more than five years 502 310

1,914 821




{iv} Operating leases — Group as lessor

The Group leases vehicles, maching tosls, cranes, ressarch and develapment equipment’s, earth moving machines, computers, helicopler etc.
and air jet looms on operating leases. These leases have an average life of between three and five years with na renewal option included in the
contracts,

Future minimem lease payments under nor—canceliable operating leases as at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018 are, as foliaws:

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Within one year 54938 10,191
After one year but net more than five years 10,700 14,153
More than five years s =

20,638 24&




Cli Capital Services Private Lintited {Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
Motes to C lidated Financial Stats ts for the year ended 31 March 2019
{Al amount in INR Lakhs, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Note 35: Related party disclosures
A5 par Ind AS 28, the disclosures of transactions with tha related parties are given balow:

{a) List of retated parties whera control exists and related parties with whom transactions have taken place and relationships:

Particulars Relationship

Plutius Fingneials Put. Limited {Maurigiusl Holding Company

Clix Analytics Private Limited {Incorporated on 27 February 2017) Fellow Subsidianes {wet 31 August 2016)
Clix Loans Private Limited (Incorporated on 29 May 2017) Follow Subsidiaries {we.f 31 August 2016)
Key managerial personnel

Satyanarayana Eluri {from December 2016 ill May 2017) Whole-time Director

Wikas Aggarwal (from May 2017} ‘Whele-time Director

Bhavesh Gupta Whole-time Director

Somesh Kumar (Tl February 2013) Company Secretary

Ashhish K Paanday |From February 2019} Company Secratary

{b) The nature and volume of transactions carried out with the above refated parties in the ordinary course of husiness are as follows :

1, Remuneration ta kay ial p |*

Year ended Year ended
21 parch 20189 31 March 2018

Vikas Aggarwal - Whate time director (From May 2017}

Remuneration 78 81
Share-based payment 5 4
83 85

Samesh Kumar - Company Secretary - (Till February 2013}
Remuneration 9 10
Share-based payment - -

g 10

* The remunefation given to key managaral personnel does not include the provisions made for gratuity and leave benefit, as they are

determinad on actuarial hasi¢ for the Group as a whale.

2. Other transactions

Name of related party Year ended Year ended
3L March 20495 31 March 2018 |

Transactions

Amounts patd an behalf of the Company
Clix Anzlytics Private Limited 5
Clix Loans Private Limited ] 10

3, Balance Sheet - Cutstending Balances

Mame of related party 31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018

1 April 2017

Balance Outstanding as at year end :
Other advances
tntercompany receivable
Clix Loans Private Limuted 18 10
Intercompany payable
Clix Apalytics Private Limitzd 1 &




Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Farmerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
Notes to C lidated Financial Stat for the year ended 31 March 2019
{All amount in INR Lakhs, except for share dote unless stated othanwise)

Mote 36: Capital managament
For the purpase of the Group's capital management, capital Includes issued equity capital, share prentium and all other equity reserves
attributable to the equity holders of the Group. The primary objective of tha Group's capital g 1tis to imise the shareholder value,

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in econamic conditions and the requirements of the financial
covenants. The Group monitors capital using a capital adequacy ratio and debt equity ratio,

Theactuat debt equity ratio is as under:

Particulars 31 March2019 31 March2018 1 April 2017

Debts 418,470 242,548 36,944

Met worth 179,550 168,776 165,631
2.33 1.44 0.22

In order to achieve this overal! objective, the Group's capital management, amongst other things, alms to ensure that it meets finandial covenants
attached to the intarest-kearing loans and borrowings. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit Lhe bank to immediataly call
loans and borrowings. There have baen no breaches in the financial cavenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current period.

Na changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018,




Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Maney Financial Services Private Limited)
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
{All arrount in INR Lakhs, except for share data unless stoted otherwise)

Mote 37. Events after reporting date

Thera have been no events after the reporting date that reguire disclosure in these financial statements,

Mote 38: Revenue from contracts with customers

Credit compliance and debt advisory fees

The perfarmance cbligation in regards of arrangements where fees is charged per transaction executed s recognised at point in time when
trade is enecuted. Inother arrangements, where fees is fixed irrespactive of number of transaction executed is recognised over the term of
contract.

Insurance commission
The performance obligation in regards of insurance arrangaments are recognised upon issue of the insurance palicy .

Year ended Year ended
PRIpledinre 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Type of services ar service
Credit compliance and debt advisory fees 1,181 -
Insurance commission 78 91
Total revenue from contracts with customers 1,257 91

Geographical markets

India 1,257 a1
Qutside India - -
Total revenue from contracts with customers 1,257 a1

Timing of revenue recognition

Services transferred at a point in time 1,257 91
Services transferred over time % 35
Total revenue from contracts with customers 1,257 91
Inf ion about company’s perfarmance obligation

The performance obligatian in regards of arrangements where the above fess is charged per transaction executed is recognised at pomt in
time when transaction s executed.
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Clix Capital Senvices Privats Limitad {Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(Ail amount in INR Lakhs, except for shore data unless stated atherwise)

Note 40: Risk Management

40.1 Introduction and risk profite

Whilst risk is inherent in the Company’s activitles, it is managed through an integrated risk managemant framework, including angoing
identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. This praocess of risk management Is critical to the
Company's continuing profitability and each individyal within the Company is accountable for the risk exposures relating to his or her
responsibilities. The Company is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and market risk. It is also subject to various operating
and business risks.

40.1.1 Risk management struture and policies

The Board of Directors are respensible for the overall risk management approach and for approving the risk management strategies and
principles. The Risk Managemen: Committas has the overall responsibility for the development of the risk strategy and implementing
principles, frameworks, policles and limits, The Risk Management Cammittes is responsible for managing risk decisians and monitoring risk
levels and reports to the Board.

The Risk Management Unit is responsible for implementing and maintaining risk related procedures to ensure an independent control
process is maintained, The unit works closely with and reports to the Risk Management Committes, to ensure that procedures are
compliant with the overall framewark,

The Unit s also responsible for monitoring com
Its own unit which is responsible for the cantrol



Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Maney Finandal Services Private Limited)
MNates te Cc lidated Financial § for the year ended 31 March 2019
(Al amaunt in VR Lakhs, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

40.2 Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that the Group will incur 2 luss betause its customers or counterparties fail to discharge their contractual obligations.
The Group manages and controls credit risk by setting limits on the amount of risk it 1s willing to accept for individual counterparties and for
geographical and industry concentrations, and by monitering exposures in relation to such limits. Credit risk is monitored by the credit risk
department of the Group's independent Risk £ L Unit, It is their responsibility to review and manage credit risk.

40.2.1 Exposure ta credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represants the maximuim eredit exposure, The maximum expasurs ta credit risk was INR 493,337,
MR 332,153 and IMR 111,621 as of 31 March 2019, 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2017 respactively, being the total of the carrying amount of
balances and other financial assets.

40.2.2 Analysis of risk conc i

The Group's concentrations of risk for loans are managed by type of loan- Carporate and Retaif.

Loans to cusiamers 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Corparate
(A} Rating
-A 14,348 7432 -
- - 28,352 4,457
-B . - 7.910
- B+ - - 19,114
-BB 5,268 18,387 5,019
- BB - - 7,752 -
- BB+ A4r4970 24,140 3,495
- BBB 73478 64,143 5,006
-BBB- 81,855 49396 1,182
- BBB* 40,700 41,320 14,311
- Mot rated 11,300 11,333 11,325
275,418 252,565 77,819
{B} Industry portfolic
- Airlines & related services 5,288 16,910 3,858
- Cenglomerate - 3,673
- Crane rentzl - = 2,572
- FMCG 14,544 26,092 13,500
- Hetels & Rastaurants 10,003 9975 7,482
- infrastructure 38,676 16,535 1,018
- Insurance 15,634 10,556 5,148
- diedia and entertamment 14,638 10,117 1,245
- Paper Manufacturing 11,300 11,333 11,325
- Real estate 10,021 13,929 9,970
- Construction and Manufacturing 38,225 21,614 10,575
- Textile - 130 1,322
- Electrical Equipment - 7,482 -
- Finencial services 25,944 35,941 -
- Eharmaceutical 22,597 14,804 -
- Education 4,276 - -
- Other services 64,343 56,747 4,126
275,419 252,565 77,819
Retails
(A} Sub-partfolio
- Housing Laan 5,521 30 -
- Loan against Property 28,171 4,090 -
- Hira / Infa leasaf finance |ease 14,058 13,355 13,746
- Healthcare and equipment finance 35,228 18,979 1,602
- Loan against sharas ] 68 #
- Business Loans and personal loans 105,534 18,883 -
- Consumer Durables 3,548 1,205 -
- Loan against electronic payahles 12,835 4,122 £
- Supply Chain 573 509 957
= Used cars 2,077 1,340 -
- Two Wheeler 2,645 “ -
211,695 G8,18{ 33,305
(B} Secured/ Unsecurad
- Secured 88,708 42,761 32,348
- Unsecurad 122,987 25419 957
211,695 68,180 33,305

Tetal 487,114 320,745 111,123




9008 6897 T95°E SIR'El 958182 zZLE [2E42 268°042 PEO'ZIS ZEE'9 [[TET ZIZI6Y [T
- - - - - - - - - - - - sieah g Jang
9618 - ™ 96T'8 588'02 - < <geoz 20904 96ET . (4741 sieah § o14eak £ 1anp
96161 89 = BZH'BT Lrz'ott £04 = rrE'e0L STLSHE viv * 152'5hz siead g oy deak 1 aaag
PRE'TT 179 £95E T02'9T P2LOST GIE'E (41404 £9T'0pT TOL'SET E9b'y 06%'vT BYLILT Jeah T ue ssaq
Sangey {sanunaas sanqer) {senunaas sapigey (sanunaas

|efaueuLy 193p Sujpnju) (I 193p du|pnjau) [ejpueuy Wap Juipnju)

|B10) Jayig sB|qeleg sBupmossog |Roy Jayig sa|qedeg s3umouiog B30y Byin sa|qeded sfumoniog Slenajuey|
LT0T Iudy T AI0Z Yiew TE BIOZ YMepy 1g

; “SHillgel pue s1asse [epuetl) jo sapyoud
Armieus auy Suigsien Aq pue ‘smoy yses jeniae PUE 1sE3340) Bulloyuew Ajsnonupuas Aq "saypae) ypasa UBMIPUN pUB sanI3sad ysed atenbape Buputiuiew dq yep Aiipinbif safeusty Auedwon ayy “aapd ajeunseal e 18 pue jauuew LIETTY

Byl uonisod ¢ atepinby| ol 2jneun uiaq jo sl ay) pue Ameiy Nepdosdde 341 18 oojund jasse ue Suipuny Jo 1503 ayyuy 3sealul papadisun ay) wioly asue Aew 45U SIYL “Salujiqey pue siasse Auedwo? jo 3j1joid Aniew ays v ouasagp
B Ag pasnes TR S W ANIger 1assy ue 23ey Aew Apueinsas Ssalisng jo yImosa Jayling pue sa qE]) 1eaueuy ay; Aedas o1 amusy SNWIS-03 pue 1500 whwpde 18 Spuny jo linowe ayenbape jo Aupgejeneun
BUYL uawanbal Jad se asn oy B|qE|IBAR 24E SpUN) 1BY3 2ansua pue Aupinby UBYNs UieluBW 01 &) JuauRIetew Hsu Aypinbi o aaysalqo YL suolieEgo jelRUBLY 53 jERW JoU uBd Auedwed au 1eyy ysu Ul a1 siyad sy Aypinbi

s Aypinb groy

{aspuayio parogs S5apn DIop Jioys Jof 1dzoxa SYYOT B 4 IUnown e}

6T0Z Y2BN TE papus deak ayy Joyp SudIeIg [Blaueuy Paiep|josun) o) saton

(P3N 33eAlg sagjnias I2RURUL Aduoly 30 se umouy Apauitog) payjugy BALG SaLSS [eyde ny
P !



Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
{Alf cmount in INR Lakhs, except for shore data unless stoted otherwise)

40.4 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a finandial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market factors.
Such changes in the values of financial instruments may result from changes in the interest rates, credit, liguidity and other market
changes. The Company’s exposure to market risk is primarily on account of Interest rate risk.

Interest rate risk

The company is subject to interest rate risk, primartly since it lends to customers at rates and for maturity periods that may differ from
funding sources. Interest rates are highly sensitive to many factors beyand control, including the monetary palicies of of the Reserve Bank
of India, deregulation of the financial sector in India, domestic and international ecanomic and political conditions, Inflation and other
factors. In order to managa interest rate risk, the company seek ta optimize horrowing profile between shart-term and long-term loans.
The company adopts funding strategies to ensure diversifisd resource-raising options to minimize cost and maximize stability of funds.
Assets and liabilitics are categorizad intu various time buckets based on thelr maturities and Asset Liability Management Committae
supervise aninterest rate sensitivity report periodically for assessment of interest rate risks,

The company mitigates its interest rate risk by keeping a talanced portfolio of fixed and variable rate loans and borrowings.
Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates (all other variables being constant) of
the Company’s statemens af profit and loss:

{a) Loans (floating)-

Year ended 31 March 2019 Year ended 31 March 2018
Particulars Basis points Eifect on profit  Basis points Effect on profit
hefore tax before tax
Increase in basis points 50 1,120 50 321
Decraase in basis points -50 (1,120} =50 {321)
|b} Borrowings {floating)
Year ended 31 March 2019 Year cnded 31 March 2018
Particulars Basis points Effect on profit  Basis points Effect on profit
before tax hefore tax
Increasza in basis points 50 {938) 50 [511)

Decrease in basis paints -50 938 -50 5i1




Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Mon
for the year ended 31 March 2018

Nates to Consolidated Financiat §

[All amount in INR Lakhs, except for share data unfess sta ted otherwise)

Note 41. Corporate social respansibility

Inaccordance with section 135 {5} of the Companies Act, 201

ey Fnancial Services Private Limited)

3 {'the Act’} requires a company to spend a certain amount as expanditure towards Carporate

Saclal Responsibifity [CSR). The proviso to section 135 (5) of the Act provides that if the specified amaunt is net spent by the company during the yaar, the
Directors’ Report should disclose the reasans for nat spending the amount. In accardance with the aboye section, the amount which is not spent as per the
provisiens of the Act on C5R activities, the company is not raquired to create provision in the financial statement. The Group has nat created any provisisn
with regard to the €S8 activities in the Financial Staternant.

The Group has not incurred any expenditure an CSR activities for the year endad 31 March 2019 {Previous year : ML)

Note 42. Expenditure in foreign currency

feula Year ended Year ended
Setloliare 31March 2019 31 March 2018
Corporate and other service charges - 68
Legal and professional 261 487
Advertisement and sales promotion 38 -
239 555
e =

Note 43. Un-hedged foreign CUFFENCY BXpOSUre

The Group does not have exposure in respect of foreign currency denominated asssts {trade receivable) not hedged as at 31 March 2019 by derivative
instruments or otherwise, [Pravious year USD Nil (MR Nill]. Sienilar amourt in trada payable is USD 2.37 (INR 164.17] [Previous year UsD 2,43 (iNR 158) ).

Note 44. Employee Stock Option Plan

{i} Details of the plan are given below:

The Group has formulated share-based payment scherres for fts ploy
{"Plan”). Details of 3ll grants in eperation during the year ended March L2

{including employ

of subsidiaries) - Employee Stock Option Plan 2017
019 are 35 given below:

Particulars Grant- Grant-It

Scheme Name Employee Stack Option Plan 2017 Employee Stock Option Plan 2017
Date of grant 18-0ct-17 T-Dec-18
Me. of options approved 179,708,445 124,708,445

No. of options grantad 25,658,650 7,735,000

Exercise prica per option (in InR) 13.10 15.10
niethod of settlement Equity Equity

Vesting period and conditions

Fixed vesting period is as:
- Istvesting "3 years from the datz of grant
= 2nd vesting "On expiry of ana year fram the st
westing date”
- 3rd vesting "On expiry of one y2ar from the Znd
vesting date"

Conditional Vesting

A} S0% aptions tavest as per stipulated
vasting schedule ["Fixed Vesting”)

B} 50% options to vest as per stipuiated
vesting schedule an fulfillment of
stipulated conditions {"Conditicnal
Vesting”}

8,552,883
8,552,883

8,552,893

Linked with conditions over the three
years as stipulated In stock option plan

A} 50% options ta vest a5 per
stipulated vesting schedule ["Fixes
Vesting")

3) 50% options to vest a5 per
stipulated vesting schedule on
fulfiliment of stipulated conditions
|"Conditional Vesting")

2,578,333
2,578,333

2,578,333

Linked with canditions over tha
three years as stipulated in stock

action plan

Exercise period Five years from the date of each vesting Five years from ths date of each
vesting
{ii} The exp T ised for loyee services d during the year is shown in the following table:
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Expense arising from equity-settled shara-based payment ransactions 14z 192
Total expense arising from share-hased payment 142 192




Clix Capital Services Private Uimited [Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limitad}
Motesto C Tidated Fi i for the yesr ended 31 March 2019
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(iit) Movernants during the year
The fallowing table il'ustrates the number and wearghted average exercise prices {WAEP} of, and meovements during the year:

Particufars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

MNumk Mumber| Numbar Humber

Grant -1 Grant -1 Grant-| Grant -l
Sutstanding at 1 Agril 24,161,650 - - 5
Granted during the year - 7,735,000 25,558,650 -
Farfeitad during the year (8,242,400} {250,000} (1,437,000} -
Exercised during the year 3 - = %
Expirad during the year - - - =
Outstanding et 31 March 17,919,250 7.485.000 24,161,650 F:
Exercisable 2t 31 March = = < -
Waighted average exarcise prices [WAEP) 13.10 15.10 13.10 =

! The weightad average ramaining contraciual life for the snare options outstanding as at 31 March 2019 was 7.58 years (Grant-1], 8.68 years {Grant -1} and

{31 March 2018 : 8.58 years [Grant-I)).

* The weightad average far value of options granted during the year was 5,80 (31 March 2018: 6.33).

¥ The range of exercise prices for options outstanding at the and of the year was INR 13.10 per opticn te INR 15.10 per aption (31 March 2018: INR 13.10

par aption).

The following tables list the Inputs to the models used for the options granted during the year ended 31 Mareh 2019 and 31 March 2018, respectively:

paitieuiare Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Madz| used Black-Schales Black-Schales

Madel Modal
Cividend yiald {341 0% 0%
Expected volatility (%)
-Tranche | 43.37% 43.66%
- Tranche It 43.43% 43.99%
- Tranche il 43,68% 44, 18%
Risk-frae interost rate {36}
-Tranchet 7.39% 6.77%
~Tranche il R GA7%
- Tranche It TAT% 5.95%
Life af the options grarted {years)
= First vesting 3 yoars 3 years
- Second vestng A years 4 years
- Third vesting S years 5years
Fair value of the option (INR}
« Tranche | 6,13 §.25
- Tranche 1l 6.82 6.86
- Tranche 1! 7.40 739
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Notes to lidated Financial Stat s for the year ended 31 March 2019
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Mate 45 : Maturity analysis of assets and liabitities
The table below shows an analysis of assets and Kabilities analysed according to when they are expected 10 be recavered or settied, With regard to loans and
advances to customers, the Company uses the same basis of expected repayment behaviour as used for esti ing the EIR. Issued debt reflect the contractual
coupon amortisations:

31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Within 12 After12 Within 12 After 12 Within12  After 12
Assets maonths months Yokl manths months Takas manths manths oAl
Financial Assats
Cash and cash equivalents 40,193 - 40,193 12,119 - 12,119 3,748 - 3,748
:::":a'am SR 115 27 342 415 18 433 214 2 237
V|

Loans 160,960 311,168 472,128 75,146 232,808 307,954 45,135 55,543 100,679
Investments - 396 396 - 7,866 7,866 14,437 7,847 22,284
Other financial assets 5,778 420 6,196 1,184 225 1,409 294 181 475
Non-financial Assets
Current tax asset - 15,286 15,286 - 17,561 17,561 - 14,583 14,583
Deferred tax assets {net) - 17,022 17,022 - 8487 8,487 - 6,620 6,620
Praperty, Plant and Equipment - 25,087 25,087, - 26,672 26,672 - 22,354 22,354
Goodwill - 36,768 36,768 36,768 36,768 36,768 36,768
Intangible assets - 2,850 2,690 - 1,507 1,507 - 5 5
Capital work in progress - 200 200 - 73 73 - 357 357
Intangible assets uncer : 1192 1,192 . 1,051 1,051 - 129 128
development
Other non-financial assets 3,356 1424 4,780 3,300 765 4,066 2,207 860 3,067
Assets held for sale 12 - 12 13 - 18 26 - 26

Total Assets 210,612 411,681 622,292 92,181 333,803 425,984 66,061 145,270 211,332
LIABILITIES

Financial Liabilities
Trade Payahles

(i) total outstanding dues of
creditors sthar than micro 10,836 - 10,836 4,140 - 4,140 222 - 222
enterprises and small enterprises

Other Payables

{i} total outstanding dues of

creditors other than micro 3,654 - 3,654 3,101 - 3,101 3,338 - 3,339
enterprises and small enterprises

Debt Securities 51,920 149,628 201,548 68,972 - 68,572 - - *
Borrowings (ther than debt 90422 123405 2387 51090 121671 12761 12868 2300 35,811
securities)

Other financial liabilities 6,140 1,297 7,437 3,807 355 4,162 2,633 68 2,701

Meon-Financial Liabilities

Current tax liability - - - - - - 1 - i
Provisions 55 2,104 2,158 59 2,080 2,139 228 1,822 2,058
Other Non-financial Liabilities 2,686 596 3,282 1,837 36 1933 530 39 569
Total liabilities 165,712 277,030 442,742 133,006 124,202 257,208 19,822 25,878 45,701

Met 44,899 134,651 179,5501 (40,825) 209,601 168,776] 46,238 119352 165,631




Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private tinvited)
flotes to C lidated Financial 51 for the year ended 31 March 2019
(Al amount in INR Lakhs, ercept for share data ualess stated otherwise}

Note 46: Additional information pursuant to para 2of g i tions for the preparation of lidated fi izl st as at 31 March 2018 and 31
March 2017

The consohdated financial fatemants inclsde the financial statements of Group and its subsidiarias. Group does not have any [oint ventures or sssociates

Nat assets Share in profit or loss
As % of
Name of entity As % of daped s on ‘
nEEATAL: profit or logs
Holding Company
Clix Capltal Sarwess Privare Limitad S4% 164,123 7% Fad)
Sybsidiary T
¥ pany

Indian :-
Clix Finance india Unlimited 42% 74,651 S 10,035
Clix Housing Finance Private Limited ES A 4,624 “3% (399}
§ pany climination and ¢ ficdat 1j -38%, -68,058 3% 334

Total 100% 179,550 100% 10,633
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Clix Capital Services Private Limited {Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
Notes to Consalidated Financial Staterments for the year ended 31 March 2019
{Aftamount in INR Lokhs, excapt for shore data unfess stated othervise}

Note 47. First-time adoption of ind AS

These financial statements, for the year ended 31 March 2019, are the first financial statements the Company has prepared in accordance with Ind AS.
For periads up to and including the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with accounting
standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companles (Accounts) Rules, 2014 {Indian
GAAP or previous GAAP),

Accordingly, the Company has prepared financial statements which comgly with Ind AS applicable for periods ending on 31 March 20189, together with
the comparative peried datz as at and for the year ended 31 March 2018, as described in tha summary of significant accounting policies. In preparing
these financial statements, tha Company’s epening balance sheet was prepared as 2t 1 April 2017, the Company’s date of transition to Ind AS. This
note explains the principal adjustments mage by the Company in restating its Indian GAAP financial statements, including the balance shast as atl
April 2017 and the financial statements as atand for the year ended 31 March 2018.

Exemptions applied
Ind AS 101 allows first-time adopters certain exemptions from the retrospective application of certain requirements under Ind AS. The Company has
applied the following exemptions/exceptions:

1. Estimates

The estimates at 1 April 2017 and at 31 March 2018 are consistent with those mada for the same dates in accordance with Indian GAAP apart from the
following items where appiication of indian GAAP did nat require estimation:

- Impairment of financial assets based an expected credit loss model

- Determination of discounted value

The estimates used by the Company to present these amounts in accordance with Ind AS reflect conditions at 1 April 2017, the date of transition to Ind
AS and as of 31 March 2018,

2, Classification and measurement of financial assets
The Company has classified the financial assets in accordance with Ind AS 109 on the basis of facts and circumstances that exist at the date of

transition to Ind AS,

3. Impairment of financial assets

Tha Company has applied the exception related impalrment of financial assets given in Ind AS 101. It has used reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or affort to determine the cradit risk at the date that financial assets wers initially recognized and compared that
to the credit risk as at April 1, 2017,

4. Investments in subsidiaries in separate financial statements
In the praparation of separate financial statements, the company has opted to account for its investments in subsidiaries at Previous GAAP carrying
amount &t the transition date.

5. Arrangements containing a lease:

Appendix Cto Ind AS 17 requires an entity to assess whethzr a contract or arrangament contains a lease. In accordance with Ind AS 17, this assessment
should be carried out at the inception of the contract or arrangement. However, the Company has used Ind AS 101 exemption and assessed all
arrangements based for embedded leases based an conditions in place as at the date of transition.

6. De-recognition of financial assets and liabilities
The Compary has elected ta apply the de-recognition provisfon of Ind AS 108 prospectively fram the date of transition.

7. Business Combinations

Ind AS 103 Business Combinations has not been applied to acquisitions of subsidiaries, which arz considerad businesses under Ind AS that occurred
before 1 April 2017. Use of this exemption means that the Indian GAAP carrying amounts of assets and liabifities, that are required to he recognised
under Ind AS, is their deemed cost at the date of the acquisition. After the date of the acquisition, measurement is in accordance with respective Ind
AS. The Group recognises all assets acquired and lfabilities assumed in a past business combinatlon, except (i} certain financial assets and liabilfties that
were derecognised and that fall under the derecognition exception, and (i} assets (including goodwill) and liabilities that were not recognised in the
acquirer's consolidated balance sheet under its previous GAAP and that would not qualify for recognition under Ind AS in the individuzl balance sheet
of the acquiree, Assets and liabilities that do not qualify for recognition under Ind AS are excluded from the opening Ind AS balance sheet. The Group
did not recognise or exclude any previcusly recognised amaunts as a result of Ind AS recognition requirements.

Ind AS 101 also requires that Indian GAAP carrying amount of goodwill must ba used in the opening tnd AS balance shesr {apart from adiustments for
goodwill impairment and recognition or derecognition of intangible assets). In accordance with Ind AS 101, the Group has testad goodwill for
impairment at the date of transition ta Ind AS. No goodwill impairment was deemed necessary at 1 April 2017,




Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
{All amount in INR locs, except for share datg unless stated otherwise]

b Equity reconciliation for 1 April 2017

Footnotes Previous GAAP Adjustments Ind AS
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3,748 - 3,748
Bank balance other than abova 237 - 237
Loans (i} 102,550 {1,881) 100,673
Investments {ii} 22,205 {21) 22,284
Other financial assets {iii) 537 {62} 475
Non- financial assets
Current tax assets (net) 14,583 5 14583
Deferred tax assets (net) {wi) 6,066 553 6,620
Property, plant and equipment 22,354 0 22,334
Goodwill 36,768 - 36,758
Intangible assets 5 - 5
Capital wark in progress 357 - 357
Intangible assets under development 129 - 129
Other non- financial assets {iii) 3,006 61 3,067
Assets held for sale 26 - 26
Total assets 212,682 (1,350) 211,332
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Payables
(1} Trade payables 222 = 222
{ll) Other payables 3,339 - 3,339
Debt securities = - e
Borrowings (other than debt securities) ' 26,811 = 36,811
Other financial liabilities 2,712 (11) 2,701
Non financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities (net) 1 - 1
Provisions (i) 1,959 100 2,059
Other non-financial liabilities 558 11 569
Total liabilities 45,602 59 45,701
Equity
Equity share capital 129,708 - 128,708
Other equity (i), i, i), 37371 {1,449) 35,923
{vi)
Total equity 167,080 (1,849) 165,631

Total liabilities and equity 212,682 (1,350} 211,332




Clix Capital Services Private Limited {Formerly known as GE Meney Financial Services Private Limited)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(Al amount in INR lacs, except for share data unless Stated otherwise)

¢ _Equity reconciliation for 31 March 20138
’ Previous GAAP Adjustments ind AS

Footnotes
ASSETS
Financial assats
Cash and cash equivalents 12,118 - 12,119
Bank balance ather than above {i) 433 - 433
Loans (i1}, {iv) 307,771 184 307,955
Investments {iii} 7,876 {11) 7,866
Other financial assets 1,490 (82) 1,409
MNon- financial assets
Current tax assets (net) {vi) 17,561 - 17,561
Deferred tax assets {net} 8,477 10 8,487
Praperty, plant and equipment 26,671 A, 26,672
Goadwill 36,768 - 36,768
Intangible assets 1,507 - 1,507
Cepital work in progress 73 - 73
Intangible assets under development (i) 1,051 - 1,051
Other non- financial assets 3,984 80 4,065
Assets held for sale 21 (3) 18
425,804 180 425,984
Total assets
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY.
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Payables
{I) Trade payables 4,139 1 4,140
(it} Other payables 3,101 - 3,101
Debt securities 68,972 - 68,972
Borrowings {ather than debt securities) 172,761 - 172,761
Other financial liahilitias 4,287 {125) 4,162
Non financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities (net) + - -
Provisions (i) 2,112 27 2,139
Other non-financial labilities 1,808 125 1,933
Total liabilities 257,180 28 257,208
Equity
Equity share capital 129,708 - 129,708
Other equity (i), (i), (i), (vi 38,916 152 39,068
)Avi)
Total equity 168,624 152 168,776

Total liabilities and equity 425,804 180 425,984




Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limitad)
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
{All omount in INR lacs, except for share datg unfess stoted otherwise)

d Profit reconciliation for the year ended 31 March 2018

Previous GAAP Adjustments Ind AS
Footnotes
Revenue from operations
Interest income 18,714 (8) 18,706
Rental income 10,117 - 10,117
Fees and commission income 369 s 369
Net gain on fair value changes 689 5 689
Total revenue from operations 29,889 {8) 29,881
Other income {iii} 4,368 25 4,393
Total income 34,257 17 34,274
Expenses
Finance costs 7,667 (67) 7,600
Fees and commissian expanse 36 69 105
Impairment on financial instruments i, (if) 8,159 (2,114) 6,045
Employee benefits expense {iv) 7,286 258 7,544
Depreciation, amortization and impairment 7,570 - 7,570
Other expenses (it} 5,347 23 5,369
Total expenses 37,064 (1,833) 35,233
Profit/{loss) before tax (2,808) 1,850 {959)
Tax expanse:
{1) Current tax (1,899) . (1,899)
(2} Deferred tax {wi) (2,410} 520 {1,890)
Profit/{loss) for the year 1,501 1,330 2,830
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of defined benefit liability (vii 146 146
income tax effect : (23) {23)
Other comprehensive income , net of income tax - 123 123

Total comprehensive income for the year 1,501 1,453 2,953
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Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
Notes to Consolidated Financlal Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(Alt amount in INR locs, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Footnotes to the reconciliation of equity as at 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018 and profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2018

Loans and advances

Under Indian GAAP, the Group has created provision for loans and advances based on the Guidelines on prudential norms issued by
Reserve Bank of India. Under Ind AS, impairment allowance has been determined based on Expected Loss model (ECL). Due to ECL
model, the Group impaired its loans and advances by INR 1,880 lakhs on 1 April 2017 which has been eliminated zgainst retainad
earnings. The impact of INR 2,066 lakhs for year ended on 31 March 2018 has baen recognised in the statement of profit and loss. In
addition, ECL on off balance sheat has alsa been determined as per ind AS for INR 29 lakhs as on 1 April 2017 which has been eliminated
2gainst retained earnings. The impact of INR 74 lakhs for year ended on 31 March 2018 has been recognised in the statement of profit
and loss.

Investments

Under Indian GAAP, the Group accounted for long term investments in debt securities as investment measured at cost less pravision for
other than temporary diminution in the value of investments. Under Ind AS, the Group has designated investment in debt securities at
amortised cost. Ind AS required amortised cost financial assets to be measured using effective interest rate. The differenca between
amortised cost and the Indlan GAAP carrying amount on the date of transition has been recognised in retained earnings.

Under Ind AS, impairment allowance is determined on the debt securities based on Expected Loss model (ECL).Due to ECL model, the
Group impaired its loans and advances by INR 21 on 1 April 2017 which has been eliminated against retained earnings, The impact of INR
23 for year ended on 31 March 2018 has besn recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Discounting of security deposits for leases

Under Previous GAAP, the security deposits received for leases are accounted at an undiscounted value, Under Ind AS, the security
deposits for leases have been recognised at discounted value and the difference between undiscounted and discounted value has been
recognised as ‘Deferred lease rent income’ under 'Other Non-financial liabllities' which has been amortised over respective lease term
as rent income under ‘other income’. The discounted value of the security deposits is increased over the period of lease term by
recognising the notional interest expensa by netting it rental income under ‘other income’.

Share Based Payments

Under [ndian GAAP, the Group recognisad only the intrinsic value for the share basad payments plans as an expense. Ind AS requires the
fair value of the share options to be determined using an appropriate pricing mode! recognised over the vesting period. An expense of
INR 58 lakhs has been recognised in profit or loss for the peried ended March 31, 2018 with correspanding impact in other equity for
ESOP issued by Parent Company.

Remeasurements of defined benefit plans

Both under indian GAAP and Ind AS, the Group recognised costs related to its post-employment defined benefit plan on an actuarial
basls. Under Indian GAAP, the entire cost, including actuarial gains and losses, are charged to profit or loss, Under ind AS,
remeasurements [comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the assat celling, excluding amounts included in net interest on
the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability] are racognised immediately in the balance shest with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCL Thus the
employee benefit cost is reduced by INR 146 lakhs and Remeasurement gains/ losses on defined benefit plans has been recognised in
the OCl net of tax.




Clix Capital Services Private Limited {Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
{Ai amount in INR lacs, except for share data unless stoted otherwise)

{vi} Deferred tax
Indian GAAP requires deferred tax accounting using the staterent of profit and loss approach, which facuses on differances between taxable profits and
accounting profits for the period, Ind AS 12 requires antities ta account for deferrad taxes using tne balance sheet approach, which focuses on
temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset o liability in the balance sheet and its tax base, The application of Ind AS 12 approach
has rasulted in recognition of deferred tax on new temporary differences which was not required under indian GAAP.

In addition, the varicus transitional adjustments lead to temporary differences. According to the accounting policies, the Group has 10 account for such
differences. Deferred tax adjustments are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in retainad earnings or a separate component of

equity.

(vii) Reclassification of provision of standard / non-performing assets (NPA)
Underindian GAAR provision for NPA and standard asset were presented under provisions. Howewver, under Ind AS financial assets measured at
amortised cost (majorly loans) are presented net of provision for expected credit losses. Consequently, the Group has reclassified the Indian GAAP
provisions for standard assets / NPA’s amounting to INR 2,192 lakhs and INR 533 lakhs on 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018 respectively.

{vii} Other comprehensive income
Under Indian GAAP, the Group has not presented other comprehensive income (OCH) separately. Hence, it has reconciled Indian GAAP profit or loss to
profit or profit or loss as per Ind AS. Further, indian GAAP profit or foss is recanciled to total comprehensive income as per ind AS.

{uiii} Statement of cash flows
The transition from Indian GAAP to Ind AS has not had a material impact on the statement of cash flows.

lix) Figures under previous GAAP have been regrouped) reclassified for ind AS purpose wheraver applicable.

48 Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006
There are no amounts that need to be disclosed in accordance with the Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 200a {the ‘MSMED’)
pertaining to micra or small enterprises. for the year ended March 31, 2019 {no supplier has intimated the Group about its status as micro or small
enterprises or its registration with the appropriate authority under MSMED).

43 The Group's pending litigations comprise of claims against the Group primarily by the customars. The Group has reviewsd all its pending litigations and
proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisians are required and disclosed the contingent liabilities where applicable, in its financial
statements. The Group does not expact the outcome of these proceedings to have a material adverse effect on its financial statements of the Group as
at March 31, 2019,

5

Previous year figures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever applicabie.
As per our report of even date

For 5.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
{CAl Firm Registration No. 201045W/E300004 Clix Capital Services Private Limited (formerly known as GE Maney
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Regd. Office: 4th floor, Kailash Bullding, Kasturba Gandhi Marg, Connaught Place, New Delhi, North East -110001
Telephone: 491-124 3302000 | Website: www.clix.capital

(INR In |akhs)
Statoment of Standalone Asset and Liabilitios as at 31 March 2020
Asat As at
Fatiogn 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Audited Audited
ASSETS
Finandial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 12,5713 32,393
Bank balance other than above 1,021 96
Loans 293,641 281,695
Investments 121,260 104,725
Other financial assets 1,586 3,414
Total Finandal Assets 430,081 a2,323
FNow finandal assets
Current tax assets (net) 8346 10,344
Deferred tax assets (net) 4,421 8,602
Property, plant and equipment 852 1,054
Intangible assets 2,696 2,680
Caphtal work-in-progress - 161
Intangible assets under development 1,205 947
Right-of-use assets 669 -
Other non- financial assets 2,695 2,249
Total Non-Financial Assets 20,884 26,037
Assets held for sale 6 -
Total assets 450,971 448,360
LABIITIES AND EQUITY
UABILITIES
Financial liabilities
A f 1
Payables
1) Trade payables
a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 535 6,487
enterprises
1) Other payables
3) Total outstanding dues of miro enterprises and small enterprises - -
b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 2,580 2,706
enterprises
Debt securities 129379 139,369
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 123,613 125,749
Lease Habilities 715 -
Other financial liabikties 2,351 3.638
Total Finandal Liabilities 259,173 277,949
|Non finandial liabilities
Provisions 1224 833
Other non-finandal kabikties 800 1.455
Total Non-Financial Uabilities 2,024 2,288
|Equity
Equity share capital 140,758 129,708
Other equity 49.016 38.415
Total equity 189,774 168,123
Total Habilities and equity 450,971 448,360

For and on behalf of the Board of
cncwku:’r-y
Bhavesh Gupta
Chiet Executive Officer

Place: Gurugram
Date: 30 June 2020
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(INR In lakhs)
Statement of Standalone Financial results for the year ended 31 March 2020
Half Year ended Year ended
Particulars
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Unaudited Unaudited Audited Audited
Revenue from operations
Interest income 22,997 17,906 44,677 31,542
Fees and commission Income 1,292 1,278 2,330 1,300
Net gain on fair value changes 576 833 1,063 1,474
Total revenue from operations 24,865 20,017 48,070 34,316
Other income 293 785 2,574 1,140
Total income 25,158 20,802 50,644 35,456
Expenses
Finance costs 13,971 11,898 27,822 20,613
Fees and commission expense 137 34 361 171
Impairment on financial instruments 7,468 1,195 3,018 2,841
Employee benefits expense 2,741 2,401 5,905 5,687
Depreciation and amortization 800 422 1,709 861
Other expenses 2,827 2,057 6,007 4,233
Total expenses 27,944 18,007 44,822 34,406
Profit/(loss) before tax (2,786) 2,795 5,822 1,050
Tax expense:
(1) Current Tax (2,922) 437 (416) 437
(2) Deferred Tax 1,763 381 4,163 (128)
Profit for the year ]hsﬂ) 1‘977 3‘075 741
Other comprehensive income
a. Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of defined benefit liability 33 17 71 36
Income tax effect (7) (7) (18) (13)
Other Comprehensive | , net of i tax 26 10 53 23
Total comprehensive income for the year ().,SOH 1,987 2,128 764
Earnings per equity share®
Basic (INR) (0.12) 0.15 0.15 0.06
Diluted (INR) (0.12) 0.15 0.15 0.06
Nominal Value per share (INR) 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00

*Half year-end Basic EPS and Diluted EPS are not annualised

Bhavesh Gupta
Chief Executive Officer

Place: Gurugram
Date: 30 June 2020
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Notes:
1 The Company has lssued d Ested ible deb on 27 Dx ber 2019 and rdingty will be rep g financial results for the first time
a3 per the requirement of Regulation 52 of the SEBI (Listing Obl and 3 q ) Regul. 2015, as ded.

2 The above results for the year ended March 31, 2020 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board of Directors at its meeting held
on 30 June 2020, in d. with the req of Regul. 52 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and disd equi ) 2015, as
amended. The results for the year ended March 31, 2020 have been audited by the Statutory AudRors of the Company.

3 These Standalone Financial results have been prepared In d. with the ition and rinciples of Indian Accounting Standards ("ind
AS”) preseribed under Section 133 of the Companies AQ, 2013 (the “Act”) read with the relevant rules Bsued thereunder and the other accounting principies
generally accepted in India.

4 Effective April 01, 2019, the Company has adopted Ind AS 116-Leases and applied it to all lease contracts existing on April 01, 2019 using the Modified
Retrospective Approach. Based on the same and as permitted under the spedific transitional provisions in the standard, the Company has not restated the
comparative figures. On transition, the adoption of the new standard resulted in recognition of right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease labilty of INR
1,072.50 bakhs. The effect of this adoption to the profit before tax for the year ended March 31, 2020 is decreased by INR 45.11 lakhs.

S The outbreak of COVID-19 virus continues to spread across the globe induding Inda, resulting into a significant dedine and volatility in financial markets and
a significant decrease in global and baal India’s ic activities. The C s mainly d in providing housing loans, d b loans for
MSME, loans, d and d loans to School and str d loans to corp All of these segments will be significantly impacted by
reduced income and/or job losses of the borrowers, reduced economic activities and delay in completion and sale of real estate projects due to the disruption
caused by the pandemic. All these will lead to major cash flow constraints and erosion in the asset values.

To deal with this P and in d. with RBI guidel relating to CoViD-19 Regulatory Package dated 27 March 2020 and 17 April 2020, the RBI,
the Company has g d wm of upto three hs on the of I falking due between 1 March 2020 to 31 May 2020 to all eligibie
borrowers who have d for the n The RBI via press release dated May 22, 2020 has itted lending ions to extend the
ium by her three hs, Le., from June 1, 2020 to August 31, 2020. The Company will be providing option for extending the moratorium to its
eligible bx s’ basis its app d board policy.
There were fewer loan disb during the lockd period and the line for the and i of the C y's lending activity
will be affected by several factors including, but not imRed to, including the pace of easing of the lockdown restrictions
The management has performed a detailed ot its hly cash inflows and outflows for next 12 months and concluded that it will be able to
meet its obligations even though s monthly coliections remain below normal due to continuation of lockdown.
The C: has ded an d cred loss provision of INR 1,475 lakh at 31 March 2020 in respect of &s loans and advance. In accordance with the
id from ICA), ion of the tob by the C: to the RBI guidelines relating to COVID-19 Regulatory Package dated
March 27, 2020 and April 17, 2020 and RBI press conference, by Rself is not considered to result in a SICR for a borrower. Given the unique nature and scale
of the economic impact of this p. the crednt perf and rep behaviour of the need to be monitored dosely. The expected
credit loss estimate & based on various highly uncertain and unobservable factors. In the event the impact of pandemic is more severe or prolonged than
anticipated, this will have a corresponding impact on the crrying value of the finandal assets, results of operation and the fi ial jon of the C

6 The Company has granted 23,435,000 options under Employee Stock Option Plans to eligible employees of the Company.

7 The company has issued 110,500,000 shares (Face Value INR 10 per share) at INR 17.5S per share to it's holding company Plutus Finandals Pwvt Ltd raising a
total capital of INR 19,392.75 bikhs during the financial year 2019-20.

8 The G y's primary buss & refk d based on the principal business carried out, i.c. financing and lending (Including loans to retail and

PO ). A dingly, no disch for segr ingis ired to be made in the financial statements of the Company. The

C princpally within India and does not have ions in 2 with diff risks and hence, it s dered
perating in single geographical seg!

9 The figures for half year ended 31 March 2020 and half year ended 31 March 2019 are the balancing figures b dited figures in respect of the full

finandial year ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019 and the unaudited year-to-date figures upto the half year ended 30 September 2019 and 30

ber 2018 ly. The same have have not been subjected to ekher review or audit and have been presented solely based on the information

d by the
10 The Previous year period figures have been reclassified/regrouped to confirm to the figures of the Current Period.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
&Ow
K -

Bhavesh Gupta
Chief Executive Officer

Place: Gurugram
Date: 30 June 2020




	PART 1 IM 1-39
	PART 2 IM 40-50
	PART 3  IM 51-100
	PART 4 IM 101-124
	Annexure x - In Principle Approval

